Trust Board meeting in Public Agenda

NHS|

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

There will be a meeting of the Trust Board held in public on Friday, 21 July 2023
from 9.15am to 10.55am held at rooms Al and A2 Whittington Education Centre
Highgate Hill London N19 5NF

Item Time

Title

Standing agenda items

Presenter

6.

0955

Quality Assurance Committee report

1. | 0915 | Patient experience story Chief Nurse Discuss

2. | 0935 | Welcome, apologies, declarations of Trust Chair Note
interest

3. | 0936 | 24 May 2023 public Board meeting Trust Chair Approve
minutes, action log, matters arising

4. | 0940 | Chair’s report Trust Chair Note

5. | 0945 | Chief Executive’s report Chief Executive | Note

Quality and safety

Committee Chair

Performance

Note

7. 11005 | Improvement Performance and Digital | Committee Chair | Approve
Committee Chair’s report
8. | 1015 | Finance and capital report Chief Finance Discuss
Officer
9. | 1025 | Integrated performance scorecard Director of Discuss
Strategy and
Corporate Affairs
10. | 1035 | Q1 Delivery of 2023/24 Corporate Director of Discuss
Objectives Strategy and
Corporate Affairs
11. | 1045 | Charitable Funds Committee Chair’s Committee Chair | Note
report
12. | 1050 | Questions to the Board from the public | Committee Chair | Note
agenda items
13. | 1055 | Any other urgent business Trust Chair Note




NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Minutes of the meeting held in public by the Board of Whittington Health NHS

Trust on 24 May 2023

Present:

Baroness Julia Neuberger

Non-Executive Director and Trust Chair

Helen Brown

Chief Executive

Kevin Curnow

Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer

Dr Clare Dollery

Medical Director

Amanda Gibbon

Non-Executive Director

Chinyama Okunuga Chief Operating Officer
Naomi Fulop Non-Executive Director
Baroness Glenys Thornton | Non-Executive Director
Rob Vincent CBE Non-Executive Director
Sarah Wilding Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health Professionals

In attendance:

Emmeline Closier

Interim Lead Nurse, Surgery & Cancer Integrated
Clinical Service Unit (item 1)

Casey Galloway

Macmillan Personalised Cancer Care Project Manager
(item 1)

Alex Negut

Patient Experience Project Lead (item 1)

Tracey Palmer

Macmillan Information & Support Manager (item 1)

Norma French

Director of Workforce

Jonathan Gardner

Director of Strategy & Corporate Affairs

Swarnijit Singh

Joint Director of Inclusion and Trust Company Secretary

Tina Jegede MBE

Joint Director of Inclusion & Nurse Lead, Islington Care
Homes

Marcia Marrast-Lewis

Assistant Trust Secretary

1. Welcome, apologies and declarations of interest

1.1 The Chair extended a warm welcome to everyone. Apologies for absence were
received from Junaid Bajwa, Non-Executive Director.

1.2 Glenys Thorton declared an interest in as Officer of the All-Party Parliamentary
Group on the British Curry Catering Industry which would be added to the
register of Board member’s declarations.

2. Minutes of the previous meeting

arising.

2.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2023 were approved as a
correct record and the updated action log was noted. There were no matters
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Patient experience story

3.2

Sarah Wilding introduced Mr X who explained that, since the age of three, he

had been treated at a hospital for a number of different injuries and illnesses

ranging from a broken leg, collar bone and more recently chronic back pain,

Parkinson’s disease and prostate cancer. Mr X outlined the following points to

Board members:

¢ As his older brother had been diagnosed with prostate cancer, he decided
that he would be tested as the condition was known to run in families. He
attended his GP with his initial concerns and was quickly referred to
Whittington hospital for further investigation and treatment.

e Mr X found that the hospital responded promptly, despite hospital services
emerging from the pandemic. His appointments followed quickly and
smoothly. His experience with hospital consultants was also very positive,
as clinicians were thorough with their investigations, and explained each
step and issue in a comprehensive and detailed manner.

e Mr X reported a positive experience with the Macmillan Cancer Support
team. Meetings were well organised, started on time and information was
delivered through different mediums, such as talks, interactive sessions
and presentations.

e Mr X was able to draw on his professional experience as a journalist,
media producer and reporter to engage with the group by writing and
delivering power point presentations himself. While he was receiving
cancer treatment, he made the decision to retire from his job as a sports
journalist, after a 40-year career.

e Sometimes there was duplication with appointment letters and it would be
preferable if one letter was posted and a second reminder sent by email.

e He was reassured when radiologists explained what they were doing
during procedures, particularly when he was left alone while the scan was
operational.

e Panic buttons should be available for patients in the MRI scanner at the
Royal Free Hospital, to help with anxiety.

e |t was important for staff to make sure that he left the Royal Free building
safely, as his back problems sometimes caused him severe pain which
made walking from the department on his own to his transport difficult.

e He felt completely at ease with all staff that he dealt with throughout his
numerous appointments. He expressed his personal gratitude to the NHS
and acknowledged the invaluable service provided to him and to the
public.

In discussion, the following points were made:

¢ Tina Jegede thanked Mr X for sharing his patient experience and
suggested that his story should be shared with other services across the
hospital to help motivate others to take on board his suggestions and ideas
for improvement.

e Tracey Palmer added that the Macmillan Cancer Support team at
Whittington Health provided good wellbeing and emotional support to
patients accessing cancer services. Patients who did not want one-to-one
support were encouraged to attend events as part of a more holistic
approach to wellbeing.
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¢ Amanda Gibbon supported Mr X’s recommendation in relation to panic
buttons for patients undergoing MRI scans, which would be appreciated by
patients with anxiety and claustrophobia.

e Jonathan Gardner agreed that more work was needed to reduce the
duplication of appointment letters and explained that a patient application
had been created for patients to access appointments and correspondence
and further promotion of, and communication about, the application would
take place.

e Rob Vincent highlighted the challenges faced by the public attending
outpatient appointments, as road maps and signage might not be as easy
to understand for patients coming into the hospital for the first time.

The Chair thanked Patient X for sharing his patient experience story and
ideas for improvements with Board members.

4. Chair’s report

4.1 The Chair thanked all staff that worked and supported the hospital during the
junior doctors’ industrial action.

4.2 The Chair highlighted the special memorial service that was held for the late
Debbie Saunders, a member of the Project Wingman team, who ran the
Wingman lounge during the pandemic.

4.3 The Chair also reported that she had chaired the first meeting of the
Partnership Development Committee-in-Common between University College
London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Whittington Health NHS Trust on
16 May. The Committee had considered initial plans for the two Trusts to work
together more collaboratively.

4.4 The Chair thanked Amanda Gibbon, who had chaired a number of recruitment
panels for consultant appointments.

The Trust Board noted the Chair’s report.
5. Chief Executive’s report
5.1 Helen Brown summarised her report and drew attention to the following:

¢ She thanked all staff who had worked to mitigate the impact of industrial
action taken by junior doctors by safely maintaining as many services as
possible.

e Further industrial action had been announced to take place from 14 to 17
June and the Trust would now take steps to prepare, applying the learning
from the previous two strikes.

e Norma French confirmed that two new ballots for industrial action by the
Royal College of Nurses and the British Medical Association’s consultants
committee were in progress and would close on 27 and 23 June
respectively.

e The Board was asked to certify compliance with the Trust’s Provider
Licence conditions.

¢ Helen Brown highlighted the International Day of the Midwife and
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5.2

International Nurses’ Day had taken place and were marked with a number
of events by staff.

e Caroline Clarke was congratulated on her appointment as the London
Regional Director for NHS England.

e The Trust was still in discussion with the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
about its final report and rating for maternity services.

Tina Jegede commented on the success of the International Midwives’ Day
event held at the Trust which she attended with Chinyama Okunuga. She
welcomed the cohesiveness and collaborative working across the service and
hoped that midwives would continue to come forward with ideas for
improvement and to support inclusion.

The Trust Board noted the Chief Executive’s report and approved the
certifications for compliance with provider licence conditions.

Quality Assurance Committee Chair’s report

6.2

6.3

6.4

Amanda Gibbon presented the report for the meeting held on 10 May. She

highlighted the following five key areas of risk agreed by Committee members:

e The CQC report and rating of maternity services

e The ongoing impact of industrial action on services, and particularly on
elective recovery.

¢ Sickle cell service were challenged by clinical governance issues,
complaints and resources.

e The waiting list backlog.

e Poor scores received under the Patient-Led Assessment of the Care
Environment (PLACE) annual assessment.

Amanda Gibbon confirmed that the Committee took significant assurance from

the following items on the agenda:

e A presentation on the dementia service on the progress of improvement
work undertaken following a national audit.

e The Committee considered a report on end-of-life care over the previous
12 months.

e The Committee considered a quarterly learning from deaths report and
noted that, during the period 1st October to 31 December 2022, there were
116 adult inpatient deaths reported at Whittington Health compared with
117 in the previous quarter.

e The maternity services board report provided assurance that the Trust’s
submission for the Maternity Incentive Scheme was correct and was not
impacted by the CQC'’s rating of maternity services.

Amanda Gibbon advised that the Committee received moderate assurance on
the elective recovery report and had also agreed quality priorities for 2023/24.

Amanda Gibbon reported that the Committee had received limited assurance
on the outcome of the PLACE inspection, which had highlighted improvements
needed, particularly around cleanliness. The Committee had noted that a
number of actions were in place in response to the report and that similar
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PLACE assessments would take place to help assess the progress achieved.

The Committee also received limited assurance on the sickle cell service,
which was challenged by a lack of dedicated beds. Chinyama Okunuga
assured Board members that a bed modelling exercise had taken place and
had identified eight beds and that, in the coming weeks, meetings were
planned with colleagues to consider options to take forward. Helen Brown
added that additional workforce development actions would also be taken to
support the service and that funding had been ringfenced for the sickle cell
service. A progress update was scheduled for the Quality Assurance
Committee and the Trust Board, in due course.

In discussion the Board members raised the following points:

e Clare Dollery reported on the ongoing challenges around the recruitment of
appropriately qualified haematologists.

e Tina Jegede highlighted the importance of keeping patients that used the
sickle cell service well informed of developments and that executive
director attendance at patient groups was an important way in which to
engage and inform sickle cell patients.

e Naomi Fulop raised the need for assurance around infection control
measures, as there were increased incidents of clostridium difficile
infections and the cleanliness issues raised in the PLACE report were of
considerable concern.

e Helen Brown assured Board members that considerable work had been
undertaken within the estates & facilities directorate to improve cleaning
services, including the recruitment of bank staff as substantive staff and
support for development and training, which had resulted in positive
feedback and increased resilience within the team.

e Chinyama Okunuga explained that nursing teams had undertaken several
spot checks of cleanliness on wards to monitor progress.

e Sarah Wilding reiterated that tidiness and general housekeeping was the
responsibility of all staff. She reported that five incidents of clostridium
difficile had been recorded in 2022/23 against a trajectory of 13. She
assured Board members that there was no commonality between the
cases and that clostridium difficile infections were a national problem post-
Covid-19.

e Amanda Gibbon noted that there was a lag between the PLACE inspection
in November 2022 and the delivery of the final report. She highlighted the
lack of patient privacy in addition to the cleanliness issue as areas for
action. In addition, she raised the importance of walk rounds by staff.

e Kevin Curnow confirmed that a smaller PLACE audit was planned for early
June, which would take place across three hospital Trusts in North Central
London. Once the results were collated and analysed, a comprehensive
report would be submitted to the Trust Board in July 2023.

The Trust Board noted the Chair’s assurance report for the Quality
Assurance Committee meeting held on 10 May 2023 and that the
outcome of further PLACE inspections would be reported to the Board in
July 2023.
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Integrated Performance Report

7.2

Jonathan Gardner presented the report and highlighted the following points:

There was one incident of clostridium difficile in April.

There were no grade four pressure ulcers and eight grade 3 pressure
ulcers recorded. An extra skills day had been arranged for 14 July 2023 to
support work on the reduction of pressure ulcers.

Response times for complaints had decreased and the Patient Advice and
Liaison Team would continue to work with the Integrated Clinical Support
Units’ governance managers to better manage complaint response times.
Emergency department metrics covering access standards, trolley
breaches and ambulance handovers demonstrated slight improvements in
April 2023 compared to March 2023, but remained below national targets.
Performance against cancer metrics also showed small signs of
improvement

Performance against the 62-day referral to treatment target was at 57.7%
for March 2023. Although this was still below the national target, it was a
significant improvement from February’s performance.

Referral to treatment targets had been negatively impacted by the junior
doctors’ strike and bed availability continued to be an issue.

The Trust had 10 patients who had waited over 78 weeks for treatment at
the end of April 2023. The national aim was for no patients to have waited
over 78 weeks by the end of June 2023.

DMO1 diagnostic waiting times had worsened by 4.09% from March, partly
driven by the impact of the junior doctors’ strike on capacity and continued
problems in audiology, echocardiology and sleep studies. A recovery plan
was in place for audiology.

In terms of elective recovery, the industrial action had adversely impacted
on performance in April, but May had seen a significant improvement.
There were also improvements with appointment slots issues (ASIs).

In discussion, Board members raised the following points:

Amanda Gibbon welcomed the good work carried out on theatre utilisation
and sought assurance on ASls. In reply, Chinyama Okunuga explained
that ASIs arose when there were insufficient appointment slots to fill
demand arising from GP referrals. She advised that specific concerns were
needed for ear nose and throat appointments and general surgery, where
there were over 2,000 appointment slots needed for both specialities.
Chinyama Okunuga confirmed that some progress to clear the backlog
had been made as additional appointment slots had been generated and a
data cleansing exercise was also in progress.

Clare Dollery reported that the North Central London system had
implemented a process of harm reviews for any patient on an admitted
pathway and in the priority 2 category who had waited more than 78 weeks
for treatment.

Chinyama Okunuga assured Board members that several workstreams
were in place to take forward the improvement work needed against
performance targets.

Rob Vincent queried whether the progress made in performance was due
to improved processes or a reduction in operational pressures. He
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suggested that a detailed report on the creation of a long-term sustainable
recovery plan for the emergency department should be brought back to the
Board for assurance.

e Helen Brown commented on the complexity of issues affecting
performance in the emergency department, and agreed that, while there
was a slight improvement in performance, the number of 12-hour breaches
remained too high. This issue was also discussed at the Finance and
Business Development Committee and the focus would need to be on
ensuring that capacity was utilised in the most efficient manner.

The Trust Board noted the report and agreed that a recovery plan for the
emergency department be brought to a future Board meeting.

Finance, capital expenditure and cost improvement report

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Kevin Curnow reported that the Trust delivered a deficit of £3.52m at the end

of April against a target of £2.75m, an adverse variance of £770k. He

explained that the adverse financial performance to plan was mainly driven by:

e The non-delivery of savings from cost improvement programmes (CIP)

e Underperformance on elective recovery, which impacted the receipt of
elective recovery fund monies.

e Other expenditure overspends related to surge capacity and the impact of
the junior doctors’ strike.

Kevin Curnow reported that a small reduction in agency expenditure of circa
£400k was achieved in April. It was expected that agency costs would be
further reduced in some of the services, such as critical care and neonatal
intensive care unit, in the summer months but would continue to be a
challenge during winter.

The cash position at the end of April was £67.9m. The 2023/24 capital
expenditure programme was £24m and £1.7m of capital was spent in month
one.

Kevin Curnow highlighted work to identify CIP schemes against the £18m
target for the year. He also confirmed that final agreement was needed in
terms of priorities for capital expenditure and a report would be brought to the
Trust Board in June 2023.

In reply to a question from Naomi Fulop on the 2023/24 financial plan
submitted to the NCL system, Kevin Curnow explained that the final submitted
plan was revised to comply with the NCL system’s request that providers
should submit a surplus position and that additional savings or adjustments of
£2m would be needed.

The Trust Board noted the Finance report and noted that a report on
capital expenditure priorities would be considered at its June 2023
meeting.

Workforce Assurance Committee Chair’s report

Rob Vincent presented the report which reported on the detailed discussions
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that took place at the Workforce Assurance Committee meeting held on 26

April 2023. He explained that the Committee received and discussed:

e Updates in respect of the industrial action taking place.

e A review of the Committee’s self-assessment and its updated terms of
reference, for which approval was needed by the Board.

e The adjustment of workforce performance indicators for statutory and
mandatory training and appraisals.

e An update on the staff survey findings for access to adequate materials.

e Equality standard submissions to NHS England for disability and race.

e An annual report on the gender pay gap.

9.2 In reply to a query from Amanda Gibbon on the number of disciplinary cases
that resulted in a “no case to answer” outcome, Norma French confirmed that
numbers were relatively small and that the implementation of the restorative
just culture initiative and fair treatment panels had already seen a positive
impact on the reduction of formal disciplinary cases.

The Trust Board noted the Workforce Assurance Committee Chair’s

report and approved the Committee’s revised terms of reference.

10. Innovation & Digital Performance Committee Chair’s report

10.1 | Jonathan Gardner presented the report which highlighted discussions that took
place at the meeting held on 20 May 2023. He explained that the Committee
took good assurance on the following items discussed:

e Arevision and amendment of the Committee’s terms of reference which
would now include performance going forward. The Committee also
agreed that its name would be amended to reflect the change to its role
and would be known the Digital Innovation and Performance Committee.
The final draft of the terms of reference would be approved at the next
meeting of the committee.

e The Committee reviewed progress of patient systems implemented which
included:

o An electronic document record management system

o Digitised virtual wards

o Initialised London Care records

o Connected Badgernet

o A new Electronic Prescribing Medicines Administration system
o Digitised echocardiograms

e The Committee also discussed the progress of the procurement of a new
electronic patient record system.

e the Trust’s draft Green Plan.

10.2

Clare Dollery explained that the new electronic echocardiogram would
advance the care of cardiac patients, particularly when they presented as an
emergency.

The Trust Board noted the Innovation and Digital Performance
Committee Chair’s report.

Page 8 of 10




11. Questions from the public

11.1 | The Chair confirmed that no questions relevant to the agenda had been
received.

12. Any other business

12.1 | There was no other business to discuss.
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Trust Board, 24 May 2023 public Board action log

Declarations of
interest

Update the register of Board member’s interests in
line with the new disclosure by Glenys Thornton

Marcia Marrast-Lewis

Completed

Patient Story

Arrange more publicity for the patient application
so that patients can access appointments in a
more efficient manner, avoiding the use of
duplicate letters.

Jonathan Gardner and
Communications team

Options are being explored,
including the better
promotion of the Zesty
patient portal

Explore the possibility of a podcast with the patient

Sarah Wilding and
Communications team

Completed

Chair's Assurance

Update the Trust Board on the outcome of the

Kevin Curnow

This will be reported at the

report QAC additional PLACE assessment taking place in September Quality
June. Assurance Committee and
Board meetings
Integrated Bring back a long-term sustainable recovery plan Chinyama Okunuga This is being reported to the
Performance for the emergency department Innovation, Performance
report and Digital Committee’s

October meeting

Finance Report

Bring back a report on priorities for the 2023/24
capital expenditure programme to the June 2023
meeting.

Kevin Curnow

This is being brought to the
September Board meeting
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NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust
Meeting title Trust Board — public meeting Date: 21 July 2023
Report title Chair’s report Agenda item: 4

Non-Executive Director

Julia Neuberger, Trust Chair

Executive director lead

Jonathan Gardner, Director of Strategy and Corporate Affairs

Report authors

Swarnijit Singh, Joint Director of Inclusion and Trust Secretary, and
Julia Neuberger

Executive summary

This report provides a summary of activity since the last Board
meeting held in public in May.

Purpose

Noting

Recommendation

Board members are asked to note the report.

Board Assurance
Framework

All entries

Report history

Report to each Board meeting held in public

Appendices

None

Page 1 of 3




Chair’s report

This report updates Board members on activities since the last Board meeting held in public.

May and June private Board meetings and June Board seminar

The Board of Whittington Health held private meetings on 24 May and 29 June. Agenda items
discussed at the May meeting included update on fire remediation work and the private finance
initiative building and on the North Central London system’s Start Well review, the 2023/24
financial plan submission. In addition, Board members received a helpful presentation on the
Virtual Ward for which Whittington Health is the lead provider in our system.

The substantive item at the June private meeting was the assurance report from the Audit and
Risk Committee Chair. The Board took good assurance from the external audit and approved the
2022/23 Annual Report and Accounts. In addition, the Board approved for publication the 2022/23
Quiality Account and the 2023/26 Green Plan. Board members received a report highlighting
developments with key strategic projects, discussed an update on fire remediation, noted the
assurance report from the Finance and Business Development Committee Chair and reviewed the
monthly reports on finance and capital expenditure and performance. The Board seminar was
wholly devoted to cyber security training.

Staff awards

| was delighted to attend the annual staff awards event on 21 June. Our 2023 Staff Awards
received over 300 nominations across 10 categories which they whittled down to just four finalists
for each award. The finalists and the people who had nominated them were invited to the awards
ceremony hosted by Channel 4 News'’s Health and Social Editor, Victoria Macdonald, where the
winners were announced. It was incredibly difficult to whittle down the 300 to just four finalists in
each category and even harder to pick just one winner. On behalf of the Board, | congratulate all
staff who were nominated and to our winners:

Outstanding Contribution to Ensuring Equity: Samina Ishaq

Individual Commitment to Excellence in a Clinical Role Award: Sandra Glynn

Individual Commitment to Excellence in a Non-Clinical Role Award: Sam Sleight

Team Commitment to BetterNeverStops: The Barnet and Enfield Paediatric Audiology Service
Improving Patient Safety Award: The Pharmacy Team

Paula Mattin — Emerging Leader Award: Zoe Broadhead

Patient Choice Award: Ayla Ozkan

Unsung Hero Award: The Mortuary Team

Chair Special Recognition Award: The Whittington Health Volunteers

Chair’s Special Living our Values Award: Chet Palmer

Consultant recruitment panels
| am grateful to non-executive director colleagues for their participation in the following recruitment
and selection panels for a consultant posts:

Post title Non-Executive Director Selection panel date
Consultant Child & Adolescent
Psychiatrist & Lead Clinician Paediatric Junaid Bajwa 15 June 2023

Mental Health

Consultant Radiologists - Clinical

Diagnostic Centre Rob Vincent 23 June 2023
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Post title Non-Executive Director Selection panel date

C_onsulta_nt Radiologists - Clinical Glenys Thornton 30 June 2023
Diagnostic Centre

Consultant in Obstetrics & Gynaecology

(Maternal & Fetal Medicine) Glenys Thornton 11 July 2023

Whittington Learning Disability Film Premier event

On 19 June, | enjoyed attending the premiere of a film called “empathy kin Motion: Unveiling
Hospital Journeys”. The event showcased our new films that help people with a learning disability
to better understand their visit to hospital and helped to mark the start of Learning Disability Week.
Over 30 guests attended the screening, including patients and their families, clinicians, local
councillors, and Sir David Sloman, NHS England’s Chief Operating Officer, and Tom Cabhill,
National Director for Learning Disability and Autism. The patient scenario films were co-designed
with our patients and aim to reduce the anxiety people may have before attending unfamiliar
hospital environments. We want to ensure that all patients feel more confident and informed to
access health care when they need it. These patient scenario films, support our work in improving
the reasonable adjustments we provide for patients with learning disabilities and help the Trust to
become a more accessible organisation and to ensure our local communities are empowered to
access care tailored to their needs.

New Birth Centre

| was very pleased to attend the opening of the refurbished midwife-led Birth Centre on 27 June.
The refurbishments include the installation of new birthing pools which now feature fully
customisable LED lighting allowing users to select the exact mood they want for their birth. | was
joined by Baroness Glenys Thornton, non-executive director, and Board maternity safety
champion. Whittington Health was honoured to have the new Birth Centre opened by Baroness
Cumberledge, vice-president of the Royal Colleges for Nurses and Midwives, a previous junior
Health Minister and author of the Better Births review of maternity services in 2015 for NHS
England®.

North Central London Integrated Care Board
On 27 June, | attended a seminar for members of the North Central London Integrated Care
Board.

Corporate induction
In May and June, | took part in corporate induction training and welcomed new starters at the
Trust.

Partnership Development Committee in Common

On 13 July, | chaired the second meeting of the Partnership Development Committee-in-Common
between University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Whittington Health NHS
Trust. The substantive item was the work developed by Carnall Farrar on the case for
collaboration. Committee members discussed and fed back comments on the recommendations
outlined in the presentation which will be discussed further in our part Il meeting today along with
next steps, including communication with stakeholders.

1 national-maternity-review-report.pdf (england.nhs.uk)
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Report title Chief Executive’s report Agenda item: 5

Executive director lead

Helen Brown, Chief Executive

Report authors

Swarnijit Singh, Joint Director of Inclusion and Trust Secretary, and
Helen Brown

Executive summary

This report provides Board members with updates on national and
local developments since the last meeting held in public in May
2023.

Purpose

Noting

Recommendation

Board members are invited to note the report.

Board Assurance
Framework

All Board Assurance Framework entries

Report history

Report to each Board meeting held in public

Appendices

1: 2022/23 Annual Report
2: 2022/23 Annual Accounts
3:2023/26 Green Plan

Page 1 of 4




Chief Executive’s report

Industrial action

| would like to thank all staff at Whittington Health and across the North Central
London Integrated Care System who have either been involved in either planning for
or, responding to, the impact caused by industrial action. This month will see an
unprecedented level of industrial action: 13 July marked the start of five days’ action
by junior doctors, followed by two days of industrial action by consultants from 20 to
22 July and then by radiographers from 25 to 27 July. The primary focus at
Whittington Health has been to keep our patients safe and to protect the wellbeing of
our staff. | would also like to thank staff who have demonstrated great flexibility and
helped teams to manage the impact of these strikes.

NHS 75

On 5 July, we marked the 75" birthday of the National Health Service. This important
anniversary was marked in different ways by Trust staff: attending the service at
Westminster Abbey; holding an NHS Big Tea party at the Tynemouth Road Health
Centre and in other locations; and helping to fundraise for the charity. We also had
long service awards to celebrate staff who had reached 10 and 15 years with Whittington
Health. In addition, we partnered with local schools on a range of events to engage and
educate young people on healthcare, the NHS and our trust. Since it was founded in 1948
as the first free universal health system, the NHS continues to be respected as it has
positively impacted on so many people’s lives and currently treats over a million
people each day in England.

NHS Long Term Workforce Plan

The first comprehensive NHS workforce plan was published on 30 June by NHS
England®. The plan sets out a strategic direction for the long term and focuses on
retaining existing talent and making the next use of new technology alongside the
biggest recruitment drive in health service history. Actions to be taken at a national,
regional and local level fall into three priority areas:

« Train: significantly increasing education and training to record levels, as well as
increasing apprenticeships and alternative routes into professional roles, to
deliver more doctors and dentists, more nurses and midwives, and more of other
professional groups, including new roles designed to better meet the changing
needs of patients and support the ongoing transformation of care.

o Retain: ensuring improved staff retention by better supporting people throughout
their careers, boosting the flexibilities offered to our staff to work in ways that suit
them and work for patients, and continuing to improve the culture and leadership
across NHS organisations.

« Reform: improving productivity by working and training in different ways,
building broader teams with flexible skills, changing education and training to
deliver more staff in roles and services where they are needed most, and
ensuring staff have the right skills to take advantage of new technology that frees
up clinicians’ time to care, increases flexibility in deployment, and provides the
care patients need more effectively and efficiently.

1 NHS England » NHS Long Term Workforce Plan
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Whittington Health’s workforce team are developing our updated People strategy to
align with the new national plan.

NHS England equality, diversity and inclusion improvement plan

Published on 8 June, NHS England’s equality, diversity and inclusion improvement
plan? sets out targeted actions to address the prejudice and discrimination — direct
and indirect — that exists through workplace behaviours, policies, practices and
cultures. The plan includes six high impact actions that our inclusion team will be
taking forward with an aligned strategy, and which | know Board members will
support. The actions cover individual and collective objectives for Board members;
embedding fair and inclusive recruitment processes and talent management
strategies that target under-representation and lack of diversity; developing and
implementing an improvement plan to eliminate pay gaps; tackling health inequalities
within the workforce; implementing a comprehensive induction, onboarding and
development programme for internationally-recruited staff; and creating an
environment that eliminates the conditions in which bullying, discrimination,
harassment and physical violence at work occur.

Senior staff changes

Senior staff changes are taking place at Whittington Health. First, Kevin Curnow, our
Chief Finance Officer, leave at the end of this month for a new role at East London
NHS Foundation Trust. the Trust. | am grateful for his service and wish him well.
While a recruitment exercise is underway for a replacement, Jerry Francine will act
up as Interim Chief Finance Officer. Secondly, Alison Kett, Operational Director of
Adult Community Services and Acting Deputy Chief Operating officer will retire at the
end of July. | want to thank Kevin and Alison for all their hard work and contribution
to Whittington Health and wish them good luck for the future. As part of other
changes, Jonathan Gardner, Director of Strategy and Corporate Affairs, will take on
executive director responsibility for our estates and facilities service and Juliette
Marshall, Director of Communication and Engagement has gone on a 12-month
sabbatical.

There are also changes to the Medical Director’s team following a successful
recruitment process, as follows:

Clarissa Murdoch, Deputy Medical Director

Sola Makinde, Associate Medical Director for Workforce

Erum Jamall, Associate Director for Quality Improvement and Effectiveness
Phillip Lee, Associate Director for Patient Safety

Sarah Gillis, Associate Director for Learning from Deaths

Chetan Parmar and Hugh Montgomery, Joint Directors of Research and
Innovation

e Johnny Swart, Whittington Health Undergraduate Site lead for University
College London Medical School

2022/23 Annual Report and Accounts
Whittington Health’s annual report and accounts for the last financial year were
approved at the private Board meeting in June. | am pleased that the accounts

2 NHS equality, diversity, and inclusion improvement plan (england.nhs.uk)
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received an unqualified opinion from our external auditors. Both are appended to my

report.

2023/26 Green Plan

At the June private Board meeting, Whittington Health’s Green Plan was welcomed
and approved and will help the organisation to achieve the net zero targets set for
the NHS.

Other events
There have been a number of important events that Whittington Health has
celebrated since the May Board meeting held in public:

Windrush - we celebrated the 75th anniversary of Windrush a few weeks
earlier, with a talk at the Windrush statue outside our hospital

Our annual staff awards acknowledged the great contributions made by staff
and service teams last year and details of the winners in each category are
included in the Chair’s report to this Board meeting

Pride month — June was Pride Month and provided an opportunity to support
LGBTQ+ colleagues, patients and service users. Our staff network organised
a series of events to help raise awareness

Estates and Facilities Day — on 21 June, staff took part in the second annual
national Healthcare Estates and Facilities Day. Our estates and facilities
team are highly valued and make up 10% of our total staff. They are always
working hard to ensure we have a clean and safe environment.

As part of London Climate Action Week, Professor Hugh Montgomery and
Dr Mark Harber gave an enjoyable and illuminating talk in the Whittington
Lecture Theatre titled: 'An emergency update on the climate crisis and the
things we can do that are constructive and positive as individuals and as
institutions.
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INTRODUCTION

LI Welcome to our 2022/23 annual report which outlines how,

: over the past year, the tremendous work of the staff and
volunteers of Whittington Health NHS Trust has supported
over 500,000 people living across North Central London
~and beyond to live longer, healthier lives.

The year was encapsulated by the following key themes
where we continued to:

e provide safe care to our patients as we progressed
plans to tackle the post-COVID-19 backlog in some

services
e work collaboratively with our partners in the North
Helen Brown, Chief Central London Integrated Care System, the
Executive, (Top) University College London Healthcare Alliance and in

o Sl the third sector
aroness Jutia . e support the health and wellbeing and resilience of our
?'Be(;‘t?g;?)er DBE, Chair brilliant and dedicated staff who have maintained their
excellent resilience in the face of considerable
pressures
e progress improvements in our workplace culture
e improve our partnership work with local authority
partners to tackle local health inequalities
e plan mitigating actions for the impact of industrial
action

There were several changes to our board and senior leadership team in 2022/23. We
welcomed Helen Brown as our new Chief Executive, Sarah Wilding as Chief Nurse
and Director of Allied Health Professionals, and Chinyama Okunuga as Chief
Operating officer. We said goodbye to executive directors, Siobhan Harrington,
Michelle Johnson and Carol Gillen, and to non-executive directors, Anu Singh and
Tony Rice.
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PERFORMANCE REPORT

Overview

Whittington Health is one of London’s leading integrated care
organisations — helping local people to live longer, healthier lives.

We provide hospital and community care services to over half a million people living
in Islington and Haringey as well as those living in Barnet, Enfield, Camden and
Hackney. Whittington Health provided over 40 acute and 60 community health
services in 2022/23. In addition, we provide dental services in 10 London boroughs.
Every day, we aim to provide high quality and safe healthcare to people either in
our hospital, in their homes or in nearby clinics. We are here to support our patients
throughout their healthcare journey — this is what makes us an integrated care
organisation.

Our services and our approach are driven by our vision

We have an excellent reputation for being innovative, responsive and flexible to
the changing clinical needs of the local population and for leading the way in the
provision of integrated community and hospital services. We are treating more
patients than ever before and are dedicated to improving services to deliver the best
care for our patients, with a clear focus on integrating care for women, children, and
the adult frail.
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2019/24 Trust strategy

Our vision motivates us:
““Helping local people live longer healthier lives”

Our values guide how we act: I-CARE
Innovation / Compassion / Accountability / Respect / Excellence

Our objectives tell us how we will achieve the vision in partnership with patients and service users:

Transform and
Deliver Empower. subport Integrate care deliver
outstanding safe, P » SUPP with partners and innovative
and develop :
compassionate promote health financially
engaged staff . :
care and wellbeing sustainable

services
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SERVICE STRATEGY

integrating care in all
settings supporting
population needs

across three core
pillars to deliver
outstanding
community and
hospital services

| Patient, GP
H locality
L

Rapid response teams,
DHs, hospital @ home,

ED /AL, general
= |, frailty IR, ICU
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Within each of our four strategic objectives we have set out more
specifically what we mean and what our ambition is:

Annual corporate objectives
e Improve trust safety rating to “good” by completing our Care Quality
Commission action plan and:
» Embed the role and function of learning from deaths with medical
examiners
Improve learning from serious incidents and never events
Improve medicine management
Implement recommendations within the Ockenden Review (two reports
published) of Maternity services
Enhance our Better Never Stops programme following our QI strategy, and
listening to patients and staff

YV VVYVYVY

e Recover backlogs efficiently by:
» Working with the system in surgical hubs to rapidly build capacity, focussing
on reducing inequalities.
» Maintaining expanded rapid response services across adult and children
and young people’s services

e Deliver quality (year 3) and patient experience (year 1) priorities:
» Improve communication (between staff and patients, and across multi-
disciplinary teams)
Reduce harm from hospital- acquired deconditioning
Improve blood transfusion safety culture at the hospital
Improve understanding of human factors and making healthcare as safe as
possible
Reduce health inequalities in our local population

YV VVY

Strategic Empower, support and develop an engaged staff
objective community
Annual corporate objectives
e Continually improve morale:
» In line with the People Promise to implement a new workforce strategy
» By continuing with the cultural action plan focussing on engagement and
bullying and harassment
» Promoting inclusive, compassionate leadership, accountability and team
>

working

Caring for staff and supporting staff recovery through a range of offerings
including mental health support, celebrations, and time to reflect and
recuperate

e Recruit, develop and retain talent through:
» Working with North Central London Integrated Care System and the
University College London Healthcare Alliance
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Improving occupational health services across the ICS

Improving the diversity of our senior workforce in line with our Model
Employer targets

Developing and supporting clinical leads and managers

Improving professional standards and ways of working in the hospital and
the community through Practice Development Practitioners and leadership
development for Clinical Nurse Specialists

» Recruiting locally and developing new roles

YV VYV

Strategic Integrate care with partners and promote health and
objective wellbeing

Annual corporate objectives

e Be abeacon for integrated care by:
» Leading on new models in NCL,
» Expanding and improving the new model of care in localities with our
primary care, PCN, council and voluntary sector partners
» Proactively care for vulnerable people in the community

e Play our role as an anchor institution to reduce inequalities and improve
population health by:
» Making every contact count
» Engaging with the community
» Becoming a source of health advice and education

e Make the most of our strengths for system benefit through:
Implementing a joint oncology model with University College London
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Delivering the general surgery, urology, dermatology and gynaecological
hub models for the North Central London system

Supporting any system changes in paediatrics and maternity

Working with Camden & Islington NHS Foundation Trust on development of
new hospital

Shaping and steering borough partnerships, the integrated care board and
the provider alliance.

Leading the transformation of children’s community and rapid response /
virtual ward services in North Central London

Hosting the Community Diagnostic Centre in Wood Green

Maintaining the strength of the orthopaedics collaboration with University
College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

vV Vv V¥V VV V
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Strategic Transform and deliver innovative, financially sustainable
objective services

Annual corporate objectives

e Deliver productivity gains to achieve cost improvement plan targets

Design and deliver financial recovery plan by:
» Working with system partners to achieve financial sustainability
» Delivering in-year financial targets

Deliver hospital and community estate transformation plans (maternity
and neonatal services and the Wood Green community hub)

Deliver year one of the new digital strategy through:

» Rolling out agile and hybrid working and ensuring that we support working
safely in offices, at home and clinical environments

» Progressing the Outline Business Case (OBC) for a new electronic patient
record system

» Improving and innovating in digital, data, and analytics, using data to
transform services

e Conclude the private finance initiative (PFI) deal and continue
rectification of the PFI building

e Develop education and research and make the most of our participation
in the biomedical research centre

This strategy was created with the engagement of staff, the public and stakeholders.
It was embedded throughout the organisation in the following ways:

the Trust’s annual operational plan

the accountability framework for integrated clinical service units (ICSUS)
ICSUSs’ business plans

annual staff and team appraisals

individual and team objectives
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Values

The Trust's ICARE values were developed through staff engagement and
consultation and continue to be fundamental to everything we do at Whittington
Health. They are underpinned by an overarching value of equity and form the basis
of expected staff behaviours.

INNOVATION
COMPASSION

ACCOUNTABILITY

)/ DS

RESPECT

@ EXCELLENCE

EQUITY

Our services

Our service priorities are focussed on our population needs: integrating care in all
settings with emphasis on women, children and frail adult patients and residents.

Our priority is to deliver the right care, at the right time, and in the right place for our
patients. We provide an extensive range of services from our main hospital site and
run services from over 30 community locations in Islington and Haringey, and our
dental services are run from sites across 10 boroughs.

As an integrated care organisation, we bring safe and high-quality services closer to
home and speed up communication between community and hospital services,
improving our patients’ experience reducing admissions and speeding up discharge.
Key to our approach is partnering with patients, carers, GPs, social care, mental
health and other healthcare providers.

Our organisation has a highly regarded educational role. We teach undergraduate
medical students (as part of University College London Medical School) and nurses
and therapists throughout the year, alongside providing a range of educational
packages for postgraduate doctors and other healthcare professionals. We also
have a growing research arm which is exceeding Clinical Research Network targets.
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Highlights and achievements

We are proud of our staff and their commitment to delivering safe and high-quality
care every day of the year. During the last financial year, our community and hospital
teams have once again been impressive in their professionalism. Patients were
supported to be at home where they could and only came to hospital when it was
necessary. Here are a few of the many highlights of the year and achievements of
our staff:

Adult Community Services

e Our district nursing team successfully moved from paper notes in patient homes
onto a single electronic patient record visible across the organisation increasing
patient safety and improving communication between teams

e We expanded our successful virtual ward at the Whittington Hospital and
implemented remote monitoring pilots which are being evaluated

e We are leading the virtual ward expansion for North Central London and working
with our system partners to design the best models and align clinical pathways
across the region

e We piloted a successful co-produced race equity development programme for
our senior leaders resulting in 50% securing promotions during the pilot

e Alongside the trust launch of the new ‘Managing Challenging Behaviour Policy’,
we designed and delivered bespoke community-based training on managing
challenging behaviour on home visits which was delivered to over 200 people

e We also rolled out discreet ‘People Safe’ devices to provide real time support to
our staff members if they feel unsafe on community visits

e We co-designed and delivered a bespoke development programme for our care
Group Leads

e Together with our system partners, we are delivering health inequalities projects
for early recognition of heart failure and culturally appropriate diabetes
management

e We provided mental health outreach sessions in local community centres,
including mosques, through our Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
team to improve local residents’ health. We also ran community-based long term
conditions drop-in centres to provide education and support to local residents

e 43,372 vaccines (COVID-19, flu and polio) were delivered to local residents,
including more than 7,000 local housebound residents

e We embedded a bookwise room booking system to significantly improve clinic
room utilisation to free up space, allowing us to support primary care with GP
practice relocation

e We worked with Islington partners for an integrated front door offer for urgent
services. This service will launch in May 2023 for our community services and
social care and will be expanded to cover mental health and housing over the
next 12 months

e We launched a ‘trial without catheter’ programme to allow Whittington Hospital
patients to be discharged home sooner with community services support

Children and Young People’s Services

e We successfully led the North Central London Children and Young People’s
Therapies recovery programme. This involved delivery of additional initial
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assessments and interventions in all boroughs to support the reduction of long
waiting times for speech and language therapy and occupational therapy
services

Our neonatal team achieved Silver Baby Bliss accreditation. The scheme
recognises neonatal units caring for premature and sick babies that deliver
consistent high-quality family-centred care, placing parents at the centre of their
baby's care

The Islington Health Visiting service achieved the United Nations’ Children’s
Fund’s baby-friendly silver accreditation and are now working towards achieving
gold accreditation in 2023/24

Following the North Central London Community Services Review, we continued
to lead the North Central London Children and Young People’s Community
Services Transformation Programme. This included working with system
partners - commissioners, local authority representatives and parent/carers - to
agree priorities for investment for Children and Young People’s community
services and to develop a plan for service transformation across the North
Central London sector in 2023/24

We completed a Getting It Right First Time review of the neonatal unit which
highlighted many areas of great practice

The paediatric nursing team and paediatric occupational therapy successfully
recruited international nurses and allied health professionals for the first time to
strengthen our workforce

In our role as lead provider across North Central London on the recovery of
autism and attention deficit hyperactivity disorder services, we developed the
North Central London neurodevelopmental hub. This included recruiting a staff
team to deliver additional assessments and to reduce long waiting times across
North Central London

We significantly reduced waiting times for the Barnet and Enfield paediatric
audiology service

The Barnet Children’s Therapy Service transferred to Whittington Health in
February 2022. Over the past year the service has significantly reduced the
number of children and young people waiting for appointments and successfully
recruited into a number of vacant roles

Haringey Children and Young People’s services have worked effectively with
local stakeholders to progress actions in response to the 2021 Local Area
inspection for children with special educational needs and/or disabilities
(SEND), including work in co-production with families to improve communication
linked to autism assessments and in engaging universal services

We created supportive work placements and internships for local young people
with neurodiversity or a learning disability (16 — 25) in Tynemouth Road Health
Centre

Children and young people’s services in Haringey and Islington played a key
role in the development of local plans for family hubs

Clare Grodon had a research article published on whether the use of a robotic
rehabilitation trainer changed the quality of life, range of movement and function
in children with cerebral palsy

Haringey Children and Young People’s services collaborated with partners in a
multi-agency practice week which focused on domestic abuse and its impact on
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children — this included partnership visits, multi-agency auditing of records and
bite size lunch time learning sessions

The Haringey Health Visiting service improved systems to ensure new birth
visits are allocated equally across the health visiting workforce, increasing the
equitable timeliness of the offer to families regardless of postcode

In Haringey School Nursing services, we implemented an electronic system for
the distribution and collation of results for health questionnaires to approximately
6,000 children (reception and year 6). This enabled the service to respond to
health needs in a speedier, more systematic way while also highlighting areas
of need

The child and adolescent mental health services’ neurodevelopmental team
developed an online post-diagnostic webinar offer for parents and carers which
improved the efficiency of delivery, increasing accessibility for families.

Our child and adolescent mental health therapies team developed their
therapeutic offer to include Tics and Tourette’s groups to help support children
and young people on cognitive behavioural therapy waiting list post-pandemic.
Child and adolescent mental health services’ therapies team developed
therapeutic group offer for children and young people with a diagnosis of autism,
or on the waiting list for an assessment of autism who are suffering from anxiety.
The child and adolescent mental health services’ neurodevelopmental team
rolled out training to other child and adolescent mental health teams on
screening and assessing neurodiversity in girls, adapting interventions for
children and young people with a diagnosis of autism to address increased
presentations across the service

The child and adolescent mental health service successfully rolled out training
in autism assessment in the crisis team to enable children and young people to
be assessed in a timely way to support treatment planning

We continued the roll out of specialist neurodevelopmental team joining child
and adolescent mental health clinicians working with vulnerable children and
young people (e.g. in youth Justice/pupil referral unit) to add on child autism
assessment to the broader assessment being carried out, to reduce waits for
this cohort

Child and adolescent mental health services in early years increased its
therapeutic offer to include compassion focused therapy groups for parents

Acute patient access, clinical support services and women’s health

The Pathology team:

Made improvements to our oral parenteral antibiotic therapy service widening
its scope to enable us to treat more people and more complex patients. This
service means that patients can go home and not have to stay in hospital for
prolonged periods while they have intravenous antibiotic treatment

Installed a new remote blood culture analyser in the neonatal intensive care unit
providing a more cost-effective service that also provides quicker test
turnaround of results to support teams in their decision making

Launched the public health initiative of the Blood Born Viruses screening
programme

Successfully transitioned our histopathology services over to the Health
Services Laboratory and to University College London Hospitals NHS
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Foundation Trust which resulted in a more robust and sustainable clinical
service for our patients

Enabled our phlebotomists to work extra shifts and wider areas of the Trust to
support teams during bust winter pressures

The Imaging team:

Successfully opened the community diagnostic centre in Wood Green providing
access to x-ray, ophthalmic services, ultrasound scans and phlebotomy services
Won the Allied Health Professionals Team of the Year award

Successfully recruited four new members of the team via the Capital Allied
Health Professionals International Recruitment program.

The Outpatient team:

Improved the environment for the patients and staff with redecoration
Purchased robotic process automation to improve the processing of referrals
Increased digital working across outpatients

Centralised phlebotomy services within the area to help support more space for
clinics

The Women’s Health team:

Achieved all the immediate and essential actions laid out by the Donna
Ockenden report into maternity services

Had a Care Quality Commission inspection in January 2023

Upgraded the birth centre with new equipment and refurbishment

Held Ockenden Cafes which promoted multidisciplinary team working

Held a very successful recruitment drive for consultant obstetricians and
gynaecologists ensuring we have a service that meets all the needs of our local
population

Increased our capacity and tackle the backlog we have by opening a third
colposcopy room

Added menopause awareness training to the elev8 training system to support
staff awareness

Launched the Essential Parenting app on the International Day of the Midwife

The Pharmacy team:

Worked closely with the community teams in the roll out of the virtual ward
ensuring safe medicine management arrangements in this new innovative
service

Developed joint and integrated pharmacist and pharmacy technician roles
working across Whittington Hospital and local primary care networks to support
seamless care and to develop a workforce for the future

Promoted health of the population by improving vaccination access through the
hospital hub, Hornsey mass vaccination centre, the school vaccination roving
team, care homes and housebound community services, with a total of 28,000
doses of COVID-19 vaccines and 2,800 influenza vaccines administered
Implemented prefilled syringes of emergency drugs in theatres and obstetric
theatres. This reduced the need to draw up medication just in case, reduces
waste, minimises risks around medication errors when preparing medicines in
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an emergency, as well as supports governance of storing medication in
tamperproof containers

Partnered with the Haringey GP Federation in a cross-sector pre-registration for
the Trainee Pharmacist Technician training programme

Progressed implementation of the ‘Discharge Medicines Service’ in North
Central London, whereby patient discharge summaries are digitally
communicated to a patient’'s community pharmacist as well as to their GP each
month

Met the target to complete venous thromboembolism (VTE) risk assessments
for 95% of all admitted patients

Increased chemotherapy production by 20% supporting the treatment of
significantly more patients with cancer

Expanded outpatient parenteral antimicrobial therapy provision significantly
alongside the virtual ward increasing the provision of complex care being
provided to patients in their own home, preventing hospital admissions and
enhancing quality of care/patient outcomes

Appointed a consultant pharmacist, as pharmacist lead for antimicrobial
stewardship across the North Central London sector.

Established and expanded the complex oral outpatient antimicrobial therapy
service in ambulatory care to enhance monitoring of high-risk antimicrobials in
patients treated in the community setting

Implemented an enhanced digital solution for the auditing and oversight of the
safe and secure handling of medicines across the organisation

Supported medicines management related aspects of virtual wards as these
developed and expanded across the sector

Developed joint and integrated pharmacist and pharmacy technician roles
working across Whittington Hospital and the local Primary Care Network sectors
to support seamless care and develop a workforce for the future.

Successfully implemented a major upgrade to the trust-wide electronic
prescribing and medicines administration system.

Developed a digital pharmacy prioritisation tool to assist clinical pharmacy
teams to prioritise care especially for patients taking high risk medicines and
those requiring more intensive pharmaceutical care.

Implemented robust clinical processes including setting up COVID-19
multidisciplinary team and electronic referral systems to ensure hospitalised
patients with severe COVID-19 infections or high-risk patients who acquired
COVID infection have equitable and timely access to COVID-19 antiviral and
monoclonal antibody treatments

Emergency and Integrated Medicine

Speech and Language Therapy

The adult speech and language therapy team designed and implemented an
outpatient video fluoroscopy (VFSS) clinic run by community speech and
language therapists - a first for North Central London

The acute speech and language therapy team implemented a new fibreoptic
endoscopic evaluation of swallow (FEES) kit to allow faster instrumental bedside
swallow assessments and help reduce the possible complications of dysphagia
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e The adult speech and language therapy team designed and ran a successful
dysphagia course for newly qualified speech and language therapists. This was
a very popular training course and will be run twice in 2023/24

e Together with the ear, nose and throat service implemented a joint cough clinic

e The paediatric speech and language therapy team worked to provide online
patient education videos for new parents and carers (Tiny Talks)

e All speech and language therapy teams contributed into various North Central
London speech and language therapy working groups on collaborative projects
e.g., risk management of swallowing.

e Increased the number of student placement offer numbers

Nutrition and Dietetics

e Implemented a quality improvement approach to patient dining through new
menus, patient experience audits and weekly mealtime audits to check safety
and quality issues at ward level

e The adult acute dietetic team successfully implemented the nutritional core care
plan on wards. This supported improvement in patients’ nutritional intake and
increased nurses’ awareness of ward-based interventions to optimise patient’s
nutritional intake

e The paediatric team implemented online electronic paediatric growth charts and
facilitated training for this

e Continued the successful joint paediatric speech and language therapy and
dietetic weaning talks for parents of preterm babies, in response to positive
feedback from parents

e Undertook a large project to ensure all diet sheets had quick response codes
which parents welcomed. This work will be presented nationally later in 2023/24

Clinical Nutrition Nursing Team
e Implemented a new student placement which has been nominated for Nursing
Times award

Neurophysiology

e Launched a brand-new home-video telemetry service for patients with
epilepsy/suspected seizures so that patients no longer needed to go to Great
Ormond Street Hospital for this investigation

e Installed new medical equipment for our peripheral neurophysiology
investigations which allowed us to add further testing to our standard peripheral
neurophysiology investigations

Cardiac physiology

e A fourth portable echo machine was installed in April 2022 and an additional
echo scanner increased inpatient echo capacity to help with increasing demand

¢ Helped move closer to a paperless system as resting electrocardiograms can
now be requested on our ICE system

e Replaced old scanners with new echo scanners which provide a better
diagnostic image quality for diagnosis of complex congenital abnormalities.

e Replaced old Holter monitors to allow for better rhythm recognition
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Surgery and cancer

Resuscitation and Simulations service

The incidence of cardiac arrest continued to be kept low at 0.3 per 1000
admissions

Established a trust-wide simulation teaching faculty to improve the quality and
quantity of simulation across the organisation. This faculty links into the
London simulation network

The Team hosted a successful paediatric resuscitation conference
sponsored by Zoll medical. There were international speakers on
resuscitation, major incident and human factors

The Service ran its first advanced trauma life support course since 2019 and
IS preparing to introduce four new nationally accredited courses over the next
two years. One of the two courses, Maternal Obstetric Emergencies and
Trauma will start in June 2023 as a collaboration between Whittington and
University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

General and Bariatric Surgery

Mr. Bhan was appointed as the colorectal lead for North Central London
collaborative work and helped us address issues of large backlogs in surgery
due the pandemic (including colorectal cancer and elective work)
Mr Parmar has been elected as the voting council member of the British
Obesity & Metabolic Surgery Society
The bariatric team developed educational bariatric videos so that the patients
could educate themselves about different bariatric surgeries from the comfort
of their homes. This saved clinic spaces, nursing time, clinician time and
travel for patients. Team received positive feedback from the patients
While coping with the challenges the pandemic brought us and trying to deal
with the backlog, the general surgery department has also been active
academically. The aim was to provide/establish evidence for safely
performing surgery in patients. We had multiple collaborations to develop an
evidence base during this challenging time and this led to number of
publications which will help nationally and internationally in the following
areas:
o for patients with gallbladder/gallstones pathology/surgery (Laparoscopic
cholecystectomy)
o for the treatment of patients with pancreatitis as part of a national
multicentre project
o we resumed our bariatric surgery and performed bariatric surgery safely
in 2 blind patients. We are the first team in the world to report this
o we also collaborated to develop the consensus exercise for surgical
ward rounds in the UK
o emergency general surgery is an upcoming sub-specialty in the surgical
field in the UK and Whittington Health was amongst the first few in the
UK who adopted and implanted a modified Delhi model approach
o established guidelines for patients with obesity and type 1 diabetes
mellitus who needed bariatric surgery
o we collaborated internationally and looked at the American registry of
bariatric surgery to see whether we could provide some evidence for
revisional bariatric surgery after failed gastric bands
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o we collaborated internationally to develop expert guidelines for
revisional bariatric surgery after failed sleeve gastrectomy

o The RECOVERY Trial produced evidence of the role of steroids
(dexamethasone) in treatment of Covid which led to saving millions of
lives worldwide. This was the largest randomised controlled trial in the
world.

Corporate support services

Siobhan Harrington, our former Chief Executive was named in the top 50 NHS
Chief Executives by the Health Service Journal for the second year running
Nadine Jeal, Clinical Director for Adult Community Services and an MSK
Advanced Practice Physiotherapist, took on an additional role as Clinical
Director for the Haringey Borough Partnership, part of the North Central London
Integrated Care System

Tina Jegede, Joint Director of Inclusion and Lead Nurse, Islington Care Homes
received her Member of the Order of the British Empire medal in recognition of
her services to social care

Jessica Horne, Clinical lead, respiratory services, was awarded a British Empire
Medal for her service to the NHS as a respiratory physiotherapist during the
pandemic

The high performance of the Whittington Health Orthopaedic Team was further
shown by winning the Hospital of the Year Award 2022

Kate Wilson, Deputy Director of Workforce, was one of three successful deputy
directors at the 2022 Healthcare People Management Association (HPMA)
awards as Deputy Director of the year

At the same HPMA awards, Serena Wilshire, Human Resources Business
Partner, was recognised as a Rising Star for her outstanding work, contribution
and integrity

Huda Mohamed, Specialist Midwife, received the Gold Chief Midwifery Officer
award for her local, regional and national work and expertise in female genital
mutilation

Vicki Cornish won the 'Nurse of the year' award from Islington Council following
her nomination by the staff and residents of an independent living care home
Paul Abdey, Resuscitation Lead, received a medal for over 20 years frontline
service from the South East Coast Ambulance Service.

The Whittington Health Oral health team in Brent won the Public Health Nursing
Award at the Nursing Times Awards 2022 for their 'Better Health on your
Doorstep' initiative.

Matty Asante-Owusu, Community Matron for complex patients with sickle cell,
was awarded the Queen's Nurse award for nurses who have demonstrated
exceptional commitment to patient care and nursing practice

Liz Thomas was shortlisted for the Mariposa Trust Bereavement Midwife of the
Year award

The Wood Green Community Diagnostic Centre won the 'Best Consultancy
Partnership' award from the Health Service Journal partnership awards. The
panel of judges recognised the collaborative efforts and dedication of our
teams and our partner Capital and Regional

The See ME First initiative won Outstanding Achievement of the Year at the
National BAME Health & Care Awards 2022 and were shortlisted in the annual
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Parliamentary Awards. The SeeMEFirst team also won the NHS
Confederation’s Innovate award and were also shortlisted in two categories of
the 2022 Health Service Journal awards

Michelle Lee, one of our midwifery team was accepted onto the Shuri Network
Digital Fellowship, an award-winning initiative developed with NHS England
specifically to support nurses and midwives interested in health technology
Staff from Whittington Health who are part of the North Central and East
London provider collaborative won the Provider Collaborative of the year
award at the Health Service Journal awards for their work on commissioning
child and adolescent mental health services

We had our sixth cohort for trainee nurse associates about to start their
apprenticeship journey

We helped to ensure the successful transition of occupational health staff to
North London Partners Shared Services — a collaboration with nine other NHS
North Central London organisations

We received wonderful performances of “In our Own Words”, a verbatim
theatre performance illuminating Whittington Health staff experiences
throughout the pandemic, delivered by our staff support psychology team and
the Wake the Beast theatre company

Our exciting plans for the significant refurbishment to our maternity and
neonatal facilities were approved and included over £80 million of
improvements to be spent over several years to transform the Kenwood Wing
of our hospital

We said thank you and farewell to Project Wingman which was praised by our
hospital staff as a special place for them to recharge throughout the pandemic
We introduced a pilot for a new collaborative bank between ourselves and
other Trusts within the North Central London region. This enabled bank staff to
work more flexibly, have a greater choice of bank shifts and to work where
their skills are needed the most

Dr Ruth Law, consultant geriatrician, was appointed as a censor at the Royal
College of Physicians with responsibility for examining and maintaining
standards and education

We completed the Willesden Dental project to provide four dental surgeries, a
decontamination room, an orthopantomogram room, a storeroom, a staff room
and a compressor room in the refurbished facilities

Five young people with a learning disability secured permanent jobs at the
Trust following an 18-month internship

We created a Financial Wellbeing Hub to help provide advice and support to
staff during the cost of living crisis

With our system partners, University College London Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust and North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust, we took
part in an NHS Summer sickle cell event at the new Tottenham Hotspur
stadium

Dara Cormican, Deborah Eicher, Kerry Gilroy, Mojisola Idowu, Nick Kelman,
Varda Lassman, Aine Ruttledge and Sazia Samad completed the London
Marathon in aid of Whittington Health Charity

Following a successful trial in early 2023, we rolled out a patient portal, Zesty,
to all outpatient appointments
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We launched a Management of Violence and Aggression policy in response to
increasing incidences of inappropriate behaviours faced by our staff with a
yellow card warning when a patient acts aggressively towards a staff member
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PERFORMANCE
How we measure performance

Our Board and its key committees use a performance scorecard which has been
developed to include a suite of quality and other indicators at Trust and service level.
This enables the centralised reporting of performance and quality data as well as the
improved triangulation of information. The scorecard is based on the Care Quality
Commission’s five domains of quality: safe, effective, caring, responsive and well led.
The selection of indicators is based on NHS England and Improvement’s guidance for
national outcome areas and the Trust’s local priorities. On a quarterly basis, progress
is also reviewed against our strategic objectives.

2022/23 Performance outcomes

Table one: At-a-glance performance against national targets in 2021/22 and
2022/23

Actual Actual . e

Difference
Admissions 2021/22 | 2022/23 | ... 22

Difference
Non-Elective Admissions 15,333 12,624 -17.7%
Elective Admissions 1,379 2,178 57.94%
Day Case 21,406 23,158 8.18%
ED attendances 107,703 | 106,462 -1.15%
Face to Face Patient Contacts 2021/22 | 2022123 | g
At our hospital 444 423 | 475,465 6.98%
In the community 532,341 | 572,191 7.49%
Total 976,764 | 1,047,656 7.26%
Community 2021/22 | 2022123 | ... 2

Difference
Community Nursing Visits 236,495 | 221,726 -6.24%
Physio Appointments 31,755 63,535 100.08%
Health and School Nurse Visits 53,872 56,977 5.76%
Dental Appointments 44,143 45,456 2.97%
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Safe — people are protected from abuse and avoidable

h 2021/22 2022/2023

arm

KPI description Target Outcome Target Outcome
Admission to adult facilities of patients aged under 16 0 0 0 0
Incidence of Clostridium Difficile 0 10 <16 20
Actual falls 400 344 400 381
Medication errors causing serious harm 0
Incidence of MRSA

Never Events 0
Safety Incidents N/A 25 N/A 12
VTE risk assessment (%) >95% 80.40% >95% 95.50%
Mixed sex accommodation breaches 0 34 0 109
Effective — people’s care, treatment and support

achieve good outcomes, promote a good quality of 2021/22 2022/2023

life and are based on the best available evidence

KPI description Target Outcome Target Outcome
Breastfeeding initiated >90% 91.60% >90% 93.46%
Smoking at delivery <6% 4.06% <6% 4.23%
Non-elective re-admissions within 30 days <5.5% 4.92% <5.5% 3.88%
Mortality rate per 1000 admissions in-months 14.4 7.63 14.4 8.4
IAPT Moving to Recovery >50% 51.89% >50% 50.20%
% seen within 2 hours of referral to district nursing night >80% 97.37% >80% 94.47%
% seen within 48 hours of referral to district nursing night >95% 95.48% >95% 93.21%
fA) of ‘MSK patients with a significant improvement in >75% 89.79% S75% 86.26%
unction

% of podiatry patients with significant improvement in pain >75% 95.26% >75% 86.68%
Caring - Involving people in their care and treating

them with compassion, kindness, dignity and respect Ay LA

KPI description Target Outcome Target Outcome
Emergency department — FFT % positive >90% 77.70% >90% 76.00%
Emergency department — FFT response rate >15% 10.90% >15% 11.50%
Inpatients — FFT % positive >90% 95.80% >90% 93.50%
Inpatients — FFT response rate >25% 17.30% >25% 19.30%
Maternity - FFT % positive >90% 98.50% >90% 63.00%
Maternity - FFT response rate >15% 11.50% >15% 14.80%
Outpatients - FFT % positive >90% 93.40% >90% 90.30%
Outpatients - FFT responses 4800 591 4800 1268
Community - FFT % positive >90% 97.70% >90% 96.50%
Community - FFT responses 18,000 5527 18,000 8469
Complaints responded to within 25 working days >80% 59.90% >80% 55.40%
Responsive - organising services so that they are 2021/22 2022/2023

tailored to people’s needs
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KPI description Target Outcome Target Outcome
Emergency department waits — 4 hours >95% 78.30% >95% 68.40%
Median wait for treatment (minutes) <60 mins 93 <60 mins 110
Ambulance handovers waiting more than 30 minutes 0 646 0 1175
Ambulance handovers waiting more than 60 minutes 0 283 0 566
12 hour trolley waits in A&E 0 83 0 2208
Cancer — 14 days to first seen >93% 73.00% >93% 46.70%
Cancer — 31 days to first treatment >96% 94.90% >96% 89.90%
Cancer — 62 days from referral to treatment >85% 67.60% >85% 47.70%
Diagnostic waits (<6 weeks) >99% 94.10% >99% 85.89%
Referral to treatment times waiting <18 weeks (%) >92% 74.40% >92% 67.80%
Well led - leadership, management and governance of

the organisation assure the dellver_y of high-quality 2021/22 2022/2023
person-centred care, support learning and

innovation, and promote an open and fair culture

KPI description Target Outcome Target Outcome
Staff appraisal rate (%) >90% 67.70% >90% 73.00%
Mandatory training rate (%) >90% 78.90% >90% 84.80%
Permanent staffing WTEs utilised >90% 88.00% >90% 87.40%
Staff sickness rate (%) <3.5% 4.30% <3.5% 4.13%
Staff FTT — recommending the Trust as a place to work >50% 58.00% >50% 51.10%
Staff turnover rate (%) <13% 12.20% <13% 14.20%
Vacancy rate against establishment (%) <10% 12.00% <10% 12.60%

Key trends this performance shows

These performance and activity figures show the organisation emerging from COVID-
19 throughout the course of the year. Clear improvements in the activity numbers of
elective and day case work are shown, along with reducing humbers of non-elective
admissions. However, increasing length of stay and the high acuity of patients meant
that beds remained full and pressure in the hospital in fact got worse leading to
worsening of emergency flow targets. Increasing referrals and backlog of patients
from Covid also meant that most of our waiting time targets also worsened. Good
improvements can be seen in most of the workforce measures.
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Monitoring performance

The Trust’s performance management framework acknowledges the national context
and addresses local quality and service priorities. Whittington Health has a culture of
continuous improvement using the cycle of performance management and uses a
system of performance reporting against agreed measures and quality priorities. The
monthly performance scorecard allows continuous monitoring of specific datasets, such
as quality and finance, service specific information and deviation from commissioned
targets. This information is used to monitor compliance with service standards and
contract review and to populate national external data sets.

1. Planning and
setting KPls and
service objectives

5. Communicating
results and
improving

performance

2. Monitoring
activity and
outcomes

4. Using date for 3. Collecting data
reports and decison and measuring
making results

Outcomes against key scorecard indicators are reported to the weekly Executive Team
meeting, twice a month to the Trust's Management Group, monthly to respective
Integrated Clinical Service Unit (ICSU) Boards, regularly to board committees, monthly
to the Trust Board itself and are monitored and reviewed through monthly performance
reviews with the ICSUs. All reports are discussed at these meetings to identify reasons
for any underperformance, as well as reviewing progress of any remedial action plans
put in place. The Trust continues to review performance to ensure we continue to
monitor the things that matter to the delivery of high-quality care.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Financial position

The Trust agreed a (deficit) plan of (£0.1m) for 2022/23. The Trust delivered a £6.6m
surplus for 2022/23 after adjustments for fixed asset impairments and Covid-related
donations of assets and inventory. This was £6.8m better than plan.

This means that the Trust has either delivered or performed better than plan for seven
consecutive years. While the Trust has been able to meet its financial targets for the
year, it needs to improve its underlying financial performance so that the longer-term
financial security will be maintained.

Statement of comprehensive income

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
Operating income from patient care activities 400,191 379,593
Other operating income 31,366 29,355
Operating expenses (420,749) (403,416)
Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations 10,808 5,532
Finance income 1,922 41
Finance expenses (2,364) (540)
PDC dividends payable (5,385) (5,151)
Net finance costs (5,827) (5,650)
Other gains / (losses) 15
Surplus / (deficit) for the year from continuing operations 4,981 (103)
Surplus / (deficit) on discontinued operations and the gain / (loss) on
disposal of discontinued operations - -
Surplus / (deficit) for the year 4,981 (103)
Other comprehensive income
Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments (5,936) (220)
Revaluations 6,749 8,312
Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period 5,794 7,989
Adjusted financial performance (control total basis):
Surplus / (deficit) for the period 4,981 (203)
Add back impairments / (reversals) 1,565 295
Remove I&E impact of capital grants and donations 92 106
Remove net impact of inventories received from DHSC group bodies for
COVID response - 213
Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) 6,638 511
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Going concern and value for money

As with previous years, the 2022/23 annual accounts were prepared on the going
concern basis. This is in line with the Department of Health & Social Care’s accounting
guidance, which states that the Trust is a going concern if continuation of services
exists. We have detailed in the paragraph above the positive trend in the Trust’s
finances. This improvement means that the Trust continues to comply with the
Department of Health & Social Care’s duty to break even over a three-year period.

Financial performance and statement of financial position

Above, we detailed the Trust’s financial position for the year ending 31 March 2023,
which indicated effective arrangements in the use of resources and a positive trend in
financial results. However, as a Trust with an underlying financial deficit, we continue
to face a challenging financial future.

Cash

The Trust continued to be in a strong cash position and maintained this throughout
2022/23 and ended the financial year with £73.0m in cash. This was £8.4m lower than
at the end of 2021/22, the reduction driven primarily by capital expenditure during the
year. The Trust received £6.9m of public dividend capital to support capital schemes
and programmes.

The Trust is not anticipating any significant cash issues in 2023/24 and has forecast
to recycle cash holdings into capital programmes for future years, most notably into
the Trust's estate and maternity redevelopment strategy

Property, plant and equipment

The Trust’s outturn capital expenditure for the year was £29.0m, which matched our
Capital Resource Limit. Notable schemes within these levels of spend were
investments in the Whittington Education Centre which opened in year, Wood Green
Community Diagnostics Centre which also opened in-year, scoping of the Power
Upgrade and Maternity projects, and updates to information technology and hardware.

Receivables (debtors)

The Trust’s receivables at the end of the financial year were £25.7m. This was £12.9m
higher than in 2021/22, with accrued income making up £10.6m of the increase. Of
this, £8.5m was accrued income relating to Agenda for Change pay offer funding

Payables (creditors)
The Trust’s payables at the end of the financial year were £80.8m. This was £14.1m
higher than in 2021/22. The combined creditor performance remains strong, with the

Trust reporting payment of 88.5% of the value of invoices within 30 days, compared
with 90.6% in 2021/22.
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Adoption of IFRS16

A new International Accounting Standard, IFRS16, was adopted in the NHS for the
first time in 2022/23. This new Standard requires a reassessment of the leases held
by the Trust. In common with other NHS organisations, a number of the Trust’s leases
have been reclassified as finance leases. This has given rise to £38.4m of Right of
Use Assets, with associated Finance Lease Liabilities of the same amount being
recognised on 18t April 2022.

Spending on agency and temporary staff

The Trust spent £17.5m on agency staff for 2022/23, which was £2.7m higher than
agency expenditure in 2021/22. In addition to agency spend the Trust spent £31.2m
on bank staff which was £3.7m higher than the previous financial year. The additional
staffing requirements for new non-recurrent investments, escalation beds, enhanced
care and the support of elective recovery schemes were the main drivers for this
increase. Some of these increased costs were partially offset by additional income.

The Trust is aware that maintaining and improving our performance in relation to the
use of agency and temporary staff is fundamental to delivering high quality care and
financial sustainability. The Trust has continued to develop other measures to monitor
and control agency usage.

The tables below show the level of expenditure on bank and agency staff during
2022/23 and include a comparison for 2021/22.

Spending on agency and temporary staff

Agency Spend
2,500

2,000

1,500
- I II I I II I I

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Feb Mar

£'000

W Agency Spend 2021-22 W Agency Spend 2022-23
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Bank Spend
3,000

2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000 I
500
A g Sep

pr May Jun Jul Au = Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

£'000

m Bank Spend 2021-22 m Bank Spend 2022-23
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RISKS

The Trust has a robust risk management policy and process as outlined in the annual
governance statement. For the purposes of this annual report, the key risks on our
2022/23 Board Assurance Framework (BAF) were as follows:

recruitment
and

BAF entry Principal risk(s)
Failure to provide care which is ‘outstanding’ in being consistently
Quality 1 — | safe, caring, responsive, effective, or well-led and which provides a
qguality and | positive experience for our patients and families, due to errors, or
safety of lack of care or lack of resources, results in poorer patient
services experience, harm, a loss of income, an adverse impact upon staff
retention and damage to organisational reputation
Due to a lack of capacity, capability, and clinical attention and
continuing pressures from the pandemic, there is an inability to
meet elective recovery and clinical performance targets, resulting in
a deterioration in service quality and patient care such as:
. e long delays in the emergency department and an inability to
Quality 2 — - i - .
: place patients who require high dependency and intensive
SEITELER] care
A By ' iving th they need across hospital and
delivery e patients not receiving the care they p
community health services
e patients on a diagnostic and/or treatment pathway at risk of
deterioration and the need for greater intervention at a later
stage
e an unsuccessful rollout of the COVID-19 pandemic booster
and winter flu vaccination programmes
Lack of sufficient substantive staff, due to increased staff
People 1 — | departures and absence, the impact of the UK’s exit from the EU,
staff and difficulties in recruiting and retaining sufficient staff, results in

increased pressure on staff, a reduction in the quality of care,
insufficient capacity to deal with demand, and increased temporary

retention staffing costs
Failure to improve staff health, wellbeing, equity, empowerment,
and morale, due to the continuing post pandemic pressures and
the restart of services, poor management practices, a poorly
developed and implemented workforce race equality standard
People 2 - action plan, and an inability to tackle bullying and harassment
staff : result in:
wellbeing
and : e behaviours displayed which are out of line with Whittington
39”3"?' Health’s values
a:]vder3| Y, e a deteriora_ltion in org_anisational _c_ulture, morale and the
inclusion psychological wellbeing and resilience of staff

e adverse impacts on staff engagement, absence rates and the
recruitment and retention of staff

e poor performance in annual equality standard outcomes and
submissions
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BAF entry Principal risk(s)
e afailure to secure staff support, buy-in and delivery of North
Central London (NCL) system workforce changes
) Changes brought about by the NCL system and the provider
Integration | yjjiance, such as corporate services’ rationalisations, the review of
1-1CSand | community services, and the reconfiguration of pathways through
Alliance lead provider arrangements impact adversely on patient services,
changes particularly fragile ones, and the strategic viability of the Trust
Integration | Local population health and wellbeing deteriorates, due to the
2 - impact of the pandemic, because of a lack of available investment
population in, or focus on ongoing care and prevention work, and due to
health and unsuccessful collaboration with local sector health and social care
activity partners, resulting in continued high demand for services which is
demand insufficiently met
Adverse funding arrangements regionally or nationally; or failure to
a) manage costs, b) reduce the run rate, c) properly fund cost
. pressures, due to poor internal control systems, or inability to
Sustainable . . :
transform services and deliver the cost improvement programme
1 - control . : - e
total savings, or due to msgfﬂmen.t flexibility under a bloc_:k corjtraqt_along
. NCL system and provider alliance changes, result in an inability
delivery and . : -
: deliver the annual control total, a worse underlying deficit for the
underlying : . .
deficit _Trust, increased reputational risk and_pressure on f_ut_ure
investment programmes, or cancellation of key Whittington Health
investment projects, and improvements in patient care and savings
not being achieved
) The failure of critical estate infrastructure, or continued lack of high-
Sustainable | qality estate capacity, due to insufficient modernisation of the
2—estate | agtate or insufficient mitigation, results in patient harm, poorer
modernisati | hatient experience, or reduced capacity in the hospital
on
. A failure to not invest effectively in cyber security, and continual
Sustainable | . . .
3 — digital improvement of softvv_are (elecf[r_o_nlc patient recor_d) and h_ardware
and workforce, there is a possibility of catastrophic downtime due
strategy :
and to ransomware attacl_<s or contracts running out, and the_
) . | inefficiency of operational processes continues, hampering
interoperabi . . ) P
lity transformation and cost savings delivery and resulting in reduced

levels of integration with system partners.

Each of these risks has a clear mitigation plan and assurance process in place.
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DELIVER CONSISTENT, HIGH QUALITY, SAFE
SERVICES

The organisation continued on its journey to continually improve the quality of our
services and the experience of the people who use our services through the Better
Never Stops initiative. The accountable officers for quality are the medical director and
the chief nurse and director of allied health professionals; for quality assurance, the lead
officer is the chief nurse and director of allied health professionals.

Registration with the Care Quality Commission

Whittington Heath is registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) without any
conditions. The CQC carried out two inspections of the Trust during 2022/2023. One
was conducted in maternity services and the other was a ‘mental health act monitoring
inspection’ of Simmons House, our child specialist community mental health service for
children and young people.

The final report for Maternity services was received on 28 April 2023. Only two domains
were inspected during the Maternity inspection, and these were ‘Safe’ and ‘Well-led’.
The Trust received a rating of requires improvement for ‘Safe’ and a rating of Good for
the ‘Well-led’ domain which gave maternity services a rating of ‘Requires improvement’.
The previous ‘good’ ratings for the other three domains of effective, caring and
responsive were not taken into account as they were inspected jointly with gynaecology
services back in 2017. An action plan is being developed to address the findings in the
report.

The Mental Health Act monitoring report following the inspection of Simmons House
was received on 30 March 2023. Concerns were raised by the young people to the
inspectors about the hot water temperature, medication errors and the anti-barricade
doors. An action plan has been developed to address these actions and sent to the
CQC.

The table below provides the rating summary table for the CQC’s final report published
in March 2020 following its previous inspection in December 2019 of four core services
(surgery, urgent and emergency care services, our critical care, community health
services for children and young people and families and specialist community mental
health services for children and young people). The Trust’s current CQC overall rating
from that assessment is ‘Good’ for Whittington Health, with ’'Outstanding’ ratings for our
community health services and performance against the CQC’s ‘Caring’ domain. The
overall rating of the Trust has not changed following the CQC inspection of maternity
services in 2023 and remains ‘Good’ overall.

Safe Effective | Caring Responsive | Well-led Overall
Acute Requires Good Good Good Good Good
Improvement
Community [ Good Good Good [ Outstanding | Outstanding |
Children’s | Requires Good Good Good Good
mental Improvement
health
services
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Safe Effective | Carin Responsive | Well-led Overall
Overall Requires Good Good Good Good
trust Improvement

The CQC action plan remains a focus for improvement; the actions are monitored by
the responsible Integrated Clinical Service Unit at their Quality meetings and through
the Trust’s Better Never Stops programme.

The CQC moved to a more risk-based approach for service inspection since the COVID-
19 pandemic began which focused on reviewing data collected to trigger ‘Direct
Monitoring Activity’ conversations. If there are still concerns or further action required
after these conversations are held, then this would trigger inspection activity. There will
be a new assessment framework released by the CQC in 2023 to support this. Regular
meetings were held with our CQC relationship manager during 2022/2023 and covered
on the following areas:

Staff wellbeing and support

Innovation at Whittington Health NHS Trust
Elective services provision

COVID-19 updates on outbreaks

Serious incident investigations and CQC enquiries
Victoria Ward concerns

Outpatients and diagnostic services — Core service focus
Community nursing — core service focus

Cancer waiting times — core service focus
National audit program outlier status

Maternity staff concerns raised to the CQC
Pharmacy (direct monitoring activity conversation)

VVVVVVVVVYYY

The most recent CQC engagement meeting was held in January 2023 and focused on
recent leadership changes at the Trust and the current operational situation with impact
on cancer performance and referral to treatment times due to COVID-19 and flu
challenges. Our CQC relationship manager was given significant assurance on the
areas highlighted at the meeting.

Quiality priorities

Our quality priorities, as set out in the Quality Account, are aligned to the Trust's
commitment to helping local people live longer, healthier lives and build on factors such
as quality performance, clinical or public health proposals and our ‘Better Never Stops’
ambition, to continually improve and provide even better care.

Whittington Health recognises that to achieve sustainable improvement, projects need
to be long-term and effectively monitored. Priorities were set as part of a three-year
improvement plan 2020/23. Given these priorities were initially developed before the
onset of the pandemic in 2020, the Trust felt that a full review of intelligence, patient
feedback and stakeholder consultation was needed to ensure that these priorities were
still reflective of the current need for 2023 onwards.
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To this end, the Trust has held several engagement events across the Trust and
community sites to gather feedback from people who use our services and staff. This
feedback was combined with intelligence from a range of data and information, such as
learning from serious incidents, reviews of mortality and harm, complaints, claims,
clinical audits, patient and staff experience surveys, and best practice guidance from
sources such as the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) and
national audit data and presented in a meeting with key stakeholders from Healthwatch
and the Clinical Commissioning Group to help establish ongoing priorities and any new
priorities to be added in 2023/24.

Key achievements from 2022/23 included:

» 65% of patients in hospital had an assessment of functional status within 24
hours

70% of patients in hospital were mobilised within 24 hours

Blood Transfusion training compliance has improved and they achieved the
60% target that was set for the year 2022/23

70% of next of kin (NOK) details were checked within 24hrs of admission to
hospital.

70% of NOKs were contacted within 24 hours of a patient admission to hospital.
The Zesty patient portal was introduced in all outpatient clinics, with further
functionality roll out planned for 2023/24

YVV VYV VYV

Freedom to Speak up Guardian

The Freedom To Speak Up Guardian (FTSUG) for Whittington Health is continuously
working to engage with teams and services across Community and Hospital
departments and strengthen its relationships across the Trust. The Guardian has
adapted to meet the needs of staff over the course of the COVID-19 pandemic where
there are less opportunities to meet staff face to face. As the year has ended, more
people have preferred face-to-face appointments than was the case before the
pandemic started.

The Guardian worked closely with the Communications Team to review the Trust’s
media activity and promotion to refresh a focus on speaking up. The Trust launched
the new speak up badges to improve the visibility of the speak up advocates’ network
and allies across the Trust. The new badges state ‘freedom to speak up, speak to
me” encouraging people to approach the network. The Intranet page was improved,
enabling everyone to access it through the main page on the site. An all-staff email
was sent to everyone in the organisation about freedom to speak Up (what we do, who
we are and how to contact us). Posters across the community health sites are being
updated displaying information about the speak up advocates working on that site.
The guardian continues to be part of the nurse, midwives and allied health
professionals’ preceptorship study day and newly qualified nurses’ orientation training,
the healthcare support worker (HCSW) development programme and in medical
education induction to explain how to raise concerns safely and confidentially, raising
the profile of FTSU. The guardian continues to attend the Trust’s corporate induction
for all new starters.
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The collaboration between the FTSUG and the organisational development team and
the workforce team continues to be fundamental to reinforce learning and acting on
the concerns received. This collaboration has allowed the trust to challenge cultural
behaviours, bullying and harassment and detriment in a serious, committed, and
constructive way.

The Guardian has offered regular supervision and support to consolidate the network
of speak up advocates. Currently the network, representing diversity, equality, and
inclusion across the Trust, has 45 advocates, across job roles and services. They are
trained to actively listen to colleagues raising concerns and provide unobstructive
emotional support for staff in difficult meetings.

Whittington Health has been working closely with the joint directors of inclusion and
all the staff equality networks to listen to staff concerns, promote a healthy and positive
speak up culture and help to remove additional barriers that staff may face in speaking
up. Collaboration and mutual support are growing between the FTSUG and the
networks’ leadership, who have been escalating concerns and signposting accordingly
to the guardian some of the concerns raised within the network’s members.

During this year, the FTSUG received 84 initial concerns that required action. These
84 concerns created 84 new opportunities for change and improvement. We always
thank staff raising concerns for this valuable contribution. Considering the impact of
COVID-19 and winter pressure, it is encouraging to see the number of concerns is
returning to the levels seen prior to the pandemic. Only two concerns were anonymous
and have been reported internally and investigated. This hopefully represents a
gradual change to an open and positive culture for raising concerns and suggests that
staff are starting to feel more confident and safer to disclose their identities while
speaking up. 54 concerns presented an element of bullying or harassment. 14 involved
patient safety/ experience. Aligned with the national figures reported by the guardians
to the national guardian’s office, the percentage of cases at Whittington Health
involving an element of patient safety or quality of care has decreased, while cases
involving elements of bullying and harassment have also dropped.

The plan for the next twelve months is to focus on the response of managers and
leaders to staff who speak up and will be focused on a new national guardian’s office
freedom to speak up e-learning package, in association with Health Education
England. The first module — speak up — is for all workers. The second module, listen
up, for managers, focuses on listening and understanding the barriers to speaking up.
Also, following the national workforce race equality standard (WRES) in depth review
of race equality and the WRES data at Whittington Health, there was feedback that
some staff report still feeling cautious about speaking to the FTSUG or advocates.
Communication and work to support black and minority ethnic staff gaining further
confidence in the role will be a priority over the next 6-12 months. Proactive
engagement with our temporary, agency and bank workers is also a priority for the
next 12 months.
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PATIENT SAFETY

Serious incidents

The Serious Incident Executive Approval Group (SIEAG), comprising the Medical
Director, Chief Nurse and Director of Allied Health Professionals, Chief Operating
Officer, the Associate Director of Quality Governance and Serious Incident
Coordinator, meets weekly to monitor and review new incidents and serious incident
investigation reports as defined within NHS England’s Serious Incident Framework
(March 2015). In addition, internal root cause analysis investigations with
recommendations and actions are monitored and reviewed by the Panel.

All serious incidents are reported to North East London Commissioning Support Unit
via the Strategic Executive Information System (StEIS) and a lead investigator is
assigned by the clinical director of the relevant Integrated Clinical Service Unit. All
serious incidents are uploaded to the national reporting and learning system.

During 2022/23, there were 19 serious incidents reported on StEIS. As illustrated in
the graph below, the number of serious incidents declared as a proportion of all patient
safety incidents has been reducing since 2016. This is a positive trend, indicative of
an open, transparent safety culture where reporting of incidents is encouraged, with a
higher volume of incidents which are near misses or low harm incidents.

Figure 1: Serious Incidents declared, as a proportion of all patient safety incidents
2016-2023
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In preparing for the new patient safety incident response framework (PSIRF),
Whittington Health reviewed processes to ensure that the identification of systems
issues and human factors remain at the forefront of our work with a focus on learning
and improving practice. The SIEAG supported the use of alternative tools, such as
after-action reviews, a multidisciplinary team approach, quality improvement projects
and audits, to drive change.
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Completed investigation reports with a summary letter, highlighting key findings and
changes made as a result, are shared with the patient and/or family member with an
offer of a meeting with the Trust to discuss the findings.

Lessons learned following each investigation were shared with all staff and Integrated
clinical service units (ICSUs) involved in the care provided, through various methods
including the ‘Big 4’ in theatres, and ‘message of the week’ in maternity, obstetrics,
and other departments. Learning from incidents is shared through Trustwide
multimedia such as a regular patient safety newsletter, as well as at local ICSU Quality
& Risk meetings and other internal media sources.

Never Events
A never event is defined as a serious, largely preventable, patient safety incident that
should not occur if the available preventative measures have been implemented; this

is a list of specific events defined nationally.

Figure 2: The number of Never Events reported by Whittington Health from 2016 to
2023

Never Events

o N B O

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Misplaced naso or orgogastric tubes

Retained foreign object post-procedure

Unitentional connection of a patient requiring oxygen to an air flowmeter
Wrong implant/prosthesis

B Wrong site surgery

During 2022/23, the Trust reported one never event which was wrong site surgery.

A patient who was admitted to Whittington Health NHS Trust for an elective shoulder
procedure in the day treatment centre. As part of the anaesthetic plan, the patient was
to be given a general anaesthetic and a nerve block. Unfortunately, the nerve block
was performed on the incorrect side. This was immediately noted. Surgery was
cancelled and rebooked for the following day. Subsequent surgery (and correct side
block) occurred uneventfully on the following day.

Learning from the incident was as follows:

e Consistent completion of the World Health Organisation surgical list with the
anaesthetist undertaking the procedure present
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e Consistent use of ‘Stop Before You Block’ for all anaesthetic team members
involved in the procedure
e To ensure patients are not asked leading questions about their procedures

Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch Maternity incidents

The Healthcare Safety Investigation Branch (HSIB) maternity investigation
programme is part of a national action plan to make maternity care safer. HSIB
undertakes approximately 1,000 independent maternity safety investigations a year to
identify common themes and influence systemic change. All NHS Trusts with maternity
services in England refer incidents to HSIB.

From 1 April 2022 to March 2023, Whittington Health referred five cases to the HSIB
for investigation. The reasons for referral were potential hypoxic ischaemic
encephalopathy (HIE) and intrapartum stillbirth. Two of the families declined for HSIB
to review the care received. One case was not investigated by the HSIB as, on further
review, the case did not meet HIE criteria.

Two HSIB reviews for intrapartum stillbirths have now been completed. One report
concluded that appropriate care was provided and no safety recommendations were
made. The other had two safety recommendations — one with respect to maternity
triage telephone access and clinical prioritisation which has been part implemented to
date and one regarding a fetal wellbeing mandatory study day including Intelligent
Intermittent fetal monitoring auscultation as part of the programme. The Intelligent
Intermittent fetal monitoring auscultation guideline is under review.

As of the March 2023, the Trust has no active investigations being undertaken by
HSIB. Also, no new referrals have been made as no cases met HSIB criteria.

Perinatal Mortality Review Tool (PMRT)

The perinatal mortality review tool (PMRT) supports systematic, multidisciplinary, high
guality reviews of the circumstances and care leading up to and surrounding each
stillbirth and neonatal death, and babies who die in the post-neonatal period having
received neonatal care. The PMRT provides a structured process of review, learning,
reporting and actions to improve future care.

In 2022, ten cases met the eligibility criteria for PMRT review. The eligible cases were
stillbirths. From those, seven reviews have been completed and three are ongoing.
The progress is within maternity incentive scheme (MIS) timeframes. For five of the
cases, there were no care and or service delivery problems identified. For two cases,
care and service delivery problems were identified. For the first case, this was related
to staff not accessing available information regarding the woman’s mental health
history. This, however, did not impact on the outcome. For the second case, the low
dose aspirin pathway was not adhered to and the review panel found that this may
have contributed to the outcome. For all cases, the families have been involved in the
PMRT reviews.
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Learning from deaths

During 2022/2023, there were 459 inpatient deaths at the Trust (this figure excludes
patients who died in the emergency department) with the following distribution across
the year:

105 In the first quarter
117 In the second quarter
123 In the third quarter
114 In the fourth quarter

Summary Hospital-Level Mortality Indicator (SHMI)
The most recent data available (published 9 March 2023) covers the period November
2021 to October 2022

Whittington Trust SHMI Compared to 0.88 reported for October 2020
: 0.88 :

score: to September 2021 period

Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS

Foundation Trust

Epsom and St. Helier University Hospitals

NHS Trust.

Lowest National Score: 0.71

Highest National Score: 1.18

13 Trusts were graded as having a lower-than-expected number of deaths.
10 Trusts were graded as having a higher-than-expected number of deaths.

98 Trusts, including Whittington Health, were graded as showing the number of deaths
in line with expectations.

The SHMI represents a comparison against a standardised national average. The
'national average' therefore is a standardised 100 and values significantly "below 100
indicate a lower-than-expected number of mortalities (and vice versa for values
significantly above).

Oversight

The Trust has an embedded process to screen, review and investigate inpatient
deaths. Each clinical directorate has a mortality review process to undertake reviews
on any appropriate deaths and to identify learning. The mortality review group (MRG)
provides scrutiny of mortality surveillance to ensure the Trust is driving quality
improvement by using a systematic approach to mortality review and learning from
death. The MRG reports to the quality governance committee, cascading upwards to
the quality assurance committee and the Trust Board, via a quarterly learning from
deaths report, authored by the associate medical director for learning from deaths and
the project lead for mortality.

Reviews
Of 452 deaths in the year, 92 were identified as meeting the criteria for a structured
judgement review. Of the 92 identified deaths, 39 case record reviews had been
completed by the end of the financial year with others from more recent deaths in
progress.
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The table below shows the number of case record reviews by quarter and the number
of deaths judged more than likely than not to have been due to problems in care:

Quarter 1 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 4
2022/23 | 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23
Number of structured judgement 15 7 10 7
reviews
Number of deaths judged
probably avoidable (more than 0 1 0 0
50:50)

There was one death that was noted to be more than 50:50 likely to be avoidable. This
concerned a patient who required prompt surgical intervention for large bowel
obstruction with learning around patients needing to be counselled carefully about the
benefits of early intervention.

Summary of themes, learning and actions from case record reviews
From the deaths reviewed in 2022/23 the main themes, learning and actions were:

Care of patients with co-existing physical and mental health illness - regular mental
health review was important in those patients with both mental and physical illness
acknowledging the potential interplay between two conditions and the importance of
ensuring their mental health needs were not overlooked whilst their physical needs
were being intensively managed. It was also noted that patients may be having
infrequent depot injections as part of their mental health care and the schedule of
administration needs to be considered and where appropriate maintained during
inpatient admission for physical illness. The benefits of a collaborative approach with
the mental health liaison service were highlighted particularly where frequent
reassessment of a patient’'s mental capacity was needed if they were choosing to
decline treatments.

Good practice was identified in the care of patients with a learning disability. Early
contact with the learning disability team following admission is advised with the access
of the patient passport, to help improve communication with the patient.

The early recognition of swallowing difficulties in patients with a learning disability, with
the benefit from the speech and language teams as well as input from family members
resulted in an improvement in oral intake of food and fluids in one patient.

End of life care (EoLC)
There were many examples of excellent end of life care. The following factors were
identified over the year as contributing to this:

e respecting the wishes of patients who have capacity

e consistent multiple iterative treatment escalation planning conversations with
relatives
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e early identification of a dying patient allows for early involvement with palliative
care and gives families valuable time to spend with their loved one

e a side room being available for the dying where bed pressures allowed

e the anticipatory medicines should be prescribed and utilised when needed

e hypoglycaemia in elderly non-diabetic patients is seen as a poor prognostic
indicator and may be part of the dying process

e the use of morphine as a treatment for breathlessness at the end-of-life care,
was emphasised as beneficial where oxygen levels are at baseline. High flow
nasal oxygen and oxygen are not indicated in this situation

e one mortality meeting discussed that some patients without a confirmed
diagnosis of cancer do not always require a biopsy if the picture is one of
terminal disease. This might apply to patients who are unlikely to be fit for
intervention. The acute oncology service can be contacted to provide support
for complex decision making and a second opinion in such cases

e patients presenting with a low sodium should be referred to the critical care
outreach team as they often require close fluid balance monitoring on the high
dependence unit. There are Trust guidelines available on the intranet on the
management of this condition

e respiratory care: avoiding the risk of oxygen toxicity can be done by adjusting
oxygen therapy target levels to avoid type 2 respiratory failure in patients with
chronic respiratory disease or an elevated bicarbonate. Oxygen prescribing
guidelines are available on the intranet for guidance. Teams were asked to
check for oxygen alerts on Careflow with the recommended target saturation.
Introducing an oxygen alert for a patient can be done by a referral on ICE
(oxygen alert) to the respiratory team, who will create one

e patients with signs of an upper gastro intestinal bleed should be fully examined
and reviewed. Underlying causes for the bleeding should be considered. If the
patient is on anticoagulation, a reversal agent should be promptly used to
reduce the bleeding if it is safe to do so

Medical Examiners Service
The medical examiners department continues to flourish. This department provides
reviews of case notes, discussions with members of clinical teams, supportive

discussions with bereaved families and issues an accurate medical certification cause
of death.
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Infection prevention and control

A senior lead nurse leads the Trust infection prevention and control (IPC) procedures,
in collaboration and under the direction of the chief nurse and director of allied health
professionals, who is the accountable officer, and director of infection prevention and
control. The infection prevention and control Team (IPCT) provide a full service to
hospital, dental, mental health and community services across Whittington Health
NHS Trust. Operationally, they are a team of senior IPC nurses, an audit person and
an information analyst who support national, regional and local reporting on health
care acquired infections (HCAI), Trust attributable bacteraemia such as methicillin
resistant staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) and escherichia coli (E. Coli); clostridium
difficile infections, HCAI outbreaks; seasonal respiratory illness such as influenza and
sars-cov-2 (COVID-19) across the Trust.

The focus is on prevention of infection through surveillance, audit, education, training
and reaudit. The table below summarises the numbers of incidents of patients
acquiring the main healthcare acquired infections.

Health Care Acquired Infections (HCAI)
Nosocomial or HCAIs are defined as those occurring:

e as adirect result of treatment in, or contact with, a health or social care setting

e because of healthcare delivered in the community healthcare-associated
infections

e outside a healthcare setting (for example, in the community) and brought in by
patients, staff or visitors and transmitted to others (for example, norovirus).

(NICE Quality Standard- 13 - 2016)

The UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) monitors the numbers of certain infections
that occur in healthcare settings through routine surveillance programmes and advises
on how to prevent and control infection in establishments such as hospitals, care
homes and schools.

Management of healthcare associated infections
Whittington Health’s infection prevention and control policy documents the importance
of preventing and reducing rates of HCAI and the surveillance of potential incidents.

This remains critical for inpatients who are at risk as they provide essential information
on what and where the problems are and how well control measures are working.
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Health Care Acquired Infections — COVID-19

2022-23 Covid surveillance continues, anticipating a drop of reported infections in line
with August 2022 guidance pausing routine asymptomatic testing in a number of NHS
settings (e.g. emergency, trauma). The Trust reports daily on all HCAlI COVID-19
infections. There were 182 definite COVID-19 HCAI cases during 2022/23. Wherever
known transmission occurred, appropriate IPC measures were implemented,
individual cases were reviewed and, when necessary, the closure of beds
recommended. There was regular updating of the COVID-19 IPC guidance, and this
is incorporated within local policies and guidelines to ensure all staff are kept up to
date on department of health and social care and NHS England changes.

400

No. of Covid19 +ve by month / classification

350 A

300 4

250

200 1

150

100

50

Intermediate HAI 11 1 21 25 2 1 [ & Z1 13 22 17
Probably HAI 8 2 13 12 1 14 2 15 21 23 13
B Definite HAI 11 3 26 10 3 1 28 13 26 18 28 1z
B Community Acquired | 174 96 195 304 110 42 76 54 &7 72 65 86

Health Care Acquired Infections — other infections

The IPC team continued to support the hospital and community services by performing
the post infection reviews which focus on all aspects of the patient journey from pre-
admission through to discharge when the patient acquired a HCAI. This included a
multi-disciplinary clinical review of all cases with rapid feedback of good practice
and/or any lapse in care identified to prompt ward-level learning; cases being reported
at infection prevention and control committee meetings to ensure Trustwide sharing
and learning and an appropriate platform for escalating outstanding actions.
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2022/23 saw an increase in clostridium difficile (C. Diff) cases compared with previous
years which may be a threefold consequence of:

e increased use of key antibiotics required during the acute and subsequent
phases of the COVID-19 pandemic

¢ the altered surveillance definitions of health or community acquisition

o the C. difficile threshold is calculated during the 12 months ending with
November 2021 data. If an NHS trust had more than ten cases, the threshold
would be one less than the count. Up until February 2023, Whittington Health
reported zero cross infection in relation to this infection. March 2023 cases
remain outstanding on referencing two sample strains to rule out cross
contamination of two cases found in the same ward at the same time

The table below summarises the numbers of incidents of patients acquiring the main
healthcare acquired infections.

Infection Outcomes

MRSA There is a zero tolerance on MRSA blood stream infections
(Methicillin (BSI). Unfortunately, there were two reported cases in the
Resistant reporting year. The first case (February 2023) was from an
Staphylococcus | unclear source and a possible contaminant. The second case’s
Aureus) probable source is thought to be line related. There are

Trustwide learning outcomes identified, and dedicated work
streams underway through audit and education.

Clostridium The UKHSA CDI trajectory recommended for 2022/23 within the
Difficile Trust was set at 14 and Whittington Health reported 21 cases of
Infections (CDI) | CDI (Hospital onset, healthcare associated (Day 2 or later since
admission HOHA) above the target. All of these cases were
robustly investigated under collaboration with microbiology,
pharmacy, IPC, nursing and the medical teams. There were no
lapses in care related to cross-transmission or antibiotic choices
until February 2023 and March cases continue to be
investigated.

The recurring themes from post infection reviews were:

e missed opportunity to send stool on time (making a
Community Acquired Infection (CAI) a Hospital Acquired
Infection (HAI)

e notisolated
o as no side room
o not recognising infectious diarrhoea

e poor documentation
o not being able to isolate not recorded
o no pre-admission bowel habit recorded
o no cause of diarrhoea assessment undertaken

The IPC team worked alongside the electronic patient record
program team to ensure documentation on the frontline was
intuitive, clear and simple. Rapid patient clinical assessment is
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Infection

Outcomes

essential for providing appropriate IPC management and
reducing the spread of infection.

E.Coli
Bacteraemia

Under the 2022/23 NHS standard contract, NHS trusts are
required to minimise rates of both C. difficile and of Gram-
negative bloodstream infections so that they are no higher than
the threshold levels set by NHS England. There were 17 Trust-
attributed E. coli blood stream infections (BSI) this year of a
trajectory set at 35. The national objective, in line with the UK
five-year plan "Tackling antimicrobial resistance 2019-2024', is to
halve healthcare associated Gram-negative BSIs, by March
2024 and Whittington Health remains on target to achieve this.

Respiratory
other than C19

During winter, there were 36 acquired cases of influenza within
the hospital, no HCAI deaths were associated. Currently,
Whittington Health is seeing a slight increase in cases of
influenza B which is consistent with seasonal picture. Influenza A
and respiratory syncytial virus cases are occurring in low
numbers.

Surgical Site
Infections (SSI)

National mandatory SSI reporting is one quarter / one orthopaedic
surgical procedure. Whittington opted to report three quarters in
2022/23 on large bowel and repair of neck of femur fracture
surgery, as follows:

e April to June 2022 large bowel surgery and repair of neck of
femur fracture surgery

e July to September 2022 no SSI surveillance was undertaken

e October to December 2022 repair of neck of femur fracture
surgery — data is being finalised

e January to March 2023 repair of neck of femur fracture surgery

The Trust reported:

e 7 large bowel surgery SSls
e 0 repair of neck of femur fracture surgery

The SSlI risk is above the national 90™ percentile in both above
operations, although the number of operations occurring are
small and could distort percentages. It is recommended by the
UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) that surveillance should be
undertaken in more than one consecutive period or continuously
so that ‘more precise rates can be estimated from a larger set of
cumulative data’ (UKHSA 2013 — Protocol for the Surveillance of
Surgical Site Infection). Large bowel surgery is complex and
often with urgency therefore considered an increased risk of
infection and therefore will cease surveillance in 2023/24.
Surveillance on reduction of long bone fracture surgery will be
considered as a replacement of neck of femurs in 2023/24, given
the low number of operations performed.
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Winter flu and COVID-19 vaccinations

The Trust ran vaccination programmes for both COVID-19 and flu using a variety of
approaches at the hospital and community sites. The vaccination campaigns were
coupled with supporting all staff to make informed choices about vaccination.

We ran a series of webinars; team meetings; one-to one sessions along with a
visible poster campaign. Flu vaccination uptake was at 40.9%. Staff were
encouraged to have a COVID-19 booster to help protect themselves, patients and
their colleagues and 41.1% took this up.
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE
Learning from national patient surveys

The Trust received the results for the following three national patient experience
surveys during 2022/23:

o 2021 Adult Inpatient Survey (published September 2022)
2022 Maternity Survey (published January 2023)
2021 Cancer Patient Experience Survey (published July 2022)

Adult Inpatient Survey 2021

1,250 people, who stayed in hospital for at least one night during November 2021,
were invited to take part in the survey. 30% of people responded, with a reduction of
3% response rate in comparison to our previous survey conducted in 2020. This
percentage sits below the average response rate for similar organisations of 39%.

The survey, carried out by Picker on behalf of the Trust, used a mixed-mode data
collection of both online and paper-based surveys, in addition to using a range of
contact for invitation and reminders for completion, via letter and text message format.
The survey was made available in a range of accessible formats, including braille,
easy read, British sign language, non-English languages, telephone-assisted
completes and a screen-reader compatible online questionnaire. In addition to this, a
freephone language line service was available to provide translation services.

The representation of our respondents was as follows:

Respondents 7 3 0/0
of respondents said
30%

they had a lona term
condition

of patients 90/0 1 50/0
responded to the 15.35 36-50
survey year olds year olds

31% = 46%

51-85 66+
year olds

8% Asian/ Asian British

10[y Black/ African/
O Caribbean/ Black British
o/ Mixed/ Multiple ethnic
BA’ groups

91% 49%

5% Other ethnic groups

70% Wwhite
4
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In comparison to the previous year, the following changes were noted within the
demographics of respondents:

e Anincreased percentage response from those with a long-term condition
(70% to 73%)
e A closer matched ratio of male to female participants (43/55% to 51/49%)

The key improvements and issues to address are summarised below:

Most improved scores since 2020

98% Staff helped when needed attention
96% Room or ward very or fairly clean

91%  Got enough to drink

o Staff discussed need for additional equipment or home adaptation
79% :
after discharge

98% Had confidence and trust in the doctors

Top scores vs the Picker Average

90%  Given information about medicine at discharge
16%  Asked to give views on quality of care during stay
97%  Questions before procedure were answered well

98%  Staff helped when needed attention

Focus on Inpatient views

77% Rated overall experience as 7/10 or more
97% Treated with respect and dignity overall
98% Had confidence and trust in the doctors

Bottom 5 scores vs the Picker Average

52% Food was very good or fairly good

@ 56%  Able to get food outside of mealtimes
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64%  Told who to contact if worried after discharge
39% Not prevented from sleeping at night

58% Staff did not contradict each other about care and treatment

OOO

Key successes include people getting help when they needed attention (Q30),
increasing from 95% to 98% (above the national average of 97%). We maintained our
scores for 98% of respondents having confidence and trust in their doctors (Q17), and
97% for answering questions before procedure well (Q32). These positive results are
testament to the hard work and care of our clinical staff, and we will aim to maintain
and even exceed these scores in future years.

96% of respondents reported that their room or ward was very or fairly clean (Q8), an
increase on the previous score of 95%, in comparison to national results which saw a
decrease in positive results since 2020.

When considering discharge from hospital, there was discussion about additional
equipment or home adaption (Q37) for 79% of respondents (an increase from 78% in
2020), and their medications (Q41) for 90% of respondents (decreasing from 93% in
2020, remaining above the Picker average of 87%).

Looking at nutrition and hydration questions, there were both positive and negative
results. We have increased our score for getting enough to drink (Q15) from 90% to
91%, matching the national average. This coincides with work done with staff to ensure
patients are regularly asked whether they would like more to drink, and making water
more readily available with the use of water dispensers on wards. However, our food
score (Q12) has fallen to 52% from 55%. As the survey was conducted prior to the roll
out of fully plated meals in January 2022 across all areas, allowing for increased
patient choice at each mealtime, we hope to see a positive change in these scores in
future patient surveys.

We continue to ask patients on their views on the quality of care during their stay,
scoring 16%, 3% above the Picker average. However, this score has seen a downward
trend since 2017 from 22%, showing our need to focus on accessing patient opinion
more regularly during their stay. The patient experience and volunteering team are
currently working on ways to increase feedback received, and this area will be a goal
to look to improve over the next year. The implementation of the patient safety incident
response framework (PSIRF) will support an increase in accessing patient views, as
it has a key focus on engaging those with a lived experience of NHS care as a key
part of incident responses and improvement work.

2022 Maternity Survey
300 people, aged 16 or older who had a live birth during the month of February

2022, were invited to take part in the survey. 54% of people responded, with a
reduction of 7% response rate in comparison to the previous survey conducted in
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2021. Although reduced, this response rate is above the average rate for similar
NHS organisations (48%).

The survey, conducted by Picker on behalf of the Trust, used a mixed-mode data
collection of both online and paper-based surveys, in addition to using a range of
contact for invitation and reminders for completion, via letter and text message
format. The online survey was available in nine non-English languages and included
accessibility formats.

The representation of our respondents was as follows:

Respondents 1 60/0

of respondents said
%
54%

they had a long-term
of patients

condition
responded to the
survey

6% 16%

16-25 26-30
year olds year olds

39%  39% O
31-35 36+
820/0 year olds year olds 9% Asian/ Asian British

of mothers who have
previously given birth

1 3 r_y Black/ African/
O Caribbean/ Black British
os Mixed/ Multiple ethnic
GA’ groups

39 Other ethnic groups

66% White
4

The number of respondents reporting a long-term condition remained static at 16%,
as did the percentage of mothers who have previously given birth (82%). The
percentage of respondents from ethnic minority groups increased from 29% to 31%.

Key findings, improvements and issues to address are summarised below:

95% C21. Treated with respect and Historical comparison™ Comparison with average®
0 dignity (during labour and birth) )
= Significantly Significantly
. better better
93% C22. Had confidence and frust in ' Sianificantl '/ Sionificantl
staff (during labour and birth) Aty eanty
C20. Involved enough in decisions s No significant @ No significant

difference difference

949%, about their care (during labour and
birth)

*Chart shows the number of questions that are better, worse, or show no significant difference
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Most improved scores since 2021

70%

71%

69%

84%

72%

Saw the midwife as much as they wanted (postnatal)

Felt GP talked enough about mental health during postnatal
check-up

Felt GP talked enough about physical health during postnatal
check-up

Given enough support for mental health during pregnancy

Felt midwives aware of medical history (postnatal)

Top scores vs the Picker Average

91%

85%

70%

90%

81%

Found partner was able to stay with them as long as they wanted
(in hospital after birth)

Given enough information about coronavirus restrictions and any
implications for maternity care

Saw the midwife as much as they wanted (postnatal)
Involved enough in decision to be induced

Able to ask questions afterwards about labour and birth

Most declined scores

73%

83%

93%

80%

94%

CICICICIC,

Felt they they were given appropriate advice and support at the
start of labour

Given information about changes to mental health after having
baby

Had confidence and trust in staff (during labour and birth)

Given enough information about their own physical recovery

Involved enough in decisions about their care (during labour and
birth)

Bottom 5 scores vs the Picker Average

O

72%

Provided with relevant information about feeding their baby
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Felt they they were given appropriate advice and support at the
start of labour

Received suppport or advice about feeding their baby during
evenings, nights or weekends

73%
63%

80%  Given enough information about their own physical recovery

Received help and advice about feeding their baby (first six

0,
82%  \eeks after birth)

OO0

Key highlights to note include the excellent feedback that 91% felt their partners were
able to stay for as long as they wanted (D7), in comparison to a national average of
41%, reflecting the Trust’s proactive approach to risk assessing partner visiting during
the Covid pandemic to allow this to continue safely. This score was in the top 10 out
of 121 Trusts who conducted the survey.

The survey results indicate that further work can be done to improve provision of
information, advice and support in maternity services (B16, F15 & F16: feeding
information — 63% - 82%; C7: start of labour — 73%, F14: physical recovery — 80%;
F12: mental health - 83%). Following the survey, an Ockenden visit took place in June
2022, which found that the service worked closely with the Maternity Voices
Partnership to drive improvement, including co-design of patient information.
Additional quality improvement projects are currently underway looking at improving
education and information for maternity service users, which we hope will be reflected
in future positive survey results regarding information provision, advice, and support.

National Cancer Patient Experience Survey 2021

228 patients (with a confirmed primary diagnosis of cancer, discharged from an NHS
Trust after an inpatient episode or day case attendance for cancer related treatment
in the months of April, May and June 2021) were invited to take part in the survey, and
88 responses (39%) were received.

The survey was conducted in both paper and online form, with respondents from 10
different tumour groups. Age distribution was from 25-85+, with 15% of total
respondents from ethnic minority groups.

The executive summary is displayed below:

Case Mix Adjusted Scores
Lower Upper

Expected Expected
Range Range

National
Score

Questions Above Expected Range 2021
Score

Q22. Family and/or carers were definitely
involved as much as the patient wanted them to = 86% 64% 85% 75%
be in decisions about treatment options
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Case Mix Adjusted Scores

: Lower Upper .
Questions Below Expected Range 2021 Expected  Expected National
Score Score
Range Range

Q6. Diagnostic test staff appeared to completely

have all the information they needed about the = 69% 75% 93% 84%

patient

Q18. Patient found it very or quite easy to contact

their main contact person 74% 7% 93% 85%

Q19. Patient found qdwce from main contact 89% 91% 100% 96%

person was very or quite helpful

Q26. Care team reviewed the patient's care plan 94% 95% 100% 99%

with them to ensure it was up to date

Q32. Patient's family, or someone close, was
definitely able to talk to a member of the team  35% 42% 79% 61%
looking after the patient in hospital

Q34. Patient was always able to get help from

54% 61% 91% 76%
ward staff when needed
Q35. Pat|en_t was al_ways able to discuss worries 44% 50% 84% 67%
and fears with hospital staff
Q37. Patient was always treated with respect and 68% 78% 100% 89%

dignity while in hospital

Q38. Patient received easily understandable

information about what they should or should not = 70% 77% 100% 89%
do after leaving hospital

Q41 _1. Beforehand patient completely had

enough understandable information about  78% 80% 99% 89%
surgery

Q42_1. Patient completely had enough

understandable information about progress with = 65% 74% 95% 85%
surgery

Q59. Patient's average rating of care scored from
very poor to very good

8.4 8.6 9.2 8.9

To put this into context, the results came during a period of extreme challenges for the
delivery of patient centered care for Whittington Health cancer patients. Whilst it is
accepted that many of the scores are below the lower expected range, cancer services
valued the opportunity to learn and develop its services to ensure that these concerns
are reduced in the future.

In response to the results, an action plan was drawn up to address some of the issues
highlighted in the survey. The actions included:

e building a stronger working relationship with other hospitals in order to enable
better understanding of the needs of those with cancer or where cancer may
be suspected

e ‘Ten at Ten’ sessions were organised from September 2022 onwards giving
the opportunity for the clinical nurse specialist (CNS) team to engage with other
healthcare professions to support their learning and understanding about
issues that might affect cancer patients. These included topics such as
neutropenic sepsis and spinal cord compression which may be the cause of
an acute admission. The CNSs also provide expert advice and guidance during

Page 55 of 134



4000

3000

2000

1000

1713

Apr

a hospital admission, as their expertise and good practice is essential to the
development of ward staff, which in turn enhances patient care

training for frontline staff, including ward clerks and administrative staff around
patient engagement. This was delivered by ‘Wingfactors’ (aviation experts)
during Q2 and Q3 of 2022. This helped to promote and improve better
communication with patients, their families and carers, especially during
periods when a hospital stay was required. During the time of the survey,
hospital visiting was very limited due to ongoing COVID-19 restrictions, which
created further problems with access to information, especially for a patient’s
family and carers

work is currently underway to increase the support available in cancer specific
outpatient settings using volunteers. This is to improve the patient experience,
but also gives the opportunity to engage with the patients to further support the
collection of friends & family feedback (FFT)

face-to-face health and wellbeing events have also increased during the latter
part of 2022. These help to increase engagement with different patient groups.
This then supports patients to gain further information and awareness of
support mechanisms, which helps to manage some of the concerns and
anxieties that occur because of a cancer diagnosis and ongoing treatment. An
example of this was the highly successful prostate cancer event held in
September 2022. This focused on a patient group that had been poorly
serviced in relation to ongoing support (men and in particular black men who
have a disproportionately higher chance of being diagnosed with prostate
cancer). The event brought patients and healthcare professionals together,
provided access to information, personal testimonies of living with this
condition and explored the need for ongoing support.

Family & Friends Test (FFT)
Response Rates

A total of 29,577 Family & Friends Tests were completed for the year, with an average
of 2,465 per month. This is an increase on the previous year’'s average of 2,067 per

August 2022 received the highest volume of submissions, coinciding with focused
intervention of the patient experience team and maternity services to increase
response rates, going from a response rate of 202 in July, up to 517 in August. Whilst
this improved rates for that month, the subsequent months did not maintain this rate,
dropping to 167 the following month, demonstrating that further work is required to
embed the practice of services proactively requesting service user feedback.

3352
I
. 2727 2920 2734
2523 2414

2201 2293 2201

1952

Jan

May Jun Jul Aug Sep oct Nov Dec Feb

2023

Figure 1: Number of FFT Surveys completed in the Trust by month
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Work continued within the patient experience team and voluntary services to promote
and collect FFT responses. This includes the ongoing work of collecting handwriten
postcards to upload to the electronic reporting system. A new project was commenced
in quarter 4 of 22/23, with patient experience staff and volunteers regularly visting
Outpatient waiting areas to promote completion of FFTs, making electronic tablets
available for patients to complete.

FFT responses are received from a range of sources, including:
e SMS/text (12,329 responses)
Smartphone app/tablet/kiosk (7,710 responses)
Postcards (6,161 responses)
Online survey after discharge/appointment (1,781 responses)
Telephone survey after discharge of appointment (5 responses)

Quick response codes have been introduced across the Trust, enabling patients to
provide feedback from their own devices, as well as reducing the need for manual
collection and inputting of data. The automated SMS/text message is in place, with the
largest number of SMS/text responses being received for the emergency department
FFT (9,388).

Scoring

The below charts demonstrate the percentages of “very good/good” versus “poor/very
poor” responses.

FET - Al 1 83.9% | 7.04% |
% wery good or good % poor or very poor
. 0 ._ - ' 0 1
FET — Birth 98.81%, 0.31%
% very good or good % poor or very poor
/ o \ f o \
% wvery good or good % poor or very poor
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FFT - Inpatient 93.7%  2.68%
% wvery good or good % poor or very poor
' A 0
FFT - Outpatient 90.99% 6.69%
% very good or good % poor or very poor
FFT — Emergency 75.97%, 17.14%
Department
% very good or good % poor or very poor

The overall average has fallen from 89% to 84%, with lowest scoring noted within the
emergency department and uutpatient FFTs. On further analysis, it is noted that this
drop in responses were during quarter 2 and 3, with an uplift in scoring during quarter
4, reflecting a proactive response of patient experience and individual services to
improve based on feedback received.

88% 86% 85%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 2J0a2ns Feb Mar

Figure 2: Very good and good responses for all FFTs

The patient experience and engagement strategy for 2023-2025 was written and an
action plan drawn up. Goals included the following:

e To expand methods used to receive feedback to engage with a wider
audience that is representative of the community we serve

e To increase our FFT responses to baseline response rate seen prior to the
Covid pandemic

e To engage and recruit patient representatives to be present and able to
contribute at Trust meetings, playing an active role in improvements and
learning from incidents
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS

Driven by its vision of ‘Helping local people live longer, healthier lives’, Whittington
Health, is committed to continually improve the care it provides to its patients.
Whittington Health believes that ‘Better Never Stops’ and this attitude is embedded
within the Trust’s two-way approach to Quality Improvement. A bottom-up approach
encourages grass roots development and top-down actions use performance and
outcome data to drive improvement.

The clinical effectiveness group (CEG), chaired by the associate medical director for
guality improvement and clinical effectiveness, continued to strengthen the clinical
effectiveness agenda. Regular reports on clinical effectiveness, including national
and local audits, National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) and local
clinical management guidelines, Getting it Right First Time (GIRFT) progress as well
as quality improvement are discussed at the CEG and the quality governance
committee, further included in the quality report to Trust Board.

Key achievements during 2022/23 included:

e Clinical effectiveness was subject to an external review with auditing across
six key domains. The Trust received significant assurance across the board.

e Improvement work commenced around national audits to include a new
response template which prioritises assurance levels

e Pragmatic response to the backlog of clinical guideline reviews subsequent to
the COVID-19 pandemic

e GIRFT: successful cardiology and neonatology GIRFT visits which have
informed local service development

e Quality improvement (QIl): new allied health professional QI programme
delivering many successful projects impacting on patient care at the same
time as developing our staff in clinical leadership

Despite significant pressures, the Trust continued to submit clinical data to mandated
national audits and ensure the timely review of published reports to make
recommendations for quality improvement as appropriate. Such audits included:

e National prostate cancer audit

¢ Royal College of Emergency Medicine (RCEM) national audit on fractured neck
of femur

¢ National audit of paediatric diabetes care

National audits

During 2022/2023, 53 national clinical audits including five national confidential
enquiries covered relevant health services that Whittington Health provided.
Whittington Health participated in 98% of national clinical audits and 100% of national
confidential enquiries.
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The single national audit to which the Trust did not participate: an end of life care
(EoLC) audit, was discussed widely with North Central London EoLC colleagues as
well as our full multi-disciplinary team at Whittington Health. Our rationale for non-
participation was communicated to Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership: that
the work involved for small teams is significant, and the action plans extensive. The
Trust requested consideration to moving the audit to a bi-annual undertaking which
will allow our clinical team to implement the findings of each report.

The Trust also registered an additional 17 non-mandatory national audits for
completion.

Our local audit and effectiveness programme has retained both COVID-19 and
general medical and surgical projects, and service evaluations.

Clinical audit reporting continues to provide a vital mechanism to capture care quality
across the organisation. Learning from outcomes has remained a priority, facilitated
by regular multidisciplinary audit and effectiveness afternoons and bespoke training
of staff.

The Trust have made it easier for our clinicians to respond to national audit results by
introducing a new response template which focuses upon assurance and remain
committed to the celebration of areas of excellence and shared learning.

The Trust also continued to develop our patient and carer representation in national

audit, and this year has introduced an expert patient representative to join our chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease and asthma care quality review group.
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RESEARCH

Context

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic saw changes to the national and local portfolio
of research including the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR)
Reset programme. The Reset programme seeks to identify studies that will not meet
their aims within the original, or reasonably revised timelines and make plans to close
or revise studies accordingly. Research & development (R&D) offices, having had
consistent exceptionally high workloads have struggled to remain fully staffed and
meet demand which has certainly had an impact on the number of studies opening
locally and therefore on the number of patients recruited into trials. Regardless of the
reduction in volume, there has been a sustained effort within the Trust to get back to
(and exceed) pre-pandemic levels of activity.

Staffing and Staff Engagement

Whittington Health currently employ 12.7 whole time equivalent (WTE) research staff:
a reduction of 1.0 WTE on the previous year (as 1.5 WTE is linked to now completed
grant funding) but there was growth among the research delivery team of 0.5WTE.

Whether or not engaged directly through the Trust’s research department, many Trust
clinicians remain research active. This is demonstrated by research publication
records. A PubMed search for ‘Whittington Health® or ‘Whittington NHS’
(https://bit.ly/310IRYH) reveals a steady rise in publications year on year, with in
excess of 90 such papers published in the 12 months to 1 January 2023.

The Trust holds two research grants: Professor Ibrahim Abubakar’s NIHR programme
grant for applied research: research to improve the detection and treatment of latent
tuberculosis infection (RID-TB) and Dr Sharon Millard’s NIHR research for patient
benefit: evaluating Palin stammering therapy for children: a feasibility study.

Performance

At the time of writing (April 2023), 540 patients were recorded as having been recruited
into studies during 2022/23 with a small number of additional accruals expected. This
figure is lower than recent years (19/20 848, 20/21 1241, 21/22 921). In the context of
low COVID-19 admissions, a return to non-COVID-19 studies many with amended
protocols, and the NIHR Reset programme detailed above it is a pattern seen across
the UK. Bottlenecks within R&D offices (that provide the administrative oversight for
setting up studies), have impacted the number of studies that were able to open during
the year and there are plans in place to address this challenge during 2023/24 and
increase the number of studies and volume of recruits.
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NIHR Portfolio Non-Portfolio
Patients recruited Number of recruiting Number of
studies recruiting studies
Year

2018/19 1077 49 7
2019/20 803 29 5
2020/21 1198 20 4
2021/22 921 27 5
2022/23 540 30 4

Factors influencing the data shown here include that non-COVID-19 trials were
suspended for much of 2020/21 and into 2022, with further disruption over the winter
of 2020/21 and with Omicron surge in the winter of 2021/22.

Completed trials and outcomes

Publication of a selection of trials (performed or recruiting at Whittington Health) in the
last year are described below:

Oesophageal and gastric malignancies after bariatric surgery: a retrospective
global study. Surgery for Obesity and Related Diseases

Palin parent-child interaction therapy with children with autism spectrum
disorder and stuttering. Journal of Communication Disorders

Compatrative effectiveness of a second-line biologic in patients with ulcerative
colitis: Vedolizumab followed by an anti-TNF versus anti-TNF followed by
vedolizumab. Frontline Gastroenterology

Reduction in transfer of micro-organisms between patients and staff using
short-sleeved gowns and hand/arm hygiene in intensive care during the
COVID-19 pandemic: A simulation-based randomised trial. Journal of the
Intensive Care Society
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GUARDIAN OF SAFE WORKING HOURS

In 2022/23, there continued to be a significant emphasis on the safety of junior doctors’
working hours. This was reflected in the ongoing engagement with the exception
reporting process by both junior doctors and their supervisors. These clearly document
the extra hours worked over and above their rostered hours, as well as the breaks that
are missed. The time accrued through exception reports continue to be reimbursed
with either time off in lieu or payment. The reasons for extra hours worked are analysed
to try and effect change to prevent this from recurring where possible.

This year has seen ongoing issues with significant staff shortages across all training
grades due to high levels of sickness coupled with high levels of acuity of patients, as
we have seen across the wider NHS. There also continues to be high levels of fatigue
and burnout amongst all staff and the hard work and resilience of junior doctors is to
be commended.

There continues to be good engagement with the process of exception reporting as
laid out in the 2016 terms and conditions. There has been an ongoing effort to
encourage all specialities to promote and encourage the use of exception reporting
and a particular emphasis on those at higher levels of training where low levels of
exception reporting is typically seen. The reasons for this are being explored.

The Guardian of Safe Working Hours has worked closely with the junior doctors’ forum
to ensure there is a proactive approach to compliance with the 2016 terms and
conditions. This is also where the spending of monies generated from exception
reporting is discussed and decided. This process will continue.
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INTEGRATED CARE ORGANISATION AND SYSTEM
WORKING

Integrated Care Organisation

As an integrated care organisation, we are demonstrating every day the value of
collaborative working in multi-disciplinary and in multi-agency approaches to health
and care. Our figures continue to show some of the lowest admission rates in North
Central London.

The Trust continues to run the single discharge hub for ourselves and UCLH. We
have also been instrumental in the setup of the virtual wards for both UCLH and North
Middlesex and we are the NCL lead for virtual wards and virtual monitoring.

We continue to run multidisciplinary teams in the community, both in Islington through
the Integrated Care Teams “INCs”, and in Haringey, through the multi-agency
anticipatory care (MAAC) team. These bring many different specialties together to
help solve problems for patients and residents to prevent admissions or ensure a
speedier discharge.

Primary Care Networks and GP Federations

During 2022/23 we continued to work closely with GPs and commissioners in Haringey
and Islington. Examples of this included:

e continuing to develop the integrated diabetes team that supports and trains GPs
to keep patients’ diabetes managed in the community

e our team working with Age UK and the GPs to use an e-frailty index to find and
support patients before they deteriorated

e providing nurse associates and first contact musculoskeletal practitioners to the
primary care networks

Clinical Interface Group

We have a well-established monthly clinical interface group. This is attended by GP
representatives from the local medical committee, North Central London Clinical
Commissioning Group and GP Federations and representatives from the Trust’s
clinical and operational teams, to work on solving any issues and exploring how we
can work in more innovative and efficient ways together for the benefit of our patients.
The group has been used as an exemplar and replicated in the other acute Trusts in
North Central London. These Trust clinical interface groups are now meeting monthly
as the North Central London Interface Steering Group to further enhance and improve
sector working and consistency for the five boroughs at the interface between primary,
community and secondary care.
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Localities and Integrated Care Borough Partnerships

This year, Whittington Health continued to work even more closely with our colleagues
in the councils, mental health trusts, GPs, and the voluntary sector to implement the
vision for our joined-up services based around localities (three in Islington and three
in Haringey). We have been key leaders in the Borough Partnership Boards for
Islington and Haringey, supporting new models of care. Our director of strategy chairs
the Haringey Place Board and our Chief Executive co-chairs the Haringey Borough
Partnership.

North London Partners’ Integrated Care System

We continue to play an instrumental role in the North Central London Integrated Care
System. We have worked well in the operational implementation group which
coordinated elective activity and recovery and the use of the private sector. We have
been working closely together, sharing elective capacity in the private sector, and
Whittington has taken on a large number of urology and general surgery cases from
the Royal Free and UCLH to help spread the load and reduce the backlog of patients
waiting as quickly as possible. The clinical advisory group and the chief executive
group have continued to be crucial parts in the system along with other operational
and corporate groups. We have been represented on all the critical committees. Our
Chair, Chief Executive and other executives have also been instrumental in the set up
and running of the University College London Health Alliance (provider collaborative).

Community Diagnostic Centre

This year we were delighted to open the first phase of the Community Diagnostic
Centre in the heart of Haringey in the Wood Green Shopping City. Good collaborative
working with the landlord led to opening the centre on time and on budget (and won
the HSJ Partnership of the Year award). We are now open with ophthalmology,
ultrasound, x-ray and blood tests in the shopping centre. We were also successful in
the bid for further funding to put an MRI and a CT machine in the basement. We are
excited about the opportunity to site more diagnostics in Haringey and, hopefully, to
make them easier to access for our diverse population. This is one of two linked
community diagnostic centres in North Central London, the other being run by the
Royal Free London in Finchley Memorial Hospital.

University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Throughout the year, we continued to work well with UCLH in various areas of
collaboration, including breast services, maternity, nuclear medicine, and general
surgery. Orthopaedic and oncology services also continue to work well together. This
year also saw the beginnings of a more formal relationship with UCLH in the creation
of a committee-in-common subcommittee of both boards and the recruitment of some
advisory support to make the most of the collaboration.
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Population Health and Anchor institution

This year saw continuation of our population health and anchor institution action plans.
Both form an important part of our response to the inequalities in our boroughs and
strengthen our aim to help local people live longer healthier lives.

Agree priorities and targets with the
Anchor network and work collaboratively
to deliver them.

Lead, influence and partner with
others using data to prioritise

actions that reduce inequalities
Corporate and Civic

Deliver inequality funding projects, and

Co-design and deliver joined up
services so they reach and benefit
disadvantaged communities

work with localities to amplify public
health messages

Service Delivery

Strategﬁ

Create social value through our
procurement
Procurement

Be a positive presence and

influence in the health of our

communities through trusted

advice and holistic approach Service Delivery

Reinvigorate Make Every Count training
and methodology.

SuolL1OY

Employment

Design vibrant community spaces
that improve health and benefit
the environment

Create a Trust Environmental Policy and
Carbon Net Zero Action Plan

Bricks and Mortar

New procurement to include social value
with 10%+ weighting, including local

value and employment

Successes this year linked to this programme included:

YV VVYVY VVVVV VVYY

>

becoming a living wage accredited organisation

working with Islington to set up a mentorship programme

linking the allied health professionals’ leadership fellowship programme
to the Islington apprenticeship programme

starting a salary sacrifice scheme

increasing social value scoring in procurement to 10%

creating a green plan

successfully bidding for numerous inequalities projects in our boroughs
setting up continuity of carer teams, specifically in areas of higher
deprivation

adding anchor institution and population health into our business plans
working with the councils on joined up metrics and actions

working with Islington in supporting people who are finding difficult to get into
work and those with autism.

advertising roles through the Islington network and tracking those we have
been employing from the local population.

ensuring social value is part of all procurement specifications

In addition to these successes, some specific health inequality projects we have
worked on included the following:

Respiratory wellness:
The respiratory wellness programme is focused on adults already identified as having
a higher rate of emergency hospital admissions in relation to their respiratory condition
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(chronic obstructive pulmonary disease), in the most deprived wards in Islington. We
are aiming to deliver a personalised service that also addresses high levels of
underlying mental health need and other physical comorbidities. We are utilising peer
coaches in partnership with Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust, who reflect
the diversity of the local community, operate with a strength-based approach linking
service users with community resources and build patient capacity to self-manage
their long-term condition(s).

Continuity of carer

Our maternity continuity of carer programme aims to create continuity of carer teams
which support mothers from start to finish. Evidence suggests this can lead to better
outcomes for women and their babies. We successfully recruited to two brand new
teams. These teams are specifically focussed on our most deprived population areas
within Haringey and Islington.

Employment

As well as being a London Living Wage accredited employer, we have an ethos of
investment in our future workforce and a commitment to quality training and mentoring,
such as our apprenticeship offer to local people. We have skills enhancement
opportunities targeted at lower pay bands including provision for basic English for
speakers of other languages, literacy and numeracy and softer/transferable skills,
which are delivered in ways to avoid barriers to access such as shift patterns or
location. Internal staff progression is supported and encouraged and skills are
recognised as central to driving productivity.

Sickle cell improvement work
This is highlighted elsewhere in this report and is an example of focussed work on a
particular segment of our population.

Long term conditions support in Haringey

We are giving enhanced support to residents in the deprived areas of Haringey who
have multiple long-term conditions.
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WORKFORCE
Our people

We employ just under 5,000 staff, all of whom contribute to providing high quality
patient care in our hospital and across community sites. The majority of our staff are
permanent clinical staff, directly involved in delivering patient care. We also employ a
significant number on non-clinical staff who provide vital expertise and support.

The table below provides a breakdown of our workforce. Our people are fundamental
to the Trust’s success in delivering high-quality patient care. We are proud of all our
colleagues and recognise the important role they play in maintaining the health and
wellbeing of the communities we serve. The people we employ reflect the diverse
backgrounds of the local community and we have good representation of women and
people from diverse ethnic backgrounds.

Headcount 2022/2023
Staff group Employee Employee Employee
headcount headcount headcount
1 April 2021 2022 2023
Professi_onal Scientific 302 326 353
&Technical
Additional Clinical Services 664 677 735
Administrative and Clerical 947 969 978
Allied Health Professionals 542 559 586
Estates and Ancillary 202 195 189
Healthcare Scientists 104 99 97
Medical and Dental 565 580 596
Nursing and Midwifer
registe?ed ’ 1228 1227 1270
Students 28 28 20
Grand Total 4582 4660 4824

Performance against workforce indicators overall remains consistent, with the Trust
Board and integrated clinical service units and directorate management teams
receiving monthly performance information.

Connecting with our people

The Trust is committed to involving staff in decision-making, engaging them in key
developments, and keeping them informed of changes across the organisation. We
work hard to ensure that all staff are aware of both internal and external developments
that may affect the organisation, such as our pandemic response and recovery, or
changes in the wider NHS.
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We place great importance on staff engagement as there is a positive correlation with
the quality of patient care. All our staff contribute to providing high quality patient care
in our hospitals and in our community services.

Our range of well-established communications channels include regular briefings from
the Chief Executive and senior leaders, with increased frequency during peaks of the
pandemic, regular updates to all staff, daily messages on all desktops and laptops and
an extensive intranet where staff can find policies, guidance and online tools.

We produce a popular regular e-newsletter. We work closely with the Chair of Staff
Side and other staff representatives to ensure the voices of employees are heard. The
Partnership Group and Medical Negotiation Subcommittee meet monthly, acting as a
valuable consultative forum for key developments affecting staff, with sub-groups
established to look at policy and pay issues.

We are always listening and want to learn from our staff and involve them in decisions
to help us make the Trust an even better place to work and be cared for. Throughout
the year, we have increased our pace of staff engagement to discuss our
achievements and challenges to keep staff more informed and support our workforce.
We have held a range of all staff webinar over the year covering topics including
financial wellbeing and inclusion.

We have a number of committees to monitor the performance and delivery of the
workforce priorities and consult with trade union colleagues:

Workforce Assurance Committee
People Committee

Partnership Group

Medical Negotiating Subcommittee
Restorative Just Culture Group
Inclusion Network Committee

Staff feedback is also obtained from the national staff survey and from the quarterly
people pulse surveys, results of which are used to develop action plans for
improvement. Through our Trustwide briefings we have adopted the use of Slido to
obtain real-time feedback from our staff. All staff are encouraged to voice opinions,
suggest improvements and share ideas, as well as raise concerns.

NHS staff survey 2022

Of Whittington Health’s 4,519 eligible staff, 2,019 staff took part in this survey, a
response rate of 45% which is 1% below the average response rate for acute and
acute & community trusts using Picker. The Trust's response rate dropped by 7%
since 2021. This is first time since 2017 that Whittington Health has experienced a
response rate below 48%.

The purpose is to give staff a voice and provide managers with an insight into morale,

staff engagement, wellbeing, culture and perception of service delivery. In 2020, NHS
England and NHS Improvement took the decision to combine acute trusts and
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combined acute and community trusts into one benchmarking group after analysis of
the 2019 survey showed no substantial difference in the occupation group profiles or
the overall distribution of scores or the survey themes for the two types of organisation.
Whittington Health has been part of this newly combined acute and Acute &
Community Trusts Group since 2020.

Whittington Health’s theme score of 6.8 for staff engagement is the national average
6.8 score and a reduction from the previous year which was 6.9.

Staff Engagement
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Whittington Health’s theme score of 5.5 for staff morale is slightly below the national
average of 5.7 and a reduction from last year where morale stood at 5.6. The reduction
follows a similar trend with other acute and acute community trusts.

Morale
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The table below shows Whittington Health results against the seven NHS People
Promise elements for 2022.

Results are presented in the context of the ‘best’, ‘average’ and ‘worst’ results for the
total 124 acute and acute & community trusts.
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In 2022 Whittington Health is not ranked as ‘worst’ or ‘best’ in any of the themes. The
Trust is slightly above average for one of the themes: We are a team; Average for two
themes: We are recognised and rewarded, and We each have a voice that counts.
The Trust has scored slightly below average in We are compassionate and inclusive,
We are safe and healthy, We are always learning, We work flexibly.

This year, the recommended Trustwide priorities for 2023/24 which will support staff
retention and increase morale and engagement across the organisation will be:

1. ‘We are recognised and rewarded’ particularly level of pay and having adequate
material and recourses, and recognition are priorities.

2. ‘We are safe and healthy’ and particularly negative experiences, and;

3. ‘We are compassionate and inclusive’ and career progression and providing
reasonable adjustments for staff with long-term conditions.

Workforce Culture and “CaringForThoseWhoCare”

The Trust’s work to support good working relationships, and to promote compassion
and inclusion throughout the Whittington Health culture, has continued, alongside a
focus on providing staff with rest and respite in short lunchtime sessions. Many
initiatives are detailed below and in the following sections on health and wellbeing.

Below are some of the main changes, programmes and campaigns to enhance
culture and workplace relationships and environments.

e the range of services offered under the branded ‘Caring for Those Who Care’ or
“#CFTWC” logo has been continuously augmented, with a range of new
programmes and services offered in-house, within the integrated care system
(ICS), and nationally, to provide staff with the widest choice of supportive
opportunities
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a new financial wellbeing hub was created under CFTWC to support staff
through the cost-of-living crisis, along with various listening events held in the
organisation

patient Behaviour & Staff Safety has also been added to the CFTWC hub with a
new policy, guidelines and training piloted on managing violence and aggression
at work policy

‘disability in the workplace’ provides employees with an understanding of staff
experience and invited people to be more inclusive in their behaviours

The organisation launched the restorative just culture programme, which
included revised policies and training for managers to support restorative
conversations

Staff Health and Wellbeing

2022/23 saw the various organisational groups overseeing staff health and wellbeing,
working even more closely together, within the Trust and the local healthcare system,
to coordinate health and wellbeing support, including financial wellbeing. The Trust
focused efforts on both practical staff support, and psychological support. Additionally,
the organisation has designed a new staff wellbeing and engagement model which is
being implemented:

From internal staff, these included:

Mental health first aiders received refresher training to enable them to continue to
offer a listening ear and signpost professional support where required

the increased cohort of mediators respond to mediation requests

the ‘Check-in and Check-out’ toolkit for managers to look after their staff continues
to be promoted for use at the start and end of team meetings

a resilience workbook which highlights the importance of rest as a cornerstone

to support this, a number of sleep sessions were provided to staff struggling to
rest, to learn techniques to use at home, and proved very popular

seated yoga lunchtime sessions are on continuous offer to ensure people’s
physical health supported their mental health, and again, were booked out

from the in-house employee assistance programme, ‘People at Work’, confidential
direct access to counselling continues to be offered

critical incident stress debriefing continues

External routes of support included:

the keeping well North Central London Hub, national NHS provision, and
specialist provision such as the Tavistock and Portman NHS Foundation Trust,
offer a range of counselling and supportive psychological sessions

two local organisations offered counselling to targeted groups

national and regional websites and online resources from advice to chat rooms
provided a range of support including information

workbooks and worksheets were provided to help people assess their needs
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Statutory and mandatory training

The Trust continued to deliver the majority of core mandatory training skills via online
learning which staff access through the inhouse learning management system “elev8”.
The platform was introduced in 2021 and has been accessed by over 95% of staff. It
provides users with a clear overview of their current compliance status and an easy,
accessible way to either complete elLearning or book onto courses that require
attendance. New starters are given access to the platform once the offer has been
accepted and are able to complete learning prior to starting.

While the Trust compliance target is set to 90%, compliance remained static between
84-85% throughout the year. This may in part be due to staff shortages created by
the pandemic, winter pressures and strike actions, all of which had an impact on
capacity to release staff for training.

Trust corporate induction continued to be run once a month as an online event,
designed to welcome staff and provide key information to enable new starters integrate
quickly into the organisation. The event is supported by the chair, chief executive,
medical director, chief nurse, joint directors of inclusion as well as a great variety of
other speakers, such as freedom to speak up guardian, library services, SeeMEFirst
and a great many more.

Staff development

Whittington Health places great value on developing staff through courses, this year
we have been able to do this using a hybrid approach of face-to-face and virtual
delivery.

In the last year, the following was delivered by in-house staff and with partners:

e the bands 2-7 career development programme for staff from a black or minority
ethnic background supported staff to undergo a tailored development programme
for three months providing career development, personal development and
insights into understanding Whittington Health’s recruitment and selection
process. The programme consisted of a variety of modules to help build
knowledge and confidence in career development
British sign language, both tasters and 10-week course
report writing (NHS Elect)
minute taking (NHS Elect)
I.CARE leadership development programme was delivered in-house and
consisted of the following modules:

o communicating effectively
workplace conflict
giving and receiving feedback
situational leadership
introduction to NHS finances

o building inclusive cultures

e appraisal training for managers and appraisees
e advanced presentation skills for those who want to progress their careers
¢ mental health first aid training (MHFA England)

0 O O O
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e critical incident stress debriefing (CISD) to become accredited facilitators

e coaching: foundation and practitioner level training, for individuals to support
career development and working relationships (TPC Health)

¢ Middlesex University advanced management diploma

Kings Fund: personal impact and influence training

Staff College: leading self, others and systems

bespoke workshops for teams that need support in developing team-working

Affina Team Journey

coaching for individuals to support career development and working relationships

Myers Briggs-type Indicator reports and feedback sessions to support team

dynamics

e 360-degree feedback for individuals to understand how they impact on others and
to support career development

e we also offer a variety of MS Office and information technology training via our
digital learning solutions centre

e functional skills training in maths & english
a variety of non-clinical and clinical apprenticeships, including physiotherapy,
diagnostic radiotherapy, occupational therapy, nursing and leadership.

Modern Slavery Act

Whittington Health’s aim is to provide care and services that are appropriate and
sensitive to all. We always ensure that our services advance equality of opportunity,
equality of access, and are non-discriminatory. We are proud of our place in the local
community and are keen to embrace the many cultures and traditions that make it so
diverse. The diversity of this community is reflected in the ethnic and cultural mix of
our staff. By mirroring the diversity that surrounds us, our staff are better placed to
understand and provide for the cultural and spiritual needs of patients. In accordance
with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the Trust has made a statement on its website
regarding the steps taken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not taking
place in any part of its own business or any of its supply chains.

Embracing equality, diversity and inclusion

The inclusion team provides assurance on the development of staff equality networks,
on compliance with statutory obligations and other key initiative sand returns to NHS
England, as shown below:

disability confident

gender pay gap

workforce race equality standard
workforce disability equality standard

Staff engagement has been pivotal for achieving our goals. As part of our work in this
area, the staff networks continue to act as a method of consultation to help deliver
equity within the Trust policies, guidance and staff engagement. We have developed
a network and staff mission statement to enable staff to connect with our Trust values.
It conveys a message of supporting belonging and influencing team cohesiveness and
inclusion in the organisation.
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Key activities supporting inclusion goals and ambition include the following:

e A quarterly open forum for all staff

e Equality, diversity & human rights & black inclusion week, which included a
presentation on female genital mutilation

e participation in national network events, including International Women's Day,
Pride Month, South Asian Heritage Month, Black History Month, UK Disability
History Month and Lesbian Gay Bisexual and Transgender History Month

e the introduction of a medical workforce equality standard role with an emphasis
on improving the Trust's support and development of international medical
graduates with adaptation and effective induction to their new role in a new
environment

e the introduction of external mentoring programme involving senior black and
minority ethnic colleagues working in other North Central London sectors to
support mentorship and career progression
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Care of patients with Sickle Cell disease

Whittington Health is part of the North Central London centre for sickle cell. The Trust
provides medical care for patients with acute symptoms who are unwell and require
urgent and emergency care. The Trust's management group met and reviewed
Whittington Health’s response to the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Sickle Cell and
Thalassaemia published inquiry findings into care for patients with sickle cell disease.
In addition, Whittington Health has a sickle cell improvement working group in place.
It meets monthly with representation from the multidisciplinary team and departments.
There are five key areas of focus at the Trust which are aligned with the
recommendations within the inquiry. Our focus remains on making improvements
across the Trust on the pathways and care for these patients.

Allied Health Professionals Leadership Fellowship

Allied Health Professionals (AHPs) at Whittington Health provide system-wide care
that spans all age groups. AHPs are the third largest workforce in the NHS and at
Whittington Health make up approximately 20% of our staff and are embedded within
all our Integrated Clinical Service Units.

Over the past 12 months, we have had our first cohort of AHP fellows complete the
AHP leadership fellowship and due to its success, we have successfully recruited to a
second cohort of fellows starting in April 2023. The aim of the programme is to develop
confident, competent, and compassionate leaders of the future.

For the first time this year we have had a collaborative approach to international
recruitment. We joined the London AHP Consortium as part of pilot project and have
successfully recruited to 10 AHPs across occupational therapy and radiography. Work
continues with the consortium to determine how this work continues and is expanded
across other AHP areas.

Healthcare Support Workers project — what have we done and what are
we doing?

Since June 2022, there has been a dedicated healthcare support worker (HCSW)
development project team in place. The HCSW project team are members of the North
Central London Integrated Care System HCSW networks across nursing midwifery
and allied health professionals (AHPSs), these networks are co-producing shared
competency documents and updating job descriptions across this region.

A key aim for the HCSW project team was to identify where the gaps and barriers to
progression were, alongside developing clear career development pathways
underpinned by a competency framework. The team successfully ran the HCSW
clinical development programme for the unregistered workforce in nursing, midwifery,
and AHPs since October 2022 with cohorts mapped on to future dates for 2023 and
further expansion on the way. Working in partnership with the nurse recruitment team,
the HCSW team provide pastoral support for the clinical support workforce. The team
visit HCSWs, hold listening and one-to-one sessions, ensure the care certificate
teaching is booked and ensure the clinical development programme is forecasted into
their pathway within three months of starting work. This is all done in conjunction with
their clinical manager.
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A key strategy moving forward is to expand the delivery of education development
pathways for HCSWs that includes Level 2 — Level 5 and progression on to degree
level apprenticeships to grow our own future clinical workforce. We are in the
development phase of mapping the HCSW clinical development programme into an
apprenticeship scheme of work at Level 2 and 3 and expect this to be ready September
2023. Taking this approach will ensure our experts are at the forefront of teaching and
delivery alongside our chosen external provider. We are exploring all options available
to ensure equity of access for HCSWs who wish to progress in their careers and to
that end we will be engaging with key stakeholder across the Trust outlining options.

The overarching aim for the HCSW team is to provide targeted pastoral and clinical
support for healthcare support workers, reduce the burden on clinical managers,
develop opportunities to grow our future workforce through apprenticeships and
engage with our key stakeholders at every step.
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Excellence in Medical Education

Undergraduate Medical Education

Since the pandemic, Whittington Health has been the home placement for an entire
year for several hundred University College London (UCL) medical students offering
exemplary clinical placements using the apprenticeship model for 120 students in their
first clinical year (year 4) and a similar number in the following year (year 5).
Additionally, 24 students are hosted for the intercalated Bachelor of Science degree
(iBSc) in paediatrics and child health (year 3 for UCL medical school) and numerous
other students from the medical student for specially study components (in years 1, 2
and 6).

The students are taught by a large and committed faculty of clinical teachers who also
attend to their pastoral care. Examinations are hosted in all years and provide all the
examiners needed to assess in these high-stake clinical exams. Additionally, the
students are supported by a dedicated administration team which includes three
regularly visiting therapy dogs.

During the quality assurance visit in March 2022, the UCL medical school visiting team
were impressed by the faculty’s dedication, the involvement of those at Board level,
the administration team who manage the complicated teaching timetable and the
engagement of the students who felt at ease and able to voice their viewpoints.
Whittington Health were asked to provide a guide to our apprenticeship model for
dissemination throughout UCL medical school. This has been actioned.

In March 2022, Carly Fertleman, the undergraduate lead ran a hugely successful
“Whittington Health Success Stories” event and of the 12 presenters, two were UCL
medical students who undertook innovative projects, another presenter was the lead
undergraduate administrator (who introduced an innovative induction to welcome all
our students) and several others were from the undergraduate faculty who had been
involved in other educational activities.

In the last year three clinicians at Whittington Health have won highly coveted awards
for teaching. These were won by lIrene Gafson, consultant in obstetrics and
gynaecology as well as two teaching fellows, Anthony Zacharias and Emma Kelley.

Postgraduate Medical Education

Over the last year, the postgraduate medical education (PGME) faculty continued to
provide excellence in educating our doctors-in-training, while addressing challenges
and seizing opportunities.

Although the direct impact of COVID-19 has reduced, nationally there are significant
levels of burnout affecting doctors-in-training. Our approach has been to provide
additional support and training opportunities to our junior doctors. The Trust remains
grateful for their tireless work in caring for our patients and the PGME team and
colleagues work hard to ensure they feel valued.
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Whittington Health again performed very well in the GMC national training survey for
2022. There were scores in the highest national group across various domains for
four specialty training programmes: trauma & orthopaedic surgery, clinical radiology,
obstetrics & gynaecology, and respiratory medicine. Overall, 9/10 of our trainees rate
the quality of clinical supervision provided as good or very good and 8/10 report the
working environment is fully supportive.

The high performance of the Whittington Health orthopaedic team was further shown
by winning the Hospital of the Year Award 2022. This award specifically reflects
training experience, being based on votes cast by trainees on the Percival Pott
rotation. The award reflects the commitment to training shown by all the trauma &
orthopaedic consultants, despite the post-pandemic pressures on healthcare.

The PGME team continued the Whittington Health PGME star awards. There were
multiple nominations for the doctors-in-training working above and beyond usual
practice across all specialties. Nominations included recognition of outstanding
commitment to patient care whilst also showing great kindness and compassion to
both patients and colleagues.

Over the last year, the Trust has been awarded additional funding from Health
Education England (HEE) to further support education and training. For example, in
August 2022, an additional seven foundation doctors join the Trust, to start medical
training in their first two years. A new clinical teaching fellow in paediatrics with
educational leadership was appointed, in collaboration with the workforce team of our
North London Partners’ Integrated Care Board and will work across the local
healthcare sector.

Additional funding was received from HEE after successful bids to support various
initiatives. For example, the team provided ‘Good Clinical Practice’ training and
statistical processing packages for research or service improvement projects. The
teaching programme for the Trust’s chief registrars was sponsored and they were
supported in providing a mentorship development programme for doctors-in-training.
The Trust successfully bid for funding for simulation kit and locally delivered courses,
including supporting colleagues who developed and provided novel multi-specialty
training for critical care emergencies. The faculty of educational supervisors has been
built up by providing courses in many aspects of PGME, including assessment,
mentoring and support.

The PGME team were again awarded funding from HEE to support the continuing
professional development (CPD) of specialty and locally employed doctors in the
Trust. In 2020, a competitive Whittington PGME CPD award scheme was set up for
this group of doctors, which proved highly successful. It was decided to run this again
and to set-up a similar scheme for internal medicine trainees. Applications were very
high-quality and the Trust was able to contribute towards 14 doctors undertaking
courses in practical clinical skills training or effective teaching, professional
examinations and certificate of eligibility for specialist registration (CESR).

Over this last year, new posts in the PGME support team have been embedded and

have continued to attract high quality candidates establishing a very effective team.
The Trust made two posts substantive: our medical education co-ordinator for

Page 79 of 134



radiology, obstetrics & gynaecology, paediatrics, and childhood & adolescent mental
health, and our part-time study leave co-ordinator. These new members are helping
to ensure that our PGME support team is now very responsive to the needs of our
trainees and is very efficient in helping them to navigate complex processes. Further,
the Trust are delighted to have been able to attract and recruit skilled and able new
education faculty members, including an interim foundation doctors’ (year 2) training
programme director, a new college tutor for surgery, a new champion for supported
return to training and less than full-time training and a new joint college tutor for
medicine.

In August 2022, our new Whittington Education Centre (WEC) opened for business.
This bespoke training facility has a mix of smaller and lecture size teaching rooms,
up to date audio-visual and IT equipment and a dedicated simulation suite. During
the pandemic, teaching and education events were kept running initially online and,
later, with some face-to-face training. The new WEC gave us the opportunity to
relaunch in person teaching and allowed teams to come together again for joint
learning and specialist training events.

The future will bring challenges. However, the Trust will continue to drive forward
initiatives and support both our doctors-in-training and our faculty of excellent
educators. Achievements will be built upon to further sustain and develop Whittington
Health’s reputation for excellence in postgraduate medical education.
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COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT

This year saw a significant increase in communications and engagement activity
beyond the pandemic. For example, although we maintained our commitment to
promoting vaccination against COVID-19 and flu, we also played our role in regional
and national public health protection campaigns around polio and measle, mumps and
rubella vaccination programmes. Early in the year we dedicated a considerable level
of resource to supporting our colleagues for the proposed introduction of COVID-19
vaccination as a condition of deployment.

It also saw us building on community engagement activity, including a public
consultation into a proposal for an integrated health and wellbeing hub in Wood Green,
following broader engagement in 2020 which informed our plans. We invited
responses from a wide range of people, including sending consultation packs directly
to over 30,000 patients and recent service users. We received 2,000 direct responses,
hosted or attended 16 meetings to inform and listen directly to over 100 people and
engaged with a range of stakeholders. Our activity was praised by the Haringey
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. We followed this up with initial design and ways-
of-working workshops and will be doing further engagement on more detailed plans
as the project progresses.

Other projects where we have undertaken engagement this year include our Maternity
and Neonatal Estate Transformation Project — this long-term project has focused on
staff and our maternity voices partnership so far and we will be looking to engage more
broadly on detailed plans as they are produced. We have supported the award-winning
Wood Green Community Diagnostic Centre (CDC) with targeted engagement
activities with Haringey residents and primary care colleagues. We organised several
high-profile visits to the centre, including a formal opening by the then Secretary of
State for Health and Social Care. As well as engagement, we have deployed
communications and marketing support to the CDC, promoting the service to local
people and encouraging patients to request any blood tests or x-rays at the CDC,
including a bus advertising campaign on a large number of relevant local bus routes
from January to March 2023. The CDC and our partners in the project, Capital and
Regional Plc, won an HSJ Partnership Award. Finally, we have supported specific
teams across the organisation to inform and engage with their staff over the case for
change and developing proposals of the North Central London Start Well programme.

The Communications function has played a key role in supporting the organisation
through a number of operational challenges over the course of the year. Along with
the rest of the NHS, during this year we faced high levels of demand and acuity,
leading to longer stays in hospital, which has a knock-on effect on where patients and
service users arrive at the point of need, such as our emergency department. We
have, alongside other trusts in North Central London and in partnership with the North
Central London Integrated Care System (NCL ICS), used our channels to distribute
messages about the various options for getting care and treatment, such as
pharmacies and NHS 111. We also demonstrated our commitment to open and honest
communication by supporting our urgent and emergency care colleagues to explain to
patients what we were doing to ensure they were kept safe and being clear on how
we were striving for the highest quality of care possible in challenging circumstances,
when our emergency department was at its busiest.
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We have broadened our use of social media, in particular greater promotion of activity
in key priority areas. We have revitalised our presence on LinkedIn, with a new long-
term staff spotlight campaign, and proactively supported recruitment campaigns for
individual directorates based on organisational priorities. Feedback was that this
increased use of professional social media to promote Whittington Health as a place
to work and vacancies resulted in significantly higher quality of applications received.

Internally, we introduced the new values, which have the addition of ‘Equity’
underlining the existing ICARE (Innovation, Compassion, Accountability, Respect,
Excellence) values. We held our first annual staff awards ceremony in person since
before the pandemic, celebrating the Whittington Health stars which shine the
brightest. We also introduced a new approach for all-staff briefings, with a format that
focused on fewer key areas and designed to support managers to share key
information with staff more easily, and an opportunity for staff to raise questions for a
direct response from an executive or other senior leader. This has resulted in a
significant increase in the number of staff regularly attending this session.

We launched a staff campaign to help colleagues to understand how the Trust’s new
management of violence and aggression policy supports them to avoid being a victim
of abuse or violence and to ensures that robust action is taken against the perpetrators
if they are. Under the strapline “don’t push your feelings to one side” it emphasised
that putting up with abuse, violence or aggression is not ‘part of the job’. It encourages
staff to always report incidents and to make use of new tools such as a ‘yellow, orange,
red card’ warning system and the support offered by the police where a crime has
taken place. Externally we used real life case studies in the media to demonstrate the
impact that violence and aggression can have on our colleagues and the legal
penalties we will push for where they are subjected to such unacceptable behaviour.

Work that has commenced this year and which we look forward to taking into next year
includes supporting the organisation to communicate with staff about the possibility of
greater collaboration with our key NHS partner, University College London Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust (UCLH). Working in partnership with our colleagues at UCLH,
we planned clear communication to help staff to understand the clinical collaboration
already in place, the aims of this programme and reassuring individuals about what it
means for our future. We also supported our learning disability liaison nurse to produce
a set of films designed to ensure people with learning disabilities to understand what
hospital care may entail. This was done following co-design principles, engaging with
patients with learning disabilities on the content. These will be launched in the first half
of next year and we hope will be a helpful and supportive resource for people with a
learning disability and their carers.
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INFORMATION GOVERNANCE AND CYBER
SECURITY

Information Governance (IG) is to do with the way organisations process or handle
information. Cyber Security relates to the precautions the Trust takes to secure and
protect the information it holds. The Trust takes its responsibilities to protect
confidential data seriously and, over the last five years, has made significant
improvements in many areas of information governance and cyber security, including
technical security, data quality, subject access requests, freedom of information and
records management.

The Data Security and Protection (DSP) Toolkit is a policy delivery vehicle produced
by the Department of Health; hosted and maintained by NHS Digital. It combines the
legal framework including the EU General Data Protection Regulations 2016,
UKGDPR and the Data Protection Act 2018, the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and
central government guidance including the NHS Code of Practice on Confidentiality
and the NHS Code of Practice on Records Management. The framework ensures the
Trust manages the confidential data it holds safely and within statutory requirements.

During the year, the Trust implemented an improvement plan to achieve DSP Toolkit
compliance and to improve compliance against other standards. As a result, the Trust
hopes to meet the majority of the mandatory assertions with an improvement plan in
place for IG training which will likely be below the target of 95%. The Trust's DSP
Toolkit submission and former IG Toolkit submissions can be viewed online at
www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk and www.igt.hscic.gov.uk.

All staff are required to undertake 1G training. In 2022, the Trust ended the year at
86% of staff being IG training compliant. The compliance rates are regularly monitored
by the IG committee, including methods of increasing compliance. The IG department
continues to promote requirements to train and targets staff with individual emails
includes news features in the weekly electronic staff Noticeboard and manage
classroom-based sessions at induction.

Compliance rates and methods to increase them are regularly monitored by the IG
Committee. The IG department continues to promote requirements to train and targets
staff with individual emails, includes news features in the weekly electronic staff
Noticeboard.

Further details relating to information governance incidents in the last year are
referenced in the annual governance statement.
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INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND TECHNOLOGY
DEVELOPMENTS

During 2022/23, technology has continued to play a core element in providing the
best possible care to the citizens of Islington, Haringey, Barnet, Camden, Wembley
and Uxbridge.

Technology and real-time information support our clinical staff to provide direct care.
We also work with neighbouring NHS Trust through the London shared care record
so that patient care is joined-up across London providing citizens with safe care
wherever they go.

Information and connected devices help our staff be effective in what we do. We also
ensure that information is safe and secure with robust information governance and
cyber security.

Our new patient portal now enables us to share information to patients and we will
expand on this to help manage expectations, give assurance on care and provide a
better means of communication with care providers.

Over the last year we have achieved some great improvements, as illustrated below:

e enabled electronic observations in accident and emergency

e moved from paper to digital in emergency trauma

e enabled electrocardiogram ECGs to be digital so information can be shared with
clinical staff securely

¢ introduced a patient portal managing patient appointment and paperless
communications

e oncology outpatients went paperless

London care record now has all our activity in both the acute and community

context

electronic outcoming of outpatient appointments

radiology went paperless for requests

upgrade to webclient of Careflow medicines management enabling wider access

supporting the go live of the community diagnostic centre in Haringey

secured access to community data when out with patients via virtual smart cards

virtual ward go live for heart failure patients, enabling care at home

new electronic document management system with improved integration with

electronic patient record applications

e Barnet children’s and young people’s therapy service migration to our ‘RIO’
instance

e the district nursing service moved off ‘e-community’ and fully onto ‘RIO’.

We will continue to pursue technology to help make the lives of our residents and
staff easier to manage and help them provide the best possible care. Our
commitment is to stay relevant with new technologies that are proven effective and
safe while helping to reducing the administrative burden.
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ESTATE

Maternity and Neonatal Buildings

The Trust is fully committed to updating and improving the clinical services within the
existing maternity and neonatal (M&N) unit at Whittington Hospital for the benefit of
the local community. This has been a priority of the Trust for many years now and has
been the subject of a number of previously worked up proposals. Investment in our
maternity and neonatal services is currently the Trust's top priority under its estates
strategy.

The Trust has a clear strategy for our estate:

“To provide high quality, patient and staff focussed environments that support
our vision to help local people live longer healthier lives”

Our strategy makes sure that we can deliver the right care in the right place and in the
right environment both now and in the future, to deliver our vision of “Helping local
people live longer healthier lives”.

The current maternity and neonatal unit
located within blocks D, E, N and P and
requires substantial updating and
refurbishment. The existing facilities are
congested and do not meet patient or
staff expectations of facilities for 21t
century healthcare provision.  For
example, there is insufficient space for
parents to sit alongside cots in the
neonatal unit, there are currently no
ensuite facilities in the labour ward
delivery rooms, there are no dedicated
bereavement facilities, and a significant
proportion of inpatient beds are in bays
with no ensuite facilities. In addition,
there are unnecessary and unwanted clinical and patient crossovers and flows within
the unit, and adjacencies are sub-optimal, with no flexibility to increase the capacity of
the unit should the need arise.

Since November 2022, the architect and design team have commenced the Royal
Institute of British Architects stage 3 design work with a number of individual
departments within the maternity and neonatal service on general floor layouts,
detailed room layouts and construction phasing. In parallel to this design work, the
architect and design team progressed pre-planning application discussions with the
London Borough of Islington and submitted a hybrid planning application for the project
in July 2022. The hybrid planning application was approved by the London Borough
of Islington on 8 November 2022.

This year saw the sign off of the 1:200 designs of the refurbished building, along with

the board sign off of the outline business case. Much of the year was spent continuing
negotiations to get funding for the whole project whilst progressing with phase one
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which will give us a new entrance, triage and a few ensuite labour rooms. We were
delighted to receive formal planning permission for the build this year also. In the
meantime, we also developed the Birthing Centre and that will reopen by the end of
the financial year.

Wood Green Community Hub

Another part of the plan for our longer-term vision is to create a hub in Wood Green,
hopefully to work alongside the Community Diagnostic Centre at the Wood Green
Shopping City. This year has seen continued negotiations and design work with the
landlord of the shopping centre to see what options may be possible. Full consultation
with the public concluded last year with massive support for the project.

Community Diagnostic Centre

We were delighted to open the Community Diagnostic Centre this year, and it has
already conducted over 14,000 tests. It has three opthalmology lanes, two x-ray
rooms and three phlebotomy chairs. Next year, a CT and an MRI will be added in the
basement. The team have been shortlisted for a Health Service Journal Partnership
award and have featured on Channel 4 News.
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SUSTAINABILITY

The United Nations describes climate change as the “defining issue of our time”.
Climate change is a long-term shift in global and regional climate patterns, specifically
relating to the increased level of atmospheric carbon dioxide produced from the use
of fossil fuels. It is a risk to health at both a national and global level.

In response to the developing crisis, the UK has set a legally binding target under the
Climate Change Act 2008 to reduce emissions to reach net zero by 2050. In the UK,
approximately 20% of carbon emissions arise from energy use in buildings. At present,
this is roughly split evenly between emissions for electrical power and heating.
However, the UK’s electricity grid is decarbonising quickly, as reliance on fossil fuels
for power generation is reduced and renewable forms of generation are increasingly
installed. In January 2020, the Chief Executive of the NHS, Sir Simon Stevens,
launched the campaign For a Greener NHS which outlines a practicable, evidence-
based route to a net zero National Health Service. The roadmap he set out includes
the following targets:

e net zero by 2040 for the NHS Carbon Footprint, with an ambition for an 80%
reduction by 2028 to 2032

e net zero by 2045 for the NHS Carbon Footprint Plus, with an ambition for an
80% reduction by 2036 to 2039
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Figure 3: NHS Carbon Footprint Scope Definition (Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National Health Service, 2020)

In 2021, the UK government committed to fully decarbonising the electricity system by
2035. This means that the major challenge for public sector bodies to reach net zero
for direct emissions will be the decarbonisation of heat, which is still predominantly
provided by combustion of fossil fuels such as natural gas and heating oil.
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As a provider of healthcare and a publicly funded organisation, Whittington Health is
committed to ensuring the long-term sustainability of the natural environment to deliver
sustainable healthcare and to safeguard human health. We will continue to help local
people live longer and healthier lives, even in the context of rising utility costs, by
ensuring we utilise environmental, financial, and social assets in a sustainable
manner.

While there is an enormous challenge for the us to reach the targets set out by Greener
NHS, Whittington Health recognises that the most significant immediate challenge to
reach net zero for our NHS carbon footprint is the decarbonisation of heat use in our
buildings. It is crucial to take steps now to ensure that the Trust not only meets these
net zero targets but is at the forefront of sustainability within the healthcare sector.

The Trust has already demonstrated this by completing its own Green Plan and has
utilised the low carbon skills fund (LCSF) to develop its heat decarbonisation plan in
April 2022. Furthermore, using the recommendations laid out in the heat
decarbonisation plan, we have been awarded Phase 3b Salix public sector
decarbonisation scheme funding to decarbonise four of the Trust’s satellite buildings.

Our Plan

Our Green Plan outlines the national and local context of sustainability within the
healthcare sector, discusses how sustainability aligns with our organisational vision
and details how we intend to embed sustainability across our organisation. The key
aims of the Green Plan are:

e an improved approach to monitoring and reporting sustainability key
performance indicators

e a qualitative assessment of our performance in several key Areas of Focus
(as defined by the Sustainable Development Unit (SDU))

e a defined set of actions to progress the Trust’s sustainable development

e an appraisal of the potential risk and opportunities associated with our wider
sustainability strategy

Historically at Whittington Health, we have taken a holistic approach to sustainability
with a broad focus on energy reduction, tackling waste, improving local air quality and
promoting green space. Whilst we continue to ensure these areas are driven forward,
we recognise that the scale of the challenge set out within the targets outlined above
will mean that our primary focus for the future must be the drive to reach net zero for
both these emissions we can control (NHS carbon footprint) and those which we can
influence (NHS carbon footprint plus).
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Carbon Impact

Teams across our Trust have been focused on reducing our direct emissions for many
years. Figure 5 shows that to date, we have reduced our emissions by over %2 (58%
reduction) since our baseline year of 2016/17. This has been driven by efforts to
reduce energy consumption and significantly by electricity grid decarbonisation. In
2022, another phase of LED lighting was implemented at seven of the Trust’s
Community sites.

The Trust also invested in replacing secondary heating plant equipment in K Block
and improving the controls to this equipment to enable optimisation. Additionally, we
replaced aged, inefficient boiler plant in several of our community sites with high
efficiency alternatives.

It should be noted that we have not been able to collate the data necessary to quantify
the impact of metered-dose inhalers (MDIs) or the emissions from business travel
(public transport and grey fleet). It is critical that we account for all emissions sources
included within the NHS Carbon Footprint (Figure 1). This means that we must develop
robust methods for collecting data for MDIs and business travel.

There was a slight increase in gas usage between 2020/21 and 2021/22 due to the
relaxation of Covid-19 Guidelines, allowing more staff and visitors to return to the
hospital in the past year. We also recognise that, although our historic performance
has been good, a large contribution has been made by the reduction in carbon
intensity of grid electricity.
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Energy Usage

Due to the changeover of utilities under Inspired Energies in April 2022, obtaining the
utility data has been a challenge this financial year and thus, some of the data is not
complete.

For instance, the 2022/23 electricity consumption only covers April 2022 to January
2023. Figure 4 shows that, in 2022/23, 85% of our energy-related emissions were from
our acute site - Whittington Hospital.

Furthermore, with regards to water usage, the Trust is meant to be moving from Castle
Water to Advanced Demand Side Management but currently a portal has not been
created. As such, the bills from Castle Water are only to June 2022. Therefore, the
water usage for 2022/23 had to be estimated based on the usage from the previous
two years.

Looking forward, the Trust is planning a review of the hospital’s long-term energy
strategy to identify how to best supply utilities to the acute site in line with the estate
transformation plans. We also have plans to improve our data collection and analysis
process to incorporate a broader range of emissions sources as outlined in the NHS
Carbon Footprint shown in Figure 1.
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Another key impact area for the Trust is our estate strategy, a key element of which
involves a significant refurbishment of our maternity & neonates building. From the
outset, we must incorporate net zero concepts into the design of our future estate.
From Figure 3, emissions from energy use currently represents 66% of our total NHS
carbon footprint. On this basis, reducing energy consumption and transitioning to lower
carbon technologies will be a key element of our pathway to achieving our reduction
targets.

Figure 6: Breakdown of Emissions for Building Energy Use 2022/23

There is an equal split between gas and electricity consumption at the acute site with
the remaining arising from Well-To-Tank (WTT) and Transmission & Distribution
(T&D). On the community side, the majority of emissions is from gas consumption
accounting for 73%

With more renewable energy being fed into the electricity grid and a reduced reliance
on fossil fuels for power generation, we can expect gas to make up an ever-increasing
proportion of our NHS carbon footprint. Eliminating the use of natural gas for heating
our estate is a key long-term step to reaching net zero.

One way in which we aim to do this is by decarbonising four of our buildings: H Block
(nursing accommodation & physiotherapy) at the acute site, and three community
sites: Hornsey Rise, Northern and River Place Health Centre. The Trust has been
granted Salix funding to replace the current gas boilers in these buildings to low-
carbon heating.

The Trust could improve its energy management through continuation of our smart
meter and Automated Meter Readings (AMR) rollout programme and by implementing
a system to automatically monitor consumption and identify opportunities to make
savings. This would eliminate problems we are facing with receiving our data from
utility companies and instead collecting our data in real-time. We also need to work
harder to educate and engage our workforce to make behavioural changes which will
reduce demand for energy across our estate.
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Waste Management

Despite the challenging circumstances of the pandemic, the facilities’ waste team
continued to drive improvement through Whittington hospital’s in-house recycling
centre. Having built upon the success of previous years, in which the main hospital
became a zero waste to landfill site, the proportion of total waste recycled is over 10%.

The significant contribution of clinical waste is due to the use of necessary personal
protective equipment which needs disposal through incineration.

The facilities’ team also maintained the practice of baling and storing cardboard waste
on-site until there is enough to fill a whole waste consignment. This minimises
transport and external labour costs, as well as reducing the associated road miles.
Figure 5 below shows the breakdown of the main hospital’'s waste streams last year.
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Figure 7: Whittington Hospital Waste Breakdown by Type 2022/23

Looking forward, we will focus on continuing to drive down total waste production
whilst increasing the proportion sent for recycling. The Trust will also focus on
improving the tracking of waste generation and recycling rates across our community
sites.

Water Usage

Whittington Health Trust is aware that, although it may not appear to be critical at
present, water scarcity is a growing concern in the UK. In 2019, the chief executive of
the Environment Agency predicted that, with the impact of climate change and a rising
population, the UK may not have sufficient water to meet its needs in as little as 20-25
years. We are also aware that the supply and distribution of water has an intrinsic
carbon cost which adds to the Trust's supply chain emissions. As a significant
consumer of water, we recognise that we need to take action now to mitigate these
risks.

As mentioned previously, the Trust is meant to be moving suppliers, but currently a
portal has not been created. As such, the bills are only to June 2022. Therefore, the
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water usage for 2022/23 had to be estimated based on the usage from the previous
two years.

Figure 6 shows that overall the site has reduced its water usage from 2016/17 to
2022/23 by 20%, where the lowest consumption in 2020/21 arose due to the pandemic
as fewer staff and visitors came to site. There was a rise in consumption from 2017/18
reaching nearly 300,000 m: in 2018/19. This resulted from a leak which went
unidentified for several months. The reason it took so long to identify the issue was
due to a lack of regular data monitoring on site, which further emphasises the
importance of identifying abnormal consumption quickly.
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Figure 8: Site Water Consumption from 2016 to 2023

It is necessary to educate staff and patients about their role in water usage.
Campaigning and raising awareness of the issue is a positive way of reducing waste
at the point of use.

Up until this point, our focus has primarily been on reducing our scope 1 & 2 emissions.
However, as shown in Figure 2, a greater proportion of our total emissions are likely
to originate from our supply chain. As such, our primary focus will need to shift to the
guantification of our NHS carbon footprint plus, for which we are currently collating
data.

Procurement

We continue our commitment to reduce the wider environmental and social impact
associated with the procurement of goods and services, in addition to our focus on
carbon. Following completion of the SDU’s Sustainable Development Assessment
Tool, we have identified a number of areas where we can look to improve the
sustainability of our procurement practices. Examples include investigating the
financial impact of purchasing green energy, the inclusion of sustainability specific
criteria within tenders for goods & services and improved data capture to enable
tracking of the carbon impact of our supply chain. Furthermore, we have recently
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conducted an in-depth review of our current utilities procurement contracts and are
now considering options for the future to ensure that, going forward, we receive a cost-
effective, high-quality service that will not be at odds with our sustainability goals.

Travel & logistics

The Trust is engaged in a collaborative relationship with Islington Council to improve
sustainable transport within the Borough. We have a clear focus on greener travel with
the intended aim both of reducing the carbon footprint of our business operations and
supply chain and to improve the air quality of the local area.

Whittington operated a total of 13 electric fleet vehicles primarily for the purpose of
business travel between community sites. This represents more than 50% of the
Trust’s vehicle fleet. Some larger petrol/diesel powered vehicles are retained for
functions such as security and pharmaceutical deliveries. Business travel by car is
conducted with the electric pool cars wherever possible. This has been facilitated
through the Trust’s investment of 16 electric vehicle (EV) charging points on the acute
site, as well as several others across the community sites. In addition to our EVs, the
Trust issued approximately 370 oyster cards to community staff to encourage the use
of public transport instead of journeying by petrol/diesel cars.

In line with our clinical strategy, the estate strategy will reduce the number of locations
we deliver clinical services from, ensuring they are demographically positioned to
serve our community more efficiently. This will reduce the travel times of our patients
and staff, therefore reducing the carbon impact of all associated journeys made
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EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

Whittington Health participated in the annual emergency preparedness, resilience and
response (EPRR) assurance process led by NHS England. The core standards for
EPRR are set out for NHS organisations to meet. The Trust’s annual assessment was
completed on 8 November 2022, by the North Central NHS England Assurance Team.
The EPRR assurance requirements stipulated those providers self-assess compliance
against the NHS core standards.

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLIANT: EPRR and CBRN (chemical, biological,
radiological, and nuclear) assurance outcome in accordance with standards
achieved in 2022. The one amber score pertained to data protection and information
governance. The trust received amber ratings for core standard 10: incident
response and core standard 49: data protection and security toolkit. The EPRR
2022/2023 action plan, is in place in response to the two amber standards.

NHS England | Core Assessment Assessment

Core Standards | Standards outcome outcome
total Amber Green

EPRR 55 (1-55) 0 2 53

CBRN 14 (56-68) 0 0 14

In 2022, NHS England, decided to conduct a deep dive into Evacuation and Shelter.
The organisation was recognised as having good practice in relation to core standard
16: Evacuation and Shelter.
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CONCLUSION TO THE PERFORMANCE REPORT
AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The above document represents the performance report and statement of financial
position of Whittington Health for the financial year 2022/23. As the CEO | believe this
represents an accurate and full picture of the Trust for the year.

Signed ... Chief Executive

Date: June 2023
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
Members of Whittington Health’s Trust Board

Non-Executive Directors

Julia Neuberger, Junaid Bajwa, Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Tony Rice, Anu
Singh, Glenys Thornton, Rob Vincent (Tony Rice left the Trust Board on 20 February
2023 and Anu Singh left the Trust Board on 13 April 2022)

Directors

Siobhan Harrington, Helen Brown, Kevin Curnow, Clare Dollery, Norma French,
Jonathan Gardner, Carol Gillen, Sarah Humphery, Tina Jegede, Michelle Johnson,
Chinyama Okunuga, Swarnjit Singh, Sarah Wilding. (Siobhan Harrington left the
Trust on 31 May 2022, Carol Gillen left on 29 July 2022 (Carol was also Acting Chief
Executive from 1 to 19 June), Michelle Johnson left on 30 June 2022, Sarah
Humphery left on 31 December 2022. In 2022, Helen Brown, Chinayama Okunuga
and Sarah Wilding joined as new Board members on 20 June, 26 September and 22
August respectively)

Membership of Board committees
The following committees reported to the Board:

Audit and Risk Committee

Non-Executive Directors: Rob Vincent, Amanda Gibbon, Glenys Thornton, Naomi
Fulop*

* Naomi Fulop left the Committee on 21 February 2023

Charitable Funds’ Committee

Non-Executive Directors: Tony Rice, Julia Neuberger, Amanda Gibbon
Executive Directors: Kevin Curnow, Clare Dollery, Jonathan Gardner, Siobhan
Harrington/Helen Brown, Michelle Johnson/Sarah Wilding

Finance & Business Development Committee

Non-Executive Directors: Tony Rice, Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Rob Vincent
Executive Directors: Kevin Curnow, Carol Gillen/ Chinyama Okunuga, Siobhan
Harrington/Helen Brown, Jonathan Gardner

Innovation, Digital and Transformation Assurance Committee
Non-Executive Directors: Junaid Bajwa, Tony Rice, Naomi Fulop*
*Naomi Fulop joined from 21 February 2023

Executive Directors: Jonathan Gardner, Kevin Curnow

Quality Assurance Committee

Non-Executive Directors: Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Glenys Thornton
Executive Directors: Michelle Johnson/Sarah Wilding, Clare Dollery, Carol Gillen/
Chinyama Okunuga
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Remuneration Committee
Non-Executive Directors: Julia Neuberger, Naomi Fulop, Amanda Gibbon, Tony
Rice, Anu Singh, Glenys Thornton, Rob Vincent

Workforce Assurance Committee

Non-Executive Directors: Anu Singh, Glenys Thornton, Rob Vincent, Junaid Bajwa
Executive Directors: Kevin Curnow, Norma French, Michelle Johnson/ Sarah
Wilding, Carol Gillen/ Chinyama Okunuga

Non-executive director appraisal process

The Chairman and non-executive directors annually evaluate their performance
through appraisal and identify any areas for development. The appraisal of the non-
executive directors is carried out by the chairman.

Trust Board of Directors’ declarations of interest

In line with the Nolan principles of public life, Whittington Health NHS Trust is
committed to openness and transparency in its work and decision making. As part of
that commitment, we maintain and publish a register of interests which draws together
declarations of interests made by members of the Board of Directors. In addition, at
the commencement of each Board meeting, members of the Board are required to
declare any interests in respect of specific items on the agenda. The declarations for
2022/23 are shown below:

Voting member Declared interests

Baroness Julia ¢ Independent, Cross Bench Peer, House of Lords
Neuberger DBE, Trust e Chair, University College London Hospitals NHS
Chair and Non- Foundation Trust

Executive Director e Vice-Chair, University College London Health

Alliance Board

Chair, Board of Trustees, Independent Age

Occasional broadcasting for the BBC

Rabbi Emerita, West London Synagogue

Trustee, The Walter and Liesel Schwab Charitable

Trust

Trustee, Rayne Foundation

e Trustee, Leo Baeck Institute Academic Study of
German Jewish relationships

e Trustee, Yad Hanadiv Israel (Charitable
Foundation)

e Trustee, Lyons Learning Project (independent
education charity dedicated to all aspects of
Jewish Learning

e Consultant, Clore Duffield Foundation (on Jewish

matters)

e Commissioner, Commission on the Integration of
Refugees

e Bereavement Commissioner, UK Commission on
Bereavement

Page 100 of 134



Chair, Oversight Committee, City of London Centre
Public Voice Representative, Jewish Community’s
BRCA Testing Programme

Member of the Science and Technology
Committee House of Lords

Vice Chair All-Party Parliamentary Group on Faith
and Society

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

Nil

Siobhan Harrington,
Chief Executive

Local Care lead, North Central London Integrated
Care System Board

Member, University College London Health
Alliance Board

Chair, North Central London People Board

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

Daughter-in-law is employed by Whittington
Health’s Pharmacy department

Son is employed by the Islington re-ablement
service

Helen Brown, Chief
Executive

Nil

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

Nil

Junaid Bajwa,
Associate Non-
Executive Director

Chief Medical Scientist, Microsoft

Essential Guides UK Limited (Shareholder, GP
locum services and educational work)

Merck Sharp and Dohme (shareholder and ex-
employee)

NHS England (GP appraiser)

GP, Operose Health

Non-Executive Director, University College London
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Non-Executive Director, Medicines and Healthcare
products Regulatory Authority

Non-Executive Director, MedicaGroup Plc
Governor, Nuffield Health

Non- Executive Director, Nahdi Medical
Corporation

Non- Executive Director, eConsult

Non-Executive Director Ondine

Visiting Scientist, Harvard School of Public Health
Associate Professor, University College London
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Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Kevin Curnow, Chief
Finance Officer

¢ Non-Executive Director, Whittington Pharmacy
Community Interest Company

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

e Nil

Dr Clare Dollery,
Medical Director

e Chair of the NCL Cancer Alliance Program board
e Member of NCL Clinical Advisory Group

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Professor Naomi
Fulop, Non-Executive
Director

e Honorary contract, University College London
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

e Professor of Health Care Organisation &
Management, Department of Applied Research,
University College London

e Non -Executive Director, COVID Bereaved
Families for Justice (CBF4J)

e CBF4Jis a core participant in modules 1 & 2 of the
Covid Inquiry, represented by Broudie, Jackson &
Canter solicitors and | am also individually
represented by them.

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Amanda Gibbon, Non-
Executive Director

e Chair, RareCan Limited (start-up company looking
to recruit patients with rare cancers into research in
their disease areas. This post is currently
unremunerated.)

e Lay member, NHS Blood and Transplant’s
National Organ Donation Committee and Regional
Chair for London NHSBT Regional Collaborative

¢ Non-Executive Director, Royal Free London NHS
Foundation Trust

e External member of the Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee of the National Institute for Health and
Care Excellence

e UCLH: Chair of the Biobank Ethical Review
Committee for the UCL/UCLH Biobank for
Studying Health and Disease and Chair of the
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UCLH Organ Donation Committee
e Director, The Girls Education Company Limited
e Director, Garthgwynion Estate Limited

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

e My four (adult) children each have personal
shareholdings in GlaxoSmithKline and Smith &
Nephew

Carol Gillen, Chief
Operating Officer

¢ Non-Executive Director, Whittington Pharmacy
Community Interest Company

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
° Nil

Michelle Johnson
MBE, Chief Nurse &
Director of Allied
Health Professionals

e Trustee on Board of Roald Dahl Marvellous
Children’s Charity

e Independent member of NHS Professionals’
Quality Committee

e Chief Nurse, Camden & Islington NHS Foundation
Trust

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Son and daughter are volunteers at Whittington
Health

Chinyama Okunuga,
Chief Operating Officer

¢ Non-Executive Director, Whittington Pharmacy
Community Interest Company

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

e Nil

Tony Rice, Non-
Executive Director

e Senior Independent Non-Executive Director,
Halma Plc

e Chair of Maiden Voyage Plc
e Chair of Shields Environmental Plc

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement

e Nil

Anu Singh, Non-
Executive Director

¢ Non-Executive Director at Parliamentary and
Health Service Ombudsman

¢ Non-Executive Director at Camden and Islington
Foundation Trust & Barnet, Enfield & Haringey
Mental Health NHS Trust
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e Member of Committee on Fuel Poverty

¢ Non-Executive Director Designate Board Member
at South East London and Birmingham & Solihull
Integrated Care Boards

¢ Independent Chair, Lambeth Safeguarding Adults
Board

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

e Husband is a volunteer in the Haringey Improving
Access to Psychological Therapies service

Baroness Glenys
Thornton, Non-
Executive Director

¢ Member of the House of Lords, Opposition
Spokesperson for Women and Equalities

e Member, Advisory Group, Good Governance
Institute

e Chair and Trustee, Phone Co-op Foundation for
Co-operative Innovation

e Chair, Advisory Board of Assistive Healthcare

Technology Association

Senior Associate, Social Business International

Senior Fellow, The Young Foundation

Council Member, University of Bradford

Emeritus Governor, London School of Economics

Trustee, Roots of Empathy UK

Patron, Social Enterprise UK

British Council All Party Parliamentary Group

o Vice Chair Social Enterprise

Vice Chair Dentistry & Oral Health

Vice Chair Domestic Violence & Abuse

Vice Chair Get Refusal

Vice Chair Homelessness

Co-Chair Respiratory Health

Officer Sickle Cell & Thalassaemia

Honorary Secretary Social Enterprise

Vice Chair Dalits

O 0O O O O O O O

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement

e Daughter is employed at Whittington Health

Rob Vincent CBE,
Non-Executive Director

¢ Non-Executive Director, University College
London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
e Commissioner: UK Electoral Commission

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Page 104 of 134




Sarah Wilding, Chief
Nurse and Director of
Allied Health
Professionals

e Non-Executive Director, Whittington Pharmacy
Community Interest Company

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

e Nil

Non-voting members

Declared interests during 2021/22

Norma French,
Director of Workforce

e Nil

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known

immediate family involvement

e Husband is a Consultant Physician at Central &
North West London NHS Foundation Trust

e A sonis employed as a Business Analyst in the
Procurement department at Whittington Health

e A sonis employed at the Trust as a Research
Assistant

Jonathan Gardner
Director of Strategy
and Corporate Affairs

e Nil

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Dr Sarah Humphery,
Medical Director —
Integrated Care

e GP Partner Goodinge Group Practice, Goodinge
Health Centre, 20 North Road, London N7 9EW:
General Medical Services

e The Goodinge Practice is part of WISH, the GP
service in the Whittington Health emergency
department and also the Islington N1 Primary
Care Network

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Tina Jegede, Joint
Director of Inclusion
and Lead Nurse,
Islington Care Homes

e Nil

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil

Swarnijit Singh, Joint
Director of Inclusion
and Trust Secretary

e Secretary to the University College London Health
Alliance Board and Chief Executive’s Group

e Member of the North Central London People
Board

¢ Management Side Co-Chair of the Equality,
Diversity, and Inclusion subgroup of the NHS Staff
Council
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e Trustee and Board member of a learning disability
charity, CASPA, (Children on the Autistic
Spectrum Parents Association)

Conflicts of interests that may arise out of any known
immediate family involvement
e Nil
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT

The Remuneration and Staff Report has been audited by the Trust’s external auditors.

The salaries and allowances of senior managers who held office during the year ended
31 March 2023 are shown in the table below. The definition of ‘Senior Managers’ given
in paragraph 3.71 of the Department of Health Group Accounting Manual (GAM)
2021/22 is: .... persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for
directing or controlling major activities within the group body”. For the purposes of this
report, senior managers are defined as the Chief Executive, Non-executive Directors
and Executive Directors, all Board members with voting rights.

Salaries and allowances 2022/23 TO BE AUDITED

2022-23
Annual Long-term .
y Pension-related
Salary and fees Taxable benefits performance- performance- benefits ! Total
Name & Title (bands of £5,000) (total to the related bonuses | related bonuses (in bands of (in bands of
4 nearest £100) (in bands of (in bands of £2,500) £5,000)
£5,000) £5,000) "
£000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-Executive
Julia Neuberger 40-45 40-45
Anu Singh- left 13th April 2022 0-5 0-5
Tony Rice- left 20th February 2023 10-15 10-15
Amanda Gibbon 10-15 10-15
Naomi Fulop 10-15 10-15
Glenys (Dorothea) Thornton 10-15 10-15
Rob Vincent CBE 10-15 10-15
Junaid Bajwa 10-15 10-15
Executive
Siobhan Harrington - Chief Executive Left 31st May
2022 30-35 2.5-5 35-40
Helen Brown - Chief Executive Started 20th June 2022 140-145 140-145
0

Kevin Curnow - Chief Finance Officer, and Deputy 140-145 20-22.5 165-170
CEO from 1st November 2022
Clare Dollery - Medical Director 215-220 0/215-220
Norma French - Director of Workforce

135-140 17.5-20 155-160
Jonathan Gardner - Director of Strategy and 17.5-20
Corporate Affairs 125-130 145-150
Carol Gillen - Chief Operating Officer Left 29th July 45-50 5-7.5 50-55
2022
Chinyama Okunuga - Chief Operating Officer from 60-65 7.5-10 65-70
26th September 2022
Sarah Humphery - Executive Medical Director : 2.5-5
Integrated Care Left 31st December 2022

30-35 35-40
Michelle Johnson - Chief Nurse and Director of
Patient Experience Left 30th June 2022

30-35 2.5-5 30-35
Sarah Wilding - Director of Nursing and Clinical
Development Started 22nd August 2022 75-80 10-12.5 85-90
Swarnjit Singh - Director of Race, Equality, Diversity 55-60 7.5-10 65-70
and Inclusion and Trust Corporate Secretary(from
1.9.21)
Tina Jegede Director of Race, Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion and Lead Nurse, Islington Care Homes
(from 1.9.21) 50-55 7.5-10 55-60
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Salaries and allowances 2021/22 TO BE AUDITED

2021-22
) Annual Long-term Pension-related
Taxable benefits performance- performance- ) Total
Name & Title Salary and fees (total to the related bonuses | related bonuses . benefits (in bands of
(bands of £5,000) N ) (in bands of
nearest £100) (in bands of (in bands of £2,500) £5,000)
£5,000) £5,000)
£000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-Executive
Julia Neuberger 40-45 40-45
Anu Singh 10-15 10-15
Tony Rice 10-15 10-15
Amanda Gibbon 10-15 10-15
Naomi Fulop 10-15 10-15
Glenys (Dorothea) Thornton 10-15 10-15
Rob Vincent 10-15 10-15
Junaid Bajwa 10-15 10-15
Executive
Siobhan Harrington - Chief Executive 185-190 25-27.5 215-220
Kevin Curnow - Chief Finance Officer 140-145 17.5-20 160-165
Clare Dollery - Medical Director 200-205 200-205
Norma French - Director of Workforce 130-135 17.5-20 150-155
Jonathan Gardner - Director of Strategy and
Corporate Affairs 120-125 15-17.5 135-140
Carol Gillen - Chief Operating Officer 140-145 17.5-20 160-165
Sarah Humphery - Executive Medical Director : 45-50 5-7.5 50-55
Integrated Care
Michelle Johnson - Chief Nurse and Director of
Patient Experience 140-145 17.5-20 160-165
Swarnjit Singh - Director of Race, Equality, Diversity 50-55 5-7.5 55-60
and Inclusion and Trust Corporate Secretary(from
1.9.21)
Tina Jegede Director of Race, Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion and Lead Nurse, Islington Care Homes
(from 1.9.21) 25-30 2.5-5 30-35

Statement of the policy on senior managers’ remuneration
The Remuneration Committee follows national guidance on the salary of senior
managers. All elements of remuneration, including ‘annual cost of living increases’,
when applicable, continued to be subject to performance conditions. Other decisions
made by the Committee are reflected in the tables above. This is subject to the
achievement of goals being objectively assessed. The governance arrangements for
the committee form part of the Whittington Health’s standing orders, reservations and
delegation of powers and standing financial instructions.

In line with the requirements of the NHS Codes of Conduct and Accountability, the
purpose of the Committee is to advise the Trust Board about appropriate remuneration
and terms of service for the chief executive and other executive directors including:

e all aspects of salary (including any performance-related elements/bonuses)
e provisions for other benefits, including pensions and cars
e arrangements for termination of employment and other contractual terms
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Board members’ pension entitlements for those in the pension scheme
2022/23 TO BE AUDITED

Lump sum .
i Cash equivalent 3 i
. . . . | Total accrued relatedto | Cash equivalent Real increase in
Real increase in|Real increase in X transfer value X Employer
. pension at 31 accrued transfer value at cash equivalent -~
pension lump sum X at 31 March contribution to
Name March 2023 | pension at 31 | 31 March 2023 transfer value
(bands of (bands of 2022 stakeholder
(bands of March 2023 | (to the nearest (to the nearest .
£2,500) £2,500) (to the nearest pension
£5,000) (bands of £1,000) £1,000)
£1,000)
£5,000)
Executive Directors £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Siobhan Harrington 25-5 0 65-70 150-155 1,467 1,396 24 4
Tina Jegede info awaited- last
year pension
figures? 2.5-5 2.5-5 35-40 105-110 901 804 52 8
Swarnjit Singh 2.5-5 2.5-5 35-40 80-85 756 662 73 9
Kevin Curnow 5-7.5 0 30-35 0 349 300 19 20
Clare Dollery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Norma French 5-7.5 0-2.5 45-50 75-80 858 782 32 20
Jonathan Gardner 5-7.5 0 25-30 328 275 26 18
Carol Gillen 0-2.5 0-25 55-60 165-170 0 0 0 7
Sarah Humphery 0-2.5 0 10-15 15-20 230 265 0 5
Michelle Johnson 2.5-5 7.5-10 50-55 145-150 0 0 0 4
Helen Brown 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
Sarah Wilding info awaited- last
year pension
figures? 0-2.5 0 50-55 110-115 949 888 24 9
Chinyama Okunuga 15-17.5 0 20-25 5-10 289 248 26 8

The Trust’s accounting policy in respect of pensions is described in Note 8 of the
complete Annual Accounts document that will be uploaded to www.whittington.nhs.uk
in September 2022. As non-executive directors do not receive pensionable
remuneration, there are no entries in respect of pensions.

A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a point in time.

The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the
benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership
of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the
disclosure applies. The CETYV figures and the other pension details include the value
of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement, which the individual has
transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension
benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing of additional years of
service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines
and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

The real increase in CETYV reflects the increase in the CETV effectively funded by the

employer. It takes account of the increase in the accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred
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from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.

Pay multiples

Non-Executive Directors

The Trust follows NHS Improvement guidance for appointing non-executive directors.
The terms of the contract apply equally to all non-executive directors with the
exception of the chair, who has additional responsibilities and accountabilities. The
remuneration of a non-executive director is £13,000. The chair received remuneration
of £41,100 for 2022/23.

Salary range
The Trust is required to disclose the ratio between the remuneration of the highest-
paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the workforce.

The mid-point remuneration of the highest paid director at Whittington Health in
2022/23 was £184,380 (2021/22: £184,380). This was 5.2 times the median
remuneration of the workforce, which was £35,572 (2021/22: 5.1 times, £36,371).

In 2022/23, there was one employee (one in 2021/22) who received remuneration
exceeding that of the highest-paid director.

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay,
benefits-in-kind and severance payments. It does not include employer contributions
and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Fair pay and pay ratio disclosure

For several years, the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) has required
NHS trusts to disclose the median remuneration and the ratio between median
remuneration, and the banded remuneration of the highest paid director.

From 2021/22 onwards, the FReM has also required the disclosure of top to median,
lower quartile and upper quartile staff pay multiples (ratios) as part of the
Remuneration Report. These additional requirements for the 2022/23 and 2021/22
financial years are reported below.

The percentage change in remuneration of the highest paid director

In 2022/23, there was no increase from the last financial year in the remuneration of
the highest paid director. The highest paid director was not paid performance pay or
bonuses in 2022-23, (£ nil in 2021/22).

The average percentage change in the remuneration of employees of the entity, taken
as a whole

In 2022-23, permanent staff on NHS Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions
received a national pay award ranging from 7.4% for Bands 1 and 2 to 1.3% for Band
9.

The range of staff remuneration
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The remuneration of all staff ranged from the bands £10k-£15k to £200k-£205k.
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The 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile of staff remuneration

The 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile of total remuneration of the reporting
entity’s staff (based on annualised, full-time equivalent remuneration of all staff at the
reporting date, are shown below. The figures are the same for the salary component
of remuneration of the reporting entity’s staff (based on annualised, full-time equivalent
remuneration of all staff (including temporary and agency staff) as at the reporting

date.

2022/23 2021/22
£ £
25th percentile 26,282 25,655
Median 35,572 36,371
75th percentile 48,526 47,335

The 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile of staff remuneration, compared to
the highest paid director

2022/23 2021/22
Highest Highest
c _ Paid c _ Paid
Director: Director:
Ratio Ratio
25th percentile 26,282 6.9 25,655 7.3
Median 35,572 5.1 36,371 5.2
75th percentile 48,526 3.8 47,335 4.0

The highest paid director

In 2022/23, one individual received remuneration in excess of the highest paid
director (one in 2021/22). Remuneration ranged from the bands £15k-£20k to £210k-
£215k (2021-22: £5k-£10k to £220k-£225K).

Staff numbers and composition
To comply with the requirements of NHSI’'s Group Accounting Manual, the Trust is
also required to provide information on the following:

staff numbers and costs
expenditure on consultancy
off-payroll arrangements; and
exit packages.

This information is shown overleaf.

Page 112 of 134



Breakdown of temporary and permanent staff members (staff numbers)

Average Whole Time Equivalent (WTE) Permanent | Temporary | Permanent | Temporary
Staff Staff Staff Staff
2022-23 2022-23 2021-22 2021-22
Medical and dental 492 61 479 55
Administration and estates 1,032 249 1,046 173
Healthcare assistants and other support staff 643 154 638 154
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 1,081 246 1,071 232
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 809 119 757 87
Total 4,057 829 3,991 701
Cost analysis of temporary and permanent staff members
2022/23 2021/22
Staff Group (000) (000)
Permanent Staff
Administration & Estates 63,399 48,243
Medical & Dental 52,605 50,769
Nursing & Midwives 67,717 66,179
Scientific, Therapeutic & Technical 53,356 47,663
Healthcare Assistants & Other Support Staff 25,014 23,513
Apprentice Levy 1,105 1,156
Permanent Total | 263,195 | 237,523
Temporary Staff
Administration & Estates 10,223 6,702
Medical & Dental 10,737 10,118
Nursing & Midwives 15,931 15,599
Scientific, Therapeutic & Technical 6,020 4,430
Healthcare Assistants & Other Support Staff 5,838 5,534
Temporary Total 48,749 42,383
Total of Trust Funded Permanent & Temporary Staff 311,944 | 279,906

Consultancy spend

The Trust spent £1.0m on consultancy in 2022/23 (£0.1m in 2021/22). The majority of
this expenditure was incurred in demand and capacity planning, development of the
Trust's Cost Improvement Programme, and the Trust's premises and estates

programmes.

Off-payroll engagements

The Trust is required to disclose all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2023 for
more than £245 per day and that last longer than six months. The Trust does not have

any of these engagements.
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Exit packages 2022/23

Number of
departures Cost of special
Number of where special |payment
Number of Cost of other Cost of other |Total number payments element
compulsory compulsory departures departures of exit Total costof |have been includedin
redundancies |redundancies |agreed agreed packages exit packages |made exit packages
No. £000 No. £000 No. £000 No. £000
<£10,000 0 0
£10,000 - £25,000 1 15 1 15
£25,001 - £50,000 0 0
£50,001 - £100,000 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0
£150,001 - £200,000 0 0
>£200,000 0 0
Total 1 15 0 0 1 15 0 0

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the
provisions of the NHS Scheme. Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the
year of departure. Where Whittington Health has agreed early retirements, the
additional costs are met by the Trust.

Signed ... Chief Executive

Date: June 2023
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of Whittington Health NHS Trust’s policies, aims
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which
| am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. |
am also responsible for ensuring that Whittington Health NHS Trust is administered
prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively.
| also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer
Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of
Whittington Health NHS Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Whittington Health
NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Trust has a robust approach to risk management. This can be demonstrated by
the following:

e Leadership of the risk management process through:

o the Board annually reviewing its risk management strategy and risk
appetite

o executive risk leads for each Board Assurance Framework entry

o Board members reviewing the Board Assurance Framework and key
entries on the Trust Risk Register on a quarterly basis

e The Audit & Risk Committee has delegated authority from the Board for oversight
and assurance on the control framework in place to manage strategic risks to the
delivery of the Trust’s objectives and it reviews the effectiveness of the Trust's
systems of risk management and internal control

e It is supported in this by other Board Committees providing assurance to the

Board on the effective mitigation of strategic Board Assurance Framework

entries and other key risks, as follows:

o The Quality Assurance Committee reviews and provides assurance to the
Board on the management of risks relating to quality and safety, including all
risk entries scored above 15 on individual Integrated Clinical Service Units’
(ICSUs) and corporate areas’ risk registers
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o The Finance & Business Development Committee provides assurance to
the Board on the delivery of the Trust’s integration strategic objective and
two of its sustainability strategic objectives and reviews risks scored higher
than 15 which relate to finance, information governance, estates

o The Innovation, Digital and Transformation Assurance Committee
considers risks to the delivery of the Trust’s third sustainability strategic
objective covering its digital strategy and interoperability with sector
partners

o The Workforce Assurance Committee reviews all risks to the delivery of the
organisation’s People strategic objective, and their effective mitigation. Itis
supported in this by the Quality Assurance Committee which also monitors
those workforce risks related to the quality and safety of patient care

o The Trust Management Group reviews the Board Assurance Framework in
its entirety and also leads on reviewing risks to the delivery of the
organisation’s Integration strategic objective

o In addition, quarterly performance reviews for each Integrated Clinical
Service Unit considered their key respective risks

e An organisational governance structure, with clear lines of accountability and
roles responsible for risk management, is in place for all staff

e The Chief Executive has overall accountability for the development of risk
management systems and delegates responsibility for the management of
specific areas of risk to named Directors

e All relevant staff are provided with risk management training as part of their
induction to the Trust and face-to-face training from Risk Managers is provided
to those staff regularly involved in risk management

e An open culture to empower staff to report and resolve incidents and risks
through the Datix recording system and to share learning with teams

The Care Quality Commission positively identified a clear culture of risk identification
and reporting throughout the organisation.

The risk and control framework

The aim of the Trust's risk management strategy is to support the delivery of
organisational aims and objectives through the effective management of risks across
all of the Trust’s functions and activities through effective risk management processes,
analysis and organisational learning.

The Trust’'s approach to risk management aims to:
e embed the effective management of risk as part of everyday practice
e support a culture which encourages continuous improvement and development
e focus on proactive, forward looking, innovative and comprehensive rather than
reactive risk management
e support well thought out decision-making

Risk management process

Whittington Health adopts a structured approach to risk management by identifying,
analysing, evaluating and managing risks. Where appropriate, staff will escalate or
de-escalate risks through the governance structures in place at the Trust as shown
overleaf.
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A snapshot of the Trust’s risk management process is highlighted overleaf
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ISO 3000 Process Diagram

Risk identification

A hazard or threat is a source or issue of potential harm to the Trust achieving its
objectives. Risk identification is the process of determining what, where, when, and
why something could occur. Risks to the Trust can be identified from a number of
sources, both reactively and proactively. Examples of a few of these are displayed in
the diagram below:

Reactive Proactive
Incidents / Sls I Risk assessments ]
[ Complaints and claims ] .\\\ al
[ Complaints and claims | H\\ \\\\ projects I Annual plans / objectives ]
l Internal audits and reviews }-\ N 3 \\ / i f”

| Patient/ staff / volunteer
" _~| surveys

[Issues raised by committees |\ \ \

Board Assurance
Internal F y
External o Operational Risk

__/ Register
Safety alerts |~ 4 x \,
v B \ R\ { Consultation with external stakeholders ]

” . "/ I \
External audits | / i A N1
[ } / | \ | National Benchmarking ]

Internal
N External
{ National enquires & reports ]

I External audits | / \ \\

- {
Regulator inspections \
(e.g. CQC, HEE) '
1 Mandatory / statutory targets }

Reactive Proactive

Peer review by external organisations
(l.e other NHS Trusts, Health Watch)

Page 118 of 134



Trends identified from incidents, complaints and claims are regularly scrutinised via
the Trust's quarterly aggregated learning report, which is reviewed by the Patient
Safety and Quality Assurance Committees to identify any risks to the Trust.

Managers must ensure that their risk registers are reviewed monthly and, where new
sources of risk are identified, that these are documented and responded to
appropriately.

Risk assessment

When a new risk is identified a Risk Assessment Consideration form is completed
and presented to the relevant committee/Board for approval. The assessment
should clearly state the likelihood for the risk to cause harm and what preventative
or control measures are required to respond effectively to the risk. Once approved
by the appropriate group this should then be added to Datix with an identified
review date established.

Risk analysis and evaluation

An analysis of each risk is required to be undertaken to establish the initial
grading of the risk by assessing the likelihood and consequences of the hazard if it
did occur. The Trust utilises a risk grading matrix which incorporates a risk tolerance
measure. This process aims to ensure that risks are assessed consistently across
the Trust. Once the grading is known and recorded in the Risk Register, the risk
can be compared with other risks facing the Trust and prioritised according to
significance. The list of all risks facing the Trust, in order of significance, makes up
the Trust-wide Risk Register.

Risk assessment is an integral part of the business planning process. Significant
strategic risks will be identified by the Trust Board and managed through the Board
Assurance Framework (BAF).

Risk control — monitoring, review and resolution

Controls are the actions taken to reduce the likelihood or consequence of a risk
being actualised, or to reduce the severity of the impact of that risk, if it does occur.
The controls in place for each risk should be detailed on Datix and describe the steps
that need to be taken to manage and/or control the risk. These should be updated
as progress is made.

There are four main ways to manage risks utilised by the Trust. These are
outlined in the table below:

Acceptance | The risk is identified and logged, and no action is taken. It is
accepted that it may happen and will be responded to if it
occurs.

Avoid Where the level of risk is unacceptably high and the Trust cannot,
for whatever reason, put adequate control measures in place the
Trust Board will consider whether the service/activity should
continue in the Trust.
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Transfer A shift in the responsibility or impact for loss to another party
e.g., insurance for the risk occurrence or subcontracting. For a
clinical risk transfer — a decision for a patient requiring a high-risk
surgical procedure (where the expertise or equipment is
unavailable in the Trust) to be transferred to a specialist centre
for treatment. The risk of transferring the patient must be less
than the risk of operating in the Trust environment.

Mitigation The impact of the risk is limited, so if it does occur (and cannot be
avoided) the outcome is reduced and easier to handle.

Making and carrying out risk reduction action plans is the
responsibility of a line manager and /or risk lead.

Local risk registers at ICSU and corporate level, along with the in-year operational risk
register and board assurance framework (BAF), seek to present an overview of the
main risks facing the organisation. The local risk registers are reviewed, updated and
monitored regularly by the relevant ICSU Board and corporate services’ leads and, if
necessary, a risk can be escalated on to the corporate risk register, which is monitored
by the Trust Management Group and Quality Assurance Committee. Respective BAF
entries are monitored by executive director risk leads, who assess the status of their
risk entry and its effective mitigation. The BAF is also monitored by the Audit and Risk
Committee and Trust Board.

In March 2023, RSM’s internal audit team completed a review of the Board Assurance
Framework and of risk management arrangements at Whittington Health. The review
concluded a positive assessment of moderate assurance required. The key changes
recommended — the inclusion of escalation and — de-escalation arrangements to the
Board Assurance Framework and the Trust Risk Register have been included in our
updated risk management strategy which will be discussed in quarter one by the Trust
Board.

Board Assurance Framework

The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) provides a structure for reporting of the
principal strategic risks to the delivery of the Trust’'s business and is reviewed regularly
throughout the year. It identified the risk appetite and the controls and assurances in
place to mitigate these risks, the gaps or weaknesses in controls and assurances, and
actions required to further strengthen these mechanisms. The Audit and Risk
Committee leads on oversight of the mitigation of risks to delivery of the Trust's
strategic objectives and was supported by other relevant board committees and the
Trust's Management Group.

Structure and presentation:
During quarter one of 2022/23, there was a review and consolidation of the 2021/22
BAF entries to the delivery of the Trust’s four strategic objectives into the following:

Strategic

objective Board Assurance Framework entry

Quality 1 - Failure to provide care which is ‘outstanding’ in being

quality and consistently safe, caring, responsive, effective, or well-led and
which provides a positive experience for our patients and
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Strategic

objective Board Assurance Framework entry

safety of families, due to errors, or lack of care or lack of resources,

services results in poorer patient experience, harm, a loss of income, an
adverse impact upon staff retention and damage to
organisational reputation

Quality 2 - A lack of capacity to restart elective and other key services,

capacity and capability, and attention to clinical performance targets, due to

activity priorities in planning for and responding to future pandemic

delivery waves, or winter pressures result in a deterioration in service

quality and patient care such as:

¢ long delays in the emergency department and an inability
to place patients who require high dependency and
intensive care

e patients not receiving the care they need across hospital
and community health services

e patients on a diagnostic and/or treatment pathway at risk
of deterioration and the need for greater intervention at a
later stage

e an unsuccessful rollout of the winter COVID-19 pandemic
booster

People 1 - staff
recruitment
and retention

Lack of sufficient substantive staff, due to increased staff
departures and absence, the impact of the UK’s exit from the
EU, and difficulties in recruiting and retaining sufficient staff,
results in increased pressure on staff, a reduction in the quality
of care, insufficient capacity to deal with demand, and increased
temporary staffing costs

People 2 - staff
wellbeing and
equality,
diversity, and
inclusion

Failure to improve staff health, wellbeing, equity, empowerment,
and morale, due to the continuing post pandemic pressures and
the restart of services, poor management practices, a poorly
developed and implemented Workforce Race Equality Standard
action plan, and an inability to tackle bullying and harassment
result in:
e behaviours displayed which are out of line with
Whittington Health’s values
e adeterioration in organisational culture, morale and the
psychological wellbeing and resilience of staff
e adverse impacts on staff engagement, absence rates and
the recruitment and retention of staff
e poor performance in annual equality standard outcomes
and submissions
e afailure to secure staff support, buy-in and delivery of
NCL system workforce changes

Integration 1 -
ICS and

Changes brought about by the NCL system and Provider
Alliance such as corporate services’ rationalisations, the review
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Strategic

objective Board Assurance Framework entry
Alliance of community services, and the reconfiguration of pathways
changes through lead provider arrangements impact adversely on patient

services, particularly fragile ones, and the strategic viability of
the Trust

Integration 2 -
population
health and
activity
demand

Local population health and wellbeing deteriorates, due to the
impact of the pandemic, because of a lack of available
investment in, or focus on ongoing care and prevention work,
and due to unsuccessful collaboration with local sector health
and social care partners, results in demand for services after the
COVID-19 outbreak being considerably higher than pre-COVID-
19 and insufficiently met

Sustainable 1 -
control total
delivery and
underlying
deficit

Adverse funding arrangements regionally or nationally; or failure
to a) manage costs, b) reduce the run rate, c) properly fund cost
pressures, due to poor internal control systems, or inability to
transform services and deliver the cost improvement
programme savings, or due to insufficient flexibility under a
block contract along NCL system and provider alliance changes,
result in an inability deliver the annual control total, a worse
underlying deficit for the Trust, increased reputational risk and
pressure on future investment programmes, or cancellation of
key Whittington Health investment projects, and improvements
in patient care and savings not being achieved

Sustainable 2 -
estate
modernisation

The failure of critical estate infrastructure, or continued lack of
high-quality estate capacity, due to insufficient modernisation of
the estate or insufficient mitigation, results in patient harm,
poorer patient experience, or reduced capacity in the hospital

Sustainable 3 -
digital strategy
and
interoperability

Failure by the Trust to effectively resource and implement a
digital strategy focussed on improving patient care through
collaborative system working and efficient, digitally enabled
processes, and underpinned by a modern secure, standards-
based infrastructure, will adversely impact on key transformation
projects across the organisation and our ability to be a system
leader

Assurances and gaps

The BAF includes assurances and these were rated as relevant to the control/risk
reported against. The assurances are timely and are also updated over time.
Furthermore, there is allocated responsibility for submission and assessment. The
BAF also highlights gaps within assurances which trigger the development of actions

to improve them.
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BAF review and update

The review and updating of BAF entries is led by Executive risk leads and key Board
Committees review risks relevant to their terms of reference as set out previously).
The Care Quality Commission cited the BAF as fit for purpose in its inspection
feedback to the Trust.

Risk appetite

In line with good practice, the Trust completed an annual review of its risk appetite
statement. This was discussed and endorsed by members of the Audit and Risk
Committee and subsequently was approved as the Trust Board’s risk appetite. The
risk appetite range is included within Board Assurance Framework (BAF) reports
presented to board and executive committees. Individual risks on the BAF are
allocated a target score against which progress is reported in the BAF.

Embedding risk management
Risk management is embedded throughout the organisation in a variety of ways
including:
e Face-to-face training for key risk managers
e Review of the risk register entries by the Quality Assurance Committee and the
Trust Management Group
e Oversight of BAF entries by Board Committees and the Trust Management
Group
e A review of the BAF every three months by the Trust Board (and more
frequently this year, when required)

In addition, the Trust can highlight the following in its risk and control framework:

e The clinical governance agenda is led by the Chief Nurse & Director of Allied
Health Professionals and the Medical Director. Monitoring arrangements are
delivered through a structure of committees, supporting clear responsibilities and
accountabilities from board to front line delivery

e The Quality Assurance Committee is a key committee of the Board, which affords
scrutiny and monitoring of our risk management process and has oversight of the
guality agenda. Serious incidents and the monitoring of the Corporate Risk
Register is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda

e The Trust’s clinical governance structure ensures there are robust systems in
place for key governance and performance issues to be escalated from frontline
services to Board and gives assurance of clinical quality. It gives a strong focus
on service improvement and ensures high standards of delivery are maintained.

e The Board and the relevant committees use a performance scorecard which has
been developed to include a suite of quality indicators at Trust and service level
aligned to each of the Care Quality Commission’s five domains of Quality

e The Trust’s quality improvement strategy is encapsulated in our Better Never
Stops (our journey to outstanding) programme. The programme is a structured
guality improvement plan and we have quality improvement plans in all services
to monitor and demonstrate compliance with the CQC’s fundamental standards
and against each of the CQC’s domains and Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE)

Risk management during COVID-19
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Actions taken by the Trust to respond to the COVID-19 crisis included reviewing and
updating its BAF with particular reference to the impact of the pandemic, and also
establishing a specific COVID-19 local risk register. As part of its emergency planning
arrangements, the governance structure allowed for the Gold Command forum and
the wider Trust Management Group and Board to discuss and review the COVID-19
risk register along with handling and mitigating actions being taken. These forums
were key to the Trust maintaining control over decision-making and also displaying
financial governance during the emergency response to the pandemic.

At various times throughout the year, we flexed our governance structure to suit the
immediacies of the emergent situation. This included moving to daily Trust
Management Group Gold meetings.

The Board of Directors

Membership of the Board of Directors is currently made up of the Trust chairman, five
independent non-executive directors, and eight executive directors, of which five are
voting members of the Board. The key roles and responsibilities of the Board are as
follows to:

e set and oversee the strategic direction of the Trust

e review and appraise financial and operational performance

e review areas of assurance and concerns as detailed in the chair's assurance
reports from its board committees

e discharge their duties of regulation and control and meet our statutory obligations

e ensure the Trust continues to deliver safe, high quality patient care as its primary
focus, receiving and reviewing quality and patient safety reports and the minutes
and areas of concern highlighted in board committees’ minutes, particularly the
Quality Assurance Committee, which deals with patient quality and safety

e receive reports from the Audit and Risk Committee, the annual Head of Internal
Audit Opinion and external auditor’s report

e agree the Trust’s annual budget and plan and submissions to NHS Improvement

e approve the annual report and annual accounts

e certify against the requirements of NHS provider licence conditions

The Board of Directors held meetings in public six times during the year. A breakdown
of attendance for the Board’s meetings held in 2021/22 is shown overleatf:

Job title and name Public Board meetings
attended (out of 6
unless stated)
Chair and Non-Executive Director, Julia Neuberger 6
Non-Executive Director, Naomi Fulop 5
Non-Executive Director, Amanda Gibbon 5
Non-Executive Director, Tony Rice 3/5
Non-Executive Director, Anu Singh Not applicable as left in
early April 2022
Non-Executive Director, Glenys Thornton 6
Non-Executive Director, Rob Vincent 6
Associate Non-Executive Director, Junaid Bajwa 6
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Job title and name Public Board meetings

attended (out of 6
unless stated)

Chief Executive, Siobhan Harrington 0/1

Chief Executive, Helen Brown 5/5

Medical Director, Clare Dollery 6

Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Chief 5

Executive, Kevin Curnow

Chief Operating Officer, Carol Gillen 2/2

Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health Professionals, 0/1

Michelle Johnson

Director of Workforce, Norma French 5

Director of Strategy and Corporate Affairs, Jonathan 6

Gardner

Medical Director, Integrated Care, Sarah Humphery 0/4

Joint Director of Inclusion and Lead Nurse, Islington 6

Care Homes, Tina Jegede

Joint Director of Inclusion and Trust Company 6

Secretary, Swarnjit Singh

Board and Committee oversight and assurance

The Board of Directors leads on integrated governance and delegates key duties and
functions to its sub-committees. In addition, the Board reserves certain decision -
making powers including decisions on strategy and budgets.

In the last year, the key formal committees within the structure that provided assurance
to the Board of Directors were audit and risk, charitable funds, innovation, and digital
assurance, quality assurance, finance and business development, and workforce
assurance. There is a range of mechanisms available to these committees to gain
assurance that our systems are robust and effective. These include utilising internal
and external audit, peer review, management reporting and clinical audit.

Audit and Risk committee

The audit and risk committee is accountable to the Board for reviewing the
establishment and maintenance of an effective system of internal control. The
Committee holds five meetings per annum at appropriate times in the reporting and
audit cycle. This committee is supported in its assurance role by the finance &
business development, quality assurance, innovation, digital and transformation
assurance and workforce assurance committees in reviewing and updating key risks
pertinent to their terms of reference.

This committee also approves the annual audit plans for internal and external audit
activities and ensures that recommendations to improve weaknesses in control arising
from audits are actioned by executive management. The committee ensures the
robustness of the underlying process used in developing the BAF. The board monitors
the BAF and progress against the delivery of annual objectives each quarter, ensuring
actions to address gaps in control and gaps in assurance are progressed.

Charitable Funds Committee
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This forum provides assurance to the Board on the management of charitable funds
and fundraising activities.

Innovation, Digital and Transformation Assurance Committee

This forum was established as a formal committee of the Board in quarter two. Its
remit is to provide assurance to the Board on the delivery of the Trust’s digital and
transformation strategies.

Quality Assurance Committee

The quality assurance committee is accountable to the Board for reviewing the
effectiveness of quality systems, including the management of risks to the Trust's
guality and patient engagement strategic priorities as well as operational risks to the
quality of services. The committee meets six times per year. It also monitors
performance against quarterly quality indicators, the quality accounts and all aspects
of the three domains of quality namely - patient safety, clinical effectiveness and
patient experience.

Finance & Business Development Committee

The finance & business development committee reviews financial and non-financial
performance across the Trust, reporting to the Board. It also has lead oversight for
risks to the delivery of Trust’s strategic priorities relating to sustainability, along with
delivery of the Trust’'s strategy for information management and technology. The
committee holds six full meetings each year.

Workforce Assurance Committee

The workforce assurance education committee leads on oversight of BAF risks which
relate to the Trust’s staff engagement and recruitment and retention strategic priorities.
It reviews performance against the delivery of key workforce recruitment and retention
plans, workforce education and development and the annual outcomes for equality
standard submissions to NHS England and Improvement. In addition, the committee
will also review those staff engagement actions taken following the outcome of the
annual NHS staff survey and delivery of the Trust’'s workforce culture improvement
plan.

Workforce planning

As in previous years, the workforce planning process was aligned and integrated with
the Trust’'s business planning process, led by individual ICSUs. Throughout the
process, ICSUs’ Clinical and Operational Directors were supported by HR Business
Partners who advised and challenged ICSUs on the workforce impact of their plans
and ensured alignment with workforce and clinical strategies. This involved:

e Working with ICSUs to discuss workforce issues such as recruitment and
retention, activity planning, education requirements and the delivery of key
performance indicators

¢ Analysing and monitoring workforce changes at a local level (and at an aggregated
Trust-wide position)

e Ensuring current and future workforce needs were represented in business plans,
considering growth, as well as options to develop new roles, new ways of working,
and associated training implications.
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e Monthly ‘run rate’ meetings, to analyse temporary staffing to ensure long term
recruitment strategies are in place

e Adedicated nurse recruitment team focusing on international and local recruitment
opportunities

e Middle grade doctor recruitment working group focussed on the emergency
department

In 2022/23, Whittington Health complied with the “Developing Workforce Safeguards”
through the following assurances:

e The Medical Director and Chief Nurse and Director of Allied Health Professionals
confirmed there are established processes to ensure that staffing is safe, effective
and sustainable

e The nursing and midwifery staffing establishment and skill mix (based on acuity
and dependency data and using an evidence-based toolkit where available) was
reported to the Board by ward or service area twice a year

e All workforce risks were reviewed quarterly at the Performance Review Groups.

e Action plans for reducing amber and red rated risks were monitored on a quarterly
basis by the Trust Management Group

e High level risks were reported to Workforce Assurance Committee quarterly

e Safe nurse staffing levels were monitored continuously, supported by ongoing
assessments of patient acuity. As part of ‘Showing we care about speaking up’,
we encouraged and supported all staff to complete nursing scorecards to
triangulate workforce information with other quality metrics

e Workforce intelligence and key performance indicators were reported alongside
quality metrics at the Trust Board each month and were standing items on
Performance Review Group meetings (PRGs). The Workforce Assurance
Committee received comprehensive corporate workforce information and
analysis. Metrics included vacancy and sickness rates, turnover and appraisal
compliance and temporary staffing

e Any changes and significant (over £50k) cost improvement plans had a quality
impact assessment

The Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality
Commission.

The Trust published on its website a register of interests of Board members and for
decision-making staff (as defined by the trust with reference to the guidance) within
the past twelve months, as required by the ‘Managing Conflicts of Interest in the NHS’
guidance). The register was updated in line with further declarations made during the
year.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the
Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
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Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.

The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has plans in place which take
account of the ‘Delivering a Net Zero Health Service’ report under the Greener NHS
Programme. The Trust ensures that is obligations under the Climate Change Act
and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The Trust was rated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) as good in its use of
resources, as it had demonstrated a good understanding of areas of improvements
with credible plans to achieve target performance. In particular, the CQC identified
that the Trust has an excellent track record of managing its expenditure within
available resources.

During 2022/23, Whittington Health had in place a range of processes which helped
to ensure that it used resources economically, efficiently and effectively. These
included:

e monthly reporting of financial and non-financial performance to the Trust Board of
directors and the finance and business development committee of the Board

e adherence to guidance issued by NHS England by establishing robust systems
for the identification of additional costs incurred due to the COVID-19 pandemic
and for the delivery of operational priorities during set out for the first and then the
latter six months of the financial year

e a monthly review of performance by the Trust Management Group and additional
review meetings where ICSUs and corporate directorates are held to account for
financial and non-financial performance

e the production of annual reference costs, including comparisons with national
reference costs

e benchmarking of costs and key performance indicators against other combined
acute and community Trust providers

e standing financial instructions, standing orders and a treasury management policy

e a budget holder's manual which sets out managers’ responsibilities in relation to
managing budgets

e guidance on the declaration of conflicts of interest and standards of business
conduct

e reports by Grant Thornton and RSM as part of the annual internal audit work plan
on control mechanisms which may need reviewing

e the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion being presented to the Audit and Risk
committee

e an external audit of our accounts by KPMG LLP, who also provided an
independent assessment of the Trust’s effective and efficient use of resources,
particularly against value for money considerations

e good performance under NHS England’s Single Oversight Framework for NHS
providers

Information governance
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The following are the incidents and outcomes of investigations in relation to

information governance breaches this year:

Nature of incident

Incident
date

ICO
reported
date

ICO
outcome

The Trust’s Access Centre accidentally
sent a Physiotherapy service
appointment information email message
to 235 patients using the ‘to’ field as
opposed to the ‘bece’ field. This resulted
in the email addresses of all 235
individuals being visible to each other.

June 2022

June 2022

No further
action

Following a request for a patient’s
records by her ex-husband, the records
were subsequently disclosed to the ex-
husband. The patient contacted the
Trust at a later date to state that she has
not given her consent for us to share
records with her ex-husband.

June 2022

August
2022

No further
action

Email sent in error to patient with a
spreadsheet attached which contained
the personal information of many
patients + emergency contact details.

August
2022

October
2022

No further
action

Data quality and governance

Data governance is essential for the effective delivery of patient care and for
improvements to patient care we must have robust and accurate data available.

Whittington Health completed the following actions in the last year towards improved

data quality:

Monthly monitoring of national data quality measures

Reviews of specific data sets (e.g. Referral to Treatment Patient Treatment List)
with specific regard to data quality. Regular spot checks were carried out by the
Trust’s Validation Team

Weekly Referral to Treatment review meetings for cancer, community and acute
services

Our Data Quality Review Group ensured all aspects of data quality standards were
maintained and reviewed

Continuing to review the awareness of key staff of their responsibilities around
data quality and proposing approaches to achieve improvement if necessary
Reviewing the scope of material internal data sets with specific regard to data
quality and summarise those known with their main characteristics, any known
data quality issues and owners in overview
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Whittington Health NHS Trust will continue to monitor and work to improve data
quality by using the above-mentioned Data Quality Review Group, with the aim to
work with ICSUs to improve awareness of responsibilities and to share learning to
help improve data quality.

Annual Quality Account

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for
each financial year. The Trust Board's Quality Assurance Committee, provides
assurance on the Quality Account and the quality priorities and ensures the
maintenance of effective risk management and quality governance systems. The
2022/23 Quality Account will show year three of priorities agreed in the published
2020/21 Quality Account.

Provider licence conditions

In terms of the NHS provider license condition four, the Board confirmed that the Trust
applies principles, systems and standards of good corporate governance which would
reasonably be regarded as appropriate for a supplier of healthcare services. In
particular, the Board is satisfied that the Trust has established and implements:

e an effective Board and Committee structure

e clear responsibilities for the Board and Committees reporting to the Board and for
staff, reporting to either the Board or its Committees

e clear reporting lines and accountabilities throughout the organisation

Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive
managers and clinical leads within the NHS Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework. | have drawn on the
information provided in this annual report and other performance information available
to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their
management letter and other reports. | have been advised on the implications of the
result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board,
the committee and quality assurance committee, if appropriate, and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. The board
ensures the effectiveness of the system of internal control through clear accountability
arrangements.

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health
Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality
Accounts for each financial year. The Board’s Quality Assurance Committee,
provides assurance on the Quality Account and the quality priorities and ensures the
maintenance of effective risk management and quality governance systems. The
2022/23 Quality Account will show year three of priorities agreed in the published
2020/21 Quality Account.

Conclusion
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| confirm that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

Signed

Chief Executive

Date:
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Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as the accountable officer of the
Trust

The Chief Executive of NHS England, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS
Trust Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should be the
Accountable Officer of the Trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable Officers
are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include
ensuring that:

e there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and
assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance

e value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust

e the expenditure and income of the Trust has been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them

o effective and sound financial management systems are in place

e annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of
State to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial
year and the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and
cash flows for the year

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust’s auditors
are unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken to make myself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are
aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities
set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Signed: .l Chief Executive

Page 132 of 134



Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the trust and of the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income
and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, the directors are required
to:

e apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State
with the approval of the Treasury

e make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

e state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts

e prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any
material uncertainties over going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable
them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above
mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for patients,
regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS trust’s performance, business model
and strategy.

By order of the Board

.............. Date.....ooeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeieieeiiieiieaieeenn. Chief Executive

.............. Date.....oieeeeeeeeee i ieeaa . FiNANCeE Director
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The Whittington Health NHS Trust

Annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023



Statement of Comprehensive Income

Operating income from patient care activities
Other operating income
Operating expenses
Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations

Finance income
Finance expenses
PDC dividends payable
Net finance costs
Other gains / (losses)
Surplus / (deficit) for the year from continuing operations

Surplus / (deficit) on discontinued operations and the gain / (loss) on
disposal of discontinued operations

Surplus / (deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments
Revaluations

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period

Note

6,8

10
11

12

16

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
400,191 379,593
31,366 29,355
(420,749) (403,416)
10,808 5,532
1,922 41
(2,364) (540)
(5,385) (5,151)
(5,827) (5,650)

- 15

4,981 (103)
4,981 (103)
(5,936) (220)
6,749 8,312
5,794 7,989




Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed

Financed by
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total taxpayers' equity

The notes on pages X to X form part of these accounts.

Name
Position

Date 20 June 2023

Note

13
14
18
20

19
20
21

22
24
25
23

24
25

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000

8,397 9,711
260,614 246,194
36,445
772 316
306,228 256,221
942 788
25,693 12,841
72,990 81,416
99,625 95,045
(80,778) (66,577)
(2,920) (334)
(622) (906)
(2,701) (1,859)
(87,021) (69,676)
318,833 281,590
(39,259) (6,357)
(33,113) (41,420)
(72,372) (47,777)
246,460 233,813
120,707 113,854
98,778 99,487
26,975 20,472
246,460 233,813




Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2022 - brought forward
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations
Public dividend capital received
Other reserve movements
Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2023

Public Income and
dividend Revaluation expenditure
capital reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
113,854 99,487 20,472 233,813
- - 4,981 4,981
- (5,936) - (5,936)
- 6,749 - 6,749
6,853 - - 6,853
- (1,522) 1,522 -
120,707 98,778 26,975 246,460




Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2021 - brought forward
Prior period adjustment

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2021 - restated
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations
Public dividend capital received

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2022

Public Income and
dividend Revaluation expenditure
capital reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
106,191 91,395 20,575 218,161
106,191 91,395 20,575 218,161
- - (103) (103)
- (220) - (220)
- 8,312 - 8,312
7,663 - - 7,663
113,854 99,487 20,472 233,813




Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to Trusts by the
Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the
Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic
benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the Trust.



Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus / (deficit)
Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Net impairments
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of PPE and investment property
Sales of PPE and investment property
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Movement on loans from DHSC
Other capital receipts
Capital element of lease liability repayments
Interest on loans
Other interest
Interest element of lease liability repayments
PDC dividend (paid) / refunded
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward
Prior period adjustments
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - restated
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Note

6.1

21

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
10,808 5,532
17,143 11,372
1,565 295
(12,654) 5,382
(154) 1,407
15,425 12,783
(10,007) 5,322
22,126 42,093
1,633 41
(1,347) (2,262)
(25,772) (21,896)
- 15
(25,486) (24,102)
6,853 7,663
(116) (116)
- 855
(5,353) (925)
(53) (54)
3) (3)
(894) (483)
(5,500) (5,037)
(5,066) 1,899
(8,426) 19,890
81,416 61,527
81,416 61,527
72,990 81,416




Notes to the Accounts
Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Department of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the
accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
GAM 2022/23 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a
choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances
of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are
described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the
accounts.

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.2 Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial reporting framework applicable to NHS
bodies, derived from the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, defines that the anticipated continued provision of
the entity’s services in the public sector is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The directors have a
reasonable expectation that this will continue to be the case.



Note 1.3 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the
definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial
asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated
to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance obligations
satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a
contract receivable will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than
the passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a
performance obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract
liability.

Revenue from NHS contracts
The accounting policies for revenue recognition and the application of IFRS 15 are consistently applied.

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services.
Funding envelopes are set at an Integrated Care System (ICS) level. The majority of the Trust's
income is earned from NHS commissioners in the form of fixed payments to fund an agreed level of
activity.

In 2022/23 fixed payments are set at a level assuming the achievement of elective activity targets. These are termed
‘aligned payment and incentive' contracts. These payments are accompanied by a variable-element to adjust income
for actual activity delivered on elective services and advice and guidance services. Where actual elective activity
delivered differs from the agreed level set in the fixed payments, the variable element either increases or reduces the
income earned by the Trust at a rate of 75% of the tariff price.

Elective recovery funding provides additional funding for the delivery of elective services. In 2022/23 elective recovery
funding was included within the aligned payment and incentive contracts. In 2021/22 income earned by the system
based on achievement of elective recovery targets was distributed between individual entities by local agreement and
income earned from the fund was accounted for as variable consideration.

The Trust also receives income from commissioners under Commissioning for Quality Innovation (CQUIN) and Best
Practice Tariff (BPT) schemes. Delivery under these schemes is part of how care is provided to patients. As such
CQUIN and BPT payments are not considered distinct performance obligations in their own right; instead they form part
of the transaction price for performance obligations under the overall contract with the commissioner. In 2022/23
payment under these schemes is included in fixed payments from commissioners based on assumed achievement of
criteria.

Revenue from research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are
satisfied. For some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance obligation over the
course of the multi-year contract. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust’s interim performance does not create an
asset with alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment for the performance
completed to date. It is therefore considered that the performance obligation is satisfied over time, and the Trust
recognises revenue each year over the course of the contract. Some research income alternatively falls within the
provisions of IAS 20 for government grants.

NHS injury cost recovery scheme

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust
recognises the income when performance obligations are satisfied. In practical terms this means that treatment has
been given, it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has
completed the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured at the
agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation
claims and doubtful debts in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the
asset.



Note 1.4 Other forms of income
Grants and donations

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or Trusts for the
provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income to match that expenditure. Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income once conditions attached to the grant have been met. Donations are
treated in the same way as government grants.

Apprenticeship service income

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as
income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training
provider from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the
corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned
but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

Pension costs
NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are
unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way
that would enable employers to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
scheme is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Trust is taken as equal to the
employer's pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is
due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

Note 1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where
it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

Note 1.7 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations occur where activities either cease without transfer to another entity, or transfer to an entity
outside of the boundary of Whole of Government Accounts, such as private or voluntary sectors. Such activities are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. Activities that are transferred to other bodies within the boundary of Whole of
Government Accounts are ‘machinery of government changes’ and treated as continuing operations.



Note 1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:

« it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes

« it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust

« it is expected to be used for more than one financial year

« the cost of the item can be measured reliably

« the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

« collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the
assets are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar
disposal dates and are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives,
eg, plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful
lives.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving
from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be
determined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets
the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that
does not generate additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie
operational assets used to deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value
in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring them
back into use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do
not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are
not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing
use are determined as follows:

» Land and non-specialised buildings — market value for existing use
+ Specialised buildings — depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis.

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is interpreted as the present value of the asset's remaining service
potential, which is assumed to be at least equal to the cost of replacing that service potential. Specialised assets are
therefore valued at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis. An MEA
basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location
requirements of the services being provided.



Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when the assets are brought
into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are
valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not
considered to be materially different from current value in existing use.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated upon the
reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the Trust, respectively.

Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating expenditure.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an
item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve
to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating
expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to
the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating
expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never
been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original
impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once the criteria in IFRS 5 are met. The sale must be
highly probable and the asset available for immediate sale in its present condition.



Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value
less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the 'fair value less
costs to sell' falls below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have
been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’
and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when
scrapping or demolition occurs.

Donated and grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value upon receipt. The
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future
economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the
donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition
has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property,
plant and equipment.

This includes assets donated to the Trust by the Department of Health and Social Care or NHS England as part of the
response to the coronavirus pandemic. As defined in the GAM, the Trust applies the principle of donated asset
accounting to assets that the Trust controls and is obtaining economic benefits from at the year end.



Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions

PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are
accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the Trust. In accordance with HM Treasury’s FReM, the
underlying assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent liability. Subsequently,
the assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets as appropriate.

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Trust entered into a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) arrangement in 2003 to build and maintain the main hospital
through construction firm Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL). On the 28th July 2020 WFL filed for administration.

The collapse of WFL means that the main building elements transferred back into the ownership of the Trust during
2020/21, and the Trust is now responsible for the maintenance of the building. Further details of the financial
arrangements and implications are discussed in further detail as part of the Provisions notes and policies.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in
the table below:

Min life Max life

Years Years

Land - -
Buildings, excluding dwellings 13 78
Plant & machinery 5 15
Information technology 3 10
Furniture & fittings 5 5

Note 1.9 Intangible assets
Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from
the rest of the Trust's business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised
as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised where it meets the requirements
set out in IAS 38.

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant
item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, eg application
software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Measurement

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.



Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible
assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income
generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, plant and
equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value where there
are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definitions of investment properties or
assets held for sale.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of
economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown
in the table below:

Min life Max life
Years Years

Software licences 5 5



Note 1.10 Inventories

The Trust records inventory values only for pharmacy drugs inventories from the 2021/22 financial year onwards. All
other inventories are recorded at nil value, being expensed in the 2021/22 et seq financial years on the basis of
immateriality. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value due to the high turnover of stock.

The Trust received inventories including personal protective equipment from the Department of Health and Social Care
at nil cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principles of the IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust has accounted
for the receipt of these inventories at a deemed cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an imputed market
value for the transaction based on the cost of acquisition by the Department. The closing inventory is recorded at nil
value on the basis of immateriality.

Note 1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’'s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are
recorded at current values.

Note 1.12 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument.
The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements that
in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in
accordance with the Trust’'s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction
costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is
taken as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through leasing arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through income and
expenditure as appropriate.

Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through income and expenditure
as appropriate.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost



Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual cash
flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract and
other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arrangements and loans receivable and
payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a
financing income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effective
interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where business model objectives are
met by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where the cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest. Movements in the fair value of financial assets in this category are recognised as gains or
losses in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses. On derecognition, cumulative gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to income and expenditure, except
where the Trust elected to measure an equity instrument in this category on initial recognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through income and expenditure

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are those that are not otherwise measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. This category also includes financial assets and liabilities
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term (held for trading) and derivatives. Derivatives which are
embedded in other contracts, but which are separable from the host contract are measured within this category.
Movements in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities in this category are recognised as gains or losses in the
Statement of Comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract
assets or assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Trust recognises an allowance for
expected credit losses.

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables, measuring expected losses as at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets,
the loss allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1) and
subsequently at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed for the financial asset
significantly increases (stage 2).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the
reporting date are measured as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and reduce the
net carrying value of the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

Derecognition



Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.



Note 1.13 Leases

A lease is a contract or part of a contract that conveys the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. An adaptation of the relevant accounting standard by HM Treasury for the public sector means that for
NHS bodies, this includes lease-like arrangements with other public sector entities that do not take the legal form of a
contract. It also includes peppercorn leases where consideration paid is nil or nominal (significantly below market value)
but in all other respects meet the definition of a lease. The Trust does not apply lease accounting to new contracts for
the use of intangible assets.

The Trust determines the term of the lease term with reference to the non-cancellable period and any options to extend
or terminate the lease which the Trust is reasonably certain to exercise.

The Trust as a lessee

Recognition and initial measurement

At the commencement date of the lease, being when the asset is made available for use, the Trust recognises a right of
use asset and a lease liability.

The right of use asset is recognised at cost comprising the lease liability, any lease payments made before or at
commencement, any direct costs incurred by the lessee, less any cash lease incentives received. It also includes any
estimate of costs to be incurred restoring the site or underlying asset on completion of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments discounted at the interest rate
implicit in the lease. Lease payments includes fixed lease payments, variable lease payments dependent on an index or
rate and amounts payable under residual value guarantees. It also includes amounts payable for purchase options and
termination penalties where these options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Where an implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Trust’s incremental borrowing rate is applied. This rate is
determined by HM Treasury annually for each calendar year. A nominal rate of 0.95% applied to new leases
commencing in 2022 and 3.51% to new leases commencing in 2023.

The Trust does not apply the above recognition requirements to leases with a term of 12 months or less or to leases
where the value of the underlying asset is below £5,000, excluding any irrecoverable VAT. Lease payments associated
with these leases are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Irrecoverable VAT on lease payments is
expensed as it falls due.

Subsequent measurement

As required by a HM Treasury interpretation of the accounting standard for the public sector, the Trust employs a
revaluation model for subsequent measurement of right of use assets, unless the cost model is considered to be an
appropriate proxy for current value in existing use or fair value, in line with the accounting policy for owned assets.
Where consideration exchanged is identified as significantly below market value, the cost model is not considered to be
an appropriate proxy for the value of the right of use asset.

The Trust subsequently measures the lease liability by increasing the carrying amount for interest arising which is also
charged to expenditure as a finance cost and reducing the carrying amount for lease payments made. The liability is
also remeasured for changes in assessments impacting the lease term, lease modifications or to reflect actual changes
in lease payments. Such remeasurements are also reflected in the cost of the right of use asset. Where there is a
change in the lease term or option to purchase the underlying asset, an updated discount rate is applied to the
remaining lease payments.

The Trust as a lessor

The Trust assesses each of its leases and classifies them as either a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases are
classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Trust is an intermediate lessor, classification of the sublease is determined with reference to the right of use
asset arising from the headlease.

Finance leases



Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases

Income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the term of the
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial application of IFRS 16

IFRS 16 Leases as adapted and interpreted for the public sector by HM Treasury has been applied to these financial
statements with an initial application date of 1 April 2022. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease and other interpretations.

The standard has been applied using a modified retrospective approach with the cumulative impact recognised in the
income and expenditure reserve on 1 April 2022. Upon initial application, the provisions of IFRS 16 have only been
applied to existing contracts where they were previously deemed to be a lease or contain a lease under IAS 17 and
IFRIC 4. Where existing contracts were previously assessed not to be or contain a lease, these assessments have not
been revisited.

The Trust as lessee

For continuing leases previously classified as operating leases, a lease liability was established on 1 April 2022 equal to
the present value of future lease payments discounted at the Trust’s incremental borrowing rate of 0.95%. A right of use
asset was created equal to the lease liability. Hindsight has been used in determining the lease term where lease
arrangements contain options for extension or earlier termination.

No adjustments have been made on initial application in respect of leases with a remaining term of 12 months or less
from 1 April 2022 or for leases where the underlying assets has a value below £5,000. No adjustments have been made
in respect of leases previously classified as finance leases.

The Trust as lessor

Leases of owned assets where the Trust is lessor were unaffected by initial application of IFRS 16.

2021/22 comparatives

Comparatives for leasing transactions in these accounts have not been restated on an IFRS 16 basis. Under IAS 17 the
classification of leases as operating or finance leases still applicable to lessors under IFRS 16 also applied to lessees.
In 2021/22 lease payments made by the Trust in respect of leases previously classified as operating leases were
charged to expenditure on a straight line basis.



Note 1.14 Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount;
for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the
resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-
adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury's discount rates effective from 31 March 2023:

Nominal rate Prior year rate
Short-term Up to 5 years 3.27% 0.47%
Medium-term After 5 years up to 10 years 3.20% 0.70%
Long-term After 10 years up to 40 years 3.51% 0.95%
Very long-term Exceeding 40 years 3.00% 0.66%

HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows are
therefore adjusted for the impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rates are
set by HM Treasury, effective from 31 March 2023:

Inflation rate Prior year rate
Year 1 7.40% 4.00%
Year 2 0.60% 2.60%
Into perpetuity 2.00% 2.00%

Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of 1.70% in
real terms (prior year: minus 1.30%).

Clinical negligence costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution,
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all
clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions
carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 34 but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts.

Non-clinical risk pooling

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk
pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in
respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.

Note 1.15 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more
future events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 35 where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 35, unless the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

* possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

* present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.



Note 1.16 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at
the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial
instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.

The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is recorded at the
value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the
financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, with certain
additions and deductions as defined by the Department of Health and Social Care.

This policy is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhs-Trusts-
and-foundation-Trusts.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit
of the annual accounts.

Note 1.17 Value added tax

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax
on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are
stated net of VAT.

Note 1.18 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties in which the Trust has no beneficial interest (such as money held on behalf of patients)
are not recognised in the accounts. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with
the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM.

Note 1.19 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the
health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore
subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the
relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis.

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on
an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.



Note 1.20 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations
No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2022/23.

Note 1.21 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in
the process of applying the Trust accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Trust's land and building assets are valued on the basis explained in Note 16 to the accounts. Cushman &
Wakefield(C&W),our independent valuer, provided the Trust with a valuation of land and building assets (estimated fair
value and remaining useful life). The valuation, based on estimates provided by a suitably qualified professional in
accordance with HM Treasury guidance, leads to revaluation adjustments. Future revaluations of the Trust's property
may result in further changes to the carrying values of non-current assets.

Provisions

Provisions have been made for legal and constructive obligations of uncertain timing or amount as at the reporting
date. These are based on estimates using relevant and reliable information as is available at the time the accounts are
prepared. These provisions are estimates of the actual costs of future cashflows and are dependent on future events.
Any difference between expectations and the actual future liability will be accounted for in the period when such
determination is made. The carrying amounts and basis of the Trust's provisions are detailed in Note 34 to the
Accounts.

Note 1.22 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year:

In the application of the Trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates, and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually
reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. We also refer to the following financial statement disclosure notes where further detail is provided
on individual balances containing areas of judgement:

The following are estimation uncertainties which could lead to material misstatement:
- Notes 3: Revenue.

- Note 18: Provisions for credit notes and impairment of receivables.

- Note 20: Accruals.

The following are estimation uncertainties which could potentially give rise to material misstatement:
- Note 14 Property, plant & equipment.
- Note 25: Provisions.



The values in the valuer’s report have been used to inform the measurement of property assets at valuation in these
financial statements. The valuer exercises professional judgement in providing the valuation and it remains the best
information available to the Trust. However, the valuer uses informed assumptions regarding obsolescence, rebuild
rates and the area of the sites required to accommodate modern equivalent assets with the same service potential
which could change and have a material impact upon the valuation.

A reduction in the estimated values would result in reductions to the Revaluation Reserve and / or a loss recorded as
appropriate in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

A material addition to the provision was made during the 2020/21 financial year, in respect of implications arising from
the collapse of Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL).

The collapse of WFL meant that the main building transferred back into the ownership of the Trust, whereby the Trust
is now responsible for the maintenance of the building, including the cost of major fire safety refurbishments for which
WEFL are being pursued under the terms of a 30 year contract.

As a result of this dispute with WFL, legal proceedings have commenced. There will be a significant cost of rectifying
building deficiencies not appropriately addressed by WFL.

In the judgement of the Trust, a provision remains appropriate as at 31 March 2023 to cover relevant potential
liabilities. The Trust has reviewed the level at which the provision is held as at 31st March 2023, and adjusted it
according to the most up to date legal, and other professional advice available.

The legal position is not concluded and the full costs of remediation are not yet known. The provision is based on the
Trust's best estimate of the remediation costs.

Any accounting provision thus made is intended to reflect the material uncertainty around the situation which existed as
at 31 March 2023, and should not be taken as admission of any liability on the part of the Trust.



Note 2 Operating Segments

The Trust's chief decision maker has been defined as the Trust Board, and is responsible for allocating resources
across the Trust. The Trust's operational management structure is delivered though five clinical integrated care service
units (ICSU's) covering acute and community services across London.

In line with IFRS 8, the Trust has determined that these ICSU's are classed as a single segment with the agreed
purpose of providing healthcare services.









Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities
All income from patient care activities relates to contract income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.3

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000

Income from commissioners under API contracts* 265,617 227,171
High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs) 11,324 9,641
Other NHS clinical income 3,210 -
Services delivered under a mental health collaborative 2,747 2,185
Income from commissioners under API contracts* 76,041 75,641
Income from other sources (e.g. local authorities) 12,080 11,440
Private patient income 60 58
Elective recovery fund 7,891 2,494
Additional pension contribution central funding** 10,861 10,181
Agenda for change pay award central funding *** 8,495 -
Other clinical income 1,865 40,782
Total income from activities 400,191 379,593

*Aligned payment and incentive contracts are the main form of contracting between NHS providers and their
commissioners. More information can be found in the 2022/23 National Tariff payments system documents.

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/past-national-tariffs-documents-and-policies/

**The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge)
from 1 April 2019. Since 2019/20, NHS providers have continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the
additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and related funding have been
recognised in these accounts.

***|n March 2023 the government announced an additional pay offer for 2022/23, in addition to the pay award earlier in
the year. Additional funding was made available by NHS England for implementing this pay offer for 2022/23 and the
income and expenditure has been included in these accounts as guided by the Department of Health and Social Care
and NHS England. In May 2023 the government confirmed this offer will be implemented as a further pay award in
respect of 2022/23 based on individuals in employment at 31 March 2023.

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2022/23 2021/22
Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000
NHS England 54,063 40,750
Clinical commissioning groups 76,026 320,371
Integrated care boards 250,140
Other NHS providers 5,957 5,230
Local authorities 12,080 11,440
Non-NHS: private patients 60 58
Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 488 374
Injury cost recovery scheme 532 354
Non NHS: other 845 1,016
Total income from activities 400,191 379,593
Of which:
Related to continuing operations 400,191 379,593

Related to discontinued operations - -


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/past-national-tariffs-documents-and-policies/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/past-national-tariffs-documents-and-policies/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/past-national-tariffs-documents-and-policies/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/past-national-tariffs-documents-and-policies/

Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

Income recognised this year

Cash payments received in-year

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables
Amounts written off in-year

Note 4 Other operating income

Research and development

Education and training

Non-patient care services to other bodies
Reimbursement and top up funding

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Revenue from operating leases

Other income

Total other operating income

Of which:
Related to continuing operations
Related to discontinued operations

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
488 374
147 117
- 445
962 -
2022/23 2021/22
Contract Non-contract Contract Non-contract
income income Total income income Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
443 - 443 595 - 595
17,205 - 17,205 15,774 - 15,774
7,275 7,275 6,770 6,770
1,204 1,204 1,468 1,468
694 694 762 762
874 874 849 849
3,671 - 3,671 3,137 - 3,137
29,798 1,568 31,366 27,744 1,611 29,355
31,366 29,355



Note 5 Operating leases - Whittington Health NHS Trust as lessor

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where Whittington Health NHS Trust is the lessor.

The Trust has applied IFRS 16 to account for lease arrangements from 1 April 2022 without restatement of

comparatives. Comparative disclosures in this note are presented on an IAS 17 basis. This includes a different maturity

analysis of future minimum lease receipts under IAS 17 compared to IFRS 16.

Note 5.1 Operating lease income

Lease receipts recognised as income in year:
Minimum lease receipts
Variable lease receipts / contingent rents
Total in-year operating lease income

Note 5.2 Future lease receipts

Future minimum lease receipts due at 31 March 2023:

- not later than one year
- later than one year and not later than two years
- later than two years and not later than three years
- later than three years and not later than four years
- later than four years and not later than five years
- later than five years

Total

Future minimum lease receipts due at 31 March 2022:

- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Total

2022/23
£000

874

2021/22
£000

849

874

849

31 March
2023

£000

874
801
801
801
801
4,005
8,083

31 March
2022
£000

838
3,008
3,409
7,255



Note 6.1 Operating expenses

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies
Purchase of social care

Staff and executive directors costs

Remuneration of non-executive directors

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs)
Supplies and services - general

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs)

Inventories written down
Consultancy costs
Establishment
Premises
Transport (including patient travel)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and right of use assets
Amortisation on intangible assets
Net impairments
Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets
Movement in credit loss allowance: all other receivables and investments
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions
Change in provisions discount rate(s)
Fees payable to the external auditor
audit services- statutory audit
other auditor remuneration (external auditor only)
Internal audit costs
Clinical negligence
Legal fees
Insurance
Research and development
Education and training
Expenditure on short term leases (current year only)
Operating lease expenditure (comparative only)
Redundancy
Car parking & security
Other
Total
Of which:
Related to continuing operations
Related to discontinued operations

* restated

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
1,118 2,717
311,944 279,906
126 141
28,233 27,631
6,786 6,112
15,242 15,225
1,004 144
8,024 10,967
23,800 24,710 *
2,544 2,093
14,482 9,063
2,661 2,309
1,565 295
(763) 1,912
- (1,370)
(10,101) 3,871 *
136 82
88 86
9,902 9,951
513 458
254 234
554 586
1,645 1,505
235
- 3,639
- 18
- 41
757 405
420,749 402,731
420,749 403,416



Note 6.2 Other auditor remuneration

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:
1. Audit of accounts of any associate of the Trust - -
. Audit-related assurance services - -
. Taxation compliance services - -
. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above - -
. Internal audit services - -
. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5 - -
. Corporate finance transaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above - -
8. Other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above - -

N o 0o WN

Total - -

Note 6.3 Limitation on auditor's liability

The contract, signed during January 2022, states that the liability of KPMG, its members, partners and staff (whether in
contract, negligence or otherwise) shall in no circumstances exceed £0.5m (2021/22: £0.5m), aside from where the
liability cannot be limited by law. This is in aggregate in respect of all services.

Note 7 Impairment of assets

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:
Changes in market price 1,565 295
Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 1,565 295
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 5,936 220

Total net impairments 7,501 515




Note 8 Employee benefits

Salaries and wages

Social security costs

Apprenticeship levy

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions

Pension cost - other

Termination benefits

Temporary staff (including agency)
Total gross staff costs

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff
Total staff costs
Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets

Note 8.1 Retirements due to ill-health

2022/23 2021/22
Total Total
£000 £000

234,672 210,144
23,887 21,146
1,103 1,155
35,411 33,485
14 63

15 -
17,506 14,820
312,608 280,813
312,608 280,813
664 907

During 2022/23 there were 2 early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (4 in the year ended 31
March 2022). The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £112k (£391k in 2021/22).

These estimated costs are calculated on an average basis and will be borne by the NHS Pension Scheme.



Note 9 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March
2023, is based on valuation data as at 31 March 2022, updated to 31 March 2023 with summary global member and
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and
employers.

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results
of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 at 20.6% of pensionable pay.

The actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2020 is currently underway and will set the new employer contribution rate due to
be implemented from April 2024.



Note 10 Finance income
Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

2022/23 2021/22

£000 £000

Interest on bank accounts 1,922 41
Total finance income 1,922 41

Note 11.1 Finance expenditure

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or asset financing.

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
Interest expense:
Interest on loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 51 54
Interest on lease obligations 894 483
Interest on late payment of commercial debt 3 3
Total interest expense 948 540
Unwinding of discount on provisions 1,416 -
Other finance costs - -
Total finance costs 2,364 540
Note 11.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015
2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
Total liability accruing in year under this legislation as a result of late payments - -
Amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made under this
legislation 3 3
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation - -
Note 12 Other gains / (losses)
2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
Gains on disposal of assets - 15
Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets - 15
Gains / (losses) on foreign exchange - -
Fair value gains / (losses) on investment properties - -
Fair value gains / (losses) on financial assets / investments - -
Fair value gains / (losses) on financial liabilities - -
Recycling gains / (losses) on disposal of financial assets mandated as fair value
through OCI - -
Gains/(losses) on remeasurement of finance lease receivables (lessor) - -
Gains/(losses) on termination of finance leases (lessor) - -
Other gains / (losses) - -
Total other gains / (losses) - 15




Note 13.1 Intangible assets - 2022/23

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2022 - brought forward

IFRS 16 implementation - reclassification of existing
finance leased assets to right of use assets

Transfers by absorption
Additions
Impairments
Reversals of impairments
Revaluations
Reclassifications
Transfers to / from assets held for sale
Disposals / derecognition
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2023

Amortisation at 1 April 2022 - brought forward

IFRS 16 implementation - reclassification of existing
finance leased assets to right of use assets

Transfers by absorption

Provided during the year

Impairments

Reversals of impairments

Revaluations

Reclassifications

Transfers to / from assets held for sale

Disposals / derecognition
Amortisation at 31 March 2023

Net book value at 31 March 2023
Net book value at 1 April 2022

Intangible assets

Software under
licences construction Total
£000 £000 £000
17,164 - 17,164
- 1,347 1,347
1,347 (1,347) -
18,511 - 18,511
7,453 - 7,453
2,661 - 2,661
10,114 - 10,114
8,397 - 8,397
9,711 - 9,711



Note 13.2 Intangible assets - 2021/22

Intangible assets

Software under

licences construction Total
£000 £000 £000

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - as previously
stated 14,925 8 14,933
Prior period adjustments - - -
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - restated 14,925 8 14,933
Transfers by absorption - - -
Additions - 2,231 2,231
Impairments - - -
Reversals of impairments - - -
Revaluations - - -
Reclassifications 2,239 (2,239) -
Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - -
Disposals / derecognition - - -
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2022 17,164 - 17,164
Amortisation at 1 April 2021 - as previously stated 5,144 - 5,144
Prior period adjustments - - -
Amortisation at 1 April 2021 - restated 5,144 - 5,144
Transfers by absorption - - R
Provided during the year 2,309 - 2,309
Impairments - - -
Reversals of impairments - - -
Revaluations - - -
Reclassifications - - -
Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - -
Disposals / derecognition - - -
Amortisation at 31 March 2022 7,453 - 7,453
Net book value at 31 March 2022 9,711 - 9,711
Net book value at 1 April 2021 9,781 8 9,789



Note 14.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2022/23

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2022 - brought forward
Additions
Impairments
Revaluations
Reclassifications
Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2022 - brought
forward

Provided during the year

Impairments
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2023

Net book value at 31 March 2023
Net book value at 1 April 2022

Buildings

excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
47,283 169,480 20,481 24,176 12,967 281 274,668
- - 25,519 - - - 25,519
- (5,936) - - - - (5,936)
1,300 5,449 - - - - 6,749
(695) 14,608 (15,429) 1,324 192 - -
47,888 183,601 30,571 25,500 13,159 281 301,000
- 13,972 - 9,881 4,433 188 28,474
- 4,719 - 3,504 2,087 37 10,347
- 1,565 - - - - 1,565
- 20,256 - 13,385 6,520 225 40,386
47,888 163,345 30,571 12,115 6,639 56 260,614
47,283 155,508 20,481 14,295 8,534 93 246,194



Note 14.2 Property, plant and equipment - 2021/22

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - as previously
stated

Prior period adjustments
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2021 - restated
Transfers by absorption
Additions
Impairments
Revaluations
Reclassifications
Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2022

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2021 - as
previously stated

Prior period adjustments

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2021 - restated

Provided during the year
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2022

Net book value at 31 March 2022
Net book value at 1 April 2021

Buildings

excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
45,474 159,537 7,582 20,986 9,535 259 243,373
45,474 159,537 7,582 20,986 9,535 259 243,373
- - 22,643 855 - - 23,498
- (515) - - - - (515)
1,809 6,503 - - - - 8,312
- 3,955 (9,744) 2,335 3,432 22 -
47,283 169,480 20,481 24,176 12,967 281 274,668
- 9,794 - 6,678 2,789 150 19,411
- 9,794 - 6,678 2,789 150 19,411
- 4,178 - 3,203 1,644 38 9,063
- 13,972 - 9,881 4,433 188 28,474
47,283 155,508 20,481 14,295 8,534 93 246,194
45,474 149,743 7,582 14,308 6,746 109 223,962



Note 14.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 31 March 2023

Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Owned - purchased 47,888 162,547 30,571 11,982 6,639 56 259,683
Owned - donated/granted - 798 - 133 - - 931
Total net book value at 31 March 2023 47,888 163,345 30,571 12,115 6,639 56 260,614
Note 14.4 Property, plant and equipment financing - 31 March 2022
Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Owned - purchased 46,168 151,683 20,481 9,248 8,534 93 236,207
Finance leased 1,115 3,000 - 4,858 - - 8,973
Owned - donated/granted - 825 - 189 - - 1,014
Total net book value at 31 March 2022 47,283 155,508 20,481 14,295 8,534 93 246,194
Note 14.5 Property plant and equipment assets subject to an operating lease (Trust as a lessor) - 31 March 2023
Buildings
excluding Assets under Plant & Information Furniture &
Land dwellings construction machinery technology fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Subject to an operating lease 874 - - - - - 874
Not subject to an operating lease 47,014 163,345 30,571 12,115 6,639 56 259,740
Total net book value at 31 March 2023 47,888 163,345 30,571 12,115 6,639 56 260,614




Note 15 Donations of property, plant and equipment

The Trust received donations of capital assets from Royal Free Hospital originally donated to Royal Free Hospi
the coronavirus pandemic response in 2022/23. This donation was of nil net book value hence does not appeat
section of relevant notes to these Accounts.

Note 16 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

Land, buildings and dwellings were valued in March 2023 by qualified independent valuers Cushman & W akefi
valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis due to the specialised nature of the asset. The RICS Red Bool
property as:

“a property that is rarely, if ever, sold in the market except by way of a sale of the business or entity of which it i
uniqueness arising from its specialised nature and design, its configuration, size, location or otherwise”.

A summary of the Impairments and revaluations with comparatives as shown in the table below -

31 March 2023

£000

Impairments
Taken to Reserves 5,936
Taken to SoCl 1,565

7,501
Revaluations

6,749
Net (Impairment) / Revaluation (752)

Note 17 Leases - Whittington Health NHS Trust as a lessee

This note details information about leases for which the Trust is a lessee.

The Trust has applied IFRS 16 to account for lease arrangements from 1 April 2022 without restatement of con
disclosures in this note are presented on an IAS 17 basis.



tal from DHSC as part of
- on the Donated Assets

eld. The assets were
k defines specialised

s part, due to the

31 March 2022
£000

223
295

518

8,312

7,794

1paratives. Comparative



Note 18 Right of use assets - 2022/23

Of which:
Property leased from
(land and DHSC group
buildings) Total bodies
£000 £000 £000
IFRS 16 implementation - reclassification of existing finance
leased assets from PPE or intangible assets - - -
IFRS 16 implementation - adjustments for existing operating
leases / subleases 38,398 38,398 35,684
Transfers by absorption - - -
Additions 2,182 2,182 -
Remeasurements of the lease liability - - -
Movements in provisions for restoration / removal costs - - -
Impairments - - -
Reversal of impairments - - -
Revaluations - - -
Reclassifications - - -
Disposals / derecognition - - -

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2023 40,580 40,580 35,684

IFRS 16 implementation - reclassification of existing finance
leased assets from PPE or intangible assets - - -

IFRS 16 implementation - adjustments for existing subleases - - -
Transfers by absorption - - -
Provided during the year 4,135 4,135 3,571
Impairments - - -
Reversal of impairments - - -
Revaluations - - -
Reclassifications - - -
Disposals / derecognition - - -

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2023 4,135 4,135 3,571

Net book value at 31 March 2023 36,445 36,445 32,113

Net book value of right of use assets leased from other NHS providers 676
Net book value of right of use assets leased from other DHSC group bodies 31,437



Note 18.1 Reconciliation of the carrying value of lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are included within borrowings in the statement of financial position. A breakdown of borrowings is

disclosed in note 24.1.

Carrying value at 31 March 2022
IFRS 16 implementation - adjustments for existing operating leases
Transfers by absorption
Lease additions
Lease liability remeasurements
Interest charge arising in year
Early terminations
Lease payments (cash outflows)
Other changes
Carrying value at 31 March 2023

2022/23

£000
4,833
38,777

2,182

894

(6,247)

40,439

Lease payments for short term leases, leases of low value underlying assets and variable lease payments not

dependent on an index or rate are recognised in operating expenditure.

These payments are disclosed in Note 6.1. Cash outflows in respect of leases recognised on-SoFP are disclosed in the

reconciliation above.

Note 18.2 Maturity analysis of future lease payments at 31 March 2023

Of which
leased from
DHSC group
Total bodies:
31 March 31 March
2023 2023
£000 £000

Undiscounted future lease payments payable in:
- not later than one year; 2,804 -
- later than one year and not later than five years; 37,635 33,065
- later than five years. - -
Total gross future lease payments 40,439 33,065
Finance charges allocated to future periods - -
Net lease liabilities at 31 March 2023 40,439 33,065

Of which:

Leased from other NHS providers 700
Leased from other DHSC group bodies 32,365



Note 18.3 Maturity analysis of finance lease liabilities at 31 March 2022 (IAS 17 basis)

The following table details the maturity of obligations under leases the Trust previously determined to be finance leases
under IAS 17 at 31 March 2022.

31 March
2022
£000
Undiscounted future lease payments payable in:
- not later than one year; 738
- later than one year and not later than five years; 5,725
- later than five years. 664
Total gross future lease payments 7,127
Finance charges allocated to future periods (2,294)
Net finance lease liabilities at 31 March 2022 11,960
of which payable:
- not later than one year; 216
- later than one year and not later than five years; 4,411
- later than five years. 206

Total of future minimum sublease payments to be received at the reporting date -

Note 18.4 Commitments in respect of operating leases at 31 March 2022 (IAS 17 basis)

This note discloses costs incurred in 2021/22 and commitments as at 31 March 2022 for leases the Trust previously
determined to be operating leases under IAS 17.
2021/22

£000
Operating lease expense

Minimum lease payments 3,639
Contingent rents -
Less sublease payments received -

Total 3,639
31 March
2022
£000

Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year; 3,639
- later than one year and not later than five years; 14,304
- later than five years. 14,574
Total 32,517

Future minimum sublease payments to be received -



Note 18.3 Initial application of IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022

IFRS 16 as adapted and interpreted for the public sector by HM Treasury has been applied to leases in these financial
statements with an initial application date of 1 April 2022.

The standard has been applied using a modified retrospective approach without the restatement of comparatives.
Practical expedients applied by the Trust on initial application are detailed in the leases accounting policy in note 13.

Lease liabilities created for existing operating leases on 1 April 2022 were discounted using the weighted average
incremental borrowing rate determined by HM Treasury as 0.95%.

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2022 to lease liabilities under IFRS 16 as at 1
April 2022

1 April 2022
£000
Operating lease commitments under IAS 17 at 31 March 2022 32,517
Impact of discounting at the incremental borrowing rate
IAS 17 operating lease commitment discounted at incremental borrowing rate 31,067
Less:
Commitments for short term leases (34)
Other adjustments:
Rent increases/(decreases) reflected in the lease liability, not previously reflected in the IAS
17 commitment 2,530
Finance lease liabilities under IAS 17 as at 31 March 2022 4,833
Other adjustments 5,214

Total lease liabilities under IFRS 16 as at 1 April 2022 43,610




Note 18.4 Investments in associates and joint ventures

The Trust is a member of the UCL Health Alliance Limited. The UCL Health Alliance is a provider
alliance comprising 14 members within the NCL Health economy. UCL Health Alliance Limited
(company registration 14534913) was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee on 12th
December 2022. Income of UCL Health Alliance Limited for the 12 months to 31st March 2023 was
£378k with expenditure of £289k.



Note 19 Inventories

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£000 £000

Drugs 942 788
Total inventories 942 788

of which:
Held at fair value less costs to sell -

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £15,936k (2021/22: £17,077k). Write-down of inventories

recognised as expenses for the year were £0k (2021/22: £0k).

In response to the COVID 19 pandemic, the Department of Health and Social Care centrally procured personal
protective equipment and passed these to NHS providers free of charge. During 2022/23 the Trust received £694k of

items purchased by DHSC (2021/22: £762K).

The deemed cost of these inventories was charged directly to expenditure on receipt with the corresponding benefit

recognised in income.



Note 20.1 Receivables

Current
Contract receivables
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets
Allowance for other impaired receivables
Prepayments (non-PFl)
Interest receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables
Total current receivables

Non-current
Contract receivables

Other receivables
Total non-current receivables

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Current
Non-current

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000

24,887 11,605
(3,948) (4,711)
(647) (647)
3,375 3,744
289 -
775 1,611
847 1,239
25,693 12,841
439 316
333 -
772 316
16,581 5,871
333 -



Note 20.2 Allowances for credit losses

Allowances as at 1 April - brought forward
Prior period adjustments
Allowances as at 1 April - restated
Transfers by absorption
New allowances arising
Changes in existing allowances
Reversals of allowances
Utilisation of allowances (write offs)
Changes arising following modification of contractual
cash flows
Foreign exchange and other changes
Allowances as at 31 Mar 2023

2022/23 2021/22
Contract Contract
receivables receivables
and contract All other and contract All other
assets receivables assets receivables
£000 £000 £000 £000
4,711 647 2,799 1,332
4,711 647 2,799 1,332
330 - 1,912 97
- - - (782)
(1,093) - - -
3,948 647 4,711 647




Note 21 Cash and cash equivalents movements

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily

convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2022/23 2021/22
£000 £000
At 1 April 81,416 61,527
Prior period adjustments -
At 1 April (restated) 81,416 61,527
Transfers by absorption - -
Net change in year (8,426) 19,889
At 31 March 72,990 81,416
Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 52 204
Cash with the Government Banking Service 72,938 81,212
Deposits with the National Loan Fund - -
Other current investments - -
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 72,990 81,416
Bank overdrafts (GBS and commercial banks) - -
Drawdown in committed facility - -
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SOCF 72,990 81,416

Note 21.1 Third party assets held by the Trust

Whittington Health NHS Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the Trust on behalf of
patients or other parties and in which the Trust has no beneficial interest. This has been excluded from the cash and

cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£000 £000

Bank balances 7 7
Monies on deposit - -
Total third party assets 7 7




Note 22.1 Trade and other payables

Current
Trade payables
Capital payables
Accruals
Receipts in advance and payments on account
PFI lifecycle replacement received in advance
Social security costs
VAT payables
Other taxes payable
PDC dividend payable
Pension contributions payable
Other payables
Total current trade and other payables

Non-current
Total non-current trade and other payables

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Current
Non-current

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000

13,229 12,933
5,630 5,633
51,165 37,970
3,431 3,217
3,459 3,085
3,703 3,488
161 251
80,778 66,577
5,116 6,853



Note 23 Other liabilities

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
Current
Deferred income: contract liabilities 2,701 1,859
Total other current liabilities 2,701 1,859
Non-current
Total other non-current liabilities - -
Note 24.1 Borrowings
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
Current
Loans from DHSC 116 118
Lease liabilities* 2,804 216
Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts - -
Total current borrowings 2,920 334
Non-current
Loans from DHSC 1,624 1,740
Lease liabilities* 37,635 4,617
Total non-current borrowings 39,259 6,357

* The Trust has applied IFRS 16 to lease arrangements within these accounts from 1 April 2022 without restatement of
comparatives. More information about leases and the impact of this change in accounting policy can be found in note
17.



Note 24.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2022/23

Loans PFl and
from Other Lease LIFT
DHSC loans Liability schemes Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carrying value at 1 April 2022 1,858 - 4,833 - 6,690
Cash movements:
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of
principal (116) - (5,353) - (5,469)
Financing cash flows - payments of interest (53) - (894) - (947)
Non-cash movements:
Impact of implementing IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022 - - 38,777 - 38,777
Additions - - 2,182 - 2,182
Application of effective interest rate 51 - 894 - 945
Carrying value at 31 March 2023 1,740 - 40,439 - 42,178
Note 24.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2021/22
Loans PFl and
from Other Lease LIFT
DHSC loans Liability schemes Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carrying value at 1 April 2021 1,974 - 4,936 - 6,910
Prior period adjustment - - - - -
Carrying value at 1 April 2021 - restated 1,974 - 4,936 - 6,910
Cash movements:
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of
principal (116) - (925) - (1,041)
Financing cash flows - payments of interest (54) - (483) - (537)
Non-cash movements:
Additions - - 855 - 855
Application of effective interest rate 54 - 483 - 537
Other changes - - (33) - (33)
Carrying value at 31 March 2022 1,858 - 4,833 - 6,690




Note 25 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis

At 1 April 2022
Change in the discount rate
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

At 31 March 2023

Expected timing of cash flows:

- not later than one year,;

- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Total

Pensions: Equal Pay
early Pensions: (including
departure injury Re-  Agenda for

costs benefits Legal claims structuring Change) Redundancy Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

634 11 1,322 435 - - 39,925 42,326

- - - - - - (293) (293)

1,145 235 - - - - 1,535 2,915

(185) (29) (25) - - - (8) (247)

- - (1,034) (435) - - (10,920) (12,389)

6 - (27) - - - 1,444 1,423

1,600 217 236 - - - 31,683 33,735

184 29 236 - - - 173 622

1,416 188 - - - - 31,510 33,113

0 0 0 - - - 0 1

1,600 217 236 - - - 31,683 33,735

Principal changes and additions in the financial year are as follows:-The Trust entered into a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) arrangement in 2003 to build and maintain the main
hospital through construction firm Whittington Facilities Ltd (WFL). On the 28th July 2020 WFL filed for administration. The collapse of WFL means that the main building has
transferred back into the ownership of the Trust, whereby the Trust is now responsible for the maintenance of the building, including the cost of major fire safety refurbishments for
which WFL are being pursued under the terms of a 30 year contract. As a result of this dispute with WFL, legal proceedings have commenced. There will be a significant cost of
rectifying building deficiency not appropriately addressed by WFL. This provision has been reviewed and revised in line with the most up to date legal and other professional advice.



Note 25.1 Clinical negligence liabilities

At 31 March 2023, £139,998k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of

Whittington Health NHS Trust (31 March 2022: £153,809Kk).

Note 26 Contingent assets and liabilities

Value of contingent liabilities
NHS Resolution legal claims
Employment tribunal and other employee related litigation
Redundancy
Other
Gross value of contingent liabilities
Amounts recoverable against liabilities
Net value of contingent liabilities
Net value of contingent assets

Contingent Assets

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000

15 -
15 -
15 -
2,046 1,997

The Trust has disclosed a £2m contingent asset in recognition of its available apprenticeship levy fund (21/22 £2m).
This a externally held training fund of monies, to which the Trust contributes on a monthly basis; the Trust applies to
access this funding when appropriate to provide specific training for its employees.

Note 27 Contractual capital commitments

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000

8,426 3,939
8,426 3,939




Note 28 Financial instruments

Note 28.1 Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period
in creating or charging the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. As a result of the continuing service provider
relationship that the Trust has with Integrated Care Board (ICB) and the way the ICB is financed, the Trust is not
exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited
role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards
mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds, and financial assets and liabilities are
generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking
its activities.

The Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust (trading
as East Lancashire Financial Services) in conjuntion with the Finance Department, within the parameters defined
formally within the Trust's Standing Financial Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. The Trust's
treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust's internal auditors as part of a scheduled programme, and also by
executive / non-executive / external audit colleagues as the need arises.

Currency risk

The Trust is principally a domestic UK-based organisation with the majority of transactions, assets and liabilities
originating from the UK and denominated in Sterling. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has
low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

Borrowings are for 1 - 25 year in line with the associated assets, and interest is charged either at the rate set per the
loan agreement, or at the National Loans Fund rate in the absence of such an agreement. The Trust therefore has low
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

The Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing, subject to approval by NHS Improvement & related
bodies. Interest rates are confirmed by DHSC (the lender) at the point borrowing is undertaken.

The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Credit risk

The majority of the Trust's revenue arises from contracts with other public sector bodies, therefore the Trust has low
exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2023 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed
in the Trade & Other Receivables note.

Liquidity risk

The Trust's operating costs are incurred under contracts with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), which are
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained
within its Prudential Borrowing Limit. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.



Note 28.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2023

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Other investments / financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total at 31 March 2023

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2022

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Other investments / financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total at 31 March 2022

Note 28.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Obligations under leases
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts
Other borrowings
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2023

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Obligations under leases
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts
Other borrowings
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2022

Held at
amortised Total
cost book value
£000 £000
21,867 21,867
72,990 72,990
94,857 94,857
Held at
amortised Total
cost book value
£000 £000
6,026 6,026
81,416 81,416
87,442 87,442
Held at
amortised Total
cost book value
£000 £000
1,740 1,740
40,439 40,439
72,727 72,727
114,906 114,906
Held at
amortised Total
cost book value
£000 £000
1,858 1,858
4,833 4,833
51,585 51,585
58,276 58,276




Note 28.4 Maturity of financial liabilities

The following maturity profile of financial liabilities is based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows. This differs to
the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position which are discounted to present value.

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
In one year or less 75,649 52,441
In more than one year but not more than five years 38,103 6,189
In more than five years 1,160 1,940
Total

114,912 60,570




Note 29 Losses and special payments

Losses

Cash losses

Bad debts and claims abandoned
Total losses
Special payments

Ex-gratia payments
Total special payments
Total losses and special payments
Compensation payments received

2022/23 2021/22
Total Total

number of  Total value number of  Total value
cases of cases cases of cases
Number £000 Number £000
4 6 4 1
263 962 - -
267 968 4 1
2 6 1 211
2 6 1 211
269 974 5 212




Note 30 Related parties

During the year no Trust Board members or members of key management staff, or parties related 1
transactions with the Trust.

The Department of Health & Social Care (DHSC) is considered a related party. During the year the
material transactions with the Department and with other entities for which the Department is the pare
the net result of the material transactions within the DHSC group.

The Trust has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Whittington Pharmacy CIC and Whittington Charity. Ne
these accounts. A number of Whittington Health board members have a related party within these sub:

Income (£000s) Expenditure

(E000s)

NHS North Central London ICB 238,048 250
NHS North Central London CCG 72,800 0
NHS England 46,077 35
Health Education England 15,765 0
NHS North East London ICB 6,291 4
Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust 4,276 2,295
East London NHS Foundation Trust 2,909 0
NHS North West London ICB 2,596 0
University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 2,069 3,697
NHS North East London CCG 1,971 0
North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust 1,206 65
NHS North West London CCG (Y05) 843 0
Moorfields Eye Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 828 1,288
Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust 826 0

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments an
bodies. Most of the material transactions have been with:

Income (£000s) Expenditure

(£000s)

Islington London Borough Council 7,520 520
Hackney London Borough Council 1,548 0
Haringey London Borough Council 860 0
NHS Blood & Transplant 0 2,544

Note 31 Prior period adjustments
No adjustments have been made to prior period audited figures.

Note 32 Events after the reporting date
No events after the reporting date of 31 March 2023 have been recorded.
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Note 33 Better Payment Practice code

2022/23 2022/23 2021/22 2021/22
Non-NHS Payables Number £000 Number £000
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 65,671 206,804 61,110 178,065
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 60,988 186,089 56,317 166,847
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within
target 92.9% 90.0% 92.2% 93.7%
NHS Payables
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 3,766 19,968 4,189 19,720
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 2,953 14,541 2,874 12,274
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 78.4% 72.8% 68.6% 62.2%

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30
days of receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later.

Note 34 External financing limit
The Trust is given an external financing limit against which it is permitted to underspend

2022/23 2021/22

£000 £000

Cash flow financing 15,595 (13,268)

External financing requirement 15,595 (13,268)

External financing limit (EFL) 15,595 (13,268)

Under / (over) spend against EFL - -

Note 35 Capital Resource Limit

2022/23 2021/22

£000 £000

Gross capital expenditure 29,048 25,729

Charge against Capital Resource Limit 29,048 25,729

Capital Resource Limit 29,048 25,790

Under / (over) spend against CRL - 61
Note 36 Breakeven duty financial performance

2022/23

£000

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) (control total basis) 6,638

Remove impairments scoring to Departmental Expenditure Limit -

Add back non-cash element of On-SoFP pension scheme charges -

IFRIC 12 breakeven adjustment -

Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / (deficit) 6,638



Note 37 Breakeven duty rolling assessment

Breakeven duty in-year financial performance

Breakeven duty cumulative position

Operating income

Cumulative breakeven position as a percentage of operating
income

Breakeven duty in-year financial performance
Breakeven duty cumulative position
Operating income

Cumulative breakeven position as a percentage of operating
income

2008/09
£000

3,971

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
139 508 1,120 3,614 1,165 (7,342)
4,110 4,618 5,738 9,352 10,517 3,175
176,853 186,300 278,212 281,343 297,397 295,007
2.3% 2.5% 2.1% 3.3% 3.5% 1.1%
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(3,670) 6,158 29,362 1,568 2,370 511
(15,283) (9,126) 20,237 21,805 24,175 24,686
309,255 323,394 348,646 350,183 395,340 408,948
(4.9%) (2.8%) 5.8% 6.2% 6.1% 6.0%




2015/16

£000
(14,788)
(11,613)

294,211

(3.9%)

2022/23

£000
6,638
31,324

431,557

7.3%



Staff costs

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Apprenticeship levy
Employer's contributions to NHS pension scheme
Pension cost - other
Termination benefits
Temporary staff
Total gross staff costs
Recoveries in respect of seconded staff

Total staff costs

Of which
Costs capitalised as part of assets

Average number of employees (WTE basis)

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Total average numbers
Of which:

Number of employees (WTE) engaged on capital
projects

2022/23 2021/22

Permanent Other Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
209,312 25,360 234,672 210,144
23,887 - 23,887 21,146
1,103 - 1,103 1,155
35,411 - 35,411 33,485
- 14 14 63

- 15 15 -

- 17,506 17,506 14,820
269,713 42,895 312,608 280,813
269,713 42,895 312,608 280,813
471 193 664 907
2022/23 2021/22

Permanent Other Total Total
Number Number Number Number
492 61 553 534
1,032 249 1,281 1,219
643 154 797 792
1,081 246 1,327 1,303
809 119 928 844
4,057 829 4,886 4,692

7 9 16 14



Reporting of compensation schemes - exit packages 2022/23

Number of Total
Number of other number of
compulsory departures exit
redundancies agreed packages
Number Number Number

Exit package cost band (including any special payment element)
<£10,000 - - -
£10,000 - £25,000 1 - 1
£25,001 - 50,000 - - -
£50,001 - £100,000 - - -
£100,001 - £150,000 - - -
£150,001 - £200,000 - - -
>£200,000 - - -
Total number of exit packages by type 1 - 1
Total cost (£) £15,000 £0 £15,000

Reporting of compensation schemes - exit packages 2021/22

Number of Total
Number of other number of
compulsory departures exit
redundancies agreed packages
Number Number Number

Exit package cost band (including any special payment element)
<£10,000 - 5 5
£10,000 - £25,000 - 3 3
£25,001 - 50,000 - - -
£50,001 - £100,000 - - -
£100,001 - £150,000 - - -
£150,001 - £200,000 - - -
>£200,000 - - -
Total number of exit packages by type - 8 8

Total resource cost (£) £0 £64,000 £64,000



Exit packages: other (non-compulsory) departure payments

2022/23 2021/22
Total Total
Payments value of Payments value of
agreed agreements agreed  agreements
Number £000 Number £000
Voluntary redundancies including early retirement
contractual costs - - - -
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs - - - -
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service
contractual costs - - - -
Contractual payments in lieu of notice - - 8 64
Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court
orders - - - -
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval - - - -
Total - - 8 64

Of which:
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Our ambition

Our ambition is to become a role model for sustainability within the NHS.

To meet our ambition, we have a lot of work to do in order to catch up with and . . . . .

exceed the progress that has been made across other Trusts who have given
ZERO GOOD HEALTH QUALITY GENDER

. . : N -
dedicated consideration to sustainability in recent years. s s viteoyL LM ki EQUALITY
SUSTAINABLE

However, since arriving here in June last year, | sense and share the enthusiasm of ~ DeveLopment (“ .
our staff who wish to make a meaningful difference in the fight against climate G4:ALS M*’iw ' e |!!| '

change.

This Green Plan has been developed collectively by harnessing that enthusiasm B
T ; ; o ahili . CLEAN WATER : DABLE ANI DECENT WORK AND INDUSTRY, INNOVATION REDUCED ‘] SUSTAINABLE GITIES

and marks the vital first step in progressing our sustainability ambitions. AND SANITATION | { ENER ECONOMIC GROWTH prsgeil il | INEQUALITIES AND COMMUNITIES

To reach our goals will require not only technological changes but also a shift in > /\/‘ A

organisational and individual mindset and behaviour that ensures we deliver our » ‘ ' d =) & é_

services in the most sustainable way possible. a I v n X

I am both eager and excited to lead this culture shift to bring about a healthier 12 RESPONSIBLE 1 . 1 4 LIFE 1 5 LIFE 16 PEACE, JUSTICE 17 PARTNERSHIPS
environment for our staff, patients and the communities we serve. CONSUMPTION ACTION BELOW WATER ON LAND AND STRONG FOR THE GOALS

AND PRODUCTION INSTITUTIONS

(14
-
&

=, K
e~
l . —

0 @ o d

Helen Brown
Chief Executive,
Net Zero Lead
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Who we are and what we do

Whittington Health is an integrated care provider that delivers community and hospital
services to over 500,000 people in Haringey and Islington, and the rest of North Central
London. In its role as an acute provider with 250 beds, we primarily deliver secondary care,
with 85% of our beds occupied by nonelective activity, however the Trust also has strengths
in certain specialties such as thalassaemia services. In addition, we deliver community
services from over 30 locations in Islington and Haringey, with over 150,000 referrals in 2022
to services including musculoskeletal, district nursing, health visiting, and community
rehabilitation. The Trust prides itself on having close links to the community, employing 53%
from within NCL, and having links with UCL medical school and strengths in education and
training.

The Whittington Hospital and associated community site consumes a significant quantity of
natural resources. The estate’s combined annual utility bill is more than £2.8m p.a. In
addition to this, the estate produces over 600 tonnes of waste each year. As a result, the
Trust has a significant carbon footprint with effects impacting at both a local and global
scale.

The Whittington Health Trust Green Plan is intended to consolidate and summarise the
Trust’s recent and future approach to sustainability into a single action focused document.

Our Green Plan outlines the national and local context of sustainability within the healthcare
sector, discusses how sustainability aligns with our organisational vision and details how we
intend to embed sustainability across our organisation.

The aims of the Green Plan are:

» Provide an overview of sustainability work currently being undertaken throughout the
organisation

» Present the results from our most recent benchmarking exercise

» Outline future plans and key actions to reduce the Trust’'s environmental impact and
become a more sustainable organisation

Leasehold

Freehold

Local Improvement
Finance Trust

Whittington Hospital

9

Figure 1: Whittington Health NHS Trust site locations
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Our vision

We have an excellent reputation for being innovative, responsive and flexible to the
changing clinical needs of the local population and for leading the way in the provision of
integrated community and hospital services. We are treating more patients than ever
before and are dedicated to improving services to deliver the best care for our patients,
with a clear focus on integrating care for women, children, and the adult frail.

To deliver our mission of ‘helping local people live longer healthier lives’ we have four
key strategic objectives for 2023:

» Deliver outstanding, safe, compassionate care in partnership with patients
* Empower, support and develop an engaged staff community

* Integrate care with partners and promote health and wellbeing

» Transform and deliver innovative, financially sustainable services

Our Trust recognises the critical importance of the impacts of climate change on both the
natural environment and the wider aspects of public health and wellbeing.

By continuously improving and ultimately embedding sustainable development, we will
minimise our own contribution to the climate emergency and support our mission to help
local people live longer, healthier lives.

Our mission:
Helping local people live longer, healthier lives

Our vision:
Lead the way in the provision of excellent, integrated
community and hospital services
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Drivers for change

The Trust are not alone in its sustainability ambitions and

further drivers for this Green Plan exist across an
international, national and regional level.

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Figure 2: Whittington Health NHS Trust’s drivers for change

bdd

&
BE

International Drivers

The 2015 Paris Agreement- limiting global
warming to well below 2°C and to pursue efforts
to limit it to 1.5°C

United Nations (UN) Sustainable Development
Goals

Inter-governmental panel on climate change
(IPCC) ARG 2021

World Health Organisation (WHO) toward
environmentally sustainable health systems in
Europe 2016

National Drivers

UK Gov Climate Change Act 2008 (2050 Target
Amendment) Order 2019 legally commits UK to
net zero carbon by 2050

DEFRA Government buying standards for
sustainable procurement

Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012

National Policy and Planning Framework
Procurement Policy Note 06/21: Taking account
of Carbon Reduction Plans in the procurement of
major government contracts

Healthcare

Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National Health Service
NHS Long Term Plan 2019

NHS Net Zero Supplier Framework

National Policy and Planning Framework 2012
Adaptation Report for the Healthcare System
2015
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A net zero NHS

In October 2020, the NHS became the first health system in the world
to commit to achieving net zero emissions. In July 2022, the NHS in
England became the first health system to embed net zero into
legislation, through the Health and Care Act 2022.

The ‘Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National Health Service’ report set out two
clear and feasible targets for the NHS net zero commitment:

& »

Net Zero Carbon Net Zero Plus
80% by 2032 80% by 2039
100% by 2040 100% by 2045

+ for the emissions we control directly (the NHS Carbon Footprint),
net zero by 2040, with an ambition to reach an 80% reduction by
2028 to 2032;

» for the emissions we can influence (our NHS Carbon Footprint
Plus), net zero by 2045, with an ambition to reach an 80% reduction
by 2036 to 2039.

81 . W o) . W co. Wcrc lerc e,

SCOPE 1 .
DRECT ¢ - )PE 2 SCOPE.3

INDIRECT
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MEDICAL
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I- DEVICES %
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[ﬂ"ﬁh i MEDICINES
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ﬂ oyl i =
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ELECTRICITY
B
BUIC TRARGHORT oo CATERING
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ﬁ' SERVICES
d

WASTE
- é y -
NHS FLEET & CONSTRUCTION ﬂ = a

LEASED VEHICLES : WATER
MANUFACTURING STAFF

METERED DOSE PRODUCTS, CHEMICALS, GASES COMMUTING
INHALERS

COMMISSIONED HEALTH
SERVICES OUTSIDE NHS

NHS CARBON NHS CARBON
FOOTPRINT FOOTPRINT PLUS

Figure 3: Greenhouse Gas Protocol scopes in the context of the NHS from the ‘Delivering a 7
‘Net Zero’ National Health Service’ report
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Progress to date

80% of vital signs and In March 2023 we planted We have completely LED lighting has been

inpatient notes are now | 200 tree saps to revitalise | rémoved the use of the  rolled out across 7
environmentally

recorded electronically green spaces in our : community sites as well as
T community. harmful anaesthetic Whittington Hospital.
- ﬁ gas Desflurane.

o : S This h lted | |
Whittington Patient Portal ' These will capture 5,000 S 11aS [ESH ted '% Z”znua
gives access to letters kg of CO, per year when A carbon savings of

and appointments online. fully grown. tonnes of Co.e O

ﬁ 100% of all patient We have a reusable bin
system for sharps in place
- (ECOIS U IS £ 95% of our fleet has been
years are now across our Emergency -
digitalised, with Department to reduce our | ElEcirified

returning patients Clinical Waste volumei& 16 EV charging

Overall printing has been

reduced by 24% since  (digitalised on demand. points have been
2020 installed on our
sites
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NHS Carbon Footprint vs Footprint Plus

Table 1 shows the breakdown of our emissions baseline by our NHS Carbon
Footprint emissions and our NHS Carbon Footprint Plus emissions in 2019/2020.

Carbon Footprint: approximately 22% of our total emissions are tied to carbon % of Respective

’ ) S ) - Scope Emissions Category Emissions (tCO.e) )
footprint categories. Building energy is responsible for 69% of these and 15% of our Footprint
total emissions footprint. Transitioning away from the use of fossil fuels as well as Building energy 7,394 15.2%
utilising purchased or self-generated renewable electricity as part of our estate
redevelopment plans is therefore fundamental to achieving a net zero carbon footprint Waste 431 0.9%
and represents an important opportunity in the medium term. NHS Carbon Water 116 0.2%
Carbon Footprint Plus: most of our carbon emissions are tied to NHS Carbon Footprint Anaesthetic gases 1,468 3.0%
Footprint Plus emissions categories. The largest proportion of these emissions Inhalers 100 0.2%
comes from our procurement and supply chain which accounts for 32% of our NHS .

Carbon Footprint Plus emissions and 25% of our total carbon footprint. Medicines Business travel and fleet 1,247 2.6%
and chemicals as well as medical equipment are also noticeably high emissions Staff commuting 3,085 6.4%
categories. We will identify opportunities to minimise the associated emissions tied to Patient travel 2,006 4.1%
these categories through increasingly sustainable procurement methods and the Visitor travel 454 0.9%
deployment of our reduce, reuse, recycle scheme.

. : . . . Medicines and chemicals 9,768 20.1%
Cumulatively, travel and transport including business travel, staff commuting and NHS Carbon . .
patient and visitor travel are responsible for a total of 14% of our current emissions T Medical equipment 7,057 14.5%
footprint. To address this, we plan on developing a Trust-wide Green Travel Plan in Non-medical equipment 3,187 6.6%
order to articulate a clear pathway to reduce the emissions footprint tied to our travel Other supply chain 12,208 o5 1%

and transport.
Commissioned health services

This baseline has been provided to us by NHSE to estimate our contribution to the _ 39 0.1%
NHS Carbon Footprint Plus and is a useful departure point to kickstart our outside NHS
sustainability journey. However, to become an exemplar environmentally sustainable Total 48,560 100%

Trust, will require us to have a more detailed oversight of our carbon emissions. Over
the upcoming year we will therefore look to generate a more detailed carbon footprint ~ Table 1: Whittington Health Carbon Baseline for 2019/20

using our own data collection. This will allow us to shape targets and monitor the

progress of our proposed actions. 9
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NHS Carbon Footprint vs Footprint Plus

Projections to zero

Figure 4 and 5 below provides a trajectory to reach net zero carbon across our NHS Carbon Footprint and our NHS Carbon Footprint Plus from our 2019/20 emissions
baseline. The Trust has considered opportunities both across its NHS Carbon Footprint and NHS Carbon Footprint Plus, aligned with the Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National
Health Service’ report — we have outlined these pathways across the next pages. We will continue to consider the emissions reduction impact of additional Trust specific
projects and measure progress against our current pathways. This will support us to revise the programme if there are opportunities to make the actions more ambitious or
if progress is falling behind expectation.

12 i 60
Business travel and fleet mmmm Commissioned health services
outside NHS
10 Inhalers 50 . Other supply chain
8 I _ 10 m Mon-medical equipment
"~ 5 ktCO,e reduction by mmmmm Anaesthetic gases
o 2028-2032 (80% target) o) : :
3 ~ mmmmm \edical equipment
g ° = Water 8 30
= £ 35 ktCO,e reduction by
2036-2039 (80% target) mmmm \ledicines and chemicals
4
m— \\/aste 20
. mmmmm Personal fravel
2 =
mmmm Building energy mmmm [|HS Carbon Footprint
D '.h “‘-
- 0 RanlRTEIEE Indicative pathway to Carbon
201920 2028-2032 2040 e Indicative pathway to Carbon ve p Y
Footprint targets 201920 2036-2039 2045 Footprint Plus targets
Figure 4: NHS Carbon Footprint pathway to net zero Figure 5: NHS Carbon Footprint Plus pathway to net zero
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What our staff think

In March 2023, we asked our staff to complete our first sustainability survey. We asked for feedback on how the Trust is performing regarding sustainability and for their
ideas on how we could become greener. The survey results reflect the lack of resource and time we have given sustainability to date, however the optimism and appetite
for change is clear. We will repeat this survey on a regular basis as one measure of our progress over time.

Medical

12% Our staff agree that

Nursing
250 216 staff from across our

acute and community e -

services provided @ Sustainability training would be helpful
responses to our staff
survey

Allied Health
Professional
(AHP)

25% . . . .. .
Improving energy eff|C|ency IS Important, and effective

behaviour change can support this

Nonéglj/”ica' ﬂ Improving the way we dispose of waste is critical

0

93% of staff are ready to make @ There should be more green spaces for staff
changes to their personal ©)

behaviours and work practices to
reduce the environmental impact = There should be promotion of greener travel options for
of the services we provide (ﬂ) staff and patients

11
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Our framework for action

Our sustainability action plan provides us with a roadmap to
delivering meaningful change. The action plan revolves around
the three key themes which provide a framework for concerted
action to deliver improvements in environmental sustainability

across the organisation. #Green erWh itHea|th

These three themes are Net Zero Care, Net Zero Culture and
Net Zero Infrastructure.

Running through each of these themes is an underlying Net Zero Net Zero Net Zero
commitment to the ethos of reduce, reuse, recycle. These three

R's lie at the very heart of our action plan and will guide us in care culture infrastructure
transforming the way we deliver our services whether that’s
reducing our energy consumption through newer green
technology and behaviour change, reducing single use plastic
use, reusing medical aids and equipment or promoting
increased recycling.

Sustainable care Engagement and Estates and
models awareness facilities

Medicines

To construct our action plan, we have used the Greener NHS’ Food and nutrition Greener digital

‘Delivering a Net Zero NHS’ report to target nine key areas of
focus that will help deliver sustainable care, embed a
sustainable culture and ensure resilient and sustainable
infrastructure for the future.

Each of the themes are laid out in the following pages.

Supply chain and

procurement Travel and access Adaptation

Reduce, Reuse, Recycle

12
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Key priorities for the next three years

Transforming Outpatient | Gloves Off campaign to Harness the skills and Upgrade our power
care — reducing follow up ‘reduce non-sterile glove use = enthusiasm of our staff  infrastructure to enable
appointments & promoting | & participate in trials of to help us deliver care in the switch to greener
virtual care where reusable PPE % a more sustainable way energy & make tangible

clinically appropriate \\ J {{6} progress in reducing
— {

Eliminate single use plastics : : energy consumption and
Review our retail and switching to greener

Adopt new, more _ from our catering supply : _ _
sustainable anaesthetic chain. patient catering offers to technologies

provide and promote
more sustainable food

techniques and reduce _

. . GO N
Nitrous Oxide use C@\jﬁi Reduce medicines waste and " ,
J= identify opportunitiesto & OPHONS: “\ ,é

-
Full implementation of reduce packaging \G./

patient portal & increase Embed sustainability
uptake of digitalised Develop a Green Travel Plan, principles into our

patient letters and with a focus on community © procurement and supply
appointments services @ ¢~ chain process
(- @

Increase recycling and
improve waste
segregation
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Our plan to deliver

Governance
Our sustainability governance structure:

Transformation
Committee

#GreenerWhitHealth Steering Group

#GreenerWhitHealth Task & Finish groups

Green Champions Network

000
All staff e
All staff have a role to play in delivering this Green Plan. We will continue
engagement and dialogue, further building understanding and support for both
practical action and deepening ambition. 9 o

Q)
Green Champions Network I

A staff network will be established to attract all environmentally-minded staff across
all Trust departments. Champions are ambassadors for sustainability and green
initiatives within in their work area and the wider trust. They act as a conduit between
the Trust’s sustainability group and wider staff in order to disseminate information,
provide feedback and generate ideas. They support in gaining excitement and further
engagement with sustainability across our workforce. A

—
Greener Whit Health Task & Finish Groups =]=]=!

We will establish task groups to develop delivery plans against each of the Green
Plan key areas. These delivery plans will provide a pipeline of projects for each year
alongside setting responsibilities, timeframes for delivery, and metrics for monitoring.

Sustainability Steering Group ‘@’

A sustainability group will be developed to deliver the implementation of the green
plan. The sustainability group will meet monthly to progress actions and is
responsible for formalising an annual report to be submitted to the board by the lead
Director. The sustainability group will be further supported by dedicated sub-
committees to assist implementation of the Green Plan across its various sectors.

_ _ o
Transformation Committee &8=8

The Green Plan will be approved by the Trust Board and reviewed annually. The
Transformation sub-committee of the Board will provide oversight and assurance on
delivery. Sustainable Development is championed at Board level by our designated
Net Zero lead: Helen Brown — Chief Executive Officer.

14
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Our plan to deliver

Reporting

The Green Plan will be approved by the Trust Board and reviewed annually. A
progress report is to be submitted to the Board every six months to outline
progress against the actions and measures of success/ Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) set out in the Green Plan.

*ERIC (Estates Information Return Collection)
*Mandatory data collection for all NHS Trusts
*Annual update & progress review of Green Plan actions

*Carbon impact assessment to track progress against NHS Carbon
Footprint & Carbon Footprint Plus targets

Annually

Committee

*Bi-Monthly Green Plan Progress updates to Steering Group
*Bi-Monthly Green Champions meetings
*Bi-monthly themed engagement events

Bimonthly

Monthly

*Monthly Task & Finish Group Meetings

Every 6 months { *Bi-annual Green Plan Progress update to Transformation

As well as using the annual Green Plan review to provide a narrative on Trust action
on sustainability, a number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been identified
to measure our progress. These will be further refined to benchmark against Trust
turnover as a proxy for activity volumes such that changes in the scope and scale of
Trust activities can be accounted for over time.

KPI Unit Description

Electr|C|ty_ kWh/m?2 Total electricity demand per m? of occupied floorspace
consumption

Gas consumption kWh/m? Total gas demand per m? of occupied floorspace
Carbon from kgCO.e/

: Total carbon output per m? of occupied floorspace
energy m

Total waste produced by Trust per m? of occupied
floorspace
Proportion of total waste fraction which is segregated

Waste production  kg/m?

Waste recycled % :
y ° into recycled waste streams
Water impact m3/m? Total water consumption per m? of floorspace
NHS Carbon . .
. tCO.e Total emissions from Trust-controlled activities
Footprint
NH rbon . . . .
S Carbo tCO,e Total emissions from wider Trust-influenced emissions

Footprint Plus

Table 2: Sustainability reporting KPIs

15
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Sustainable models of care

The NHS Long Term Plan sets out a vision for how the NHS plans to improve care for
patients over the next ten years, reducing inequalities, improving outcomes and
improving patient’s experience of care. Health and care partners in North Central
London (NCL) are working together to deliver this vision locally as part of the NCL
Integrated Care System (ICS).

With a strong focus on preventative, integrated, streamlined and digitally enabled
care, provided ‘as close to home as possible’, delivery of these plans will support our
ambition to provide clinically excellent, great value care in the most environmentally
sustainable way possible.

Where are we now?

The implementation of new models of outpatient care (including advice and guidance,
virtual clinics and patient initiated follow up) and expanded virtual ward provision are
two examples of how changing the way we deliver care can bring environmental
sustainability benefits alongside wider clinical, patient experience and financial
benefits.

We have invested in our IT infrastructure and digital technology to support care
delivery over recent years, but there is potential to do more. We have ambitious plans
to build on these strong foundations to ensure our care models make the best
possible use of new technology. This is to improve patient experience and support
sustainable models of care (including making the best use of our skilled workforce,
making the best use of resources and environmentally sustainable care).

Where do we want to be?

To achieve this, we must engage with our clinical leadership on sustainable care
models and how they are developed and deployed and engage with our digital
transformation colleagues on the sustainable rollout of IT solutions.

Success will be measured based on:

» Percentage of outpatient consultations delivered remotely

* Reductions in follow up outpatient consultations linked to new models of care
(including advice and guidance, one stop clinics, patient-initiated follow-ups)

+ Virtual hospital activity (avoided admissions and reduced length of stay)
» Reduction in use of non-sterile disposable gloves & single use PPE.
Other measures will be developed as the programme develops.

Action Timescale Carbo-n Carbpn
Footprint Footprint +

Include environmental sustainability

measures within our outpatient 2023/24 X X

transformation programme

5% of outpatient attendances to patient-

initiated follow-up (PIFU) 2023124 X X

Reducing outpatient follow-ups by a

minimum of 25% against 2019/20 activity 2023/24 X X

levels

Work to achieve RCEM ‘Greener

Emergency Department’ accreditation 2024/25 X X

(bronze, silver, gold)

Encourage other teams and departments to

adopt sustainability improvement 2025/2026 X X

programmes relevant to their service

Run a g!ove§ off campaign to reduce use of 2022/24 X X

non-sterile disposable gloves

Participate in NCL pilots of reusable PPE 2024/25 X X

17



Green Plan

Medicines

20% of total NHS carbon emissions relate to medicines, with a small number of Carbon
medicines accounting for a large proportion of these emissions. Commonly used Action Timescale _carbon Footprint
anaesthetic gases also have a very high carbon impact and account for a large Footprint +
proportion of emissions, at approximately 2% of the total NHS carbon emissions. Develop an action plan to manage and reduce
At a local level, anaesthetic gases, including nitrous oxide, make-up 3% of our NHS ~ emissions from anaesthetic gases. To include:
Carbon Footprint. This makes anaesthetics one of the Trust’s largest contributors (a) Work with clinicians to identify opportunities to
within medicines and a key area of focus for emission reductions. reduce the use of Nitrous Oxide, while continuing
Where are we now? to ensure patient needs are met _ 2023/24 X
. ) . (b) Collaborate with gas suppliers to modernise
Pressurised metered dose inhalers (pMDI) contain hydrofluoroalkane (HFA), a potent Nitrous Oxide and Entonox infrastructure and
greenhouse gas, and are responsible for nearly 1 million tonnes of CO2 equivalent management processes
per year, roughly 3% of the NHS total carbon footprint. Dry powder inhalers (DPI) (c) Explore the use of alternative anaesthetic gases
account for 4% of the Trust’s total inhaler use and we will continue to take steps to e.g. Methoxyflurane
increase the use of low carbon inhalers, such as DPIs in place of the more carbon Introduce gas capture and reuse technologies 2025/26
intensive pMDI. - -
Prescribe lower carbon inhalers (50% by 2028) 2023/24 X

: . , 0 o
Since 2017/18, emissions from volatiles have reduced by 87%, primarily through a Participate in the Greener NCL medicines waste

targeted reduction in desflurane use. However, emissions from nitrous oxide and : . 2023/24 X X
. R . reduction project

Entonox have risen by 12%, resulting in similar annual levels of carbon emissions : . . .

from medicines. Review arrangements for disposal of inhalers in an 2023/24 X

environmentally sustainable way

Wher n ?. : :
ere do we wantto be Reduce highly wasted pharmaceutical products and

Building on the excellent work already done, we aim to adopt new anaesthetic identify products with unnecessary packaging; 2024/25 X
techniques that meet the needs of our patients in more environmentally sustainable  feeding back to suppliers

ways. Working with partners across North Central London (NCL), we will focus on
reducing the use of nitrous oxide as a priority over the next 24 months.

Where clinically appropriate, reduce the use of environmentally damaging pMDI and
ensuring used inhalers are appropriately recycled.

To optimise patient medication and ensure that medicines wastage is minimised. We
will participate in the Greener NCL reducing medicines wastage programme. 18
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Supply chain and procurement

Within the NHS, the majority of total carbon footprint is accounted for via goods and
services purchased from our suppliers — from electricity and food to medical equipment
and personal protective equipment (PPE). Our purchasing decisions are therefore very
important. ‘The ‘net zero supplier roadmap’ sets out actions being taken to promote
sustainability within the NHS supply chain at a national and regional level.

» 2022 - all NHS tenders to include a minimum 10% net zero and social value weighting

+ 2023 - all contracts above £5m will require suppliers to publish a carbon reduction plan
for their direct emissions as a qualifying criteria

* 2024- all suppliers to publicly report emissions and publish a carbon reduction plan
aligned to the NHS net zero target for their direct emissions, irrespective of contract
value

» 2027 - all suppliers to publicly report emissions and publish a carbon reduction plan
aligned to the NHS net zero target, for both their direct and indirect emissions (Scope 1,
2, and 3)

+ 2028 - introduction of carbon footprinting for individual products supplied to the NHS

» 2030 - all suppliers required to demonstrate progress in line with the NHS net zero
targets

Where are we now?

Most of our procurement activities at Whittington are completed by Partners Procurement
Service (PPS) which is a joint venture that runs procurement for a number of Trusts in the
north London area. Most of our goods and services are procured via our selected
framework providers which adhere to guidance and requirements set out by the wider
NHS.

Where do we want to be?

Our first crucial step to understanding the impact of our supply chain is to baseline our
current position in more detail. Once we have this information, we will have a clearer
picture of where our carbon hotspots are and therefore where to prioritise efforts to
mitigate impact.

Carbon
. , Carbon :
Action Timescale . Footprint
Footprint N
Complete a supply chain carbon baseline 2023/24 X
assessment
Rewgw oppqrtunltles to refurblsh and.re-use 2024/25 X X
medical equipment such as walking aids
Ensure that all future suppliers have a net zero
target that adheres to or betters the UK’s net zero 2023/24 X
target
Add a mandatory sustainability weighting to future 2023/24 X
Trust procurements
19
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Engagement and awareness

Our people are our greatest asset in delivering our Green Plan. We need to
harness the enthusiasm and commitment of our staff, raise awareness of the
environmental impact of our activities, encourage staff to think differently and help
them by ‘making it easy to do the right thing’.

Where are we now?

Many of our staff feel passionately about the sustainability agenda and are already
helping to make changes to make us a ‘greener’ organisation. However, there are
currently limited structured mechanisms to support and engage staff in this
important work.

Where do we want to be?

Whatever their role, people need to know their own responsibilities under the
Green Plan and how they can collectively help to deliver our net zero ambitions.

Environmental sustainability needs to be built into our core purpose as an
organisation and embedded into everyday working and decision-making processes
within the Trust.

We will review our governance and everyday working practices to embed
sustainability into the way we do business and ensure clear accountability and
monitoring of delivery plans to reduce our carbon footprint.

We aspire to be at the forefront of sustainable healthcare and recognise that to do
S0, we must ensure that we attain widespread engagement throughout our
organisation.

This will be achieved through an active engagement plan utilising a variety of
channels to engage staff, patients and the wider community. The sustainability
agenda will have a digital presence on our website, intranet and social media.

Carbon

. : Carbon .

Action Timescale . Footprint
Footprint N

Incorporate environmental sustainability into the
Trust objectives and governance including
establishing a Greener Whittington Health 2023/24 X X
Steering Group to oversee implementation of our
Green Plan
Develop and implement a Greener Whittington
Health Engag(?ment Plan and developmenf[ of 2023/24 X X
Green Champions network, to promote active
engagement in delivery of our Green Plan
Undertake an annual survey of environmental
sustainability awareness and alignment with Trust ~ 2023/24 X X
priorities
Develop a green dashboard to support regular
reporting and oversight of progress through Trust 2023/24 X X
governance structures
Develop and implement a carbon literacy /

: . 2023/24 X X
environmental awareness training plan
Recruit an environmental sustainability lead to 2023/24 X X

support delivery of the Green Plan
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Green Plan

Food and nutrition

Food and catering services in the NHS account for approximately 6% of the NHS total
emissions footprint. A healthier, more sustainable diet not only has lower associated
emissions but also helps to improve the physical wellbeing of staff and patients
through the prevention of diet related iliness, as well as potentially providing wider
social benefits for local communities through the procurement of locally sourced food.

Where are we now?

At the Hospital site, our ‘in house’ N19 Restaurant and three commercial retail outlets
provide a range of meal choices for staff and visitors. Currently, we change our menus
at least twice a year to use more seasonal ingredients as well as having a plant-based
menu, although we believe there are opportunities to enhance the current food offer.

For patient meals, we have reduced food wastage by switching from bulk cooking to
individual plating. The Trust will be procuring a new supplier in the lifetime of this plan
and will ensure that sustainability is a fundamental component in the process to select
a new patient food provider.

Where do we want to be?

We want to provide tasty, nutritious, affordable and environmentally sustainable meals
for our patients, staff and visitors.

The Trust will identify opportunities to make menu options healthier and lower carbon
by increasing the proportion of fruit and vegetables, as well as beans, pulses, and
other low carbon ingredients. We will review our food and retail offer and develop a
strategy to deliver on our ambition to provide tasty, nutritious, affordable and
environmentally sustainable food choices.

We aim to substantially reduce the amount of food waste generated by both retail and
patient catering. We also need to improve waste segregation to support our ambition
to increase recycling (preventing food waste from contaminating other waste
streams).

Our catering supply chain must eliminate any single-use plastics and we should
promote the use of reusables by having ‘bring your own’ incentives for take away
meals.

Carbon
. . Carbon .

Action Timescale : Footprint

Footprint N
Use the Guardians of Grub approach to measure 2023/24 X X
the amount of food waste
Fully .|mplement the roll-out of inpatient digital meal 2023/24 X X
ordering
Expand meat frge (veqap and vegetarian) options 2023/24 X
across all catering facilities
Ellmlpate smgle-usg plastics from our food and 2023/24 X X
catering supply chain
Pror,n.ote us_e of reusables by having ‘bring your 2023/24 X X
own’ incentives.
Run an engagement campaign to promote taking a
healthier, more sustainable diet such as ‘No Meat 2023/24 X
May’
Installation of biodigesters and caddy bins 2023/24

Redistribute surplus food that would otherwise be

thrown away via food banks or food sharing apps 2023/24
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Green Plan

Travel and access

The NHS is responsible for 3.5% of all road travel in England, and travel and
transport accounts for 14% of the overall NHS carbon footprint.

Changes to clinical care models, including those enabled by digital transformation,
will reduce the number of individual patient and visitor journeys to our hospitals and
make an important contribution to reducing overall travel related emissions.

However, we also need to work to reduce the number of car journeys made by
patients, visitors and staff when they do need to travel to one of our sites, particularly
using an internal combustion engine (ICE), and to promote less carbon intensive
modes of travel such as active travel, public transport and electric vehicles. These
alternative forms of travel offer a multitude of co-benefits. For example, active travel
not only reduces emissions, but also improves physical and mental wellbeing,
reduces congestion and improves air quality.

Where are we now?

We recognise that the future of UK transport is zero-emissions and have already
begun to prepare for this by upgrading our Electric Vehicle infrastructure with 16
charging points installed across the estate and over 95% of our fleet electrified.

We are working with local authorities to identify opportunities to promote public
transport and active travel. In 2023 we plan to develop a detailed Green Travel Plan,
actively engaging our communities and staff in a dialogue about actions we can take
to encourage more sustainable forms of travel.

Where do we want to be?

» To improve the physical and mental wellbeing of patients and staff via the
promotion of more sustainable modes of travel such as public transport and active
travel (cycling and walking)

« To improve local air quality and reduce our emissions footprint tied to travel and
transport

» To ensure we are prepared for the decarbonisation of travel

Carbon
. , Carbon .
Action Timescale . Footprint
Footprint N

Develop .a Gree_n Travel Plan with a focus on 2023/24 X X
community services
Review car parking at the hospital site 2023/24 X
Promote Whittington walking club 2023/24 X
Develqp process for annual business travel data 2023/24 X
collection
Run an anti-idling campaign for staff, patient, visitor

. . : . 2023/24 X
and ambulances to improve air quality across sites
!nsta!l air quality .monltors across our sites to 2024/25 X
identify areas of improvement
Explore the provision of electric cargo bikes for
transporting goods and services across/between 2024/25 X
sites
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Green Plan

Estates and facilities

Emissions relating to Estates and Facilities account for over 60% of the NHS
direct carbon footprint, predominantly through emissions tied to energy use. A
significant proportion of the NHS carbon footprint plus also relates to estates
and facilities including food and catering, travel, logistics and construction,
which has been the largest single contributor to our carbon footprint plus over
recent years.

The key measures of success across Estates and Facilities are:

» Decreased energy (electricity and gas) consumption

» Decreased carbon use from energy

» Decreased waste production

* Increase of waste recycled

» Decreased water consumption

» Decreased carbon footprint

Table 3 provides an overview of our performance against these KPIs over the
last 7 years. As shown in the table, our NHS Carbon Footprint has decreased
by 28% from our 2016/17 baseline. This is predominantly due to our more
efficient consumption of electricity following the roll out of LED lighting across

our Estate as well as the ongoing decarbonisation of the UK grid. This is
further supported by the reductions in gas and water consumption per m?

There has been a 35% increase in waste production since our baseline year,
reaching a peak of 21.1 kg/m? in 2020/21 and 2021/22, owing to the
operational challenges faced by the Trust in response to the COVID
pandemic. Changes in our management of waste has delivered a 40%
reduction in waste between the years 2021/22 and 2022/23, however more
work is needed to bring this back in line with our baseline year.

For the purpose of this strategy, Estates and Facilities comprises the key themes energy,

water, capital projects, greenspace and biodiversity, and waste.

KPI Unit Bzgiz'/'l”;’ 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Electricity  \\vhm? 1643 167.0 1651 1529 127.9 1260 746
consumption
Gas __kWh/m? 190.1 1817 1835 180.6 183.1 228.7 104.9
consumptlon
Carbon fromkgCO€/ 1,56 1773 1068 954 889 941 561
energy m
Waste kg/m* 9.4 4.8 165 156 211 211 127
production
Pl % 26% 15%  14% 5% 17%  13%  11%
recycled
Water 3,2
\ m3/m 15 2.4 2.9 1.4 1.1 1.4 1.3
impact
NHS Carbon 4 o 15 155.9 10753.5 10,318.7 8,841.0 82451 87241 5203.9
Footprint
NHS Carbon

] No No No No . . .
E?uostprlnt tCO.e data data data data Pending Pending Pending

Table 3: Estates and Facilities Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs)

Trend

e aaa

N/A
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Green Plan

Estates and facilities

Where are we now?
Energy

Emissions from energy use in buildings currently represents 71% of our total NHS
Carbon Footprint. On this basis, reducing energy consumption and transitioning to
lower carbon generation technologies will be a key element of our pathway to
achieving our reduction targets.

Figure 7 shows that in 2021/22, Gas consumption drives the greatest portion of
emissions at 55% across the estate, with electricity at 32% and the remaining
arising from Well-To-Tank (WTT) and Transmission & Distribution (T&D). Figure 8

- -

m Gas = Electricity = WTT & T&D m Acute = Community

Figure 7: Breakdown of emissions for
building energy use 2021/22

Figure 8: Breakdown of Acute and

use 2021/22

Community emissions by building energy

demonstrates that our Acute energy consumption accounts for most of our carbon
emissions at 88% in comparison to 12% for our Community sites.

We have been successfully reducing emissions from energy since 2016 through
regularly assessing the energy efficiency of buildings and implementing specific
decarbonisation initiatives such as the roll out of LED lighting across the Trust.
Having recently published an estate wide heat decarbonisation plan, the next year
will see us commence the replacement of the existing fossil fuel heat system at

three of our community sites as well as the nurse's accommodation on the acute
site.

Water

Overall, the site has reduced its water usage from 2016/17 to 2021/22 by 11%.
There was a rise in consumption from 2017/18 reaching nearly 300,000 m3 in
2018/19. This resulted from a leak which went unidentified for several months.

300,000

250,000

200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000 I

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Water consumption (m3/yr)

B Acute B Community

Figure 9: Site water consumption from 2016-2022 26



Green Plan

Estates and facilities

Where are we now? Continued . ..

Capital projects

The Trust has a major programme of estate improvement with annual investment in
critical infrastructure, statutory compliance, IT and equipment. In addition, the Trust
has several major projects in the pipeline to increase capacity and improve the

functional suitability of our estate. We have ambitious plans to enhance our
maternity and neonatal facilities in the Kenwood Wing of Whittington Hospital.

Examples of the Trust’s capital projects with a sustainability-focus includes
designing new buildings with embedded green space, ensuring buildings are
certified via recognised accreditation routes and specifying high resource efficacy
(e.g., recycled/re-used or low-embodied carbon building materials) in large-scale
capital projects.

Case study: new Education Centre

A recent success story is the redevelopment of J block into our new Education
Centre (Figure 10). Heat for the Education Centre is provided via Air-Source Heat
Pumps and its roof houses a 13kWp solar PV array which supplies renewable
power for the building’s life.

Figure 10: Redevelopment
of J Block into the
Education Centre

Green space and biodiversity

We recognise that air pollution is a major hazard to human health and that this is
particularly acute for an inner-city Trust such as ours. We are also aware that our
heating, emergency power and transportation systems contribute to this issue.

We have a board approved green space strategy embedded in our wider estates
plan. Example schemes include converting an underused space outside labour
ward at Whittington into a garden with a variety of flora planted to provide a
peaceful area for our maternity patients and installing a ‘living wall’ around our
relocated water tanks to increase green coverage in this area.

Figure 11: Hospital garden
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Green Plan

Estates and facilities

Where are we now? Continued . ..
Waste

Since 2019, the Trust has trialled and implemented an internal recycling
scheme. By dedicating sufficient external space, the Trust has an
exemplary waste management zone allowing for the segregation of metal,
wood, plastics, and other waste streams into component parts. This
greatly increases the proportion of the Trust’s waste which can be
recycled along with allowing dedicated monitoring of specific waste
streams. With this information, the Trust aims to establish a baseline

against which to track improvements in waste management and reduction.

Despite significant steps being taken to improve waste segregation and
the proportion recycled, it can be seen from Figure 13 that most of the
Trust’s domestic waste is currently attributed to a combination of non-
recycled waste streams. These include general waste and bulk waste and
account for 82% of all domestic waste. Driving this figure down has been
particularly challenging during the Covid-19 pandemic where the quantity
of disposable PPE used in the delivery of care has risen sharply from pre-
pandemic levels.

There are also opportunities to improve segregation of clinical and non-
clinical waste, reducing both cost and environmental impact.

Domestic - non
Clinical recycled
51% 41%
Figure 12: 2022/23 Whittington Hospital
clinical and domestic waste breakdown
Domestic -
recycled
8%
Offensive Waste
Medicines 1% 4%
' Bulk Waste 3%
_ Sharp A Figure 13: 2022/23 Whittington Hospital
Incineration 4%
Waste breakdown by category
Alternative General Waste

Treatment 42% 37%

ardboard 5%

| BV

Mixed Recycling
Food Waste 1% 2%
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Green Plan

Estates and facilities

Where do we want to be?
Energy

We need to ensure we fully understand the capital and operational cost impact of
decarbonising heat in our buildings. Our estate-wide heat decarbonisation plan sets
out the next steps that are needed to develop detailed, costed solutions. This plan will
support funding applications for immediate priorities and feed into a long-term energy
strategy for our estate. A key element of the plan is to build more resilient electrical
power infrastructure at the hospital site to enable a transition away from gas.

Alongside this we need to ensure we have robust and reliable data on energy
consumption across our estate to help us identify priorities for improvement. To
achieve this, we plan to expand smart meter and automatic meter reader (AMR)
coverage across our estate. All our staff can contribute to reducing energy
consumption, so raising awareness and building engagement will be important,
alongside technological changes that make it easier ‘to do the right thing’ (e.g., more
localised temperature controls).

Water

Although water usage does not have the same impact on NHS Carbon Footprint as
the impact of energy consumption, we have a duty to use it sensibly and ethically.

Our actions to reduce water use and improve efficiency have been identified and
included within the Estates & Facilities action plan.

Waste

We must dedicate renewed focus on driving down the unnecessary use

of disposable materials such as paper and PPE. We must also target improved
segregation of waste at the ward level. This will minimise contamination of waste
streams with clinical waste and have the dual effect of reducing the waste sent to
incineration whilst improving the proportion of waste available for recycling.

Capital Projects

Improvements to our estate will be undertaken in the most

environmentally sustainable way possible. Our actions will define organisational
responsibility for sustainable capital and refurbishment projects. A clear set of
sustainability aims and objectives will be applied to all capital projects and major
refurbishments.

Figure 14: Whittington Hospital Maternity Garden & cold-water tank ‘living wall’

Greenspace and biodiversity

Following the success of the Trust’s ‘living wall’ and Maternity garden, we want to
improve access to high quality Green Space for patients, visitors and staff across
our services and sites. This will include work to offset some of the environmental
impact of our activities by increasing trees, plants and biodiversity on our sites.
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Green Plan

Estates and facilities

Action Plan

Develop a funding strategy for our estate decarbonisation plans & agree delivery milestones.

Complete rollout of smart meters and AMRs across community sites and grid gas feeds

Develop a strategy to increase capacity for on-site electricity generation

Review existing life expectancy of boilers

Define a clear set of sustainability aims and objectives that can be scaled and applied to all capital projects and major refurbishments
Ensure all capital projects team members have received Net Zero Building standards training relating to the latest NHS guidance
Develop therapeutic gardens across available Trust space to benefit patients and staff

Procure 100% renewable electricity for all supplies at renewal date

Raise awareness about water usage to staff and patients through sustainability messaging

Install submetering to monitor water consumption

Investigate options for improving grey water harvesting at the acute site

Develop and implement a programme to drive improved recycling practice within the Trust & improve waste segregation
Decrease total waste tonnage by 10% from 2020/21 levels by 2025

Increase proportion of domestic waste recycled to 40% by 2025
Achieve clinical waste segregation of 20:20:60 across High Temperature Incineration (HTI), Alternative Treatment (AT) and Offensive
Waste (OW)

Timescale

2023/24
2023/24
2023/24
2023/24
2023/24
2023/24
2024/25
2024/25
2024/25
2025/26
2025/26
2023/24
2025/26
2025/26

2025/26

Carbon
Footprint
X

X
X
X

Carbon
Footprint +

x

X X X X X X X
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Green Plan

Digital

At a Trust level our Digital Strategy sets out how we plan to transform our services
to ensure our vision is achieved and we are offering a rich patient and staff digital
experience, which transforms integrated care and enables local people to live
longer and healthier lives. The strategy is a 3-year roadmap to deliver our strategic
objectives and identifies our future requirements in delivering ‘digital maturity’. The
strategy is underpinned by four key digital themes:

« Digitally Connected Patients - empowering patients to actively manage their
health and care

- enabling staff to access shared health and care
records

* Business Intelligence and Analytics - insight driven culture to improve quality,
outcome and research

« Digital Infrastructure — to provide secure access and interoperability
Where are we now?

We have aligned our Green Plan actions with the objectives set out in our Digital
Strategy, to ensure net zero ambitions are embedded within the Trust and
uniformity across our strategies.

Since the introduction of the Digital Strategy in 2021, we have made great progress
in delivering a digitally enabled workforce by improving staff access to digital
services. We have achieved this by digitalising 80% of inpatient records in the last
2 years and we continue to make progress through the introduction of digital
records and digital correspondence for all new patients attending the Trust.

Where do we want to be?

We aim to meet the requirements set out in the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) to
transform our patient and staff experience of healthcare. We will do this through
improved accessibility, increasing training in digital capabilities and utilising data to
support the development of new treatments and management of patient flow.

Action

Full implementation of Whittington Patient Portal
and digitalised patient letters

Full digitalisation of records, communication and
workflow via a digital on demand process for all
returning patients

Introduce a power management programme that
suspends use after 5 hours of idleness

Reduce printing by 40%

Digitalisation of appointment system to enable
patients to reschedule and cancel appointments
online

Implement an equipment repair and replacement
scheme to ensure 25% of new equipment is
repairable/upgradable

Introduce remote working via a VDI for 60% of
clinical remote workers

Timescale

2024/25

2024/25

2024/25
2025/26

2025/26

2025/26

2025/26

Carbon
Footprint

X

Carbon
Footprint

+

X
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Green Plan

Adaptation

Even with current national and global commitments, we are set to reach 1.5 °C of
global warming between 2030 and 2052. The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) reports that this warming will lead to increased risks to health,
livelihoods, food security, water supply, human security and economic growth. In
this context we must build resilience and adaptation into our sustainability
programme.

Increased occurrences of extreme weather events will potentially disrupt clinical
activity in three key ways: restrictions in the availability of clinical environments
during extreme events (overheating or flooding); barriers to business-as-usual
continuing for supply chain partners and direct clinical service impacts of severe
weather upon staff and the local community, thereby creating system pressures.

Where are we now?

Many of the key aspects a climate change adaptation plan are incorporated into the
Trust’s emergency planning processes. However, the Trust has not undertaken a
climate change risk assessment (CCRA) and does not have a specific climate
change adaptation plan.

Where do we want to be?

We recognise that is important for Whittington Health to produce a CCRA which we
will subsequently use to develop and maintain the Trust’s Climate Change
Adaptation Plan.

Our plan must adequately reflect the risks that the changing climate specifically
present to our Trust and communities and define how we will adapt to ensure we
can continue to deliver high quality care.

Action

Create specific Climate Change Risk
Assessment (CCRA)

Update our Emergency Planning Risk
Register (EPRR), including a review of
extreme weather resilience and response

plans
Use findings from CCRA to develop Climate

Change Adaptation Plan

Carbon
. Carbon :
Timescale . Footprint
Footprint N
2023/24
2023/24
2024/25 X
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Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Meeting title Trust Board — public meeting Date: 21 July 2023
Report title Quality Assurance Committee Chair’s Agenda item: 6
report

Committee Chair

Naomi Fulop, Non-Executive Director

Executive lead

Sarah Wilding, Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health Professionals

Report authors

Marcia Marrast-Lewis, Assistant Trust Secretary, and Swarnijit Singh,
Joint Director of Inclusion and Trust Secretary

Executive summary

The Quality Assurance Committee met on 12 July 2023 and was able
to take significant or reasonable assurance from the following items
considered:

e 2022/23 Quality Account

e Adult Community Services— District Nursing transition to RIO

and electronic record
e Biannial Health & Safety report
e Q2 Board Assurance Framework

Committee members took moderate assurance from the following
agenda items:

Chair’s assurance report, Quality Governance Committee
Elective recovery performance

Pressure ulcer improvement report

Risk Register

Annual Compliments and Complaints report

Duty of Candour report

Victoria Ward action plan update

Serious Incident Board report (April / May)

Following discussion, the following four key risks were identified to be

reported to the Trust Board:

1. Patient flow across the organisation.

2. Performance on complaints and the backlog of duty of candour
responses.

3. The impact of industrial action on services, particularly elective
recovery
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4. The lack of progress with completing quality impact assessments
for cost improvement programme schemes

Purpose

Noting

Recommendations

Board members are asked to note the Chair’s assurance report for the
meeting held on 12 July 2023

BAF

Quality strategic objective entries and the Integration 2 entry

Appendices

None
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Committee Chair’s Assurance report

Committee name Quality Assurance Committee

Date of meeting 12 July 2023

Summary of assurance:

1.

The Committee confirms to the Trust Board that it took either significant or
reasonable assurance from the following agenda items:

2022/23 Quality Account

The Committee received the Quality Account which was published on 30 June
2023, . A lite version of the publication was welcomed as an abridged version
and the Committee Chair suggested that, for next year, the lite version be
produced in plain English to aid communication with patients and the public
Committee members referred to comments from stakeholders which highlighted
specific patient complaints in relation to access to patient transport and the
responsiveness to transport requests. The Head of Quality Governance and the
Director of Estates & Facilities are to carry out a deep dive of transport services
as the number of complaints had increased. The concerns raised by patients
had been discussed by the transport services with DHL. the contractor. An
improvement plan has been developed and would shortly be circulated to clinical
and operational teams in the Trust and partner organisations. It was agreed that
an update on progress would be brought back to the next Committee meeting in
September.

The Committee noted the published 2022/23 Quality Account.

District Nursing transition to RIO and electronic record

The Committee welcomed a presentation on the transition from e-community
system to RIO electronic patient record (EPR) system. The system upgrade
would deliver several benefits including improved record keeping, reduced staff
administration time, an improved ability to share information with partner
organisations and reduced clinical governance risks.

Committee members thanked for the presentation.

Health and Safety Bi-annual Report 1st Oct 2022 to 28th March 2023

The Committee received the report and assurance that continued monitoring of
the actions implemented following the findings of the Patent Led Assessment of
Care and the Environment (PLACE) at the end of 2022 had been undertaken
and improvements identified. A follow-up assessment was scheduled to take
place in week beginning XX and the results would be reported back to the
Committee in September.

In relation to the Health and Safety report, the Committee was informed of the
following:

e 88% of incidents were reported within seven days — above the target of
85%.

e An overall reduction in incidents since the last reporting period (683 down to
591).
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¢ A significant increase in staff experiencing violence and aggression from
patients and service users

e There were two RIDDOR events related to needle stick incidents.

e There were a number of old and existing safety alerts. The safety alert
related to the safe use of oxygen cylinders had been closed down. The anti-
barricade alert was also closed but the issue would be ongoing and had
been prioritised within the capital programme. Completion of the allergens
alert was expected in September or October of this year.

e Mandatory and statutory training had seen some improvements but more
work was needed to achieve targets.

e Fire risk assessments were well below target (17% against an estimated
40% for the year to date). Meetings to discuss fire remediation works had
been reinstated with NHS England and the London Fire Brigade. Monthly
reporting to the Trust Management Group would also be reinstated from
August.

It was agreed that a report on ligature risks, and capital requirements needed to
eliminate the risks would be brought back to the next meeting.

The Committee took good assurance of the work being undertaken to
ensure health and safety at the Trust.

Board Assurance Framework (BAF)

The Committee considered the BAF which had been updated with the
Integration 2 entry reflecting the significant work taking place to address health
inequalities and population health. Committee members welcomed the
appointment of Helen Brown as the Trust representative on the North Central
London Population Health & Health Inequalities Committee and that Swarnjit
Singh had joined its steering group. The Committee endorsed the
recommendation that the risk scores for Quality 1 and 2 entries remained
unchanged at 20.

The Committee was assured that the risks related to site air ventilation would be
mitigated by the estates team and the risks related to temperature control
affecting the storage of medicines had been reduced and closed.

The Committee approved the Q2 Board Assurance Framework.

Committee members took moderate assurance from the following agenda
items:

Chair’s assurance report, Quality Governance Committee

The Committee noted the report of the items covered at the meeting held on 13
June 2023 where significant or reasonable assurance was taken from most of
the items discussed. Committee members were updated on the significant
assurance taken from the Adult Community Health Services (ACS) report,
Research Oversight Group report; Risk Register; the Annual Compliments,
Complaints and Patient Advice and Liaison Service report and the final draft of
the 2022/23 Quality Account.

Committee was informed of the impact of industrial action on elective recovery
and the planning involved to ensure that services were safe. Committee
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members raised concerns about the response times for complaints, the delay in
getting quality impact assessments completed for cost improvement programme
schemes that were ready for delivery. This matter would be discussed at the 20
July meeting of the Finance and Business Development Committee when it
reviewed progress with the 2023/24 cost improvement programme.

The Committee noted the report.

Elective recovery update
The Committee discussed activity performance and were updated by the Chief
Operating Officer on the following issues:
¢ there had been a significant improvement in theatres efficiency.
e The number of above 78 week waits had reduced to three
e There was a focus on reducing the number of patients on the vascular
surgery pathway. The independent sector had been engaged to help
and had treated 32 patients in June.
e Opportunities to increase income through mutual aid in specific
specialties such as spinal surgery were being taken forward
e Performance on cancer standards continued to be challenged. A
number of measures had been implemented to support recovery
including the deployment of additional resources and a focus on two
week waits
e The implementation of mega clinics in June and July for dermatology
services had helped to significantly reduce the backlog.
¢ The impact of significant pressure on the urgent and emergency care
pathway was still being felt across all pathways.

The Committee discussed the ongoing issues related to appointment slot issues
(ASIs) i.e. patients that have been referred but not secured an appointment. It
was hoped that the actions taken to reduce the high volume of referrals would
begin to have an impact by early autumn.

The Committee was informed that a proposal to utilise the fourth room in
endoscopy was under review. The proposed solution would carry additional
activity and support mutual aid to the Royal Free Hospital, North Middlesex
Hospital and bowel screening for University College London Hospital.

The Committee was advised that Thorogood Ward remained open although it
was anticipated that it would be closed by the end of July.

The Committee noted the report.

Risk Register

The Committee reviewed and noted 30 fully approved quality high risks, with a
further two awaiting approval following discussion by the executive team related
to acute site ventilation and the backlog of patients on the haematology partial
booking waiting list. The highest risks related to overcrowding in the emergency
department, estate issues and staffing shortages in colposcopy services.

2022/23 Annual Compliments, Complaints & Patient Advice and Liaison
Service report

The Committee considered the report which covered the period 1 April 2022 —
31 March 2023. The Committee was advised that the number of open
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complaints that were less than 40 days had decreased from 53 to 21 and 92
open complaints that were 40 days or more were down to 24. There were no
open complaints over 360 days. There was an increase of 6 open complaints
between 180 to 190 days to 196.

An internal audit review was scheduled to take place in August which would
identify areas of challenge from which to build an improvement action plan.

The Committee was pleased to note that the numbers of dissatisfied complaints
had consistently reduced over the reported period and that complaints were
responded to promptly.

Specific concerns were noted around the increase in the numbers of partially
upheld complaints and the prevalence of complaints in the Surgery and Cancer
Integrated Clinical Support Unit. Access to clinics and appointments were
among the common themes of the complaints which has been referred
operational teams and would be monitored closely for improvement.

The Committee noted the annual report.

Q1 Duty of Candour (DOC) update

The Committee discussed the report which highlighted the following:

e 150 outstanding statutory duty of candour letters as at 30 June 2023 with
some going back several years

e The Trust had discharged its statutory duty of candour requirements for all
serious incidents that were recorded in 2022/2023.

e Since May 2023, there had been a reduction of 25% in the number of
outstanding DOC letters since May 2023

e Ongoing challenges continued in providing DOC letters within national
timeframes.

The Committee welcomed the proposed review of outstanding DOC
requirements, particularly around older cases. Committee members
emphasised the point that the duty of candour was not just a legal requirement
by an essential part of the quality of care for patients and their family members
and raised concerns about being alerted earlier to the backlog of cases.

The Committee noted the report. The Committee also agreed strengthened
oversight controls to help it monitor performance on the duty of candour
by having an update at its next two meetings and also that performance be
included within quarterly Quality reports.

Pressure Ulcer Improvement report

The Committee discussed the report on progress against the pressure ulcer
improvement plan. The Committee noted that a new pressure ulcer target had
been set which required the Trust to achieve a 50% reduction in category 3 and
4 pressure ulcers, and a 20% reduction overall. The improvement plan had
been revised and was due to be disseminated across the Trust imminently. A
focussed approach had been taken to improve equipment in-house and in the
community. A bed contract had been extended to six days per week and bank
holidays which should result in significant improvements for patients.
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The Committee learnt that key themes arising from pressure ulcer investigations

related to:

¢ insufficient skin assessment activity and interventions

e alack of appropriate documented care planning of preventative strategies

e patient and carer engagement/concordance challenges with planned
preventative strategies

e issues related to the provision and utilisation of pressure relieving equipment

The Committee were assured that work had been undertaken to structure the
key themes into the improvement plan. Integrated Clinical Support Units were
asked to adapt the improvement plan to match their respective needs in order to
maximise effectiveness. The Committee noted the approach taken to changing
the culture around the identification and management of pressure ulcers and
learning from incidents across the nursing teams.

The Committee noted the report and would look forward to seeing
continued improvement.

Victoria Ward action plan update

The Committee received an update on actions taken to manage the risks

identified on Victoria ward. It was noted that:

e The escalation beds have been funded in budgets and a programme of
recruitment had commenced

e The ward was carrying a high vacancy rate for health care assistants, work
being done to recruit to these posts.

¢ A marked improvement had been noted in the morale of nurses on the ward
and work was ongoing to manage aggressive and abusive patients.

e There were minimal complaints received with only one currently active
complaint.

The Committee noted their assurance that the mitigating actions had
reduced the risks identified.

Serious Incidents report

The Committee was informed that two new incidents were reported between

April and May, as follows:

e A discrepancy was discovered following a request for further stock of a
controlled drug, dihydrocodeine and codeine in the critical care unit. The
discrepancy was reported to the Accountable Officer for Controlled Drugs for
London who had confirmed that similar incidents had occurred at other
London trusts. An investigation was underway overseen by the Chief
Pharmacist and the Medical Director. Mitigating actions had been
implemented and covered access to drugs and the reduction and movement
of stock levels on all wards. Other work to improve the safety and security of
supply was also in place.

e A mental health patient (detained under section 136 of the Mental Health Act)
attended the emergency department escorted by the Metropolitan police.
Following assessment, the patient was considered to be medically fit for
transfer to a mental health hospital. As police restrained the patient for
transfer, a request for help from clinical staff was made and the patient was
found to be in cardiorespiratory arrest, requiring resuscitation and transfer to
the critical care unit. The patient had since recovered and been discharged
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safely. An investigation into the incident was underway by the Independent
Office for Police Conduct.

The Committee was assured by the learning shared from the three previous
serious incidents highlighted in the report and requested information on how the
implementation of the learning is monitored to be included in future reports. The
Committee noted the increase from 9 to 14 overdue serious incidents but were
assured that a pipeline had been set up to prioritise the backlog.

The Committee noted the report.

Present:

Naomi Fulop, Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair)

Amanda Gibbon, Non-Executive Director

Chinyama Okunuga, Chief Operating Officer

Baroness Glenys Thornton, Non-Executive Director

Sarah Wilding, Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health Professionals

In attendance:

Helen Brown, Chief Executive

Paddy Hennessey, Director of Estates & Facilities

Clarissa Murdoch, Deputy Medical Director

Phillip Lee, Associate Medical Director for Patient Safety

Sarah Gillis, Associate Medical Director for learning from deaths.

Erum Jamall, Associate Medical Director Quality Improvement & Clinical
Effectiveness

Swarnjit Singh, Joint Director of Inclusion & Trust Secretary

Anne O’Connor, Interim Associate Director of Quality Governance

Kelly Collins, Associate Director of Nursing, Emergency and Integrated Medicine
Kat Nolan-Cullen, Compliance and Quality Improvement Manager

Marcia Marrast-Lewis, Assistant Trust Secretary

Jeanette Barnes, Associate Director of Nursing CYP (Observing)
Maameyaa Adabie, Associate Director of Nursing Adult Community Services
Pauline Vyse, Lead Nurse Tissue Viability

Caroline McGirr, Deputy Director of Quality NCL ICB

John Murray, Deloitte (Observer)

Carolyn Stewart, Executive Assistant to the Chief Nurse

Apologies:
Tina Jegede, Joint Director of Inclusion and Lead Nurse, Islington Care Homes
Dr Clare Dollery, Medical Director
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Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Meeting title

Trust Board — public meeting Date: 21 July 2023

Report title

Improvement Performance and Digital | Agenda item: 7
Committee Chair’s report

Committee Chair

Junaid Bajwa, Non-Executive Director

Executive lead

Jonathan Gardner, Director of Strategy and Corporate Affairs

Report author

Marcia Marrast-Lewis, Assistant Trust Secretary

Executive summary

The Improvement Performance and Digital Committee met on 10 July
2023 and took good assurance on the substantive items covered:

e An update on the progress of the electronic patient record
programme’s outline business case

e The Board Assurance Framework entry, Sustainable 3 relating
to cyber security

e An update on current clinical digital projects

The committee took moderate assurance on the following:
e A deep dive into the urgent and emergency care pathway
performance

Purpose

Approval

Recommendations

Board members are asked to:

i.  note the Chair's assurance report for the meeting of the
Improvement Performance and Digital Committee held on 10
July 2023;
ii. approve the updated terms of reference for the Committee; and
iii.  note and ratify the decision on the electronic patient record.

BAF entry

Sustainable 3 - digital strategy and interoperability

Appendices

1: Updated Committee terms of reference
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Committee Chair’s Assurance report

Committee name Improvement Performance and Digital Committee

Date of meeting 10 July 2023

Summary of assurance:

1.

The Committee confirms to the Trust Board that it took significant assurance in
the following areas:

Electronic Patient Record (EPR) Decision

Committee members considered a report on the options available to the Trust in respect
of a replacement for the current EPR system. The contract for the current provision with
System C is due to expire in April 2025 and an outline business case had been
developed which recommended that the Trust enter into a potential partnership with
UCLH and procurement a new EPR system for implementation b April 2025. However,
in the absence of central digital funding the procurement process could not progress.
Any further capital allocations from the ICB/NHS England were unlikely to materialise.
The Committee discussed the recommended way forward in the absence of significant
funding, to procure a new contract through a direct award to System C (the existing
supplier), for three years, and then return to the procurement for a replacement EPR to
be deployed in 2028.

The Committee discussed the value for money aspects of a direct award with System C.
It was noted that the Trust was in a slightly stronger negotiating position with a three
contract. In addition, the current EPR solution was well developed at the Trust and
Whittington Health was recognised as a valued client of System C. Trust was also a
well-developed digital organisation.

The Committee approved the recommended way forward to procure a new
contract for the provision of the EPR System with System C under a direct
contract award.

Cyber Security Assurance

The Committee received good assurance on the level of cyber security protection in
place at the Trust and that the Trust was meeting the required standards via multi-
agencies in the System.

The Committee considered key risks to cyber security which were identified as:
e Staff that were unaware of suspicious emails from unidentified sources with
malware, phishing, ID theft and spoofing.
e Capital constraints particularly around the big Microsoft upgrades that will need to be
implemented by 2025.

The Committee discussed staff training on information governance and cyber security
and agreed that it would be helpful to see the programme of training to be rolled out.
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The Committee noted the report and agreed that a regular cyber security
assurance report would be brought to the Committee in a biannual basis.

Data Security & Protection Toolkit (DSPT) Submission 2022/23

The Committee received good assurance on the organisation’s performance against the
National Data Guardian’s 10 data security standards. The Trust had met 32 of the 34
DSPT assertions and an improvement plan had been implemented to address two
evidence items the Trust was unable to meet, notably around:

e Compliance with the requirement for staff to complete their annual data security
awareness training, the Trust achieved a compliance rate of 87% against a
trajectory of minimum of 95%.

e Procurement and the supply of IT systems that could impact on the delivery of care
or process personal identifiable data should have the appropriate certification.

The Committee was assured that a comprehensive improvement plan was in place.
The Committee noted the report.

Update on Strategic Projects

The Committee noted a schematic update on the progress of strategic digital projects
mapped against the Trust’s digital strategy. It was noted that most projects were on
track with the exception of closed loop medicines administration and task strategy both
of which required developmental work through System C.

The Committee noted the report.

Emergency Department Performance Deep Dive

The Committee received a presentation on current performance against standards of the
urgent and emergency care department, challenges, interventions and actions. It was
reported that performance in the emergency department against 4 hour waiting times
was below national standard at 65.8% against a standard of 95%. It was recognised that
poor performance was a national issue and organisations had been requested to aim
towards a recovery target of 76%. Performance over time had declined since the start of
the pandemic, additionally the emergency department is often overcrowded with patients
as a result of flow issues across emergency care pathways. The Committee was
advised that a whole system approach and a transformational change was needed in
order to improve performance.

The Committee was advised that the following improvement actions would be taken:

e Work with system partners, including management consultants and the Emergency
Care Intensive Support Team (ECIST)

Matching staff into demand.

Optimise the environment.

Modernise clinical pathways.

Delivery of the “We lead” agenda.

Improving patient and staff experience.

Reducing length of stay and agency spend.

In discussion the Committee raised the following points:
e The Trust was below average across NCL and the rest of London which would prompt
the question on how other Trusts were managing emergency care.
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Frailty would need a refocus.

The appropriateness of admissions should be considered not only bed numbers.
It was felt that the emergency care pressures were not restricted to the Trust.
The immediate priority focus was on length of stay and flow.

The Committee was moderately assured that a work progamme was in place that would
address all of the issues and promote discussions with local authorities, the ambulance
service and primary care.

The Committee thanked colleagues for the presentation would look forward to a
future update on progress.

Committee Terms of Reference

The Committee received the revised terms of reference which was amended to include

new areas of responsibility which covered:

e Performance on data quality metrics and performance improvement which would
include a deep dive across all Integrated Clinical Support Units.

e Operational performance against local system and national targets

e Delivery of the Green Sustainability strategy and plan.

The terms of reference reflected the change in name of the Committee which was agreed
as the Improvement, Performance and Digital Committee (IPDC) and a change in the
frequency of meetings from quarterly to bimonthly.

The Committee approved the revised terms of reference which would be ratified by
the Trust Board.

Digital Innovation Celebration Event

The Committee was informed of the plans for the Trust to hold an event to showcase
some of the innovative digital changes that had taken place at the Trust during the past
18 months. The event was scheduled to take place on 27 July 2023 at the
Undergraduate Lecture Theatre at Whittington Hospital. A number of presentations with
system demonstrations were planned with Q&A on each presentation. The Trust Board
and representatives from North Central London Integrated Care Board, System C and
Innovation Fellows from University College London Partners were among the invitees.

The Committee noted the event.

Present:

Junaid Bajwa, Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair)

Naomi Fulop, Non-Executive Director

Helen Brown, Chief Executive

Kevin Curnow, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer
Jonathan Gardner, Director of Strategy & Corporate Affairs

Sam Barclay, Clinical Chief Information Officer

Mark Livingstone, Director of Allied Health Professionals

lolanda Pedrosa, Chief Nursing, Midwifery & Allied Health Professionals
Information Officer

Chinyama Okunuga, Chief Operating Officer

In attendance:
Helen Taylor, Deputy Director Strategy and Clinical Director, ACW ICSU
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Tawanda Maposa, Assistant Director of IM&T
Duncan Carmichael, Consultant Emergency Medicine
Abbey Hamilton, Director of Operations EIM

Marcia Marrast-Lewis, Assistant Trust Secretary

Apologies:
Hugo Mathias, Chief Information Officer
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Improvement, Performance and Digital Committee (IPDC) terms of reference

1.2

Authority

The Board of Directors hereby resolves to establish a Committee to be known as the
Improvement, Performance and Digital Committee (IPDC) (the Committee). This
Committee has no executive powers other than those delegated in these terms of
reference.

The Committee is authorised by the Board to:

e investigate any activity within its terms of reference

¢ seek any information it requires for any employee, and all employees are
directed to co-operate with any request made by the Committee

e obtain outside legal or other professional advice, if it considers this necessary,
via the Trust Secretary

Role
The role of the Committee is to provide assurance to the Trust Board that:

the Trust’s operational performance (e.g. efficiency and waiting times) and actions
and trajectories in place to address any areas of performance concerns

there is a successful development of our green (sustainability) strategy and the
implementation of its action plan

there is an effective structure, process and system of control for the governance of
innovation and transformation matters and the management of risks related to
them

there is a Trust Innovation / Transformation Strategy and it is being sucessfully
implemented

the Trust complies with its obligations with regard to commercial opportunities
appropriate processes and systems are in place for data, information management
and governance to allow Whittington Health to meet its stated objectives,
legislative responsibilities and any relevant requirements and standards
determined for NHS providers

there is continuous improvement in relation to information governance and
information security within the Trust and that risks arising from this are being
managed appropriately

the procurement of major and critical IT systems or equipment is carried out so
that it is fit for purpose and secures value for money

Membership
The membership of the Committee shall comprise:

At least two Non-Executive Directors (one of whom shall Chair this Committee);
Director of Strategy (lead executive director for the committee);

Chief Finance Officer

Chief Operating Officer

Chief Information Officer
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e Chief Clinical Information Officer
e Chief Nursing Information Officer
e Lead Allied Health Professional

4. Quorum and attendance

4.1 The Committee shall be deemed to be quorate if attended by one Non-Executive
Directors (NEDs) of the Trust (to include the Chair or designated alternate) and two
executive directors. All NEDs can act as substitutes on all Board Committees.

4.2 In the event that an executive director member of the committee is unable to attend a
meeting, they are required to send a deputy director from their directorate in their
stead.

4.3
The following members of staff will be in attendance at committee meetings:

e Deputy Chief Operating Officer
e Head of Performance
e Director of Estates & Facilities

4.4 The Secretary of the Committee will keep a register of attendance for inclusion in the
Trust’s Annual Report.

5. Frequency of meetings

5.1 The Committee must consider the frequency and timing of meetings needed to allow
it to discharge all its responsibilities. The Committee shall meet at least four times a
year but aim to meet every 2 months. The Committee Chair can call special
meetings, if required.

6. Agenda and papers

6.1 Meetings of the Committee will be called by the Committee Chair. The agenda will be
drafted by the Committee Secretary and approved by the Committee Chair prior to
circulation.

6.2 Notification of the meeting, location, time, and agenda will be forwarded to
Committee members, and others called to attend, at least one full week before the
meeting. Supporting papers will also be sent out at this time.

7. Duties

7.1 The Committee will carry out the following duties for the Trust Board:

I. Monitor operational performance areas, in particular efficiency and waiting
times;

ii. Review the Sustainability (Green) Strategy and monotor the implementation of
its plan, receiving regular progress reports to scruinise delivery and the meeting
of key milestones and receive an annual report on perfomance against our net
zero route map;

iii. Keep under review the development and delivery of the Trust’s Innovation,
Digital and Transformation Strategies in reponse to national guidance and
emerging opportunities;

iv. Ensure there are robust systems and processes in place across the
organisation to make informed and accurate decisions concerning innovation,
business intelligence, digital and business intelligence investments;

v. Ensure that decisions taken at a Board level, have sufficiently considered and
taken account of impacts and benefits of digital and innovative approaches;
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vi. Receive details of innovation and digital priorities that arise from annual
business planning processes and to receive exception reports on any significant
risks or issues;

vii. Ensure that effective digital enablers are put in place to drive innovation and the
digital agenda,;

viii. Advise the Board on key strategic risks relating to innovation, digital,
transformation, business intelligence and our green sustainability plan and
review their effective mitigation;

ix. Receive and review regular reports from the Information Group, Investment
Group, Transformation Programme Board and Innovation and Digital
Transformation Group as well as reports on the quarterly performance reviews
for Integrated Clincial Service Units; and

X. Review and report progress on the mitigation of relevant entries on the Board
Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk reguster covered by its remit.

8.2

8.3

8.4

Reporting
Members and those present should state any conflicts of interest and the Secretary
should minute them accordingly.

A Committee Chair’s assurance will be prepared for the next meeting of the Trust
Board. The Chair of the Committee shall draw to the attention of the Board key risks
and concerns any issues that require disclosure, or executive action.

The Trust’s annual report shall include a section describing the work of the
Committee in discharging its responsibilities.

The Committee shall receive reports from the following Trust fora:
Trust Management Group

Information Group

Transformation Programme Board

Innovation and Digital Transformation Group

Investment Group

Integrated Clinical Service Units’ quarterly performance reviews

9.2

9.3

Monitoring and review

The Committee will produce an annual work plan and, in line with good corporate
governance practice, carry out an annual review of effectiveness against its terms of
reference and delivery of its annual work plan.

The Board of Directors will monitor the effectiveness of the Committee through
receipt of the Committee's minutes and such written or verbal reports that the Chair
of the Committee might provide.

These terms of reference were approved by the Board of Directors in April 2023 and
will be reviewed, at least annually.
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Meeting title Trust Board — public meeting Date: 21 July 2023
Report title Finance Report June (Month 03) 2023/24 Agendaitem: 8

Executive director lead

Kevin Curnow, Chief Finance Officer

Report author

Finance Team

Executive summary

The Trust is reporting a deficit of £8.29m at the end of June which is
£1.36m worse than plan. The planned deficit to end of June was
£6.94m.

The year-to-date adverse financial performance to plan is mainly
driven by:

e Non-delivery of savings on Cost Improvement Programmes
(CIP)

e The continued opening of winter ward, Endoscopy fourth room
and the cost of strike cover.

e Elective recovery fund (ERF) underperformance

e Other expenditure overspends

The cash position at the end of June was £64.6m.

Purpose

To discuss June’s performance.

Recommendation(s)

Board members are asked to note financial performance at the end of
month three, recognising the need to improve savings delivery.

Board Assurance
Framework

BAF risks — Sustainable 1 and 2 entries

Report history

July 2023 meetings of Finance and Business Development
Committee and Trust Management Group

Appendices

None
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CFO Message

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Finance Report M03

Trust reporting
£8.29m deficit
at the end of
June - £1.36m
worse than
plan

Cash of £64.6m
as at end of
June

Internally
funded capital
plan of £12.2m

for 2023-24

Better Payment
Practice
Performance —
96.1% for non-
NHS by value

The Trust is reporting a deficit of £8.29m at the end of June which is £1.36m
worse than plan. The planned deficit to end of June was £6.94m.

Key drivers for year-to-date financial performance are.

e Underperformance of £1.6m against year-to-date Cost Improvement
Programmes (CIP) target; The Trust delivered £1.1m savings year to
date against a target of £2.7m.

e The continued opening of winter ward (Thorogood £0.6m) and
Endoscopy 4th room (£0.3m), provision of enhanced care and additional
cost incurred (£0.6m) to provide cover during the strikes in April and
June.

e The Trust spent £4.13m on agency staff against a planned target of
£4.36m. The Discretionary Spend Scrutiny panel is continuing work with
the ICSUs to control and monitor agency spend.

e ERF performance is £0.9m adverse year to date. However, revised
guidance from NHSI/E is for Trusts to assume a clawback of only 30%
relating to ERF wunder performance. Hence the reported
underperformance for ERF is £0.4m. This revised guidance is to reflect
the impact of strikes in April.

As at the end of June, the Trust closed with a cash balance of £64.6m, an
increase of £0.7m more than May’s figure. Interest received on cash balances
year to date was £0.8m against a plan of £0.3m.

Internally funded capital plan for 2023-24 is £12.3mCapital expenditure at 30"
June was £4.17m, of which £1.28m is related to PDC funded projects and
£2.90m for internally funded projects.  The Trust is yet to receive its capital
allocation for strategic projects from the ICS for 2023-24.

The Trust is signed up to the NHS commitment to improve its Better Payment
Practice Code (BPPC) whereby the target is to pay 95% of all invoices within
the standard credit terms. Overall, the Trust's BPPC is 97% by volume and
95.5% by value. The BPPC for non-NHS invoices is 97.7% by volume and
96.1% by value.



1. Summary of Income & Expenditure Position — Month

In Month Year to Date
Variance Actual Variance 283;21
2 0[00) £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
NHS Clinical Income 24,662 25,215 554 73,809 75,442 1,633 295,403
High Cost Drugs - Income 747 941 193 2,451 2,655 204 9,803
Non-NHS Clinical Income 1,752 1,917 165 5,300 5,916 616 24,869
Other Non-Patient Income 2,062 2,064 2 6,188 6,374 186 24,756
Elective Recovery Fund 5,009 5,247 238 13,357 12,980 (377) 55,137

34,232 35,384 1,152 101,105 103,367 2,262 409,968
Pay
Agency 0 (1,196) (1,196) 0 (4,132) (4,132) 0
Bank (347) (2,818) (2,471) (1,1242) (8,003) (6,861) (4,856)
Substantive (24,874) (23,202) 1,672 (74,678)  (66,988) 7,690 (283,242)

(25,222) (27,216) (1,995) (75,819)  (79,123) (3,304)  (288,097)
Non Pay
Non-Pay (7,925) (8,075) (150) (23,905) (24,630) (726) (85,449)
High Cost Drugs - Exp (852) (817) 35 (2,555) (2,488) 68 (10,222)

(8,777) (8,892) (115) (26,460) (27,118) (658) (95,670)
EBITDA 234 (724) (958) (1,174) (2,874) (1,700) 26,201
Post EBITDA
Depreciation (1,516) (1,532) (16) (4,549) (4,596) 47) (18,749)
Interest Payable (79) (26) 54 (238) (190) 48 (952)
Interest Receivable 104 287 183 312 804 491 1,250
Dividends Payable (429) (479) (50) (1,286) (1,437) (151) (5,750)
P/L On Disposal Of Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(1,920) (1,750) 170 (5,761) (5,419) 342 (24,201)
Reported Surplus/(Deficit) (1,686) (2,474) (788) (6,935) (8,293) (1,358) 2,000
Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
IFRS & Donated (8) (5) 3 (23) (15) 8 (92)
Reported Surplus/(Deficit)
after Impairments and (1,694) (2,479) (785) (6,958) (8,308) (1,350) 1,908
IFRIC12

e The Trust year to date financial position as at the end of June is a deficit of £8.29m
(excluding donated asset depreciation and impairments) against a planned deficit of
£6.94m. This is £1.36m worse than planned.

e The adverse variance on CIP delivery in month is driving the overall position (£1.6m
adverse variance on CIP) and is partially offset by slippage on other planned investments.

¢ Included within the position is the reflection of the agreed pay uplift for all agenda for
change staff.



2. Income and Activity Performance

2.1 Income Performance - June

In Month YTD
In Month In Month  YTD Income YTD
Income Plan Income Variance Plan Income Variance
Actual Actual
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
A&E 1,652 1,737 85 5,012 4,984 (27)
Elective 2,306 2,142 (164) 6,304 6,029 (275)
Non-Elective 4,661 4,703 41 14,134 13,489 (644)
Critical care 487 487 (2) 1,479 1,219 (260)
Outpatients 4,641 4,494 (148) 12,674 12,578 (96)
Ambulatory 580 555 (25) 1,759 1,599 (160)
Direct access 1,240 1,371 131 3,382 4,066 685
Community 6,499 6,499 0 19,496 19,496 0
Other clinical income NHS 3,345 4,169 824 12,021 14,594 2,573
NHS Clinical Income 25,413 26,156 743 76,260 78,055 1,795
Non NHS clinical income 1,748 1,917 169 5,300 5,916 616
Elective recovery fund (ERF) 5,009 5,247 238 13,357 12,980 (377)
Income From Patient Care Activities] 32,170 33,320 1,150 94,917 96,951 2,034
Other Operating Income 2,062 2,064 2 6,188 6,416 228

34,232 101,105 103,367

e Income was £1.2m over plan in month and £2.3m over plan year to date.

e NHSclinical income is mainly CCG and NHSE block contract income, with small variable
element for provider-to-provider income. The income shown against the points of
delivery, e.g. A&E are notional activity-based values, with the balancing amount to block
values shown against other clinical income NHS.

e £0.7m NHS clinical income in month overperformance relates to £0.4m 2023/24 pay
award accrual (This is offset with a matching expenditure accrual) and £0.2m drugs
overperformance and £0.1m additional NCL ICB income (children’s integrated therapies)

e £0.2m Non-NHS clinical income in month overperformance driven by £0.1m local
authority (£0.12m neurodevelopment ADHD hub) and £0.1m CAMHS

e  Other operating income was on plan in month, with no significant variances in
subcategories.

2.2  Elective recovery fund (ERF) — June

e ERFvariance is £0.4m year to date. Due to national strikes, there was instruction to ICBs
from NHSE to neutralise any under or over performance against national targets. NCL
ICB advised to provide 30% of estimated ERF underperformance for April to June. Based
on June SUS early data, underperformance is estimated to be £0.9m.



2.3

Activity Performance — June

In Month In month . . .. L.
In Month e In Month e YTD Activity YTD Activity Activity YTD Activity
- Activity . Activity . .
Activity Plan Variance . Plan Actual Diff Diff%
Actual Diff%
A&E 8,859 9,098 239 3% 26,871 25,909 (962) (4%)
Elective 2,404 2,369 (35) (1%) 6,559 6,461 (98) (1%)
Non-Elective 1,539 1,399 (140) (9%) 4,666 4,115 (551) (12%)
Critical care 304 374 70 23% 921 923 2 0%
Outpatients 31,686 31,617 (69) (0%) 86,483 88,244 1,761 2%
Ambulatory 1,892 1,811 (81) (4%) 5,738 5,219 (519) (9%)
Direct Access 103,381 110,395 7,014 7% 281,948 340,350 58,402 21%

Elective, outpatients and direct activity is over plan, with underperformance in A&E, non-
elective, critical care and ambulatory.

Activity increased compared to previous month adjusted for calendar/working days,
except for slight decrease in ambulatory activity.

June 2023/24 activity vs 2019/20, 2023/24 plan and previous
month (Previous month & 2019/20 adjusted to match
working/calendar days)

W 2019/20 M™2023/24Budget ™ Previous Month  W2023/24 Actual

8,921 8,859 g 538 9,098

2,2652,403 2,443 2,368 1 863 1 5381 365 1 308 1,794 1,892 1,927 1,811

A&E Elective Non-Elective Outpatients Ambulatory

Majority of specialties were on plan, with the 1% underperformance in total elective
activity driven mainly by medical oncology (21% under plan), urology (23%), paediatric
clinical haematology (45%), gynaecology (12%). Offset by gastroenterology (10% over
plan), paediatric clinical immunology (7%) and vascular surgery (519%)



June 2023/24 elective activity vs 2019/20, 2023/24
plan and previous month (Previous month & 2019/20 adjusted to match
working/calendar days)

M2019/20 m2023/24Budget ® Previous Month M 2023/24 Actual

1,244 1277

1,213

AC ACW CYp EIM S&C

June 2023/24 elective activity vs 2019/20, 2023/24
plan and previous month (Previous month & 2019/20 adjusted to match
working/calendar days)

W2019/20 m2023/24Budget ®Previous Month ~ M2023/24 Actual

Gynaecology Paediatric Clinical Paediatric Clinical Gastroenterology Medical Oncology Urology Vascular Surgery
Haematology Immunology And Allergy

ACW CYp EIM S&C

Majority of specialties were on plan, with the 2% overperformance in outpatient activity
driven mainly by gastroenterology (44% over plan), general surgery (16%), diagnostic
imaging (10%), physio (56%) and physio (non-direct access) (44%). Offset by
underperformance in LUTS (43% under plan), respiratory medicine (24%), obstetrics (5%),
urology (20%), anticoagulant service (30%), clinical haematology (25%), paediatrics (17%)
and rheumatology (33%)



June 2023/24 outpatient activity vs 2019/20, 2023/24 plan and previous month
(Previous month & 2019/20 adjusted to match working/calendar days)

®2019/20 W2023/24Budget ™ PreviousMonth ~ 2023/24 Actual

14,596
14,038 13,819

9050 gon5 573 042

2,050 2174 1967 1935

AC ACW CYp EIM S&C

June 2023/24 outpatient activity vs 2019/20, 2023/24 plan and previous month
(Previous month & 2019/20 adjusted to match working/calendar days)

H2019/20 m2023/24Budget M Previous Month W 2023/24 Actual
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3.1

Expenditure — Pay & Non-pay
Pay Expenditure

Overall pay is overspent by £3.30m year to date compared to plan. Included in the pay
spend is the cost of Thorogood ward remaining opened (£0.59m) and net costs to cover
junior doctor strike (£0.61m). Other operational movements are from unachieved CIPs
across all ICSUs part of which are currently being offset by vacancies and slippages in some
of the planned investments.

Pay expenditure for June was £27.22m with operational pay been £3.33m higher than May.
The Year to date effect of the pay award is reflected in the June substantive position while
movement in the non-operational position includes the reversal of holding accrual for the
month 1 and 2 pay uplift and an accrual to cover the funded element of the Medical pay
uplift (£0.29m). The pay uplift is partially offset by additional income.

2022-23 2023-24

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Mov/t
Agency 1,914 1,895 2,496 1,631 1,234 1,223 (10)
Bank 2,709 2,729 3,648 2,651 2,533 2,817 284
Substantive 20,638 20,711 20,666 20,561 20,960 24,015 3,056
Total Operational Pay 25,261 25,335 26,809 24,842 24,726 28,055 3,329
Non Operational Pay Costs 47 (1,498) 17,357 999 1,340 (839) (2,179)
0
Total Pay Costs 25,308 23,837 44,166 25,841 26,066 27,216 1,150
£'000 Pay Expenditure & WTE WTES
50,000 5,200
45,000
5,100
40,000
35,000
5,000
30,000
25,000 [ p— m =B 4,900
20,000
4,800
15,000
10,000
4,700
5,000 I
0 4,600
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
2022 2023
. Agency Spend 1,682 1,568 1,528 1,313 1,431 1,359 1,545 1,711 1,809 1,914 689 as58 1,631 1,306 1,196
Bank Spend 2,655 2,327 2,698 2,930 2,976 2,529 2,598 1,774 2,826 2,712 2,433 2,787 2,652 2,533 12,818
N Substantive Spend | 20,193 20,353 19,743 19,790 19,371|22,028 19,798 20,819 19,279 20,682 20,716 40,421 21,559|22,227 23,202
—— WTE 4,780 | 4,851 4,834 4,852 4,848 | 4,815 4,820 4,832 4,888 4,977 4,968 5,146 4,952 | 4,995 5,012

March 2023 substantive pay costs included £11m additional pension contribution from Department of Health and cost of 2022/23
non-consolidated pay bonus £8.5m.



£'000 Agency Expenditure & WTE WTEs
2,500 350
300
2,000
250
1,500
200
150
1,000
100
500
50
0
Apr May Jun Ju Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Agency Spend 1,682 | 1,568 | 1,528 | 1,313 | 1,431 | 1,359 | 1,545 1,711 1,809 | 1,914 689 958 1,631 1,306 1,196
e— A gency Usage Cap 1,641 | 1,356 | 1,356
g \\/ TE 235 244 230 232 221 199 210 230 225 268 260 291 200 194 179

*2023-24 agency usage cap figures issued by NHSE. Lower spend in Feb & March is due to release of non-recurrent provisions.

Non-pay Expenditure

Non-pay spend for June was £8.08m. YTD expenditure include the Histopathology service
delivered by UCL, reactive maintenance and other repair costs across the Trust, Smoking
cessation service, increased clinical consumables and unachieved CIPs.

Non-Pay Costs Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Mov/t
Supplies & Servs - Clin 3,373 3,450 5,711 3,112 3,161 3,514 353
Supplies & Servs - Gen 301 305 588 333 376 442 66
Establishment 327 245 412 263 240 284 45
Healthcare From Non Nhs 288 (230) 58 95 79 85 6
Premises & Fixed Plant 1,281 2,239 4,596 2,286 1,924 2,431 507
Ext Cont Staffing & Cons 538 717 698 193 388 265 (123)
Miscellaneous 1,671 536 (8,221) 1,821 1,836 1,295 (542)
Chairman & Non-Executives 11 11 9 9 9 9 0
Non-Pay Reserve 14 (140) 0 42 388 (251) (638)
Total Non-Pay Costs 7,804 7,132 3,852 8,155 8,400 8,075 (325)

Excludes high-cost drug expenditure and depreciation.
Miscellaneous Expenditure Breakdown

Miscellaneous Breakdown Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Mov/t
Ambulance Contract 213 75 138 175 206 185 (22)
Other Expenditure (289) 144 (10,306) 155 85 166 81
Audit Fees 12 12 o 15 12 (17) (29)
Provision For Bad Debts 188 (997) (15) 65 94 (238) (331)
Cnst Premium 827 810 827 821 821 821 o
Fire Security EQuip & Maint 11 16 14 5 5 6 1
Interpretation/Translation 15 5 a7 27 8 31 23
Membership Subscriptions 119 131 166 125 159 117 (43)
Professional Services 408 162 (73) 355 354 115 (239)
Research & Development Exp 124 7 312 (1) (1) (1) (0)
Security Internal Recharge 10 10 12 10 11 14 3
Teaching/Training Expenditure 30 155 633 66 77 92 15
Travel & Subs-Patients 3 7 3 2 4 4 o
Work Permits o o o o o [e) o
Write Down Of Inventories o (0] 23 o (o] o (o]
Total Non-Pay Costs 1,671 536 (8,221) 1,821 1,836 1,295 (542)

Included in miscellaneous is CNST premium, Transport contract, professional fees, and bad debt provision



3.2

Cost Improvement Programmes (CIP)
The CIP target for 2023-24 is £17.98m. The targets have been allocated to ICSU and
corporate divisions as part of 2023-24 budgets.

23/24 CIP

Target Allocated
£'000

ADULT COMMUNITY

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE
EMERGENCY & INTEGRATED MEDICINE
SURGERY & CANCER

ACW

ICSU TOTAL

CORPORATE SERVICES TOTAL

1,683
2,525
3,171
3,054
3,424
13,857
4,127

CIP GRAND TOTAL 17,984

Year to Actuals

CORPORATE DIRECTORATES

23/24 CIP Target

Allocated £'000

CHIEF OPERATION OFFICER
ESTASTES & FACILITIES
FINANCE

ICT

MEDICAL DIRECTOR

TRUST SECRETARIAT
WORKFORCE
PROCUREMENT
CORPORATE TOTAL

NURSING & PATIENT EXPERIENCE

131
2,130
355
511
130
352
139
325
54
4,127

At the end of June, the Trust is reporting actual delivery of £1.11m year to date of CIP

against a target of £2.70m.

ADULT COMMUNITY

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE
EMERGENCY & INTEGRATED MEDECINE
SURGERY & CANCER

ACW

ICSU TOTAL

CORPORATE SERVICES

ESTATES & FACILITIES

PROCUREMENT
CIP GRAND TOTAL

23/24cip

Target
Allocated

1,683
2,525
3,171
3,054
3,424
13,857
1,943
2,130

54
17,984

YTD
Variance
£'000

YTD Plan
£'000

YTD Actuals
£'000

252
379
476
458
514
2,079
291
320

8

2,698

203
303
52

20
252
829
280

2

0
1,111

(50)
(76)
(424)
(438)
(261)
(1,249)
(12)
(318)
(8)




Statement of Financial Position (SoFP)

The net balance on the Statement of Final Position as of 30th June 2023 is £238.14m,
£2.49m lower than May 2023, as shown in the table below.

. . . 2022/23 M12 2023/24 M2 2023/24 M3 Movement in
Statement of Financial Position as at 30th Balance Balance Balance Month
June 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property, Plant And Equipment 230,044 236,430 235,473 (957)
Intangible Assets 7,051 7,846 7,616 (230)
Right of Use Assets 36,444 35,745 38,727 2,983
Assets Under Construction 31,917 25,491 26,500 1,009
Trade & Other Rec-Non-Current 584 574 483 (91)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 306,040 306,085 308,799 2,714
CURRENT ASSETS:
Inventories 942 1,185 1,056 (128)
Trade And Other Receivables 25,881 28,171 17,768 (10,403)
Cash And Cash Equivalents 72,991 63,903 64,620 717
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 99,813 93,258 83,445 (9,813)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade And Other Payables (80,777) (79,773) (73,823) 5,951
Borrowings: Finance Leases (808) (639) (808) (169)
Borrowings: Right of Use Assets (4,370) (4,370) (4,370) 0
Borrowings: Dh Revenue and Capital Loan - Current (116) (116) (116) 0
Provisions for Liabilities and Charges (1,774) (1,763) (1,763) 0
Other Liabilities (2,701) (3,860) (2,385) 1,475
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (90,545) (90,521) (83,265) 7,257
NET CURRENT ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 9,268 2,737 180 (2,557)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 315,309 308,822 308,979 157
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings: Dh Revenue and Capital Loan - Non-Current (1,624) (1,624) (1,624) 0
Borrowings: Finance Leases (3,011) (3,011) (2,750) 261
Borrowings: Right of Use Assets (32,250) (31,580) (34,488) (2,908)
Provisions for Liabilities & Charges (31,963) (31,976) (31,976) 0
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (68,848) (68,191) (70,838) (2,647)
TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED 246,460 240,632 238,141
FINANCED BY TAXPAYERS EQUITY
Public Dividend Capital 120,707 120,707 120,707 0
Retained Earnings 25,454 19,625 17,135 (2,490)
Revaluation Reserve 100,300 100,300 100,300 (0)
TOTAL TAXPAYERS EQUITY 246,460 240,632 238,141

The most significant movements in the month to 30" June 2023 were as follows:

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade And Other Receivables close at £17.8m in June 23, a decrease of £10.4m, mainly

Agenda for change pay award income accrual (£8.4m) for 2022-23.

10




CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade And Other Payables closing at £73.8m in June 23 a significant decrease £5.9m,
mainly Agenda for change pay award expense (£8.4m) accrual for 2022-23.

Right of Use Assets and Borrowings increased by approximately equal amounts as a
result of remeasurement of several RoU leases.

Cash and Interest Received

The Trust’s cash balance at 30" June was £64.6m, which is £0.7m higher than at Month

2. This is an adverse variance to Plan of £5.6m. The Trust continues to progress work to
recover significant debts directly with its debtors.

Cash: Actual and Plan 2023-24 £000

80,000

70,000

60,000 \/

50,000

40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

o N N Ny 2 > <
N ) S
W N S v\\fo & 8 & & N & &
& ¢ F S &
C—)
@ P|an CASH Actual CASH

Year-to-date interest received is £0.80m which is favourable to Plan by £0.49m. The Plan
was set with an anticipated peak to interest rates around Month 6-7 of the 2023-24
financial year and expected reduction in cash balances during the year. Work with the
PMO team has determined that the amount of £0.20m can be identified as CIP with
minimal risk, whilst having regard to interest rate and cash balance reductions as the year
progresses.
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure at 30" June was £4.17m, of which £1.28m related to PDC-funded and
£2.90m to internally-funded projects. The PDC-funded expenditure includes £1.28m which
is incurred in respect of 2023/24 funded projects, which are planned to occur later in the
year and for which the PDC has not yet been drawn down.

Capital expenditure 2023/24
all: £000 April May June Cumulative
Plan Internally funded 1,236 377 377 1,990
PDC funded 0 0 0 0
Total 1,236 377 377 1,990
Actual Internally funded 1,504 460 931 2,895
PDC funded 225 940 111 1,276
Total 1,729 1,400 1,042 4,171
Variance |Internally funded (268) (83) (554) (905)
PDC funded (225) (940) (111) (1,276)
Total (493)| (1,023) (665) (2,181)

An ongoing risk is represented by expenditure relating to prior-year projects which continue
to incur expenditure, with £1.45m of the internally-funded expenditure above relating to
prior-year projects.

The Capital Plan was reviewed and approved at Capital Monitoring Group on 18t May, and
is expected to go to TMG imminently.

12
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Executive
Summary

Board Members should note that all metrics are shown in summary, but only
certain measures have been highlighted for further analysis and explanation
based on their trajectory, importance, and assurance.

This report should be read in the context of considerable pressures of high
demand in our urgent care pathways, as well as elective pathways, and in a
month where there was a 72 hour junior doctor strike. The organisation has put
considerable effort at every level to mitigate these issues through keeping extra
beds open and bringing in extra resources where possible.

Emergency Care Flow

During June 2023, performance against the 4-hour access standard was 65.3%,
which is lower than the NCL average of 72.78%, and lower than the London
average of 74.01% and the national average of 73.34%.

There were 195 12-hour trolley breaches in June 2023.

*12-hour trolley breaches show the numbers of patients who waited longer than 12 hours to be
admitted to the ward following a decision to admit (DTA)

Cancer

28 Day Faster Diagnosis was at 54.9% in May 2023 against a standard of 75%,
this is a worsening of 6.5% from April’s performance of 61.4%.

62-day referral to treatment performance was at 64.2% for May 2023 against a
target of 85%. This is an improvement of 6.4% from April’'s performance of 57.8%.
At the end of June 2023, the Trusts position against the 62-day backlog was
ahead of trajectory with 62 against a target of 99.

Referral to Treatment: 52+ Week Waits

Performance against 18-week standard for June was: 68.5%, this is a worsening
of 0.4% from May’s performance of 68.9%. The Trust position against the 52-week
performance has worsened from 693 patients waiting more than 52 weeks for
treatment in May 2023 to 727 in June 2023. The Trust had 4 patients over 78
weeks at the end of June 2023 against a target of 0.

Workforce

Appraisal rates have seen a steady improvement in June by 3.1% from 73.9% in
May 2023 to 77% in June 2023. Work continues to support service areas to
improve overall compliance. June’s performance for Mandatory was 86.3%
against a target of 85%, this has shown a sustained level of performance.

Purpose:

Review and assurance of Trust performance compliance

Recommendation

That the Board takes assurance the Trust is managing performance compliance
and is putting into place remedial actions for areas off plan

Page 1 of 2




Risk Register or
Board Assurance
Framework

The following BAF entries are linked: Quality 1; Quality 2; Quality 3;
People 1; and, People 2.

Report history

Trust Management Group
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NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust
. Last Reported Previous . -
[ndicator Month Latest Month Month 2023-2024 Variation Assurance Category 3 or 4 Pressure Ulcers - Target 0
Admissions to Adult .
Facilties of pts under 16 . T . ; , @ June Performance Category 3 12. (2 acute / .10 community)
yrs of age June Performance Category 4 — 3 in community
o 0\ Issues: Delayed or inaccurate skin assessment on admission to caseloads.
HCAI C Difficile <13 Jun 2 p 7 = . . . . . L
Issues with new community pressure relieving equipment supplier resulting in
delayed delivery and repair of dynamic mattresses, cushions and lateral turning
Actual Falls 400 Jun 21 31 79 , ,- platforms.
S Actions: Increased access to education, training and learning resources for all
Category 2 or 4 Pressure clinical staff. Trust escalation of community equipment issues to integrated Care
Ulcers 64 Jun 15 7 30 . ] Board.

Medication Errors causing 0 Jun . ) ) . Actual Falls - Target <400

serious harm o
- June Performance — 21 This is an improvement of 10 from 31 in May 2023.

MRSA Bacteraemia 0 Jun 0 0 0 | Compared to 2022/23 the total number of falls has decreased by 5% from 83 in
Incidences \/ June 2022 to 79 in June 2023.

Issues: There has been a small increase in the number of falls but decrease in the
Never Events 0 Jun 0 0 0 harm, with most being no harm or low.

Actions:
Serious Incidents N/A Jun 0 0 7 . | * Revision of guidelines, committees, and memberships to refocus work on falls.

— * Ongoing review and investment in equipment and signage detailing patients at
high risk of falls.
VTE Risk Assessment % >95% Jun 05.8% 95.6% 93.6% * Revision of education package and resources which mandates falls awareness
~\ training to be carried out.

;‘:::ghseﬁex Accomodation 0 Tun 9 g 26 fJ * Development of a post falls initiative for ongoing learning and self-reflection for

staff involved in falls.

. * Datix reporting of falls has new mandatory fields to support a better
Summary Hospital Level | 14 un , derstandi £whv a fall h d and identif istent th
Mortality Indicator (SHMI) . \™) understanding of why a fall has occurred and identify any consistent themes.

>



: NHS|
Responsive (Access) Whittington Health

NHS Trust

st Reported
Month

" La Previous
Indicator Target Month

Latest Month 2023-2024  Variation Assurance)

(7]
>
Cancer - 14 days to first seen >03% May 48.3% 42.7% 45.8% @ @ 8 q:)
()
S n
Cancer - 14 days to first seen - breast symptomatic =>03%,; May 8.0% 8.3% 8.2% | -
1 n
- =
Cancer - 62 days from referral to treatment =>85% May 64.2% 57.8% 60.7% @ @ [J TR
(8
c O
)
Cancer ITT - Reallocated Breach Performance for 62 Day Pathways =>85% May 64.2% 56.9% 60.2% @ @ 8
Cancer ITT - % of Pathways sent before 38 Days >85% May 20.0% 25.0% 23.1% @ @
Cancer - % Pathways received a Diagnosis within 28 Days of Referral >75% May 54.9% 61.4% 57.7% @ @ >
O
) oo
Cancer - 21 days to first treatment >06% May 95.2% 95.0% 05.1% '.,\ /_.' o g
o (o] E
Cancer - 31 days to subsequent treatment - surgery =049, May ; -
hs
Cancer - 62 Day Screening >090% May 25.0% 30.0% 37.5% \ ) @ c
LY F
(&)
DMO1 - Diagnostic Waits (<6 weeks) >09% Jun 79.35% 81.52% B0.27% @ @
RTT - Incomplete % Waiting <18 weeks >02% Jun 68.6% 68.9% 67.2% @ @
Referral to Treatment 18 weeks - 52 Week Waits 0 Jun 727 693 2047 @ @
% seen <=48 hours of Referral to District Nursing Service >05% Jun 03.0% 83.7% 89.1% @ @
Haringey Mew Birth Visits - % seen within 2 weeks =>05%, May 91.7% 91.1% 01.4% ':,\ /_:' @
Islington Mew Birth Visits - % seen within 2 weeks >095% May 97.5% 93.5% 95.7% ':_ _:'
\‘-\-\_,-'/
&t}f Rapid Response Urgent referrals seen within 2 Hours of Referral Jun 78.0% 79.6% 79.6% | ) )
LY F
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Responsive (Access)

What the Data Tells Us

Cancer: 14 Days to First Seen
- Target >93%

No. of pts first seen by a specialist within
two weeks of referral.

May Performance — 48.3%

This is an improvement of 5.6%
from April’s performance of 42.7%

Cancer: 62 Day Performance
- Target >85%

No. of pts receiving their first treatment
for cancer within 62 days of GP referral.

May Performance — 64.2%

This is an improvement of 6.4%
from April’s performance of 57.8%

Cancer: 28 Day Faster
Diagnosis Standard (FDS) -
Target >75%

% Pathways Received a Diagnosis within
28 Days of Referral.

May Performance — 54.9%

This is a worsening of 6.5% from
April performance of 61.4%

Issues

Patients breaching the target within:

Breast One Stop 6.1% this is a worsening of 0.9% from
April. This is due to regular unavailability of imaging
input.

Dermatology 2WW 14% this is an improvement of 4.8%
from April.

Gynaecology Rapid Access Clinics 24.6%%, this is a
worsening of 3.3% since April. This is due to gaps in
workforce.

Patients breaching the target within:

Breast 40%, this is worsening of 15% from April.
Urology 75%, this is an improvement of 33% from April.

Colorectal 40%, this is a worsening of 10% from April. %
from 80% in March.

Patients breaching the target within:

Gynaecology 23%, this is a worsening of 15% since April.

Urology 37.2%, this is an improvement of 4% since April.

Colorectal 59.7%, this is a worsening of 2.4% since
March.

dermatology 57.6%, this is a worsening of 16% since
April.

Lung 66.7%, this is a worsening of 16% since April. This
is due to long waits for PET scans.

Actions and Mitigations

* Provide additional capacity for Breast One Stop, dermatology 2WW, and
Gynaecology Rapid Access Clinics.

* Careful monitoring of demand to ensure services keep pace with requirements.

* Monitoring of Appointment Slot Issues in dermatology and matching with
additional capacity.

* Track against recovery trajectory and take relevant actions depending on
speciality.

* Maximise all slots through DNA reductions and effective use of all available slots
utilising 6-4-2 methodology.

* Action plan as per 14 Days and 28 Day Faster Diagnosis Standard.

* Improve pathway coordination including treatment scheduling through tracking
twice per week.

* Clear sharing of PTL with clinicians so potential breaches can be mitigated.

* Prioritising Breast, Dermatology and Gynaecology for improvement in first
appointment.

* Consistent and effective tracking required together with co-ordination to
achieve outpatient review, diagnostics, histology and clinical review within the
28 Day period.

* Implementation of letters to inform patients that they do not have cancer.
Priority areas are urology, colorectal and gynae, hope to roll out by beginning of
August 2023.

* Ensure that gynaecology reviews and patient discharges happen regularly and
are not dependent on a single clinician.




Responsive (Access)

What the Data Tells Us

Referral to Treatment Incomplete % * The Trust was 4 patients away from

Waiting <18 week - Target 92%

June Performance - 68.6%
This is a worsening of 0.3% from May’s
performance of 68.9%

Referral to Treatment 18 weeks - 52
Week Waits - Target 0

June Performance - 727
This is a worsening of 34 from May’s
performance of 693

There were 4 Patients waiting over 78
weeks.

DMO1: Diagnostic Waits <6 weeks -
Target 99%

Percentage of patients waiting less than 6
weeks for 15 key diagnostic tests and
procedures.

June Performance — 79.35%
This is a worsening of 2.17% from May’s
performance of 81.52%

achieving the target of 0 over 78 weeks
for June, all 4 patients have plans to be
treated in July 2023.

* Surgical specialties continue to be the
key areas of risk, however risk is being
managed through mitigations.

* To note the overall 52 week position has
increased, however the number of long
waiters and waiting times has reduced.

* Key diagnostics with underperformance
are Audiology Assessments,
Echocardiography, Sleep Studies and
MRIs

* Capacity constraints in Audiology
Assessments, and Outpatient Cardiac

Testing continue to impact performance.

* MRI capacity has been impacted by the
junior doctor strike and sickness and
absence.

Actions and Mitigations

* Regular review of RTT
backlog at weekly review
meetings. This includes
weekly review by the Chief
Operating Officer.

* The total RTT backlog
remains consistent.

* 18 week RTT performance
has turned a corner and we
are starting to see
improvements, however the
improvement is not yet
statically significant and
therefore not yet reflected in
the data.

* Audiology will be
implementing extra clinics
from July to help with
recovery.

* Outpatient Cardiac plan in
place to eliminate backlog
and be compliant by
September 2023.

18 Weeks RTT
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Responsive (Emergency Department) Whittingtoanea.th

NHS Trust
Latest Month Previous - ’
Target — Latest Month Month 2023-2024 Varation | Assurance LAS Handovers - Target 0
LAS Patient Handover Times - 20 0 Jun 95 85 249 Number of Ambulance Handover delays of greater than 30 minutes
mins and 60 minutes.
rﬁﬁﬁ"ﬂﬁﬂﬂt Handover Times - 60 0 Jun 43 47 114 @ @ June Performance (30 mins) — 95
This is a worsening of 10 from 85 in May.
% streamed to an onsite service >7.5% Jun 2.5% 2.3% 2.3% ) @ June Performance (60 mins) — 43
) ) This is an improvement of 4 from 47 in May.
Meg:han Wait for Treatment < 60 Jun 105 103 a9 @
(minutes) min Actions: Key drivers affecting ambulance handover times are
% of ED attendance seen by : f_:““ physical capacity, and increased demand at times of heightened
dinician within 60 mins of arrival Jun 29.6% 38.0% 39.5% w pressures across the NCL.
Median time from Arrival to ;. 1as s . Mltlgatlons; The Trust ger?(::'rally performs'wellf however a review
Dedision to Admit - : - of more sustainable and resilient processes is being addressed as
part of the Urgent Emergency Care Improvement Programme.
12 Hour Trolley Waits in ED (i} Jun 195 302 670 @ @
Median Wait for Treatment - Target <60
Total ED Attendances in dept for Jun 619 508 1827
more than 12 hours (arrival to dept) Time from arrival to seeing a doctor or nurse practitioner.
% of ED Attendances over 12 hours - :
from Arrival to Departure <2% Jun 6.5% 7.9% 7.1% @ @ June Performance — 105 minutes
~ This is a worsening of 2 minutes from 103 in May
Emergency Department waits (4 hrs o . .
wait) >95% Jun 53.3% 6a.4% 55.9% L Issues: Overcrowding in ED is impacting ability to achieve target.
_ Actions: Although the issues affecting performance remain the
%o left ED before being seen Jun 13.0% 12.4% 11.7% @ same it is important to note that the improvement work being
undertaken that will bring about step changes. This should help
% ED re-attendance within 7 days Jun 10.8% 10.2% 10.4% @ improve overall performance within the ED department.
J




Responsive (Emergency Department)

What the Data Tells Us

% Of ED Attendances Over 12

Hours - Target <2%
Percentage of patients in ED for more than
12 hour.

June Performance - 6.8%
This is an improvement of 1.1%
from May’s performance of 7.9%.

12-Hour Trolley Waits in ED -
Target O

No. of patients who waited longer than 12
hours to be admitted to the ward following
a decision to admit.

June Performance — 195
(Average 6.5 per day)

This is an improvement of 107 from
May’s performance of 302.

Emergency Department Waits
(4 hrs wait) - Target >95%

No. of patients treated within 4
hours of arrival in ED.

June Performance — 65.3%
This is an improvement of 0.9%
from May’s performance of 64.4%.

Recurrent Issues effecting ED are:

= Qvercrowding in the Emergency
Department.

= Long lengths of stay and delays
in the discharge processes.

= Continued use of Same Day
Emergency Care as escalation
capacity..

Other issues impacting June’s
performance:

* Poor UTC performance —demand
for the UTC Service far
outweighs the current Service
provision.

* Increased length of stay of
Mental Health patients due to
sector wide Mental Health bed
capacity issues.

* High number of LAS diversions to
the Trust has resulted in higher
than expected activity and has
negatively impacted ED
performance. Admissions from
this cohort have resulted in an
increase in patients with
complex discharge pathways.

Actions and Mitigations

In addition to ongoing actions as
provided in previous months:

= The High Intensity users Forum will
be restarting in July.

= Working with system partners as
part of the inflow workstream
which is directly under the
governance of the Accident and
Emergency Deliver Board.

= The Emergency Department is
working with the Emergency Care
Improvement Support Team and
PA Consulting to support
improvements in admission and
discharge pathways.

Work continues to address key areas
to maintain sustainable results.

The support from external agencies
will provide additional support for
delivery.

ED Attendances Over

12-Hour Trolley Waits

ED 4 hour Waits

NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

12 Hours
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Whittington Health

[ ]
Responsive (Flow) - Length Of Stay
NHS Trust
England Whittington Health
g Pati ing a bed for 21+ d R i i A
atients occupying a bed for ays Patients occupying a bed for 21+ days
| |
Weekly average of beds cccupied by adult patients in an acute hospital for 21+ days Weekly average of beds occupied by adult patients in an acute hospital for 21+ days
{no significant change) Common cause varistion (no significant change)
ing nature Special causs rming nature
roving nature Special causs varistion of an improving nature
XmR chart ({displaying a maximum of last 75 weeks), data drawn from start of previous financial year AmR chart (displaying a maximum of last 75 weeks), data drawn from start of previous financial year
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Length of Stay

Nationally there has been a marked improvement in the overall number of patients with a length of stay greater than 21 days, seeing a downward trend
since April 2023. However the number of patients at Whittington Health has seen an upward trend since April 2023 through to June 2023.




Responsive (Flow) — Length Of Stay

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Beds occupied by adult patients in an acute hospital for 21+, 14+, and

days

SPC - 01/04/2020 to 30/06/2023

r
Length of Stay

Beds occupied by long stay patients as a proportion of total occupied beds

* Length of stay remains Weekly average

high across all 3 main Ty p——T e —T—
indicators with no 2
significant change or
improvement since
October 2021. -
* The numbers of g
patients over 7 days in g o N N N AN

hospital since October
2021 have remained Now 19 1 Mar
high (average of 127 Woecey: e daye
patients per day to the

current period) Beds occupied by long stay patients as a proportion of total occupied beds

Year on year comparison

* During the first 2 years ‘
of the pandemic the
trust saw an average of :
5 patients over 50 days. 2
Since the start of 2022 8
this has increased to an
average of 13 patients.

Number of Patients Admitted to Acute Ward - Over 7 Days @ Thursday Bam - Targe!

n.. of .’ t
Je N1 e ate® s alnet

LOS over 7 days

m—
SPC - 01/04/2020 to 30/06/2023

Number of Patients Admitted to Acute Ward - Over 21 Days @ Thursday 8am - Target

_________________________ e FIRY
' ']

LOS over 21 days

SPC - 01/04/2020 to 30/06/2023

Number of Patients Admitted to Acute Ward - Over 50 Days @ Thursday Bam - Target
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Activity

Indicator

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

ED Attendances

ED Admission Rate %

Community Face to Face
Contacts

Elective and Daycase

Emergency Inpatients

GP Referrals to an Acute
Service

% of GP Referrals that
were completed via ERS
% e-Referral Service (e-
RS) Slot Issues

Maternity Births

Maternity Bookings

Outpatient DNA Rate % -
New

Qutpatient DNA Rate % -
FUp

Qutpatient New
Attendances

Outpatient FUp
Attendances

EMpatient Procedures

Target Jul-22 | Aug-22| Sep-22| Oct-22 | Nov-22| Dec-22 | Jan-23 | Feb-23| Mar-23| Apr-23 | May-23| Jun-23

9117 8081 8383 9392 9324 9287 8309 7891 8762 7988 8823
10.2% 10.6% 10.1% 9.0% 9.0% 10.3% 10.9% 9.9% 10.4% 10.6% 9.6%
41211 37835 40774 42836 46712 35201 44218 41048 46180 37499 44560

2178 2020 2304 2318 2393 1826 2233 2012 2152 1877 2221

1674 1686 1563 1626 1577 1631 1605 1468 1619 1395 1551

7627 7454 7364 8073 7400 6460 8037 7139 8077 6357 9746

82.7% 82.7% 81.3% B82.0% 80.5% 76.2% 73.4% 70.1% 71.4% 63.7% 60.1%

320 271 237 254 259 231 248 221 227 192 226
377 277 262 295 297 322 293 327 356 313 263
<10% 12.7% | 13.3% | 12.8% | 12.0% | 13.6% | 11.2% | 11.3% | 11.6% | 11.8% | 11.5%
<10% 10.7% | 10.5% ﬂ 10.4% | 11.6% | 9.8% ﬂ 10.1% | 9.8% | 10.1%

9325 9403 9475 9891 11488 9931 12372 11557 12238 10634 12128

15860 16466 18129 17340 18476 15440 17863 16412 17809 14743 17575

5988 6169 6285 6386 6490 5505 6457 5790 6559 5409 5723

9098

9.3%

45785

2413

1587

7825

54.1%

11.8%

10.5%

13082

18143

6365

ED Attendances

June 2023 - 9,098

This is an increase of 275
compared to 8,823 in May 2023.

This is a decrease of 289 from
9,387 in June 2022.

A EECS
June 2023 - 7,825

This is an decrease of 1,921

compared to 9,746 in May 2023.

This is an increase of 168 from
7,657 in June 2022.

Maternity Births
June 2023 - 228

This is an increase of 2

compared to 226 in May 2023.

This is a decrease of 34 from 262
in June 2022.

0 Y



Activity — Activity and Forecasts

Weekly Elective Activity

Current Year (WD Adj.) == = |atest 4 week freeze average
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e Current Year (WD Adj.) == == Latest 4 week freeze average 110% of BAU

2019/20 (WD Adj.) Last Year (WD Adj.)

W *All figures are subject to change

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Weekly Outpatient First Attendances
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O A

Activity and Forecasts Commentary

July’s performance is predicted to be below trajectory due to
impact from strike action.

Elective Activity: The position for elective activity in June was at 102% of
19/20 levels.

Outpatient First Appointments: The position for first appointments in
June was at 102% of 19/20 levels.

Outpatient Follow-up Appointments: The position for follow-up
appointments in June was at 86% of 19/20 levels. This is inline with productivity

improvements.
11 ﬂ



- NHS
ACthlty Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Acute DNA % Rate Outpatient DNA % Rate - New Outpatient DNA % Rate — Follow-Up

Activity Highlights

Community Activity: Community activity for June remained stable - There were 53,620 total contacts in June 2023 and there are currently 754 unoutcomed appointments for June.
Elective/Day Cases: There were 2,036 in the last 4 weeks of June 2023 (102% of 19/20 activity).
Outpatients: In the last 4 weeks of June there were 12,807 Firsts Appointments (102% of 19/20), and 11, 288 Follow-Ups (86% of 19/20)

DNA Rates: Acute DNA rate for June is 11.1% which is a worsening of 0.3% from May’s performance of 10.8%. Outpatient DNA rate for new appointments was 11.8% for June this is
a worsening of 0.3% from 11.5% in May. Outpatient DNA rates for Follow-up appointment was 10.5% for June this is a worsening of 0.4% from 10.1% in May.

Issues: DNA rates continue to breach Trust target of 10%. Outpatient Transformation working group are continuing to dedicate workstream time to the DNA agenda. In order to
implement change plans with the ambition to sustain DNA rates below 10%.

Actions: ICSU speciality level deep dives are continuing to be carried out to assess local speciality initiatives. Post assessment, specialities are implementing PDSA initiatives as a way
to monitor their successes and outputs. Initiatives include:

» Standards of coding and outcomes and compliance with trust access policy, particularly ‘reasonable notice’ when scheduling patient appointments.

* Review of text messages reminders- including change in narrative to illustrate missed appointment cost.

* Digital improvements: Continue to market Whittington’s patient portal platform (Phase 1). The benefits of which are empirically shown to support reduction to DNA rates through
notification of appointments, calendar appointment planner access to last letters.

* Alternative modality management including but not limited to; Patient Initiated Follow-Up, Consultant Connect, Advice and Guidance, and CAS (Clinical Assessment Service) Referral
Assessments.




NHS

[ ]
Effe Ctlve Whittington Health
NHS Trust
o o a- i -
Indicator Target Lo lieyote Latest Month Previous 2023-2024 \Variation Assurance % e-Referrals Service (e-RS) Slot Issues
Month Month -
Cancelled Ops not rebooked <28 i
Days 0 May 0 3 3 )
Hospital Cancelled Operations 0 May 5 9 8 e
Theatre Utilisation >85% Jun 76.87% 75.17% 76.26% ,,
Community DNA % Rate <10% Jun 7.8% 8.1% 8.0%
Acute DNA % Rate <10% Jun 11.1% 10.9% 11.0% @
tIV" eReferrals Service (e-RS) Slot o0 | 3y 56.5% 482% |  50.6% @
ssues
Outpatients New:Follow Up Ratio 2.3 Jun 1.39 1.45 1.41 @ | )
L
Non Elective Re-Admissions 0 0 .
within 30 days <5.5% Jun 3.73% 3.56% 3.67%
Rapid Response - % of referrals Jun 241% 75 90 24.9% @

with an improvement in care




Effective

What the Data Tells Us

% e-Referrals Appointment Slot Issues -
Target <4%

Number of electronic referrals unable to be
booked (due to no slots available) via e-RS (e-
referral system).

June Performance — 56.5%

This is a worsening of 8.3% from May’s
performance of 48.2%.

Theatre Utilisation - Target 85%

Percentage of available Theatre time used for
elective procedure.

June Performance — 76.87%

This is an improvement of 1.7% from May’s
performance of 75.17%.

Hospital Cancelled Operations - Target 0

No. of patients who have had their operation
cancelled.

May Performance - 5

This is a worsening of 2 from April’s
performance of 3

Issues

* Specialties experiencing higher than
planned ASl issues sit within Surgery and
Cancer ICSU.

* Management of available capacity.

* Capacity constraints across the surgical
specialities continues to impact slot
availability.

* Although there has been an increase in the
% if ASl issues this is due to less
appointments being booked via eRS rather
than an increase in the ASI backlog.

* Improved booking to avoid lists from
finishing earlier than expected and
impacting utilisation.

* Focus on correct case mix to ensure
maximise utilisation without overrun.

* Long waiting complicated cases have been
the main cause for extended operating
times resulting in lists over running and
operations being cancelled.

NHS

Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Actions and Mitigations

* Additional support from the Access team is reducing the tail end of the
backlog of longer waiters as a result long waiters are starting to reduce.

* ASIs are being monitored weekly at the PTL meeting.

* There has been significant improvement in the management of ASI’s within
Surgery. This has caused an increase in the overall backlog for the Trust.

* Services to agree booking rules with surgeons to ensure adequate number of
cases to fill lists.

* Continued review of lists at 6-4-2 to ensure adequate booking.

* To manage the risk of lists over running with appropriate case mixes,
limiting complicated procedures with long waits, and countering with
smaller day cases to avoid overrunning.

* To review processes around equipment check lists and increase timeline to
allow access from other provider.




: NHS
Ca ri ng Whittington Health

NHS Trust

pOEIEEL e Pl e ma et

Indicator Targe T e -8 -
s >
S ©
ED - FFT % Positive =090% Jun 78.1% 78.9% 80.3% @ 'g ?o
o c
o>
ED - FFT Response Rate >15% Jun 11.8% 12.3% 12.0% | g S
o
==
= LN
Inpatients - FFT % Positive »>90% Jun 95.3% 94,0% 94.4% @ I SN
L c
o c
Inpatients - FFT Response Rate >25% Jun 14.0% 17.0% 15.8% j_ / @l g '§
o O
Maternity - FFT % Positive >90% Jun 97.2% 97.8% 96.9% @ |
Complaints Responded to Within 25 or 40 Working Days - Target >80%
Maternity - FFT Response Rate  >15% Jun 4.0% 5.1% 5.0% @ @I
June Performance - 61.1%
. . . 0, 2 0,
Outpatients - FET % Positive > 00%, Tum 8470 £2.0% 93.8% ( .' | This is an improvement of 12.5% from May’s performance of 48.6%.
- 22 complaints required a response in June 2023, 3 of which were de-escalated
) _ and 1 was ‘out of time’ leaving 18 responses due for June 2023. The Complaints
Outpatients - FFT Response Rate 400 Jun 499 100 578 | | Team are working closely with the ICSUs to support with the completion of all
e complaint investigations. In the meantime, all urgent issues have been actioned.
Community - FFT % Positive >00% Jun 95.6% 94.0% 95.4% | ) | Severity of Complaints: 67% (12) were designated ‘low’ risk and 33% (6)
Nt were designated as ‘moderate’ risk
Community - FFT Response Rate 1500 Jun 984 828 2656 @ | Themes: A review of the complaints due a response in June 2023 shows that
‘Medical Care’ 28% (5), Communication’ 22% (4), and Nursing Care 22% (4),
Complaints responded to within  __ . run o1 1o 155 1 s @ @I were the main issues for complainants. , ,
25 or 40 working days Of the 11 complaints that have closed, 2 (18%) were ‘upheld’, and 9 (82%) were
’ H ? . 0, . .
Complaints (including complaints - . S . . | partflally upheld ,hmeanlng that 100% of the closed complaints were upheld in
igainst Corporate division) \_ / ) one form or another.
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Well Led

Indicator

Appraisals % Rate

Mandatory Training % Rate

Permanent Staffing WTEs
Utilised

MNational Quarterly Pulse
Survey (NQPS)

NQPSs staff % recommended
work

Staff Sickness abscence %

Staff Turnover %

Vacancy % Rate against
establishment

Average Time to Hire

Safe Staffing Alerts - Number
of Red Shifts

Safe Staffing - Overall Care
Hours Per Patient Day
| (CHPPD)

Previous
Month

Target LEStMTn'E“Ed Latest Month 2023-2024 Variation Assurance

>85%

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Appraisals % Rate - Target >85%

June Performance - 77%
This is an improvement of 3.1% from 73.9% in May.

Issues: Parts of the organisation that have had a lot of disruptions
due to strike actions and management changes have progressed
slower against target.

Actions: Facilities will be holding further group appraisals and have a
plan in place to reach compliance.

Staff Turnover % - Target <13%

June Performance - 13.4%
This is an improvement of 0.4% from May’s performance of 13.8%.

Issues: London and national vacancies remain high increasing staff’s
ability to change organisations.

Actions: Continued focus on retention of staff with a view to
introduce “stay interviews”.

Vacancy % Rate — Target <10%

June Performance - 11.2%
This is an improvement of 0.2% from May’s performance of 11.4%.

Issues: Vacancy rates remain high across NCL and London which is
further impacted by skills shortages.

Actions: Focus on preceptorship posts and apprenticeships to attract
a new pipeline of staff and offer development and qualifications.




Community Performance Dashboard

Indicator

IAPT Moving to Recovery

IAPT Waiting Times for Treatment
(% = & wks)

Haringey - 8wk Review % carried out
before child aged 8 weeks

Haringey - HR1 % carried out before
child agad 15 months

Haringey - HR2 % carried out before
child agad 30 months

Islington - Bwk Review % carried out
before child aged 8 weeks

Islington - HR1 % carried out before
child aged 15 mths

Islington - HR2 % carried out before
child aged 30 mths

% of MSK pts with a significant
improvement in function (PSFS)

% of Podiatry pts with a significant
improvement in pain (VAS)

ICTT - % Patients with self-directed
qgoals set at Discharge

ICTT - % GAS Scores improved or
remained the same at Discharge
REACH - % BBIC Scores improved or
remained the same at Discharge
Hackney Smoking Cessation: 92 who
set quit date & stopped after 4 we...
Islington Self-Management - Average
Increase in PAM Score

Haringey Self-Management - Average
‘Im:rease in PAM Score

NHS

Whittington Health
NHS Trust

Mar-23 | Apr-23 | May-23 | Jun-23 Performance

}SI]% 48.3% | 4/7.1% 53.1% | 50.7% | 52.5% 50.0%

40.5%

kel 03.3% | 90.5% | 94.1% | 95.0% 06.0%
NfA 66.0% 73.9% 65.6% 69.5% 69.2% 68.4% 65.3% 69.7% 71.3% 7B8.3% £9.9% 74.3%
NfA 75.5% 74.1% 69.7% 77.2% 742% 75.9% 71.0% 75.2% 73.3% 72.9% B4.4% 78.5%
NfA 743% 66.1% 75.5% 74.7% 72.7% 66.0% 71.4% 68.3% 69.9% 70.4% 69.3% 69.9%
NJA 77.3% 71.2% 71.5% 60.9% 68.6% 61.6% 71.7% 82.7% 76.0% 68.4% 69.6% 69.1%
M/A 56.8% 85.3% B80.2% 79.5% 86.56% 83.3% 80.9% 84.4% B84.5% B2.2% B3.2% 82.6%
NfA 77.2% 81.1% 87.8% 79.6% 82.9% B7.5% B4.0% 84.1% 82.8% 81.0% 83.1% 82.0%

79.9%

»>45% 53.29% a3l

62.2%

73.4%

091.2%

80.0%

85.7%

.0%

»>=0

»>=0
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Community Waiting Times

Bladder and Bowel - Children
Community Matron
Adult Wheelchair Service
Community Rehabilitation (CRT)
ICTT - Other

ICTT - Stroke and Meuro

Home-based Intermediate Care
Service
Community Bed-based Intermediate
Care Service

Paediatric Wheelchair Service
Bladder and Bowel - Adult
Musculoskeletal Service - CATS
Musculoskeletal Service - Routine
Nutrition and Dietetics
Podiatry (Foot Health)
Lymphodema Care
Tissue Viability
Cardiology Service
Diabetes Service

Respiratory Service

Community Waiting Times Dashboard - Routine Referrals

Spirometry Service

>05%

>05%

=95%

=95%

>05%

>05%

=95%

=95%

>05%

>05%

=95%

=95%

>05%

>05%

=95%

=95%

>05%

>05%

=95%

=95%

60.9%

Avg Wait
(Jun)

2.3

15.6

12.6

16.9

2.2

17.1

No. of Pis
Seen
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Bladder and Bowel - Children
Community Matron
Adult Wheelchair Service
Community Rehabilitation (CRT)
ICTT - Other

ICTT - Stroke and Neuro

Home-based Intermediate Care
Service
Community Bed-based Intermediate
Care Service

Paediatric Wheelchair Service
Bladder and Bowel - Adult
Musculoskeletal Service - CATS
Musculoskeletal Service - Routine
Nutrition and Dietetics
Podiatry (Foot Health)
Lymphodema Care
Tissue Viability
Cardiology Service
Diabetes Service
Respiratory Service

Spirometry Service

>95%

>95%

>95%

>095%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>095%

>095%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>95%

>095%

>95%

NHS

Whittington Health

2 100.0% | 100.0%

NHS Trust

No. of Pis

Seen



Community Waiting Times Whittington Health

NHS Trust

Adult Community Waiting Times - Commentary and Action Plan

Podiatry:

Efficiencies in productivity are now embedded and showing improvements in waiting times, particularly for follow ups. This will in turn have an effect on new
patients with currently 250 patients waiting over 18 weeks apposed to 422 in June an 667 patients in May. This improvement continues month on month. The
service has almost completed a demand and capacity review to ensure there is sufficient capacity within the service to meet demand.

Islington Community Neuro-Rehabilitation (ICRT):

Waiting times for neuro and stroke rehabilitation have grown in the last few months, a hangover effect of the pandemic but also very long length of stay (LOS).
Patients waiting for Physiotherapy (PT) and Occupational Therapy (OT) are the main areas of concern due to, less than optimal productivity. Kingsgate have
been supporting the service manager with a demand and capacity review. This has confirmed a productivity gap which is being addressed with weekly MDT
meetings, led by the service manager to provide check and challenge in order to optimise appropriate discharge and reduce lengths of stay. There has been a
reduction of 52 week + waits from 9 to 16 patients, slightly worse than last month but areas for improvement are being set by the Director of Operations.

Bladder and Bowel Service:

Kingsgate supported the clinical lead to complete a demand and capacity review and re-introduce group sessions. These started in April. The effect on waiting
times is beginning to be seen with only 4 referral referrals waiting 18 weeks plus waiting for an appointment (last month 11). The service will get back to
business as usual by quarter 3 with the capacity to take on more activity as appropriate in discussion with commissioners.

Musculoskeletal (MSK):

The six super Saturdays have not seen a sustained impact on waiting times. Self-management portal was introduced in April and will enable the service to
reduce waiting times. The effect of the self management portal will not be seem for 4-6 months. A Demand and capacity exercise is currently in progress with
outputs expected in the next couple of weeks. This service has very detailed and proficient job plans and will need further scrutiny once the demand and
capacity is completed. There is also a review of MSK services led by the MSK clinical lead. This will also review how services are delivered and may recommend
a revised model of care which could benefit the service.
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Children’s Community Waiting Times - Commentary and Action Plan

Therapy Services: Work continues with local borough partners and NCL ICB to address long waiting times for Speech and Language Therapy and Occupational
Therapy Services. This long term work is focused on securing additional investment to increase capacity and delivery of service transformation, including revising
the service offer across NCL. In Barnet and Haringey additional investment in 2023/24 will be used to strengthen the Universal therapies offer.

In June Barnet Occupational Therapy and Physiotherapy have continued to improve waiting times, with 100% of clients being seen within the 18 week target this
month. Speech and Language Therapy service has improved from 23% to 40% over the last quarter. These improvements link to recruitment drive and staff
filling vacancies (79% to 89% fully recruited).

In Islington the increase in waiting times for Speech and Language Therapy in mainstream schools has been exacerbated by increase in transfer of children with
autism from the social communication team. The service implemented tiered approach to provision is strengthening the universal offers to schools and families
and aims to reduce need to provide direct provision. There are continued challenges in Islington Occupational Therapy to meet increasing demand. From
September the tiered model focussing on universal offers will be implemented in Occupational Therapy.

Social Communication: It continues to be challenging to meet demand for autism assessments in Haringey and Islington. Long waiting times persist and
demand has continued to increase. Teams in both boroughs are continuing to review demand and capacity in the services and develop trajectories for waiting
times. Whittington Health continues to provide additional assessments via the NCL Neurodevelopmental hub to support a reduction in long waiting times across
NCL. Learning from this service is being shared with all providers across NCL and will influence service development over time. Over the next 3 months the
service will be working with other providers to develop a trajectory for waiting times across NCL.

Islington CAMHS: Average waiting times for CAMHS routine appointments continue to breach targets due to ongoing high demand for services within the
Getting More Help Thrive needs-based groupings: neurodevelopmental assessments and interventions for complex mental health presentations. Staff started to
come into post in June and July following increased ICB investment in the core offer which will improve waiting times. Work has begun to examine the core offer
in the CAMHS Therapies team to ensure best practice for CYP and endings of treatment to improve flow. The service is piloting the use of a commissioned
mental health intervention to improve access to CAMHS for under-represented groups.
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Meeting title

Trust Board — public meeting Date: 21 July 2023

Report title

2023/24 Quarter one delivery of
Corporate Objectives

Agenda item: 10

Director leads

Sarah Wilding, Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health
Professionals, Clare Dollery, Medical Director, Chinyama
Okonuga, Chief Operating Officer (Quality entries); Norma
French, Director of Workforce, (People entries); Jonathan
Gardner, Director of Strategy and Corporate Affairs
(integration entries and sustajnable 3 entry); and Kevin
Curnow, Chief Finance Officer (sustainable 1 and 2 entries)

Report author

Jonathan Gardner

Executive Board members are presented with the quarter one

summary outcomes for performance indicators linked to the delivery
of Whittington Health’s annual corporate objectives (see
appendix 1).
The Board is asked to note the report.

Purpose Note

Recommendation

Trust Board members are asked to receive and note the
outcomes against performance indicators for delivery of
Whittington Health’s corporate objectives in quarter one
2023/24.

Board Assurance
Framework

All entries

Report history

Trust Management Group, Executive team

Appendices

1: Q1 2023/24 delivery of corporate objectives
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2023/24 objectives
QUARTER ONE
UPDATE
V6



Deliver outstanding safe and compassionate B vorse
care in partnership with patients f better

Committee: Qualit ame
S S S S Juatty ;

<> Exec: Chief Nurse / MD

Readmission rate 5.5% 3.56% f ED 4hr 95% 66% PALS response time s0% 45.0%

Pressure ulcers Reduce  Average 8inql ‘ Adult community Improve

grd. 4and 3 metrics green @ 48hrs DN referral 95% 83% ;
FFT %satisfaction ~ 90% IPAverageq94% i~  Child community Improve s 2hr referral N/A 80% .

* BacktotheFloor has been embedded intopractice within Nursing and Midwifery, with a focus now
to embed for AHPS. Themes haveincluded; medicines management, Pressure Ulcer management,
Infection Prevention and equipment management. Future focus on Patient Experience.

* Fundingagreed forsenior clinicianto leadthe vulnerable adultagenda

* QualityAccounthas been finalised with stakeholder input e.g. ICB community networks and sent to
NHSE. Ithas been uploaded onto the Trust Website.

¢ Blood Transfusion, Implementation of Veinto Vein system, including el ectronic transfusion
documentationthis has been halted due to contract negotiations taking place.

* Governancerecoveryplan:

- Outstanding DOC requirements reduced by 25% from May—June 2023

- Total Policies duefor review;53% (61% inJanuary 2023) of which32%arenon

clinical, 16% clinical, 4% Operational

- Complaints: Q1 sawan increase in complaints from Q4 (from 54 to 83), though the performance
againstthe80%targetto respondremained steady—a drop from59%inQ4 to 53%inQ1, despite
quitea significantincreasein volume.

- Age profile of complaint backlog, shows an improvementi.e. reduction from 10
complaints over 6 monthsold,to 4 .

¢ PSIRF:Implementation and T&F groups in progress. AMD lead from Aug. Training costs to be
considered.

e MiISYear 5 guidancereceived andplans been putinplaceto build on previous years

¢ The Trustcontinues to experience demandandflow challengesinthe Urgent Emergency Care
pathway. Following Support from ECIST and PA Consulting, animprovement plan is aboutto be
launched. Thisincludes reducing Length of Stay with the 50 daychallenge; Improve ward process by
reintroducing PM Board rounds; Devel oping direct access pathways into SDEC, Assessment areas,
Hot Clinics to reduce demand and footfall in ED

* Recovery plans have been developed to improve access for Elective patients including a review of
Outpatients pathways and management with centralisation option under consideration. Additional
capacity agreed for specific specialties with the support of ISPs.

* Recently appointed a Cancer Manager to improve the oversight of pathways. Funding Investment
agreedinthe23/24 budgetto increase pathway coordinators and MDT Trackers. Recruitment
underway.




~P~ worse
Empower support and develop engaged Exec: Workforce Director / COO | gu  pevcer
taff =) s
. ame
sta Committee: WAC
and RAG
Turnover rate 13% 13.8% p—
Staff Sickness 3.5% 3.5% Relative likelihood of 1
Vacancy rate 10% 11.4% ’ disciplinary for
Likelihood BAME 1 1.52 BAME
Appraisal rate 90% 73.9% f candidate being ﬁ
appointed % staff 65% 59.2%
Mandatory 90%  85.9% - ,;zofnmending WH ’ > N
training Staff Survey /People Pulse  20% 50.9% 5 WEED [ Wark
Response rate - i

* Fundingapproved to create a Staff Engagementand Wellbeing Lead post.
Advertised July 2023

Creationofthe WH “Wellbeing Wheel”

Staff Survey 5 Key Actions agreed and programme of engagement launched in
July 2023 - each with an Executive Sponsor

Improvement to WRES indicators

Workforce domains of the EDS 2022 to be assessed withthe Partnership Group in
September

2022/23PSED dueto be consideredat October WAC meeting

* Strongrecruitment pipeline comprising: graduate nurses, international nurses,
international midwives AHPs and HCSWs

* Futureleaders programme forconsultant medical staffin place

* Bands 2—7 programme for staff from a black, Asian or minority ethnic
backgroundinits second cohort and a third to be commissioned

* Admin Forumled by COO and a member of the Admi team

* Reviewon non-clinical support to clinicalteams being discussed

e Reciprocal mentoring programme launched

L] L] L] L] L]

The EDS 2022 assessmentis dueto take placein September 2013
CDC now receiving 72% of referrals fromthe first 3 deciles of deprivation
Population Health reportbeing updated for the Autumn

Well-led review has been commissioned and started. Extra board meetingto be arrangedin
Sept/Oct to discuss findings beforefinal reportto Oct Board.

Premises assurance model is underway and will be submitted in Sept.

6 facet survey completed. New governance being putin placefirst performance meeting held.



* worse
Exec: Director of Strategy / COO - vetter

Committee: Board =) same

Integrate care with partners and
promote health and well-being

* Trusthastaken thelead in moving towards borough based partnerships. The staff
movement and consultation has been undertaken. Waiting to embed the change

* Stronger relationships with Primary care with the COO as a key stakeholder inthe
CIG meetings

* Transformation Programme for Children’s services is underway following new
investmentin 2023/24

*  Workstreams have been established to progress service changes and
improvements

* CDCprogrammeontimeand on budgetto open MRI and CTin December.
Activity for phase one going well, xray and ophthalmology activity improving, all
directaccess pathwaysinplace.

* Jointboard committee has been setup and has metonce

* Casefor collaborationhas been drafted and will be considered at the nextboard
committee meeting

* Continued strong participation in the system and UCLHA




Transform and develop financially
sustainable innovative services

Key metrics Target

% CIP delivery against
target

Annual Target 100% (£17.98m)

Targetat endof Q1 15% (£2.70m)  (A1%of target).

Average beds used 197 244

Financial position Annual Plan (£2.0m surplus)

Plan to end of Q1 (£6.9m deficit)
plan.

Capital spend against Annual Plan is £24.9m (£12.2m
plan internally funded and £12.7m
PDC). which is £2.2m above plan.

£1.11m delivered atend of Q1

£8.3m deficit reported atend of
Q1 which is £1.4m worse than

£2.92m internally funded &
£1.3m PDC utilised at end of Q1

Exec: Finance Director / COO

[
-
¥
-

-

Committee: TMG
N [ e Jwo |

Average LOS Non-elective 5.5 5.7 f
% super stranded pts 18% 20.6% f
Elective activity against recovery plan 104% of 104.8%

2019/20 f
Theatre utilisation >85% 76.87 f
Virtual vs face to face outpatients 25% 14.75% ‘

2023/24financial planto be breakeven as a system and a surplus of £2m for
the Trust. CIP programme of £18mand nonrecurrentsolutions as
mitigation forslippage/

The Trustisreporting a deficitof £8.3mattheend of Q1 whichis£1.4m
worsethan plan. The planned deficit for Q1 was £6.9m.

Green plan signed off by board

Internal capital allocation of c£12m. Majority risk profiled. Some estates
detail to be completed.

Working with | CB to identify funding opportunities for fire remediation,
maternity and power infrastructure

Fireremediation businesscase being drafted withaim of the autumn
System support for maternity and neonates limited due to priority of power
and firerisks andthe limited availability of capital, and the Start Well
process. However, £1m allocated for continuation of designwork.

Wood Green health hub progressing at pace, negotiating with landlords on
lease.

Power improvement programme approved, with £3-5m expenditure
planned this year.

EPR FBC decision coming to boardthis month

Business intelligence functionimproving through introduction of ibox
dashboard for managing flow and the first “Power Bl” dashboards being
created

IM&T successfully migrated the el ectronic document management systems
to CCubeand alsoshared extended care notes from community based
system RIO to carecentricforgreater visibility to colleagues across the
integrated care organisation.
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Meeting title Trust Board — public meeting Date: 21 July 2023
Report title Charitable Funds Committee Chair’'s | Agenda item: 11

Assurance report

Executive director leads

Kevin Curnow, Chief Finance Officer

Report author

Marcia Marrast-Lewis — Assistant Trust Secretary

Executive summary

In line with governance arrangements, this Committee Chair’s
report reports on areas of assurance on the items considered at
the 22 May 2023 Charitable Funds Committee meeting which
included:

Month 12 Finance Report including Fund Balances.
Charity Report

Applications for funding

Review of gift and fundraising activities

Other key issues:
There were no items covered at these meetings for which the
Committee is reporting limited assurance to the Trust Board.

Purpose:

Noting

Recommendation(s)

Board members are invited to note the Chair's assurance report
for the Charitable Funds Committee meeting held on 22 May 2023
and the applications for funding agreed.

Risk Register or Board
Assurance Framework

Sustainability 1

Report history

Public Board meetings following each committee meeting

Appendices

None
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Commiittee Chair’s Charitable Funds Committee

Assurance report:

Date of meeting 22 May 2023

Summary of assurance:

1.

The committee can report significant assurance to the Trust Board in the
following areas:

Month 12 Finance Report

e The Charity’s reported income to March 2023 was £439k which included £29k of
dividend income, grant income of £42k; donations of £387k and legacies of £23k.

e Expenditure to month 12 was £778k and includes all committed bids which have not
yet been expended.

e The Stuttering Foundation contributed £208k of income which matched £208k of
expenditure.

e The total fund balance as of 31 March 2023 was £1,736m, down from £2.170m in
the previous year.

e Endowment funds were £18Kk, restricted funds £1.232m and unrestricted fund £486k.

The Committee was advised that work to transfer the Charity’s investment portfolio to a
new fund manager was almost complete.

The Committee discussed the treatment of unspent bids and were assured that
unspent bids were recorded as a creditor on the balance sheet. It was agreed should
bids remain unspent after one year the bid would be reversed.

More Partnership - gift fundraising reviews

The Committee received a presentation from the More Partnership who were
commissioned to carry out a review of the Charity’s fundraising activity at the Trust.
The review identified encouraging areas of performance, which was underpinned by
good support from staff and patients and a robust grant making strategy and
governance framework. However, some resourcing issues were found which related to
the size of the team in relation to the breadth of work and projects undertaken.
Additionally, the Charity needed greater support from Trust leaders both internally and
externally. There were good opportunities to grow the Charity which would require
longer term relationship building with key donors.

A number of recommendations were suggested that would improve fundraising
activities and develop major gift opportunities. Good progress had already been made
in respect of proposition development and the identification of Charity Champions
which would dispense with the need for a fundraising committee/board. It was
suggested that 3 or 4 champions would be matched to propositions which would be the
most effective way forward for the size of the charity. The Committee discussed the
projects that could actively be put forward as propositions to champions to build long
term relationships. Relationships had already been established with the dementia
garden project, the Michael Palin Centre and Humanising ITU project. Local
connections would be sought for Tynemouth Road Health Centre and the Maternity and
Neonatal redevelopment project. It was suggested that further opportunities could be
found in the Integrated Care Sector and the community.
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The Committee discussed additional resources needed to take the work forward. More
Partnership recommended that two new team members be recruited who could focus
on major gifts and grant making with a focus on measuring impact of grants.

The Committee thanked More Partnership for their presentation and agreed that
discussions were a helpful medium by which to improve the effectiveness of the
Charity.

Charity Report
The Committee received a report outlining the following activity for the period 8
February 2023 to 9 May 2023. During the period the following items were considered:

e More Partnership Public Fundraising Review
e More Partnership Major Gift Fundraising Review

e Establishing a staff hardship fund paper
The Committee considered the proposal to establish a hardship fund for staff using
charitable funds, in response to the cost-of-living crisis. Under the proposal staff
would be able to apply for a hardship grant of up to £500. The committee noted
that such a fund could not be set up using Trust (NHS) resources but establishing a
fund within the charity is complex as the charity is not independent of the Trust,
which is its corporate trustee. A further difficulty with setting up such a hardship
fund is that the charity’s objects do not include the relief of poverty and so arguably
a hardship fund would not fall within the objects. Furthermore, it was noted that
NHS Charities were finding that donors are no longer interested in giving to staff
wellbeing initiatives, a situation which may be exacerbated by current strike action.

In discussion the Committee felt that establishing a hardship fund was not
appropriate but suggested that some thought be given to how the Trust could
increase benefits to staff.

The Committee declined the request to set up a hardship fund for staff.

The Committee reviewed the Charity’s fundraising activity for the reported period:

e £30k annual gift was received 2023/24

e A pledge of £1.25m for the Michael Palin Centre was agreed in principle and would
be formally agreed once the intellectual property issue with the name had been
resolved.

¢ No significant progress had been made in respect of the Dementia Courtyard save
for an agreement with Grahams, the Trust P22 Contractors to support the project.

e A donor had contacted the Charity to discuss a donation of a mobile CT scanner.
While acknowledging the generosity of this offer it would be difficult to accept as
what is needed is an on-site scanner in the emergency department. Discussions
would continue with the donor before a final decision was made.

e An offer to build a Chelsea Flower show type garden at Simmonds House had
been received as well as a donation of £25k

e Whittington Hospital’'s WI-FI Project is expected to transform and boost the number
of charity supporters and subscribers. The first test of the platform is scheduled to
take place in July.
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e The past patient mail drop took place in April 2023 where over 10.5k past patients
were invited by letter to consent to opt-in to the charity’s database. A disappointing
response rate of circa 1% was achieved and some analysis was planned to
determine reasons for the poor response.

e The Charity had explored ‘cold door drop’ mailing which would consist of mailing
approximately 34k individuals who lived within 1 mile of the hospital. A mail drop
campaign was likely to be successful if it was carried out at least once a year,
preferably before Christmas but after school holidays. Geographically, the Trust
was well placed to reach an economically diverse population which could give
result in potentially large donations. A late summer/early autumn campaign would
be considered.

The Committee discussed the merits of a door drop campaign, it was felt that the return
on investment was unknown and that the correspondence was likely to end up as “junk
mail”, the effectiveness of such a campaign could only be determined after several door
drops had been undertaken. The Committee agreed that a door drop should be kept
on hold, pending the outcome of the other campaigns that were already in progress
and yielding good results.

The Committee noted the report.

The Committee is reporting moderate assurance to the Board on the following
matters:

Applications for Funding

The Committee reviewed and approved bids received, including the following:

» Refurbishment of clinic 4 - £3,430

» Hospital WIFI - £6,300

» Charity Branding - £13,659

The Committee discussed the bid for complementary therapy for cancer patients for
£26,213. It was agreed that the Committee would review the bid once clarification had

been obtained in relation to MacMillan Cancer Support’s ongoing involvement with
complementary therapies.

Matters for escalation to the Trust Board

1. Managing outreach for new supporters.

2. ldentification of projects/propositions to link with Charity Champions.

3. Review of the Charity’s fundraising and gift giving activities undertaken by the More
Partnership.

Attendance:

Amanda Gibbon, Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair)

Julia Neuberger, Chair

Naomi Fulop, Non-Executive Director

Kevin Curnow, Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Executive

Jonathan Gardner, Director of Strategy, Development & Corporate Affairs
Helen Brown, Chief Executive

Clare Dollery, Medical Director

Katherine Mobey, Fundraising Manager

Sam Lister, Head of Charity
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Martin Linton, Assistant Director Financial Services
Rodolphe Gouin, Partner More Partnership

Thom Hipwood, Partner More Partnership

Marcia Marrast-Lewis, Assistant Trust Secretary

Apologies
Sarah Wilding, Chief Nurse & Director of Allied Health Professionals
Vivien Bucke, Business Support Manager
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